CITY COUNCIL Guelph
AGENDA P

Making a Difference

DATE June 27,2011 -7 p.m.

Please turn off or place on non-audible all cell phones, PDAs, Blackberrys and
pagers during the meeting.

O Canada
Silent Prayer
Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest

PRESENTATION

a) Commanding Officer Lieutenant-Colonel K.P.]. Doyle with respect to the
11'™" Field Regiment and their role.

b) Peter Busatto presentation of the Ontario Water Works Association
(OWWA) Water Efficiency Award of Excellence - Public Sector Award to
Mayor Farbridge

c) Presentation of the "I Love Guelph Tap Water” youth video contest
winners.

d) Guelph Junction Railway - presentation of Annual Report

CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES (Councillor Findlay)

"THAT the minutes of the Council Meetings held May 24, 25, 30 and June 7, 2011
and the minutes of the Council meetings held in Committee of the Whole on May
24, 30 and June 7, 2011 be confirmed as recorded and without being read.”

CONSENT REPORTS/AGENDA - ITEMS TO BE EXTRACTED

The following resolutions have been prepared to facilitate Council’s consideration of
the various matters and are suggested for consideration. If Council wishes to
address a specific report in isolation of the Consent Reports/Agenda, please identify
the item. The item will be extracted and dealt with separately. The balance of the
Consent Reports/Agenda will be approved in one resolution.

Consent Reports/Agenda from:

Audit Committee

Item City Presentation | Delegations To be

Extracted
AUD-1 2010 City of Guelph
Audited Financial
Statements
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Adoption of balance of Audit Committee Second Consent Report - Councillor
Wettstein, Chair

Community & Social Services Committee

Item City Presentation | Delegations Tobe o
CSS-1 Special Events
Coordination &
Logistics
CSS-2  Guelph Public Library e Kitty Pope, CEO Vv
Bookmobile Service Guelph Public
Review Library
* Alan Pickersgill,
Chair, Guelph
Public Library Board
* Virginia Gillham,
Chair, Friends of
the Library
CSS-3 Discretionary Social
Services Funeral
Directors Fees Update
CSS-4  Guelph Vision for a « Barbara Powell vV
Complete
Community: A
Conversation
Document
CSS-5 Public Art Policy
CSS-6 Fireworks Permit
Request from Pine
Ridge East
Community

Adoption of balance of Community & Social Services Committee Sixth
Consent Report - Councillor Laidlaw, Chair

Corporate Administration, Finance & Emergency Services Committee

Item

City Presentation

Delegations

To be
Extracted

CAFES-1 Lease Agreement -

Guelph Humane
Society

CAFES-2 Proposed Sale of

Land and Easement

Page 2 of 6

CITY OF GUELPH CITY COUNCIL AGENDA




Tricar Developments
Inc.

CAFES-3 Lawn Bowling

License Agreement

CAFES-4 Lease Agreement -
Kidsability Centre
for Child
Development — West
End Community

Centre

CAFES-5 2010 Operating
Budget Variance
Report as at

December 31, 2010

Adoption of balance of Corporate Administration, Finance & Emergency Services
Committee Fifth Consent Report - Councillor Hofland, Chair

Operations & Transit Committee

Item City Presentation | Delegations Tobe e
OT -1 Animal Control * Gaynor Fletcher 4
Agreement « Barbara Miller
« Dr. Kate Flanigan
OT -2 Transit Advisory
Committee
OT -3 Snow Angels Program
OT -4 Open Air Urinals -

Pilot Conclusion

Adoption of balance of Operations & Transit Committee Fifth Consent Report -

Councillor Findlay, Chair

Planning & Building, Engineering and Environment Committee

Item

City Presentation

To be
Extracted

Delegations

PBEE-1 Sign By-law Variance
for 951 Gordon Street
(Manhattan Music
Club and Pizza Bistro)

PBEE-2 Notice of Intention to
Designate 81
Farquhar Street,
Pursuant to the
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Ontario Heritage Act

PBEE-3 Notice of Intention to
Designate 72
Farquhar Street (Drill
Hall), Pursuant to the
Ontario Heritage Act

PBEE-4 Stormwater
Management Master
Plan

PBEE-5 The Highland
Companies’
Melancthon Township
Quarry Proposal -
Assessment of Impact
to Guelph’s Water

Supply

PBEE-6 City of Guelph Water + Wayne Galliher 4
Conservation Program
- Benefits Overview

PBEE-7 Notice of Intention to
Designate 2162
Gordon Street
(Marcolongo Farm)
Pursuant to the
Ontario Heritage Act

PBEE-8 Residential Waste
Collection Service
Review

Adoption of balance of Planning & Building, Engineering and Environment
Committee Fourth Consent Report - Councillor Piper, Chair

Council Consent Agenda
Item City Presentation | Delegations oD red

A-1) 129 Baxter Drive -
Upcoming Ontario
Municipal Board
Hearing (A-1/11),
Ward 6

A-2) 387 Ironwood Road -
Upcoming Ontario
Municipal Board
Hearing (A-13/11),
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Ward 6

A-3) Purchase of Four (4)
Conventional Buses
from City of Guelph
Contract No. 11-107

A-4) PPP Canada - Wilson
Street Parking Facility
- Information Report

A-5) 1897 Gordon Street
(Bird Property):
Proposed Draft Plan of
Subdivision, Official
Plan Amendment and
Zoning By-law
Amendment (File 23T-
08505/0P0801/ZC030
6) - Ward 6

A-6 Request to Assign Part
of License Agreement
Between the City of
Guelph and Ecotricity
Guelph Inc. Regarding
Solar Photovoltaic
Installations

Adoption of balance of the Council Consent Agenda - Councillor

Other
Item City Presentation | Delegations Tobe ed

(e.g. notices of motion for
which notice was given)

ITEMS EXTRACTED FROM COMMITTEES OF COUNCIL REPORTS
AND COUNCIL CONSENT AGENDA (Chairs to present the extracted
items)
Once extracted items are identified, they will be dealt with in the following order:
1) delegations (may include presentations)
2) staff presentations only
3) all others.

Reports from:
e Audit Committee - Councillor Wettstein
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Community & Social Services — Councillor Laidlaw

Corporate Administration, Finance & Emergency Services — Councillor Hofland
Operations & Transit — Councillor Findlay

Planning & Building, Engineering and Environment - Councillor Piper

» Council Consent — Mayor Farbridge

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS

BY-LAWS
Resolution — Adoption of By-laws (Councillor )

QUESTIONS

MAYOR’'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
Please provide any announcements, to the Mayor in writing, by 12 noon on
the day of the Council meeting.

NOTICE OF MOTION
ADJOURNMENT
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Junction Railway Company

June 27™ 2011

Prepared By:
Guelph Junction Railway

Guelph Junction Railway Company

clo City Hall, 1 Carden Street
Guelph, Ontario, Canada N1H 3A1
Tel: (519) 836-4848 Fax: (519) 837-5636
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June 27", 2011

Mayor Karen Farbridge
And
Members of Council

RE: Guelph Junction Railway Annual Shareholder Meeting

In fiscal terms 2010 showed some positive economic growth as industry sought to recover
from the world wide recession. Although a year to year increase of 20% in railcar traffic
shows promise, one must remain cautious in that current traffic levels still have not fully
recovered to pre recession levels. The Guelph Junction Railway in a prudent and
conservative business approach continued with its Recessionary Action Plan which matched
expenditures to revenues to maintain positive cash flow while meeting corporate objectives.
I am happy to say that this was again successful and the Guelph Junction Railway is well
positioned for participation in further economic recovery.

Looking ahead, we continue to see tremendous opportunities. The Guelph Junction Railway
will continue to align itself with the City’s Strategic Plan. We believe that growth will come
from the emerging green energy sector, new agri-food business, increased existing customer
production and brown field redevelopment. As the economy continues to recovet, the
Guelph Junction Railway stands ready to offer Guelph’s industties low environmental
impact, sustainable and economically competitive customized rail transportation services.

Ben Boehm, P.Eng.
President
Guelph Junction Railway

Guelph Junction Railway Company

clo City Hall, 1 Carden Street
Guelph, Ontario, Canada N1H 3A1
Tel: (519) 836-4848 Fax: (519) 837-5636



Junction Railway Company

Board of Directors and Corporate Officers

Board of Directors

David Jennison— Chairman
John Carroll - Vice Chairman
Leanne Piper— Director
Paul Smith — Director
David Clarke — Director
Stephen Host— Director
Cam Guthrie — Director
Andy Van Hellemond — Director

Jim Furfaro— Director

Corporate Officers

Ben Boehm, P.Eng. — President
Susan Aram — Secretary Treasurer

Tom Sagaskie — General Manager

Guelph Junction Railway Company

clo City Hall, 1 Carden Street
Guelph, Ontario, Canada N1H 3A1
Tel: (519) 836-4848 Fax: (519) 837-5636



nction Railway Company

GUELPH JUNCTION RAILWAY
2010 YEAR END
FINANCIAL REPORT

Prepared by the Guelph Junction Railway

Guelph Junction Railway Company

¢lo City Hall, 1 Carden Street
Guelph, Ontario, Canada N1H 3A1
Tel: (519) 836-4848 Fax: (519) 837-5636



Junction Railway Company

Financial Executive Summary

2009
Revenue $ 1,141,487
Expenses $ 1,166,183
Profit (Loss) ( $24,6906)

2010

$ 1,502,502

$ 1,365,222

$137,280

Business Plan
Projections

$ 1,131,800
$ 1,131,400

$ 400

Guelph Junction Railway Company

cfo City Hall, 1 Carden Street
Guelph, Ontario, Canada N1H 3A1
Tel: (519) 836-4848 Fax: (519) 837-5636



Junction Railway Company

2010 Overview and Future Challenges

2010 Overview

Railcar traffic in 2010 showed a 20% increase over 2009 totals. Although this shows promise
in that it appears an economic recovery is underway, overall traffic has yet to fully recover to
pre recession levels. During 2010 the Guelph Junction Railway continued with its
Recessionary Action Plan carefully matching expenditures to revenues. This action allowed
the railway to operate in a positive cash flow situation meeting all its financial obligations,
Transport Canada Operating Standards and maintaining shareholder value. As demand for
local products increases, so will the demand for rail transportation services.

Environmental Benefit Indices

The Guelph Junction Railway monitors its positive environmental effects as a performance
mdicator of its benefit to the community. Local industries by utilizing rail transportation
with its greater fuel efficiency can create significant greenhouse gas reductions as well as
other savings related to truck movements over roads. In 2010 the City’s industries consumed
145,113 tonnes of material which was moved by the Guelph Junction Railway and its inner
connected Class 1 National Railway Carriers. This total movement by rail, an average of
2500 km per load resulted in a saving of 12,800 tonnes of greenhouse gas emissions when
compared to overland trucking. This rail utilization avoided 14,024,640 km of highway
trucking which saved a total of $960,000 in marginal highway costs as calculated the US
DOT Highway Cost Schedule. In Ontario alone utilizing rail avoided 3,869,600 km of
highway truck travel and saved $199,000 in highway costs.

Within the City of Guelph itself 7,486 transport truck trips representing 263,424 km of local
road travel was avoided saving the City $59,600 in marginal road maintenance costs. This
local move alone accounted for 170,240 kg of greenhouse gas savings.

Future Challenges

Although indicated in the graph below, some economic recovery appears to be underway.
The railway’s long range financial planning itself has conservatively estimated that a full
recovery to 2007 pre recession levels will not occur until approximately 2012. On a forward
looking positive note, all the railway’s customers have weathered the recession to date and
they themselves remain well positioned to patticipate in the economic recovery. Additionally,
the railway continues to work in cooperation with existing customers who wish to increase
their business and we expect positive financial impacts from this to begin in 2012.

Guelph Junction Railway Company

cfo City Hall, 1 Carden Street
Guelph, Ontario, Canada N1H 3A1
Tel: (519) 836-4848 Fax: {519) 837-5636
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Junction Railway Company
Goals and Performance Objectives

The Guelph Junction Railway’s Board of Directors has set the following goals and objectives
to guide its governance:

Objective Met
(Red/Yellow/Green)
1. Railway operations, growth and business development shall be G
undertaken so as to be supportive of the congruent with the 1ssll
City’s strategic objectives.
2. Business affairs shall be conducted in the best interests of the Green

Community the railway setves.

3. Cutrrent infrastructure and asset value shall be maintained to ensure

continuous service within regulatory requirements and to cater to Green
continuously evolving industry standards.

4. Revenue base shall be grown by consistently seeking to increase Greent
current customer traffic and by seeking out new customers through S ;
existing and new setvice agreements.

5. New facilities and business opportunities shall be developed to Yellow
augment the asset value and annual traffic for the future.

6. The railway shall conduct its affairs as a good corporate citizen G

and neighbor.

RN

The governance of the railway is monitored through the following performance
measures:

1. Maintenance of safety and regulatory standards as measure by Green
positive results from regulatory audits and a zero tolerance for
accidents;
Green

2. Maintenance of a positive cash flow;
3. Maintenance or growth of annual rail car traffic counts; Green

4. Maintenance or growth of the environmental benefit index
provided by the railroad using Federal or Provincial indices Creent
(e.g. Greenhouse gas counts, truck miles saved) as applicable.

Guelph Junction Railway Company

clo City Hall, 1 Carden Street
Guelph, Ontario, Canada N1H 3A1
Tel: (519) 836-4848 Fax: (519) 837-5636



Guelph Junction Railway Activities which support
City Strategic Objectives

1.4 Sustainable transportation approach... comnectivity to all parts of North
America

1.6 Balanced tax assessment ratio... new business development in  all
industrialf inner city Jomes

3.1 Sustainable local employment opportunities... our customers employ
2100

3.6 City as tourist destination... supporting Guelph Junction Express tourist train
excenrsions

54 Partnershjps to achieve strategic goals. .. city owned railway, opportunities
to grow through acquisitions and partnerships with other short-line railways and customers.

6.2 Less greenhouse gas emissions. .. railway as primary industrial Iransporiation
method

6.0 Leader in conservation and resource protection... GJR is working
with Advanced Micro Polymers Ltd. in testing bio degradable vegetation control products

Guelph Junction Railway Company

cfo City Hall, 1 Carden Street
Guelph, Ontario, Canada N1H 3A1
Tel: {519) 836-4848 Fax: (519) 837-5636



Budget Performance and Variance Report

Business

Plan Actual/
Revenue Actual Budget Projection | budget/Variance
Freight Movement $1,084,691 $995,700 $995,700
Non Freight/Recoverable $417,811 | $136,100 $136,100

Total | $1,502,502 | $1.131,800 | $1,131,800 +33%
Expenses (less interest, taxes,
depreciation)
Freight Movement and maintenance $877,270 $862,200 $862,200
Audit $11,559 $11,500 $11,500
Administration/Office/Audit/insurance/, etc $134,554 $164,000 $164,000
Third party recoverable $187,417 $0 $0
Subtotal $1,210,800 | $1,037,700 | $1,037,700
Net Earnings $291,702 $94,100 $94,100
Less Interest/Taxes & Depreciation $154,422 $93,700 $93,700
Total $137,280 | $400 $400 +34,320
Profit (Loss) $137,280 $400 $400

Statement of material breach of the Shareholders Declaration on violation of law

In accordance with Section 6.2 of the Shareholder Declaration the Board of Directors of the
Guelph Junction Railway advises Council that no material breach of the requirements of the

Shareholder Declaration or violation of law has occurred.

Guelph Junction Railway Company

cfo City Hall, 1 Carden Street

Guelph, Ontario, Canada N1H 3A1
Tel: (519) 836-4848 Fax: (519) 837-5636



Financial statements of

Guelph Junction Railway Company

December 31, 2010



Guelph Junction Railway Company
December 31, 2010
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Deloitte.
4210 King Street East
Kitchener ON N2P 2G5
Canada

Tel: 519-850-7600
Fax: 519-650-7601
www.deloitte.ca

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholder of
Guelph Junction Railway Company

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Guelph Junction Railway Company, which
comprise the balance sheet as at December 31, 2010, and the statements of net income (loss) and retained
earnings and of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

ttember of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Guelph Junction Railway Company as at December 31, 2010, and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Dotoitte ¢ Toudhs L

Chartered Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants
May 12, 2011



Guelph Junction Railway Company

Statement of net income (loss) and retained earnings
year ended December 31, 2010

2010 2009
$ $
Revenue
Freight movement 1,084,691 880,268
Non-freight movement 339,605 153,349
Grant revenue (Note 6) 15,681 10,614
Amortization of deferred capital contributions 42,312 44 075
Other 20,213 43,181
1,502,502 1,141,487
Expense

Audit 11,559 11,651
Amortization 140,956 139,472
Freight movement and track maintenance 877,270 766,713
Administration and office 148,020 119,165
Lease - 85,902
Other 187,417 43,280
1,365,222 1,166,183
Net income (loss) for the year 137,280 (24,696)
Retained earnings, beginning of year 5,584,351 5,609,047
Retained earnings, end of year 5,721,631 5,584,351
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Guelph Junction Railway Company

Balance sheet

as at December 31, 2010
2010 2009
$ $
Assets
Current assets
Cash 329,045 347,242
Accounts receivable 311,396 240,245
Prepaid expenses 350 350
Inventory 16,569 35,618
657,360 623,455
Property, plant and equipment (Note 3) 6,380,157 6,384,834
7,037,517 7,008,289
Liabilities, share capital and surplus
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 103,193 55,700
Deferred revenue 2,655 -
Due to City of Guelph (Note 4) 194,540 310,428
300,388 366,128
Deferred capital contributions (Note 5) 1,015,497 1,057,809
1,315,885 1,423,937
Share capital 1 1
Retained earnings 5,721,631 5,584,351
5,721,632 5,584,352
7,037,517 7,008,289
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Guelph Junction Railway Company

Statement of cash flows
year ended December 31, 2010

2010 2009
$ $
Operating activities
Cash from operations
Net income (loss) 137,280 (24,696)
ltems not affecting cash
Amortization of deferred capital contributions (42,312) (44,075)
Amortization of property, plant and equipment 140,956 139,472
Changes in non-cash operating working capital components
Increase in accounts receivable {71,151) (6,890)
Decrease in inventory 19,049 -
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 47,493 {33,938)
Increase in deferred revenue 2,655 -
233,970 29,873
investing activity
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment {136,279) (82,779)
Financing activity
(Decrease) increase in due to City of Guelph {115,888) 101,629
(Decrease) increase in cash during the year {18,197} 48,723
Cash, beginning of year 347,242 298,519
Cash, end of year 329,045 347,242

Page 5



Guelph Junction Railway Company
Notes to the financial statements
December 31, 2010

1. Description of business

Guelph Junction Railway Company (the "Company”) was incorporated under the laws of Canada in
1884. The Company is wholly owned by The City of Guelph and is exempt from income taxes. The
Company is engaged in the rail and related transportation business in Southwestern Ontario.

2. Significant accounting policies

Private enterprises are not required to apply the following Sections of the CICA Handbook: 3855,
Financial Instruments -~ Recognition and Measurement; 3862, Financial Instruments — Disclosures; and
3863, Financial Instruments — Presentation, which would otherwise have applied to the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2010. The Company has elected to use
this exemption and accordingly, has applied the requirements of Section 3860, Financial Instruments —
Disclosure and Presentation, of the CICA Handbook.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles ("GAAP") and reflect the following policies:

Revenue recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has
occurred or the services have been provided and when collection is reasonably assured.

Inventory
Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value on a first-in, first-out basis.
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost. Amortization is calculated using the declining-
balance method at rates calculated to amortize the cost of the assets over their estimated lives. The
amortization rates are as follows:

Tracks 4%
Structures 4%
Other 4%

Deferred capital contributions

Deferred capital contributions are revenues received specifically for the purchase of certain property,
plant and equipment assets and are deferred and amortized over the life of the related asset.

Impairment of long-lived assets

Long-lived assets are tested for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that their carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized when their carrying
value exceeds the total undiscounted cash flows expected from their use and eventual disposition. The
amount of the impairment loss is determined as the excess of the carrying value of the asset over its fair
value.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Significant
estimates used within these financial statements include the allowance for doubtful accounts and the
useful lives and carrying value of property, plant and equipment. Actual resulis could differ from those
estimates.

Page 6



Guelph Junction Railway Company
Notes to the financial statements
December 31, 2010

2. Significant accounting policies {continued}
Future accounting changes

New accounting framework

The CICA has issued a new accounting framework applicable to Canadian private enterprises. The
Canadian Accounting Standards Board (AcSB) confirmed that publicly accountable enterprises will be
required to adopt IFRS in place of Canadian GAAP effective January 1, 2011. Early adoption of these
standards is permitited. As The Company is wholly owned by the City of Guelph, it is designated as a
Government Business Enterprise and is required to report under International Financial Reporting
Standards; however, the impact of the transition has not yet been determined.

3. Property, plant and equipment

2010 2009
Accumulated Net book Net book
Cost  amortization value value
$ $ $ $
Land 2,997,210 - 2,997,210 2,997,210
Tracks 3,823,549 1,053,386 2,870,163 2,853,475
Structures 481,328 147,993 333,335 347,223
Other 305,083 125,634 179,449 186,926
7,707,170 1,327,013 6,380,157 6,384,834
4. Related party transactions

The Company is wholly owned by The City of Guelph. The City pays certain expenses and receives
revenues on behalf of the Company for which the Company reimburses the City. During the year, these
net expenses for which the Company reimbursed the City amounted to $259,762 (2009 - $111,947).
Additional payments in 2010 totaling $115,888 were made to repay the amount owing to the City from
prior years. The Company also paid the City $22,000 (2009 - $19,390) in office rent and administration
fees for the year, and in 2009 the Company paid the City $85,902 related to an operating lease of
certain property which expired in 2008. These transactions were made in the normal course of business
and have been recorded at the exchange amounts.

5. Deferred capital contributions
2010 2009
Net book Net book
value value
$ $
Deferred contributions - gross 1,217,582 1,217,582
Less: accumulated amortization {202,085) (159,773)
1,015,497 1,057,809
6. Grant revenue

During the year, the Company received grant funding from the Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Rural
Affairs totaling $15,681 (2009 - $10,614) as part of the Rural Economic Development Program to
engage the services of professional engineers to assess and inspect five railway bridges.

Page 7



Guelph Junction Railway Company

Notes to the financial statements

December 31, 2010
7. Financial instruments
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparties will fail to act as contracted. The Company is exposed to credit
risk through its trade accounts receivable. The Company provides credit to its customers in the normal
course of its operations. There is no particular concentration of risk to the distribution of customers and
the procedures for the management of credit risks.

Fair value

At year-end, the carrying amounts reported in the balance shest for cash, accounts receivable, accounts
payable and accrued liabilities, and due to the City of Guelph approximate fair value, due to their short-
term nature.

8. Comparative figures

Certain 2009 comparative figures have been reclassified in order to conform to the presentation adopted
in the current year.

Page 8



May 24, 2011

Page No. 164

Council Caucus Room
May 24, 2011 5:30 p.m.

A meeting of Guelph City Council.

Present: Mayor Farbridge, Councillors Bell, Findlay,
Furfaro, Guthrie, Hofland, Kovach, Laidlaw, Piper, Van
Hellemond and Wettstein

Absent: Councillors Burcher and Dennis

Staff Present: Mr. H. Loewig, Chief Administrative
Officer; Dr. J. Laird, Executive Director of Planning,
Engineering & Environmental Services; Ms. A. Pappert,
Executive Director of Community & Social Services; Ms. T.
Agnello, Acting Clerk; and Ms. J. Sweeney, Council
Committee Co-ordinator

1. Moved by Councillor Hofland

Seconded by Councillor Guthrie
THAT the Council of the City of Guelph now hold a
meeting that is closed to the public with respect to:

Proposed Land Exchange Stockford Road / Grange
Road / Lee Park
S. 239 (2) (c¢) Proposed or pending acquisition or
disposition of land.

Potential Litigation Matter
S. 239 (2) (e) Litigation or Potential Litigation, including
matters before Administrative Tribunals.

Property Value
S. 239 (2) (c¢) Proposed or pending acquisition or
disposition of land.

Litigation Matter
S. 239 (2) (e) Litigation or Potential Litigation, including
matters before Administrative Tribunals.

Litigation Matter
S. 239 (2) (e) Litigation or Potential Litigation, including
matters before Administrative Tribunals.

Personal Matter about an Identifiable Individual
S. 239 (2) (b) Personal matters about an identifiable
individual.
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License Agreement for use of Certain City Lands
S. 239 (2) (c) Proposed or pending acquisition or
disposition of land.

Carried

The meeting adjourned at 5:31 o’clock p.m.

Acting Clerk

Council Caucus Room
May 24, 2011 5:32 p.m.

A meeting of Guelph City Council closed to the
public.

Present: Mayor Farbridge, Councillors Bell, Burcher,
Findlay, Furfaro, Guthrie, Hofland, Kovach, Laidlaw, Piper,
Van Hellemond and Wettstein

Absent: Councillor Dennis

Staff Present: Mr. H. Loewig, Chief Administrative
Officer; Dr. J. Laird, Executive Director of Planning,
Engineering & Environmental Services; Ms. A. Pappert,
Executive Director of Community & Social Services; Dr. J.
Laird, Executive Director of Planning & Building,
Engineering & Environment; Ms. T. Agnello, Acting Clerk;
and Ms. J. Sweeney, Council Committee Co-ordinator

DECLARATIONS UNDER MUNICIPAL CONFLICT OF
INTEREST ACT

There were no declarations.

S. 239 (2) (c) Proposed or pending acquisition or
disposition of land

1. Moved by Councillor Kovach
Seconded by Councillor Hofland
THAT the report of the Manager of Realty Services
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entitled ‘Proposed Land Exchange Stockford Road /
Grange Road / Lee Park’ dated May 24, 2011 be received
for information.

Carried

S. 239 (2) (c) Proposed or pending acquisition or
disposition of land

2. Moved by Councillor Laidlaw

Seconded by Councillor Burcher
THAT the report of the Manager of Realty Services and
Corporate Manager of Community Energy in respect of a
proposed License Agreement between the City of Guelph
and Ecotricity Guelph Inc. to use certain City-owned lands
for solar photovoltaic installations be received for
information.

Carried

S. 239 (2) (e) Litigation or Potential Litigation

3. Moved by Councillor Findlay

Seconded by Councillor Hofland
THAT staff be given direction with respect to a litigation
matter.

Carried

S. 239 (2) (c) Proposed or pending acquisition or
disposition of land

4, Moved by Councillor Laidlaw

Seconded by Councillor Wettstein
THAT Report #CSS-ACE-1118 titled ‘Property Value - 6
Dublin Street’, be received for information.

Carried

5. Moved by Councillor Laidlaw

Seconded by Councillor Hofland
THAT staff be given direction with respect to a litigation
matter.

Carried



May 24, 2011

Mr. M. Amorosi
Ms. D. Jaques

Page No. 167

S. 239 (2) (e) Litigation or Potential Litigation

6. Moved by Councillor Kovach
Seconded by Councillor Guthrie

THAT staff be given direction with respect to a litigation

matter.

Carried

Personal Matters about an Identifiable Individual

The Mayor addressed this item.

The meeting adjourned at 6:55 o’clock p.m.

Acting Clerk

Council Chambers
May 24, 2011

Council reconvened in formal session at 7:00 p.m.

Present: Mayor Farbridge, Councillors Bell, Burcher,
Findlay, Furfaro, Guthrie, Hofland, Kovach, Laidlaw, Piper,
Van Hellemond and Wettstein

Absent: Councillor Dennis

Staff Present: Mr. H. Loewig, Chief Administrative
Officer; Dr. J. Laird, Executive Director of Planning &
Building, Engineering & Environment; Ms. A. Pappert,
Executive Director of Community & Social Services; Mr.
Michael Anders, Acting Executive Director, Operations &
Transit; Ms. T. Agnello, Acting Clerk; and Ms. J. Sweeney,
Council Committee Co-ordinator

DECLARATIONS UNDER MUNICIPAL CONFLICT OF
INTEREST ACT

Councillor Burcher declared a possible pecuniary interest
with regards to Clause 3 of the Planning & Building,
Engineering & Environment Committee Report with
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respect to 3-7 Gordon Street and 28-36 Essex Street -
Brownfield Redevelopment Community Improvement Plan
- Environmental Study Grant Requests, because she owns
property in the vicinity and did not discuss or vote on the
matter.

CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES

1. Moved by Councillor Bell

Seconded by Councillor Findlay
THAT the minutes of the Council meetings held on April
26, May 3 and 9, 2011 and the minutes of the Council
meetings held in Committee of the Whole on April 26, May
3 and 9, 2011 be confirmed as recorded and without
being read.

VOTING IN FAVOUR: Councillors Bell, Burcher, Findlay,
Furfaro, Guthrie, Hofland, Kovach, Laidlaw, Piper, Van
Hellemond, Wettstein and Mayor Farbridge (12)

VOTING AGAINST: (0)
Carried
CONSENT REPORTS AND AGENDAS

The Chair of Community & Social Services Committee
advised that Clause 2 with respect to Discretionary Social
Services Funeral Directors’ Fees Update is requested to be
referred back to the Committee.

Councillor Laidlaw presented the balance of the
Community & Social Services Committee Fifth
Consent Report.

2. Moved by Councillor Laidlaw

Seconded by Councillor Piper
THAT the balance of the May 24, 2011 Community &
Social Services Committee Fifth Consent Report as
identified below, be adopted:

a) Sustainable Neighbourhood Engagement
Framework Update

THAT Report #CSS-CESS-1116 “Sustainable
Neighbourhood Engagement Framework Update, dated
May 10, 2011, be received, as amended, by amending
Section B-3 to state as follows:
“"Facilitate Steering Committee Work Group to develop
new NSC and NG staffing plan, including review of CD
Worker positions.”
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AND THAT staff be directed to work with the
Neighbourhood Support Coalition (NSC) Steering
Committee to reach a decision about the long-term status
of the Neighbourhood Support Coalition to become either
an independent non-profit organization, or enter into a
long-term relationship with a Host Organization, and to
carry out the decision as described in the SNEF
Implementation Plan in this report;

AND THAT in the event that the decision is to pursue a
long-term relationship with a Host Organization, that the
Executive Director of Community and Social Services and
the City Clerk be authorized to enter into a contractual
agreement with the host organization for an initial period
up to 24 months, with the purpose of implementing the
framework, with an annual review to follow.

VOTING IN FAVOUR: Councillors Bell, Burcher, Findlay,
Furfaro, Guthrie, Hofland, Kovach, Laidlaw, Piper, Van
Hellemond, Wettstein and Mayor Farbridge (12)

VOTING AGAINST: (0)
Carried

Discretionary Social Services Funeral Directors’ Fees
Update

3. Moved by Councillor Laidlaw

Seconded by Councillor Piper
THAT the matter of Discretionary Social Services Funeral
Directors’ Fees Update be referred to the June 14", 2011
meeting of the Community & Social Services Committee.

VOTING IN FAVOUR: Councillors Bell, Burcher, Findlay,
Furfaro, Guthrie, Hofland, Kovach, Laidlaw, Piper, Van
Hellemond, Wettstein and Mayor Farbridge (12)

VOTING AGAINST: (0)

Carried

The following items were extracted from the Corporate

Administration, Finance & Emergency Services Committee

Fourth Consent Report to be voted on separately:

« CAFES-1 501 Wellington Street West (Sleeman
Manor)

Councillor Hofland presented the balance of the
Corporate Administration, Finance & Emergency
Services Committee Fourth Consent Report.
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4, Moved by Councillor Hofland

Seconded by Councillor Wettstein
THAT the balance of the May 24, 2011 Corporate
Administration, Finance & Emergency Services Committee
Fourth Consent Report as identified below, be adopted:

a) Clair Road Emergency Services Centre -
Naming Issue

THAT staff be directed to assemble a community
committee with membership from the Clairfields
Neighbourhood Group, Community and Social Services
staff, Guelph-Wellington Emergency Medical Service,
Guelph Police Service and Guelph Fire Department staff;

AND THAT the community committee identifies and
returns with options for naming the community
room and other areas of the facility and property
that could be dedicated on the site.

b) Land Ambulance Governance and
Accountability

THAT staff be directed to develop a Land Ambulance
Service agreement between the City of Guelph and the
County of Wellington;

AND THAT the agreement recognizes principles contained
in attachment #1 of this report;

AND THAT a report containing the draft agreement be
returned to the Corporate Administration, Finance and
Emergency Services Committee for review.

VOTING IN FAVOUR: Councillors Bell, Burcher, Findlay,
Furfaro, Guthrie, Hofland, Kovach, Laidlaw, Piper, Van
Hellemond, Wettstein and Mayor Farbridge (12)

VOTING AGAINST: (0)

Carried

Councillor Findlay presented the Operations &
Transit Committee Fourth Consent Report.

5. Moved by Councillor Findlay

Seconded by Councillor Bell
THAT the May 24, 2011 Operations & Transit Committee
Fourth Consent Report as identified below, be adopted:
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a) Temporary Allowance of Exotic Animals

THAT the Operations & Transit Committee Report
‘Temporary Allowance for Exotic Animals’, OT051122
dated May 16, 2011, be received;

AND THAT exemption from By-law (1988)-12960 be
granted to the operators of the Faery Fest and Peregrine
International to have exotic animals within the City limits
for the purpose of staging educational bird of prey shows
during the Faery Fest June 17, 18 and 19, 2011.

b) Tree Donation Program

THAT the Operations & Transit Committee Report
0OT051119 ‘Tree Donation Program”, be received;

AND THAT the Tree Donation Program outlined in
Operations & Transit Committee Report OT01119 be
approved and implemented;

AND THAT staff review the memorial plaques process,
including timeline and report back to committee.

VOTING IN FAVOUR: Councillors Bell, Burcher, Findlay,
Furfaro, Guthrie, Hofland, Kovach, Laidlaw, Piper, Van
Hellemond, Wettstein and Mayor Farbridge (12)

VOTING AGAINST: (0)

Carried

The following items were extracted from the Planning &
Building, Engineering & Environment Committee Third
Consent Report to be voted on separately:

« PBEE-3 3-7 Gordon Street and 28-36 Essex Street -
Brownfield Redevelopment Community
Improvement Plan - Environmental Study
Grant Requests

Councillor Piper presented the balance of the
Planning & Building, Engineering & Environment
Committee Third Consent Report.

6. Moved by Councillor Piper

Seconded by Councillor Burcher
THAT the balance of the May 24, 2011 Planning &
Building, Engineering & Environment Committee Third
Consent Report as identified below, be adopted:
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a) Annual Increase of Building Permit Fees

THAT Council approve the Permit Fees attached as
Appendix A to the “"Annual Increase of Building Permit
Fees” report, effective June 1, 2011;

AND THAT the Report No. 11-35 on Annual Increase of
Building Permit Fees from Planning & Building,
Engineering & Environment dated April 18, 2011, be
received.

b) Sign By-law Variance for 124 Woodlawn Road
West (Kelsey’s Restaurant)

THAT Report 11-44, regarding a sign variance for 124
Woodlawn Road West from Planning & Building,
Engineering and Environment, dated May 16, 2011, be
received;

AND THAT, the request for a variance from the Sign By-
law for 124 Woodlawn Road West to permit one
freestanding sign with a separation distance of 20 metres
from an existing freestanding sign on another site in lieu
of the required 30 metres, be approved.

C) Updated Municipal Waste Management By-law

THAT Council approve and enact the new “Municipal
Waste Management By-law”, as amended and attached to
the report to Council;

AND THAT By-law (2003)-17070, as amended, be
repealed.

VOTING IN FAVOUR: Councillors Bell, Burcher, Findlay,
Furfaro, Guthrie, Hofland, Kovach, Laidlaw, Piper, Van
Hellemond, Wettstein and Mayor Farbridge (12)

VOTING AGAINST: (0)
Carried
Consent Agenda

The following items were extracted from the May 24,

2011 Consent Agenda to be voted on separately:

« A-1 Proposed Demolition of 24 Crestwood Place

 A-3 New Guelph Civic Museum - 6 Dublin Street
Property

« A-5 Community Energy: 2010 Accomplishments -
2011 Work Plan Summary
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 A-7 Norm Jary Park Playground Retrofit in Association
with Sinking Ship Production Inc.

7. Moved by Councillor Kovach

Seconded by Councillor Laidlaw
THAT the balance of the May 24, 2011 Council Consent
Agenda as identified below, be adopted:

a) Proposed Land Exchange - Stockford Road /
Grange Road / Lee Park

THAT the Mayor and Clerk be authorized to execute a
Land Exchange Agreement between the City and the
Upper Grand District School Board in respect of lands in
the vicinity of Grange Road and Stockford Road as
identified in the report of the Manager of Realty Services
dated May 24, 2011 and based on the terms and
conditions as outlined in the Closed Meeting report of the
Manager of Realty Services dated May 24, 2011;

AND THAT staff be authorized to take all steps necessary
to effect the stopping-up and closing of Stockford Road
and part of Grange Road and bring forward any required
by-laws for the consideration of Council;

AND THAT staff be authorized to bring forward any by-
laws necessary to deem the lands comprising Plan 462 to
be not part of a registered plan of subdivision.

b) Guelph Royals Negotiations Update

THAT Report #CSS-PRPF-1119 “Guelph Royals
Negotiations Update”, dated May 24, 2011, be received;

AND THAT the Council directs staff to proceed with the
negotiations on the basis of the principles contained within
the Report #CSS-PRPF-1119;

AND THAT the Mayor and Acting City Clerk be authorized
to sign any agreements related to negotiations between
the City and the Guelph Royals, subject to the satisfaction
of the Executive Director, Community and Social Services.

C) License Agreement between the City of
Guelph and Ecotricity Guelph Inc. to Allow
Use of Certain City Lands for Solar
Photovoltaic Installations

THAT in respect of a proposed License Agreement
between the City of Guelph and Ecotricity Guelph Inc. to
use certain City-owned lands for solar photovoltaic
installations:
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a) The Mayor and Clerk be authorized to execute the
License Agreement;

b) The Corporate Manager of Community Energy be
directed to review Feasibility and other Plans, in
consultation with the City Solicitor and appropriate
City Staff, and be authorized to approve installations
proposed by Ecotricity under the License Agreement;
and

c) That revenues generated from the proposed License
Agreement be directed to a reserve fund for the
Community Energy Initiative.

VOTING IN FAVOUR: Councillors Bell, Burcher, Findlay,
Furfaro, Guthrie, Hofland, Kovach, Laidlaw, Piper, Van
Hellemond, Wettstein and Mayor Farbridge (12)

VOTING AGAINST: (0)

Carried
DELEGATIONS
501 Wellington Street West (Sleeman Manor)

Mike Salisbury of Earthartist Planning & Design was
present on behalf of the owners of 501 Wellington Street
West (Sleeman Manor). He provided a brief history of the
Sleeman Manor and reviewed the location of the property.
He requested that the City consider the potential
development of the site. He suggested that a feasibility
study would explore the possible roles for City
involvement, options for preferred redevelopment,
development incentives, promotion and marketing.

Councillor Hofland presented Clause 1 that was
extracted from the Corporate Administration,
Finance & Emergency Services Committee Fourth
Consent Report.

8. Moved by Councillor Hofland

Seconded by Councillor Wettstein
THAT staff be directed to review the proposal submitted
by Earthartist Planning and Design on behalf of the owner,
with respect to the potential redevelopment of 501
Wellington Street West and report back to the Corporate
Administration, Finance & Emergency Services Committee
on development opportunities of this area.
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VOTING IN FAVOUR: Councillors Bell, Burcher, Findlay,
Furfaro, Guthrie, Hofland, Kovach, Laidlaw, Piper, Van
Hellemond, Wettstein and Mayor Farbridge (12)

VOTING AGAINST: (0)
Carried

Community Energy: 2010 Accomplishments - 2011
Work Plan Summary

The Corporate Manager, Community Energy reviewed the
principles, objectives, goals and targets of the Community
Energy Plan. He outlined new approaches relating to
governance, partnerships, cooperation and agreements.
He provided information on various projects, proposals,
planning and local economy activities.

9. Moved by Councillor Burcher

Seconded by Councillor Findlay
THAT the Community Energy report regarding 2010
accomplishments and a 2011 work plan, dated May 3,
2011, be received.

VOTING IN FAVOUR: Councillors Bell, Burcher, Findlay,
Furfaro, Guthrie, Hofland, Kovach, Laidlaw, Piper, Van
Hellemond, Wettstein and Mayor Farbridge (12)

VOTING AGAINST: (0)
Carried

Norm Jary Park Playground Retrofit in Association
with Sinking Ship Productions Inc.

The General Manager of Park Maintenance & Development
provided information with respect to the Sinking Ship
Productions “Giver” series. He advised that Norm Jary
Park Playground redevelopment has been chosen for the
televised program. He further advised that filming is
scheduled to start on June 27" for 3 days.

10. Moved by Councillor Findlay

Seconded by Councillor Laidlaw
THAT the Operations and Transit Report OT052411 Norm
Jary Park Playground and Sinking Ship Productions Inc.
dated May 24, 2011, be received;

AND THAT Council approve the proposal, and authorize
the City Clerk to execute a location agreement with
Sinking Ship Productions Inc. as a condition to retrofit the
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Norm Jary Park playground with the assistance of the
community.

VOTING IN FAVOUR: Councillors Bell, Burcher, Findlay,
Furfaro, Guthrie, Hofland, Kovach, Laidlaw, Piper, Van
Hellemond, Wettstein and Mayor Farbridge (12)

VOTING AGAINST: (0)
Carried

Councillor Piper presented Clause 3 that was
extracted from the Planning & Building, Engineering
& Environment Committee Third Consent Report.

3-7 Gordon Street and 28-36 Essex Street -
Brownfield Redevelopment Community
Improvement Plan — Environmental Study Grant
Requests

11. Moved by Councillor Piper

Seconded by Councillor Guthrie
THAT Planning & Building, Engineering and Environment
Report No. 11-43, dated May 16, 2011 regarding requests
for financial assistance pursuant to the City of Guelph
Brownfield Redevelopment Community Improvement Plan
for the properties known municipally as 3-7 Gordon Street
and 28-36 Essex Street be received;

AND THAT the requests for financial assistance made by
Creating Homes Inc., on behalf of Gordon Street Co-
operative Development Corporation and Market Green
Developments Inc., under the Environmental Study Grant
program pursuant to the Brownfield Redevelopment
Community Improvement Plan for the properties known
municipally as 3-7 Gordon Street and 28-36 Essex Street,
in an amount up to 50% of the cost of the follow-up Phase
2 Environmental Site Assessments to an upset total of
$10,000 for each site and up to 50% of the cost of
Remedial Work Plans, if necessary, to an upset total of
$10,000 for each site be approved;

AND THAT staff be directed to proceed with the
finalization of Environmental Study Grant agreements with
Gordon Street Co-operative Development Corporation and
Market Green Developments Inc. or any subsequent
owners to the satisfaction of the General Manager,
Building & Planning Services and the City Solicitor;

AND THAT the Mayor and Clerk be authorized to sign the
Environmental Study Grant agreements.
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VOTING IN FAVOUR: Councillors Bell, Findlay, Furfaro,
Guthrie, Hofland, Kovach, Laidlaw, Piper, Van Hellemond,
Wettstein and Mayor Farbridge (11)

VOTING AGAINST: (0)

Councillor Burcher did not vote on the matter due to her
declared possible pecuniary interest.

Carried
Proposed Demolition of 24 Crestwood Place

12. Moved by Councillor Furfaro
Seconded by Councillor Kovach
Dr. J. Laird THAT Report 11-47 regarding the proposed demolition of
Mr. J. Riddell a detached dwelling at 24 Crestwood Place, City of
Guelph, from Planning & Building, Engineering and
Environment, dated May 24, 2011, be received;

AND THAT the proposed demolition of the detached
dwelling at 24 Crestwood Place, be approved.

VOTING IN FAVOUR: Councillors Bell, Burcher, Findlay,
Furfaro, Guthrie, Hofland, Kovach, Laidlaw, Van
Hellemond, Wettstein and Mayor Farbridge (11)

VOTING AGAINST: Councillor Piper (1)

Carried

New Guelph Civic Museum - 6 Dublin Street
Property

13. Moved by Councillor Piper
Seconded by Councillor Findlay

Ms. A. Pappert THAT Report #CSS-ACE-1117, dated May 24, 2011 and
Mr. J. Stokes titled “"New Guelph Civic Museum - 6 Dublin Street

Ms. D. Jaques Property”, be received;

Ms. S. Aram

AND THAT staff proceed with the sale of the property
located at 6 Dublin Street South by way of listing with a
real estate broker;

AND THAT the proceeds of the sale be designated to offset
any cost overrun on the construction of the new Civic
Museum.

VOTING IN FAVOUR: Councillors Bell, Burcher, Findlay,
Furfaro, Guthrie, Hofland, Kovach, Laidlaw, Piper, Van
Hellemond, Wettstein and Mayor Farbridge (12)
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VOTING AGAINST: (0)

Carried

BY-LAWS

14. Moved by Councillor Burcher
Seconded by Councillor Wettstein
THAT By-laws Numbered (2011)-19199 to (2011)-19215,

inclusive, are hereby passed.
VOTING IN FAVOUR: Councillors Bell, Burcher, Findlay,
Furfaro, Guthrie, Hofland, Kovach, Laidlaw, Piper, Van
Hellemond, Wettstein and Mayor Farbridge (12)
VOTING AGAINST: (0)

Carried
ADJOURNMENT

The meeting adjourned at 8:20 o’clock p.m.

Minutes read and confirmed June 27, 2011.

Acting Clerk
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Room C, City Hall
May 25, 2011, 6:00 p.m.

Council convened in special session for the purpose
of a strategic planning workshop at 6:00 p.m.

Present: Mayor Farbridge, Councillors Bell, Burcher,
Findlay, Furfaro, Guthrie, Hofland, Laidlaw, Piper, Van
Hellemond, and Wettstein

Absent: Councillors Dennis, and Kovach

Staff Present: Mr. H. Loewig, Chief Administrative
Officer, Mr. M. Amorosi, Executive Director of Corporate
and Human Resources, Dr. J. Laird, Executive Director of
Planning, Engineering & Environmental Services; General
Manager of Planning & Building Services; Mr. D.
McCaughan, Executive director, Operations and Transit
Hannah, Manager of Development Planning; Ms. A
Pappert, Executive Director, Community and Social
Services; Ms. B. Boisvert, Corporate Manager, Strategic
Planning and Corporate Initiatives; and Ms. T. Agnello,
Acting City Clerk

DECLARATIONS UNDER MUNICIPAL CONFLICT OF
INTEREST ACT

There was no declaration of pecuniary interest.

STRATEGIC PLAN WORKSHOP
PART 2: SERVICE REVIEW

Mayor Farbridge provided an overview of the city’s
internal and external services and explained that some
are mandatory and others discretionary. She noted the
differences between service reviews and operational
reviews and explained that sometimes they intersect.

Dr. C. Bart of the Degroote School of Business was

present to lead Council in a workshop on the following

matters:

« Council confirmed the draft priority goals

« Council was guided through discussions and a debrief of
remote exercise #2 regarding City Services

Dr. Bart led Council through an exercise regarding setting
SMART objectives (specific, measurable, acceptable,
realistic, and timely).

Next Steps
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He identified remote exercise #3 to take place next
regarding a management exercise about services

Council recessed at 8:25pm and reconvened at 8:40pm.
NEXT MEETING - July, 13 2011

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting adjourned at 9:13 o’clock p.m.

Minutes read and confirmed June 27, 2011.

Acting Clerk
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395 Southgate Drive, Guelph
May 30, 2011 6 p.m.

A meeting of Guelph City Council.

Present: Mayor Farbridge, Councillors Bell, Dennis,
Findlay, Furfaro, Guthrie, Hofland, Kovach, Laidlaw, Piper,
Van Hellemond and Wettstein

Absent: Councillor Burcher

Staff Present: Mr. H. Loewig, Chief Administrative
Officer; Dr. J. Laird, Executive Director of Planning,
Engineering & Environmental Services; Mr. R. Kerr,
Corporate Manager, Community Energy; and Ms. T.
Agnello, Acting Clerk

Also Present: Guelph Hydro Inc. Board of Directors -
Jasmine Urisk, Jane Armstrong, Robert Aumell, Brian
Cowan, Rob Fennell, Judy Fountain, Barbara Leslie, and
Bill Koornstra

Guelph Hydro staff- Barry Chuddy, CEO; Kazi Marouf,
COO; Seymour Trachimovsky, Corporate Secretary; Ian
Miles Chief Financial Officer; Arlen Molyneaux, Director
Engineering; Matt Weninger, Director of Metering &
Conservation; Erik Veneman , Director of Operations;
and Dan Amyot, Manager of Information Systems

1. Moved by Councillor Laidlaw

Seconded by Councillor Kovach
THAT the Council of the City of Guelph now hold a
meeting that is closed to the public with respect to:

Company Business Review
S. 239 (2) (g) A matter in respect of which a Council,
Board, Committee or other body may hold a closed
meeting under another Act.

2010 Financial Statements
S. 239 (2) (g) A matter in respect of which a Council,
Board, Committee or other body may hold a closed
meeting under another Act.

Citizen Appointments as Directors of Guelph Hydro
Inc.
S. 239 (2) (b) Personal matters about an identifiable
individual.

Appointment of Auditors
S. 239 (2) (b) Personal matters about an identifiable
individual.
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Other Matters
S. 239 (2) (g) A matter in respect of which a Council,
Board, Committee or other body may hold a closed
meeting under another Act.

Carried

The meeting adjourned at 6:01 o’clock p.m.

Acting Clerk

395 Southgate Drive, Guelph
May 30, 2011 6:02 p.m.

A meeting of Guelph City Council closed to the
public.

Present: Mayor Farbridge, Councillors Bell, Dennis,
Findlay, Furfaro, Guthrie, Hofland, Kovach, Laidlaw, Piper,
Van Hellemond and Wettstein

Absent: Councillor Burcher

Staff Present: Mr. H. Loewig, Chief Administrative
Officer; Dr. J. Laird, Executive Director of Planning,
Engineering & Environmental Services; Mr. R. Kerr,
Corporate Manager, Community Energy; and Ms. T.
Agnello, Acting Clerk

Also Present: Guelph Hydro Inc. Board of Directors -
Jasmine Urisk, Jane Armstrong, Robert Aumell, Brian
Cowan, Rob Fennell, Judy Fountain, Barbara Leslie, and
Bill Koornstra

Guelph Hydro staff- Barry Chuddy, CEO; Kazi Marouf,
COO; Seymour Trachimovsky, Corporate Secretary; Ian
Miles Chief Financial Officer; Arlen Molyneaux, Director
Engineering; Matt Weninger, Director of Metering &
Conservation; Erik Veneman , Director of Operations,
and; Dan Amyot, Manager of Information Systems

DECLARATIONS UNDER MUNICIPAL CONFLICT OF
INTEREST ACT
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There were no declarations.

S. 239 (2 A matter in respect of which a
Council, Board, Committee or other body may hold a

closed meeting under another Act.

The Committee was provided with information with
respect to the company business review by Jasmine Urisk,
Barry Cuddy and Kazi Marouf.

S. 239 (2) (g) A matter in respect of which a

Council, Board, Committee or other body may hold a
closed meeting under another Act.

The Committee was provided with information with
respect to the 2010 fiscal year by Ian Miles.

1. Moved by Councillor Laidlaw

Seconded by Councillor Hofland
THAT the audited financial statements of Guelph Hydro
Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2010, as prepared
and reported upon by the Corporation’s auditors, be
received.

Carried

S. 239 (2) (b) Personal matters about an
identifiable individual.

2. Moved by Councillor Laidlaw

Seconded by Councillor Hofland
THAT Jane Armstrong be reappointed as a Director of
Guelph Hydro Inc. for a three year term expiring at the
Annual General Meeting of the Shareholder in 2014;

AND THAT William Koornstra be reappointed as a Director
of Guelph Hydro Inc. for a three year term expiring at the
Annual General Meeting of the Shareholder in 2014;

AND THAT Judy Fountain be appointed as a Director of
Guelph Hydro Inc. for a three year term expiring at the
Annual General Meeting of the Shareholder in 2014;

AND THAT Dr. Jan Carr be appointed as a Director of
Guelph Hydro Inc. for a three year term expiring at the
Annual General Meeting of the Shareholder in 2014 with
the appointment commencing at the time that Mayor
Farbridge steps down from the Guelph Hydro Inc. Board
to assume role of Chair of the Guelph Municipal Holding
Company.

Carried
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S. 239 (2) (b) Personal matters about an

identifiable individual.

1. Moved by Councillor Kovach

Seconded by Councillor Piper
THAT the recommendation by the Board of Guelph Hydro
Inc. to appoint KPMG LLP as auditors of the Corporation
to hold office until the next annual meeting of the
Shareholder of the Corporation, be approved.

Carried

The meeting adjourned at 8:41 o’clock p.m.

Acting Clerk

395 Southgate Drive, Guelph
May 30, 2011

Council reconvened in formal session at 8:42 p.m.

Present: Mayor Farbridge, Councillors Bell, Dennis,
Findlay, Furfaro, Guthrie, Hofland, Kovach, Laidlaw, Piper,
Van Hellemond and Wettstein

Absent: Councillor Burcher

Staff Present: Mr. H. Loewig, Chief Administrative
Officer; Dr. J. Laird, Executive Director of Planning,
Engineering & Environmental Services; Mr. R. Kerr,
Corporate Manager, Community Energy; and Ms. T.
Agnello, Acting Clerk

1. Moved by Councillor Kovach
Seconded by Councillor Hofland
a) Financial Statements for year ended December
31, 2010

THAT the audited financial statements of Guelph Hydro
Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2010, as prepared
and reported upon by the Corporation’s auditors, be
received.
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b) Appointment of Directors of Guelph Hydro Inc.

THAT Jane Armstrong be reappointed as a Director of
Guelph Hydro Inc. for a three year term expiring at the
Annual General Meeting of the Shareholder in 2014;

AND THAT William Koornstra be reappointed as a Director
of Guelph Hydro Inc. for a three year term expiring at the
Annual General Meeting of the Shareholder in 2014;

AND THAT Judy Fountain be appointed as a Director of
Guelph Hydro Inc. for a three year term expiring at the
Annual General Meeting of the Shareholder in 2014;

AND THAT Dr. Jan Carr be appointed as a Director of
Guelph Hydro Inc. for a three year term expiring at the
Annual General Meeting of the Shareholder in 2014 with
the appointment commencing at the time that Mayor
Farbridge steps down from the Guelph Hydro Inc. Board
to assume role of Chair of the Guelph Municipal Holding
Company.

c) Appointment of Auditor for Guelph Hydro Inc.
THAT the recommendation by the Board of Guelph Hydro
Inc. to appoint KPMG LLP as auditors of the Corporation to
hold office until the next annual meeting of the
Shareholder of the Corporation, be approved.

Carried
ADJOURNMENT

The meeting adjourned at: 8:45 o’clock p.m.

Minutes read and confirmed June 27, 2011.

Acting Clerk
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Council Caucus Room
June 7, 2011 6:30 p.m.

A meeting of Guelph City Council.

Present: Mayor Farbridge, Councillors Bell, Dennis,
Findlay, Furfaro, Guthrie, Kovach, Van Hellemond and
Wettstein

Absent: Councillors Burcher, Hofland, Laidlaw and Piper

Staff Present: Mr. H. Loewig, Chief Administrative
Officer; Dr. J. Laird, Executive Director of Planning &
Building, Engineering and Environment; Mr. B. Burchett,
General Manager, Parks and Recreation, Program and
Facilities; Ms. D. Jaques, General Manager, Legal/Realty
Services/City Solicitor; and Ms. T. Agnello, Acting City
Clerk

1. Moved by Councillor Kovach
Seconded by Councillor Furfaro

THAT the Council of the City of Guelph now hold a
meeting that is closed to the public with respect to:
Potential Litigation Matter

S. 239 (2) (e) Litigation or Potential Litigation, including

matters before Administrative Tribunals.

Carried

The meeting adjourned at 6:31 o’clock p.m.

Acting City Clerk
Council Caucus Room
June 7, 2011 6:32 p.m.

A meeting of Guelph City Council closed to the
public.
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Present: Mayor Farbridge, Councillors Bell, Dennis,
Findlay, Furfaro, Guthrie, Kovach, Van Hellemond and
Wettstein

Absent: Councillors Burcher, Hofland, Laidlaw and Piper

Staff Present: Mr. H. Loewig, Chief Administrative
Officer; Dr. J. Laird, Executive Director of Planning &
Building, Engineering and Environment; Mr. B. Burchett,
General Manager, Parks and Recreation, Program and
Facilities; Ms. D. Jaques, General Manager, Legal/Realty
Services/City Solicitor; and Ms. T. Agnello, Acting City
Clerk

DECLARATIONS UNDER MUNICIPAL CONFLICT OF
INTEREST ACT

There were no declarations.

S. 239 (2) (e) Litigation or Potential Litigation

1. Moved by Councillor Kovach

Seconded by Councillor Guthrie
THAT staff be given direction with respect to a litigation
matter.

Carried

2. Moved by Councillor Furfaro

Seconded by Councillor Dennis
THAT staff be given direction with respect to a litigation
matter.

Carried

3. Moved by Councillor Furfaro

Seconded by Councillor Guthrie
THAT staff be given direction with respect to a litigation
matter.

Carried

4, Moved by Councillor Wettstein

Seconded by Councillor Kovach
THAT the report received from Legal Services dated
June 7, 2011 regarding a litigation matter be received.

Carried

5. Moved by Councillor Kovach

Seconded by Councillor Findlay
THAT Council rise and report the following motion as a
special resolution in Council open session:
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RESOLUTION
WHEREAS The Mayor has not yet received a response
from the Minister of Health in respect to the presentation
delivered to the Premier regarding the City’s concerns
with the Board of Health for Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph
and the City’s proposal for resolving these concerns;

AND WHEREAS The City has not received a response from
the County of Wellington, the County of Dufferin or the
Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care to its notice of
intention to withdraw from the Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph
health unit.

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT:
1. The City Solicitor be directed to continue with the

court action, including the injunction application,
currently before the court.

2. The Mayor be requested to follow up with the
Premier’s office and the Minister of Health and Long-
Term Care.

The meeting adjourned at 7:00 o’clock p.m.

Acting City Clerk

Council Chambers
June 7, 2011

Council convened in formal session at 7:00 p.m.

Present: Mayor Farbridge, Councillors Bell, Dennis,
Findlay, Furfaro, Guthrie, Kovach, Van Hellemond and
Wettstein

Absent: Councillors Burcher, Hofland, Laidlaw and Piper

Staff Present: Dr. J. Laird, Executive Director of
Planning & Building, Engineering & Environment; Mr. J.
Riddell, General Manager of Planning & Building Services;
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Ms. T. Agnello, Acting City Clerk; and Ms. D. Black,
Assistant Council Committee Co-ordinator

DECLARATIONS UNDER MUNICIPAL CONFLICT OF
INTEREST ACT

CONSENT AGENDA

1. Moved by Councillor Furfaro

Seconded by Councillor Kovach
THAT the June 7, 2011 Council Consent Agenda, as
identified below, be adopted:

a) 587 Victoria Road North: Proposed Zoning
By-Law Amendment (ZC0610) - Ward 2

THAT Report 11-23 regarding a proposed Zoning By-law
Amendment application by Northview Estates (Guelph)
Ltd. (ZC0610) for property municipally known as 587
Victoria Road North, City of Guelph, from Planning &
Building, Engineering and Environment dated June 7,
2011, be received;

AND THAT the application by Black Shoemaker Robinson
and Donaldson Limited on behalf of Northview Estates
(Guelph) Ltd. for approval of a Zoning By-law Amendment
to rezone the lands from the UR (Urban Reserve) Zone to
the R.3B (On-Street Townhouse) Zone, to allow the
development of 14 on-street townhouse dwelling units, be
approved, subject to the recommended zoning and
conditions outlined in Schedule 2 of the Planning &
Building, Engineering and Environment Report 11-23
dated June 7, 2011.

b) Water Street Reconstruction, Contract No. 2-
1114

THAT the tender of Drexler Construction Ltd., Rockwood
be accepted and that the Mayor and Clerk be authorized
to sign the agreement for Contract 2-1114 for the Water
Street Reconstruction contract for a total tendered price
of $1,950,000.00, with actual payment to be made in
accordance with the terms of the contract;

AND THAT Water Street be closed to through traffic
during the reconstruction.

C) Fireworks Approval for Canada Day - July 1,
2011

THAT the request from the Rotary Club of Guelph to
provide a fireworks display at Riverside Park on July 1,



June 7, 2011

Mr. B. Stewart
Chief Davis

Dr. J. Laird
Mr. J. Riddell

Page No. 190

2011 be approved subject to the Rotary Club of Guelph
meeting the terms and conditions of the Guelph Fire
Department;

AND THAT the Rotary Club of Guelph obtains liability
coverage in the amount of $5,000,000 with the City of
Guelph named as an additional insured party, and to
provide a certificate indicating such coverage to be
submitted to the City of Guelph at least two weeks prior to
the event;

AND THAT the City of Guelph accepts no responsibility for
any liability that arises out of granting this permission for
use of City property and facilities.

VOTING IN FAVOUR: Councillors Bell, Dennis,
Findlay, Furfaro, Guthrie, Kovach, Van Hellemond,
Wettstein and Mayor Farbridge (9)

VOTING AGAINST: (0)
Carried

PLANNING PUBLIC MEETING

Mayor Farbridge announced that in accordance with The
Planning Act, Council was now in a public meeting for the
purpose of informing the public of various planning
matters.

DELEGATIONS

1820 Gordon Street South: Proposed Zoning By-law
Amendment (File ZC1108) - Ward 6

Mr. A. Hearne, Senior Development Planner, advised the
applicant is wishing to increase the building size
restriction, but not the overall property restrictions so
they may secure an anchor tenant.

Mr. Glen Wellings, on behalf of the applicant, advised that
they are requesting the building size cap be removed in
order to attract an anchor and they are in discussions
with a company interested in locating a theatre at this
location. He stated they will be building to the silver
LEEDS standard.

2. Moved by Councillor Findlay

Seconded by Councillor Wettstein
THAT Report 11-48 regarding a proposed Zoning By-law
Amendment application by FCHT Holdings (Ontario)
Corporation (ZC1108) for property municipally known as
1820 Gordon Street South, City of Guelph, from Planning
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& Building, Engineering and Environment dated June 7,
2011, be received.

VOTING IN FAVOUR: Councillors Bell, Dennis,
Findlay, Furfaro, Guthrie, Kovach, Van Hellemond,
Wettstein and Mayor Farbridge (9)

VOTING AGAINST: (0)
Carried

1897 Gordon Street (Bird Property): Proposed Draft
Plan of Subdivsion, Official Plan Amendment and
Zoning By-law Amendment (File 23T-
08505/0P0801/2C0306) — Ward 6

Mr. Chris DeVriendt, Senior Development Planner, advised
that this application has previously come before council
because the plans have been modified to include
additional lands along the northerly boundary of the plan
to accommodate the extension of Poppy Drive from
Gosling Gardens to Gordon Street. He stated that staff
are requesting the proposal be considered for decision at
the June 27, 2011 Council meeting.

He advised the main revisions to the plan are:

« Removal of the stub road abutting the southerly
property boundary as a potential future street
extension to the adjacent lands to the south;

e Incorporation of three additional apartment blocks
to increase the total number of units from 67 to
152;

e Increase the size of Open Space Block 27 to
accommodate the wetland pocket at the westerly
boundary of the site.

Mr. John Valeriote, on behalf of the applicant, outlined the
process to date and encouraged Council to approve the
application at the June 27, 2011 Council meeting.

Ms. Astrid Clos, on behalf of the applicant, stated that the
concerns for the Savannah Sparrow have been addressed
in condition #13 and advised they have an approved
Environmental Impact Study. She stated the density of
the plan has increased, and the driveway location was
moved to over 30m from Gordon Street. She also stated
that the two apartment blocks may be consolidated into
one which could result in a shared driveway even further
from Gordon Street. She also advised that they will be
building to energy star rating at a minimum for the
detached dwellings.
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Dr. Hugh Whiteley requested that the proposal be referred
back to staff because he believes there are deficiencies in
the proposed plan. He stated there is a contradiction
between maintaining natural heritage versus approval of
the application and staff need to take into account all
information and most current information. He believes
the Hanlon Creek Watershed Study (HCWP) must be used
for a full and complete Environmental Study. He said
that there must be a study completed that states original
boundaries, why they existed and explain their functions
and then demonstrate how the new boundaries can
function equally well. He stated that there needs to be
additional reviews to maintain the natural heritage.

Ms. Judy Martin advised she had the following concerns:

« alack of a secondary plan for the area so the
development of the site is premature;

+ the plan violates the Hanlon Creek Watershed Plan
and the Natural Heritage Study;

« over two and a half acres of tree canopy will be
removed which is the habitat for the Savannah
Sparrow;

« the recommendations of the environmental planner
have not been met to maintain existing plantation
and natural landscaping and the small size makes
the natural heritage vulnerable;

« the property needs to be recognized as improved
linkage;

+ lack of buffers to protect amphibian species; and

« there is no map of archaeological resources
applying to the site.

Staff will:

e provide clarification regarding the environmental
issues when the matter is considered for decision
at Council;

e provide maps to provide context regarding what is
in existence on the adjacent properties

Staff advised that the lands are already designated
general residential so they feel development is acceptable
and a process to develop the Clair/Maltby secondary plan
will be started within the next two years.

3. Moved by Councillor Kovach

Seconded by Councillor Guthrie
THAT Report 11-30 regarding a Proposed Draft Plan of
Subdivision, Official Plan Amendment and Zoning By-law
Amendment for property municipally known as 1897
Gordon Street, from Planning & Building, Engineering and
Environment dated June 7, 2011, be received;
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AND THAT the application by Astrid J. Clos Planning
Consultants on behalf of Thomasfield Homes Limited for
approval of a Proposed Draft Plan of Residential
Subdivision comprising 209 units, as shown on Schedule
3, applying to property municipally known as 1897 Gordon
Street and legally described as Part of Lot 11, Concession
7 (Geographic Township of Puslinch), City of Guelph, be
placed on the City Council agenda of June 27, 2011 for a
decision;

AND THAT the application by Astrid J. Clos Planning
Consultants on behalf of Thomasfield Homes Limited for
approval of an Official Plan Amendment to re-designate
Blocks 23, 24 and 25 from the current “General
Residential” Official Plan designation to the “High Density
Residential” Official Plan designation affecting the lands
municipally known as 1897 Gordon Street and legally
described as Part of Lot 11, Concession 7 (Geographic
Township of Puslinch), City of Guelph, be placed on the
City Council agenda of June 27, 2011 for a decision;

AND THAT the application by Astrid J. Clos Planning
Consultants on behalf of Thomasfield Homes Limited for
approval of a Zoning By-law Amendment from the
Agricultural (A) Zone in the Township of Puslinch Zoning
By-law to the Specialized R.1C-18 (Single Detached
Residential) Zone, a Specialized R.3A-? (Cluster
Townhouse) Zone, a Specialized R.4A-? (General
Apartment) Zone for each of the three apartment blocks,
and the P.1 (Conservation Land) Zone to implement a
residential Draft Plan of Subdivision comprising 209 units,
be placed on the City Council agenda of June 27, 2011 for
a decision.

VOTING IN FAVOUR: Councillors Bell, Dennis,
Findlay, Furfaro, Guthrie, Kovach, Van Hellemond,
Wettstein and Mayor Farbridge (9)

VOTING AGAINST: (0)
Carried

CAO Profile and Competencies
Mr. Robert Johnston, Organization Consulting Ltd.,
provided a brief synopsis of steps taken thus far and the
process to date of the CAO search.
4. Moved by Councillor Kovach

Seconded by Councillor Findlay

THAT the CAO Profile and Competencies working
document be approved as amended as follows:
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i) THAT the second bullet point of the Key
Responsibilities — Leadership section state as follows:
"Create within the Executive Team and City Staff,
an openness to new ideas, encouraging innovation
and implementing a culture of accountability for
actions and results - evaluating outcomes and
determining the most effective use of resources”

ii) THAT the last bullet point in the Profile section state
as follows:
"Wants to have fun and enjoy their role in the
community - has a sense of humour”

iii) THAT the fifth bullet point in the Stakeholder Input
Summary - Change/transformation leader section
state as follows:

"Protects their team - failure happens. Use as a
learning tool. Build, don’t bash”

iv) THAT any gender reference be gender neutral.

VOTING IN FAVOUR: Councillors Bell, Dennis,
Findlay, Furfaro, Guthrie, Kovach, Van Hellemond,
Wettstein and Mayor Farbridge (9)

VOTING AGAINST: (0)
Carried
BY-LAWS

5. Moved by Councillor Dennis

Seconded by Councillor Findlay
THAT By-laws Numbered (2011) - 19216 to (2011) -
19224, inclusive, are hereby passed.

VOTING IN FAVOUR: Councillors Bell, Dennis,
Findlay, Furfaro, Guthrie, Kovach, Van Hellemond,
Wettstein and Mayor Farbridge (9)

VOTING AGAINST: (0)
Carried

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS

6. Moved by Councillor Kovach

Seconded by Councillor Furfaro
WHEREAS The Mayor has not yet received a response
from the Minister of Health in respect to the presentation
delivered to the Premier regarding the City’s concerns
with the Board of Health for Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph
and the City’s proposal for resolving these concerns;
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AND WHEREAS The City has not received a response from
the County of Wellington, the County of Dufferin or the
Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care to its notice of

intention to withdraw from the Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph
health unit.

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT:
1.The City Solicitor be directed to continue with the
court action, including the injunction application,
currently before the court.
2.The Mayor be requested to follow up with the
Premier’s office and the Minister of Health and Long-
Term Care.
VOTING IN FAVOUR: Councillors Bell, Dennis,
Findlay, Furfaro, Guthrie, Kovach, Van Hellemond,
Wettstein and Mayor Farbridge (9)
VOTING AGAINST: (0)
Carried
ANNOUNCEMENTS
ADJOURNMENT

The meeting adjourned at 8:30 ‘clock p.m.

Minutes read and confirmed June 27, 2011.

Acting City Clerk
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Recommended Zoning and Conditions

“THAT the application by Black Shoemaker Robinson and Donaldson Limited
on behalf of Northview Estates (Guelph) Ltd. for approval of a Zoning By-law
Amendment to rezone lands municipally known as 587 Victoria Road North,
from the current UR (Urban Reserve) Zone to the R.3B (On-Street
Townhouse) Zone, to allow the development of 14 on-street townhouse
dwelling units, be approved, in accordance with the following permitted uses,
regulations and conditions:

Permitted Uses

On-street townhouse

Home Occupation in accordance with Section 4.19
Accessory Use in accordance with Section 4.23

Regulations
In accordance with Section 5.3.2

Conditions

1. The owner shall submit to the City, in accordance with Section 41 of
The Planning Act, a fully detailed site plan, indicating the location of
buildings, landscaping, parking, circulation, access, building elevations,
grading, drainage, and servicing for the said lands, to the satisfaction
of the City, prior to the issuance of the building permit, and
furthermore the Owner agrees to develop the said lands in accordance
with the approved plan.

2. Prior to site plan approval and prior to any construction or grading on
the lands, the developer shall submit a detailed storm water
management report and plans to the satisfaction of the City Engineer
which demonstrates how storm water will be controlled and conveyed.

3. That the developer grades, develops and maintains the site including
the storm water management facilities designed by a Professional
Engineer, in accordance with a Site Plan that has been submitted to
and approved by the City Engineer. Furthermore, the owner shall
have the Professional Engineer who designed the storm water
management system certify to the City that he/she supervised the
construction of the storm water management system, and that the
storm water management system was approved by the City and that it
is functioning properly.

4. The Owner shall pay to the City, as determined applicable by the Chief
Financial Officer/City Treasurer, development charges and education
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development charges, in accordance with the City of Guelph
Development Charges By-law (2004)-17361, as amended from time to
time, or any successor thereof, and in accordance with the Education
Development Charges By-laws of the Upper Grand District School
Board (Wellington County) and the Wellington Catholic District School
Board, as amended from time to time, or any successor by-laws
thereof, prior to Site Plan Approval, at the rate in effect at the time of
the issuance of a building permit.

5. Prior to site plan approval and prior to any construction or grading on
the lands, the developer shall construct, install and maintain erosion
and sediment control facilities, satisfactory to the City Engineer, in
accordance with a plan that has been submitted to and approved by
the City Engineer.

6. Prior to site plan approval and prior to any construction or grading on
the lands, the owner shall have a Professional Engineer design a
grading and drainage plan for the site, satisfactory to the City
Engineer.

7. The developer shall pay to the City the actual cost of constructing,
installing or removal of any service laterals required and furthermore,
prior to site plan approval, the developer shall pay to the City the
estimated cost of the service laterals, as determined by the City
Engineer.

8. The developer shall pay to the City the actual cost of the construction
of the new driveway entrance(s) and the required curb cut, prior to
any construction or grading on the lands, prior to site plan approval
the developer shall pay to the City the estimated cost as determined
by the City Engineer of constructing the new driveway entrance and
the required curb cut.

9. The owner shall construct the new buildings at such an elevation that
the lowest level of the new buildings can be serviced with a gravity
connection to the sanitary.

10.Storm laterals should be provided for the townhouse units just as was
provided for the neighbouring lots in the Northview Estates
Subdivision. The design engineer is to confirm that the 100 year
hydraulic grade line is lower than the underside of footing.

11.That the developer makes satisfactory arrangements with Union Gas
for the servicing of the lands, as well as provisions for any easements
and/or rights-of-way for their plants, prior to site plan approval.
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12.That all electrical services to the lands are underground and the
developer shall make satisfactory arrangements with Guelph Hydro
Electric Systems Inc. for the servicing of the lands, as well as
provisions for any easements and/or rights-of-way for their plants,
prior to site plan approval.

13.That all telephone and Cable TV service to the lands be underground
and the developer shall enter into a servicing agreement with Bell
Canada providing for the installation of underground telephone
service, prior to site plan approval.

14.That any domestic wells, septic systems and boreholes drilled for
hydrogeological or geotechnical investigations shall be properly
abandoned in accordance with current Ministry of the Environment
Regulations and Guidelines to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.

15.Prior to the issuance of site plan approval for the lands, the owner
shall pay to the City, the City’s total cost of reproduction and
distribution of the Guelph Residents’ Environmental Handbook, to all
future households within the project, with such payment based on a
cost of one handbook per residential household, as determined by the
City.

16.The Owner shall meet all the requirements of Guelph Hydro Electric
Systems Inc., including the relocation of existing hydro services and
the installation of new hydro services and shall enter into any
agreements required by Guelph Hydro in order to fully service the said
lands with hydro facilities to the satisfaction of Guelph Hydro, prior to
the issuance of site plan approval for the lands.

17.That the Owner shall complete any requirements of Canada Post
including the provision of a centralized mail facility, at the owner’s
expense, prior to site plan approval.

18.The Owner shall construct the 14 dwelling unit development to meet or
exceed the ENERGY STAR standard.

19.That prior to site plan approval, the owner shall enter into an
agreement with the City, registered on title, satisfactory to the City
Solicitor, covering the conditions noted above and to develop the site
in accordance with the approved plans and reports.



CONSENT REPORT OF THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE

June 27, 2011

Her Worship the Mayor and
Councillors of the City of Guelph.

Your Audit Committee beg leave to present their SECOND CONSENT
REPORT as recommended at its meetings of June 7, 2011.

If Council wishes to address a specific report in isolation please
identify the item. The item will be extracted and dealt with
immediately. The balance of the Consent Report of the Audit
Committee will be approved in one resolution.

1) 2010 City of Guelph Audited Financial Statements

THAT the Finance Report FIN-11-20 dated June 7, 2011 entitled “2010 Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements and 2010 Financial Highlights” be received;

AND THAT the 2010 Consolidated Financial Statements for The Corporation of the
City of Guelph, as audited by Deloitte and Touche, LLP, be approved;

AND THAT staff provide unaudited and unconsolidated financial statements be
provided starting in 2012 for 2011 year.

AND THAT staff report back on the status of implementation of recommendations
within the auditor’s letter of recommendations, including a timeline.

All of which is respectfully submitted.

Councillor Karl Wettstein, Chair
Audit Committee



INTERNAL Guelph
MEMO —

Making a Difference

DATE June 27, 2011

TO City Council

FROM Finance

SUBJECT Amendment to the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements

(since approved by Audit Committee on June 7, 2011)

At the June 7, 2011, Audit Committee meeting, Audit Committee received the audited
consolidated financial statements as an attachment to report FIN-11-20 and has
recommended them to Council for approval.

Since that meeting there has been one amendment to these audited financial statements
stemming from Report FIN-11-23 to the Corporate Services, Administrative, Finance and
Emergency Services Committee on June 13, 2011 relating to which reserves the 2010 year
end operating surplus has been allocated.

The amendment is that $400,000 of the Water user-pay surplus of $1,038,059 be allocated
to the Water Stabilization Reserve instead of the full surplus going to the Water Capital
Reserve. Due to the timing of submission deadlines for the two meetings, this change was
unable to be reflected in the statements for the June 7, 2011 audit committee meeting.

This amendment impacts the financial statements in two ways and can be viewed in the
attachments to this memo:

e The first is on page 22, Note 14 Accumulated Surplus

e The second is on page 32 & 33, Schedule 4 to the Financial Statements

This does not have a significant impact on the financial statements, rather just a
reallocation of funds within the reserves.

Susan Aram
Acting Treasurer
Finance

T 519-822-1260 x 2300
E saram@guelph.ca



City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2010

($000’s)

14.  Accumulated surplus

The accumulated surplus is comprised of the following components:

2010 2009
$ $
Reserves set aside for specific purpose by Council:
for employee future benefits 16,488 15,148
for stabilization 8,053 7,151
for administration and maintenance 3,583 2,442
for human resources and other contingencies 2,016 1,501
Reserves set aside by The Elliott
for capital financing purposes 237 119
for building and equipment maintenance 220 1,324
Reserves set aside by Downtown Guelph Business Association
for contingency 99 107
Reserves set aside by Wellington-Dufferin-Gueipiz Public Health
for capital financing purposes 627 265
for contingency 184 183
Total reserves - Schedule 4 31,507 28,240
Reserve funds set aside for specific purpose by Council:
for equipment replacement 6,539 3,199
for capital financing purposes 73,130 53,829
for industrial deveiepment 2,582 2,260
for working capital ana other 16,328 3,119
Total reserve funds - Schedule 4 98,579 62,407
Total reserves and reserve funds 130,086 90,647
Invested in-tangible capital assets 873,419 795,228
Investment in Guelph Hydro Inc. 66,753 65,442
Investment.in Gueiph Junction Railway Company 5,722 5,584
Guelph Hydro Inc. loan receivable - 30,000
Operating fund (135,746) (107,907)
Unfunded lighilities
Employee future benefits'and related liabilities (31,277) (29,087)
Landfill post closure liability (6,000) (6,600)
Total 772,871 752,660
Accumulated surplus 902,957 843,307

In accordance with the City’s policy for reserve funds, interest is earned on the average reserve fund
balance for the year at the average internal rate of return earned during the year. In 2010 $821 (2009 -
$nil) of interest was earned by the reserve funds and is recorded as a decrease in investment income
and an adjustment to the ending accumulated surplus. In 2009, it was decided that due to the economic
downturn and the poor returns on investments, that no interest would be allocated to the reserve funds.
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City of Guelph

Consolidated schedule of reserves and reserve funds - Schedule 4

December 31, 2010

('000's)
Code Description 2010 2009
$ $
Reserves:
For Employee Future Benefits:
100 Sick Leave - Fire 3,371 3,084
101 Sick Leave - Police 3,339 3,258
102 Sick Leave - Library 852 788
103 Sick Leave - CUPE 241 2,017 1,237
209 Vacation Accrual Reserve 5,123 5,122
330 WSIB 1,526 1,498
338 Land Ambulance Severance 260 161
16,488 15,148
For Stabilization:
131 Employee Benefit Stabilization 2,726 3,040
180 Tax Rate Stabilization 1,671 1,355
181 Water Rate Stabilization 2,114 1,214
182 Waste Water Rate Stabilizaticn 1,542 1,542
8,053 7,151
For Administration and Maintenance:
184 Insurance 1,080 781
188 Building Services 978 449
206 Building Operating Maintenance 100 -
193 Ontario Municipa! Board 681 545
194 Downtown Improvements 200 200
195 Election Costs 183 341
196 Joint Job Evaluation Committee 206 91
345 Westminster Woods 35 35
210 Information Technoiogy Licences 100 -
205 Investment Strategy 20 -
3,583 2,442
Fei Human Resources and Other Coritingencies
198 Operating Contingency 602 302
207 Human Resource Contingency 322 -
197 Human Resource Negotiations 59 29
191 Salary Gapping 1,033 1,170
2,016 1,501
Consolidated Entities
Reserves - The Elliott 457 1,443
Reserves - Downtown Guelph Business Association 99 107
Reserves - Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health 811 448
Total Reserves 31,507 28,240
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City of Guelph

Consolidated schedule of reserves and reserve funds - Schedule 4

December 31, 2010

('000's)
Code Description 2010 2009
$ $
Reserve Funds:
For Equipment Replacement
111 Fire 624 286
113 Transit 686 670
115 Police 427 205
116 Waste Management 945 415
118 Computers 866 4310
121 Play Equipment 397 96
124 Operations Fleet 2,594 1,117
6,539 3,199
For Capital Financing

150 Capital Taxation 697 1,331
151 Capital Parking 3,589 3,823
152 Capital Waterworks 16,385 16,827
153 Capital Wastewater 22,522 17,293
155 Capital Landfill Compensation 139 233
156 Capital DC Exemption 2,248 372
157 Capital Library 1,025 658
158 Capital Police 2,068 2,103
162 Capital Sleeman-Centre 29 22
164 Capital Roads 1,063 70
165 Capital Stormwater 205 124
166 Capital'Park Plainning 51 27
167 Capital Policy Planning 38 -
168 Capital Economic Development 40 -
169 Capital Operations 363 -
170 Capital Recreatiori 99 4)
171 Capital Culture (13) -
172 Capitai- Transit 275 25
173 Capital Fire 198 -
175 Capital Corporate Property 99 -
176 Capital Info Services 149 -
177 Capital Museum 40 -
186 Capital Waste Management 292 12
189 GSEC Capital Reserve 31 16
340 Capital River Run 158 107
120 POA Reiacation 172 167
159 Accessibility 393 450
160 Road Infrastructure 2,312 2,000
161 Public Transit Improvements 801 965
192 Heritage Redevelopment 673 440
200 Investing Ontario Act 4,122 5,494
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COMMITTEE Guelph
REPORT P

Making a Difference

TO Audit Committee

SERVICE AREA The Office of the CAO
DATE June 7, 2011

SUBJECT 2010 Draft Audited Consolidated Financial Statements
and 2010 Financial Highlights
REPORT NUMBER FIN-11-20

RECOMMENDATION

1. THAT the Finance Report FIN-11-20 dated June 7, 2011 entitled “"2010 Draft
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements and 2010 Financial Highlights” be
received.

2. That the 2010 Draft Consolidated Financial Statements for the Corporation of
the City of Guelph as audited by Deloitte and Touche LLP be forwarded to
Council for approval.

BACKGROUND

The approval of the audited 2010 Consolidated Financial Statements satisfies two of
the Audit Committee’s key responsibilities.

« Ensuring management’s financial reporting practices are assessed
objectively, the consolidated financial statements are properly audited and
any problems identified in the audit are satisfactorily resolved.

+ The annual consolidated financial statements, including the selection of
appropriate accounting policies and practices, are approved by Council.

REPORT

Throughout this report, please refer to appendix A to this report for references to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Overview of the Reporting Entity — These Consolidated Statements have been
prepared in accordance with the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) Standards.
This reporting basis requires that in addition to the City’s departments and external
boards (Guelph Public Library Board and Guelph Police Services Board); the
operations of The Elliot and The Downtown Guelph Business Association are fully
consolidated. It also requires the City to consolidate its proportionate share (46%)
of the Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health Unit. Finally, the City wholly owns
the shares of Guelph Hydro Inc. and Guelph Junction Railway Corporation and as a
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result these entities have been designated as Government Business Enterprises.
This requires that these entities be included in the consolidated financial statements
on the modified equity basis which means that the carrying value of the net assets
of the investees are shown on the face of the City’s Statement of Financial Position
as an investment.

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position —The Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position is a summary of the City’s assets and liabilities as well as the
ending accumulated surplus which includes the reserves and reserve funds.

The City’s net financial position is a key indicator of its overall fiscal condition. It is
calculated as the difference between the financial assets and the liabilities. In
2010, the City is in a net financial asset position, with assets exceeding liabilities by
$26m, an $18m decrease from 2009. This decrease is primarily the result of the
receipt of $30m in loan proceeds from Guelph Hydro Inc. and the City’s investment
in significant capital projects during 2010 shown through an increase in both
accounts payable and accrued liabilities and deferred contributions directly
attributable to these projects.

Although having a minor negative impact on the net financial asset position, this
capital investment did have a significant positive impact on the net non-financial
asset position. This can be seen through the increase in tangible capital assets of
$78m over 2009. In total, $119m of capital spending was undertaken in 2010
compared to the average annual spending of approximately $70m. This high level
of spending was achieved through receiving special one-time funding from the
federal and provincial governments of $27m in their response to the economic
downturn. It was also achieved through the hard work of dedicated employees to
manage these additional projects as well as manage the significant amount of
reporting required to these levels of government in order to receive these funds.
The governments extended the deadline for the completion these projects until
October 2011 and so there is an additional $17.5m of these one-time funds
expected in the next year when the majority of these projects are finalized.

Overall, this Consolidated Statement of Financial Position highlights that even with
the extraordinary capital spending; the net cash/investment position is essentially
unchanged, no new debt was taken on (although there is expected to be
approximately $30m issued in 2011), the current debt was reduced by $10m and
the City reserves/reserve funds were increased by $36m. This is a position that the
City is proud to present for this fiscal 2010 year.

Consolidated Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus —The
Consolidated Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus reflects, above all
else, that the City ended in a net surplus position for 2010. It also details the
significant components of revenues and expenses and shows these components as
compared to the approved council budget.

Due to these consolidated financial statements being prepared in accordance with
the PSAB standards, they will not be comparative to the revenues and expenses as
reported to council during the year for budget deliberations and interim financial
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reporting. Some of the major items that drive the non-comparability are

amortization of tangible capital assets; changes in employee future benefit costs
and revenues associated with capital projects. In essence there are two surpluses;
one from PSAB accounting and one from cash-based budgeting. Both are telling the
same story, just in a different presentation. The major differences stem from the
accounting for debt repayment, consolidated entities and tangible capital asset
accounting.

The following is the reconciliation between the ending PSAB surplus of $59m to the
ending 2010 tax supported and user pay surplus’ of $3.2m:

Add:
Less:
Add:
Add:

Add:
Less:
Add:
Add:
Less:

Add:

Less:
Less:
Less:

Less:
Add:

Ending Surplus - PSAB

Amortization of tangible capital assets - City only
Revenues related to tangible capital assets
Capital fund expenses not capital in nature

Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets

Change in employee future benefits

Change in landfill post close costs

Loss on fair market value of SWAP Debt

Interest on debt funded by DC reserves
Repayment of debt principal - excluding DC debt

The Elliot loss

Downtown Guelph Business Association surplus
G-W-D Public Health Unit surplus @ 46%

Gain on Government Business Enterprises

Operating fund transfers to reserves
Operating fund transfers from reserves

Ending Surplus - Tax supported
Ending Surplus - User pay

Difference

58,991
39,050
(58,638)
3,541

419 (15,628)
2,605
(600)
126
598

(7,659) (4,930)
970
(8)
(805)

(1,448) (1,291)
(38,244)

4,346 (33,898)

3,244

1,539

1,705

3,244
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Revenues
Consolidated revenues are comprised of the following components:

2010 Revenue Components

Sa.les Oft Licences and
equipment, . i
quipme Recoveries ~ Permits
publications 1% Provincial
1% °
1% Offenses Act

Investment

\ 1%
mcloo/me \- Other
—
° - | 1%

Contributions
28%

User charges_~ -

19%

Tax revenue continues to be the largest source of income for the City followed by
contribution revenues and user charges. As shown on the Statement of
Consolidated Operations, contribution revenues consist of revenues from the
Federal and Provincial Governments, other municipalities and developers. From
2009, contributions have increased from 22% of total revenue 28% mostly due to
the one-time grants received from the Federal and Provincial governments for
infrastructure renewal. In total in 2010, $27m is included in revenue relating to
these grants compared to $1.5m in 2009. As noted earlier in this report, due to an
extension for the deadline for completion of these projects until October 2011, an
additional $17.5m is expected in 2011. The contribution revenue also includes
developer contributions that were used to fund capital expenditures incurred during
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the year. These revenues increased from $10.6m to $17m in 2010 which is again
reflective of the increased capital spending.

One additional revenue line to highlight is return to a gain position in 2010 for the
Investment in Government Business Enterprises. Due to a change in accounting
policy standards for Guelph Hydro Inc. in 2009, a loss of $9m was picked up in the
prior year. The 2010 gain of $1.4 is more reflective of a normal year.

2010 Budget vs Actual Revenue

" 169,622 172,783 Budgeted

. Actual

180,000

160,000 -

140,000 -
104,472

120,000

100,000 - 68,364

67,363

80,000

60,000
21,539 22,769

Tax User charges Contributions Other

40,000

20,000

This chart was included to highlight that the budget to actual revenues as
presented on the Consolidated Statement of Operations has a significant variance in
the contribution revenue category. This is a result of how the capital projects
related to the one-time infrastructure funding were budgeted. These projects were
all budgeted in the 2009 budget and as such, the 2010 budgeted numbers for both
the capital revenues and the capital spending are lower than actual. The same is
expected to be true for 2011 as these projects are completed by the October
deadline.

Expenses:
Consolidated expenditures are comprised of the following:
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2010 Expenses by Function

Social housing Recreation and Planning and
6% cultural services development
9%

_—

General government

Protection to
persons and

Social and family property

services
14%

6% Transportation

services
Environmental — 16%
services
19%

2010 Expenses by Type
Amortization

13% ~

Salaries, wages and
employee benefits
46%

W

External transfers

Rents and fina
expenses

4% §
Contracted services Materials ' term debt
8% 9% 2%
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Year over year the categories and types of expenditures incurred by the City are
largely unchanged. Salaries, wages and benefits continues to be the most
significant component of the City’s costs, followed by external transfers and
amortization. External transfers substantially consist of the payments made to the
County of Wellington for social services and Wellington Terrace as well as payments
made to the Health Unit.

The operations of the Downtown Guelph Business Association are included in the
planning and development category, The Elliot’s operations are included in social
and family services and the City’s proportionate share of the Health Unit’s expenses
are reflected in health services. All intercompany transactions have been
eliminated in these Consolidated Financial Statements.

For additional details on the revenues and expenses of the City please refer to Note
16 of the Consolidated Financial Statements for details on the expenses by type and
to Schedules 1 and 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a full breakout of
revenues and expenses by functional area.

Accumulated Surplus:

Accumulated Surplus is the excess of the City’s total assets over their total
liabilities. A full break down of the Accumulated Surplus can be found in Note 14 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The two most significant components of the Accumulated Surplus are the
Reserves/Reserve Funds and the Investment in Tangible Capital Assets. Further
detail will be provided later in this memo regarding the Reserves and Reserve
Funds. The investment in the tangible capital assets has increased by the net of
the total spending of $119m less amortization of capital assets of $40m.

Consolidated Statement of Change in Net Financial Assets - This statement
shows the changes in net financial assets as discussed earlier on the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position. Overall it highlights what accounted for decrease
in the net financial assets from 2009 of $18m.

Also included on this schedule are the budgeted amounts for certain line items
which was a new requirement starting in 2009 when the financial statements were
first required to reflect the value of the City’s tangible capital assets. 2010 was the
first year in which a “"PSAB"” budget was attempted which accounts for the variance
on the amortization of tangible capital assets line item. The variance on the
acquisition of tangible capital assets has been discussed earlier and relates to the
infrastructure renewal projects being budgeted in 2009.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows - This statement provides an excellent
summary of what cash was generated during the year and where it was physically
spent. This statement’s purpose is to reconcile the ending surplus as shown on the
Consolidated Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus back to the actual
ending cash on hand at the end of the fiscal year (as shown on the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position).
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The first section highlights the cash earned from normal operations and starts with
the net surplus of $59m and adds/subtracts out items that were non-cash in
nature. These non-cash revenues and expenses include amortization, gains/losses
on the Government Business Enterprises, allowances on the investments and the
fair market value of the SWAP debt. This section shows that from normal
operations, $95m of net cash was generated in 2010 (as compared to $58m in
2009).

In the next two sections, the investing, financing and capital cash transactions are
showing where this $95m was spent. The major areas for 2010 were to
purchase/build tangible capital assets, repay debt and increase the City’s
investment portfolio. In addition, the investing areas shows the $30m loan proceed
from Guelph Hydro Inc. which also helped pay for the above items.

Overall, the City’s cash position did drop from 2009 by $13m but this is offset by
the increase in the investment portfolio and in total would be substantially
unchanged from the prior year.

This Statement highlights that the City did use a significant amount of cash in the
current year to fund capital projects and although no new debt was issued in 2010,
there is a plan to issue additional debenture debt of approximately $30m in 2011.

Reserves and Reserve Funds - Attached to the Consolidated Financial
Statements in Schedule 4 is a breakdown of every reserve and reserve fund and
the balance as at December 31, 2010 and 2009. It highlights that total reserves
and reserve funds have increased from 2009 by $39m. The net amount contributed
through normal operations was $6m plus the $30m of proceeds received from the
Guelph Hydro Inc. loan and $3m transferred from the ending surplus.

As a rule of thumb, the capital reserves funds should be increased by at a minimum
of the amount equal the amortization of tangible capital assets. Total amortization
was $40m compared to the $42m that was funded to the capital reserve funds
through transfers from operating and capital (excludes the $30m proceeds from the
monetization of the Guelph Hydro loan). Based on this analysis, the minimum
funding requirements of these capital reserves were met but management and
Council need to keep in mind that the minimum amount is based on historic cost
and not the future replacement cost it will take to maintain and replace these
assets. Looking forward to the future, management needs to continue to focus on
increasing these capital reserves to ensure that the life cycling and growth needs
are being addressed.

There is currently a recommendation before council to approve the increase to the
reserves originating from the 2010 operating surplus of $3m. The Consolidated
Financial Statements currently include these transfers as recommended and are
outlined as follows:
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Tax Support Surplus of $1.5m
e $249k to the Police Relocation (capital) reserve fund
e $74k to the Library Relocation (capital) reserve fund
e $300k to the Ontario Municipal Board reserve
 $300k to the Insurance reserve
+ $300k to the Operating Contingency reserve
 $316k to the Tax Rate Stabilization reserve

User Pay Surplus of $1.7m
 $638k to the Water Capital reserve fund
 $400k to the Water Rate Stabilization fund (Not currently reflected in the FS)
 $667k to the Wastewater Capital reserve fund

Currently the Financial Statements reflect that $1,038K was transferred to the
Water Capital reserve fund but due to a late change, $400k of this was reallocated
to the Water Rate Stabilization reserve. Pending no changes by council relating to
these transfers, Note 14 and Schedule 4 to the Financial Statements will be
changed to reflect this $400k transfer; otherwise if Council changes any of
allocations above further the Consolidated Financial Statements will need to be
updated.

Net Debt - Attached to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Schedule 3 is a
breakdown of the debt what projects it was used to fund. In addition, Note 11(c) to
the Consolidated Financial Statements includes a repayment summary that shows
what revenues will be used to repay this debt: the tax base, user pay and other, or
developer contributions.

Employee Future Benefits — Employee Future Benefits comprises of WSIB, Sick
leave and Post retirement benefits as outlined in Note 10 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements. These liabilities are calculated by an external actuary based
on data obtained from Management. The data used to compute these liabilities
includes the balances of employee sick leave hours, Worker’s Health and Safety
claims history, # of employees per union group and all the various terms of all the
union contracts. It also factors in certain assumptions including a discount rate,
health care inflation rates, prescription drug rates, and average service life of the
employees.

In 2010, a full valuation was required for all three components as is mandated by
PSAB reporting (full valuation required every 3 years and the last one was in 2006).
In the interim years an extrapolation of this data is used to estimate the liabilities.

In 2010 the increase in this liability is significant at $2.6m which can be attributed
to the following reasons:

a) Provincial off-loading of Land Ambulance operations - this accounts for the
most significant part of the increase and results from the union contract
inherited by the City when the Province moved the Land Ambulance
operations to Municipal jurisdiction.
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All employees that fall under this union agreement hired on or before June
30, 2009 are eligible for a severance payment upon retirement based on
employment service years up to a maximum. It represents approximately
$1m of the total increase.

b) Increase in # of employees, sick leave hour balances and wage rates since
last valuation in 2006 - Based on the current draft report received from the
actuaries, total members went from 1,270 in 2006 to 1,443 in 2010
(Increases in EMS, Police and 241). Average salary went from $55,305 to
$62,022 and total sick leave entitlement went from 704,938 hours to
795,096 hours. Please note that these figures are weighted averages based
on union membership and also include non-active members (retired but still
eligible) and should not be used for any other purpose than for calculating
this estimated liability.

c) Decrease in the discount rate used for Post retirement benefits and sick leave
- the discount rate should reflect the City’s average long-term cost of
borrowing and is used to present value the estimated liability and calculate
the annual interest cost of this liability. Based on the guidance from the
actuary, the discount rate was lowered to 4.75% from 5.0% given their
experience in the market. This is also consistent with their approach for
other municipalities. A decrease in the discount rate = an increase in the
liability.

It is important to highlight that in total for the employee future benefit accruals of
$31m (this expected future liability of $26m plus the vacation accrual of $5m), the
City currently only has reserves set aside to fund this liability totaling $16m. The
reserves compared to the liabilities break down as follows:

Liability Reserve Under (Over) Funded

Vacation Accrual 4,940 5,123 (183)
WSIB Liability 3,233 1,526 1,707

Sick Leave Liability 9,409 9,579 (170)
Post Retirement Benefits 13,413 260 13,153
30,995 16,488 14,507

As shown above, the City is underfunded by approximately $14m for these
liabilities. This has been identified by management as an area of concern and
adjustments have been made in 2011 to fund these reserves at a higher rate than
in the past.

CORPORATE STRATEGIC PLAN
5.3 Open, accountable and transparent conduct of municipal business

Page 10 of 11 CITY OF GUELPH COMMITTEE REPORT



FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
An unqualified opinion on the City’s Consolidated Financial Statements will assist
the City in obtaining a fair credit rating and are useful in making financial decisions.

COMMUNICATIONS

Final copies of the 2010 Consolidated Financial Statements along with a full annual
report will be available on the City’s web page upon approval by Council in June
2011.

ATTACHMENTS
Appendix A: 2010 Draft Consolidated Financial Statements
Appendix B: 2010 Deloitte and Touche Audit Findings Report

Signed by: Signed by:
Prepared By: Recommended By:
Tara Johnston Sue Aram

Senior Financial Analyst, Financial Reporting Acting Treasurer
519-822-1260 x2084 519-822-1260 x2300
tara.johnston@guelph.ca susan.aram@guelph.ca
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Deloitte & Touche LLP
4210 King Street East
Kitchener ON N2P 2G5
Canada

Tel: 519-650-7600
A Fax: 519-650-7601
/™. www.deloitte.ca
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To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers(é/f/‘ the A ‘“\//
City of Guelph . x‘\\ /"'/ ~N

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial stateﬁiagts of C;i:jy of Guelph, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31 , 2010, and.the consolidated statements
of operations and accumulated surplus, chan§5§ig_net financial assets\Zmd cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant acco({\ﬁting poTi“eicg and other explana“m{y infégmation.

AN

Management's Responsibility for the Consbl\gda\%\‘é“gxginancml\smtements
\ N \\} \\N
Management is responsible for the preparation and-fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with-Canadian public secto\z\accounting/sxi’mwdegrés, and for such internal control
as management determines’is necessary to enable the ﬁgeparati@fx of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material rpﬁstatement, whether due to frau\(‘}\or errar.
SN N ‘\\ /
. » 2y ive S, i y Vd
Auditor’s Responsibilit Y ) i’”‘\%\%
Our responsibility is to exp;\égs\in opinien.gn these ‘é“”énség)lidated financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian génerally accepted auditing standards. Those
standardw‘f/e(aﬁffé“th@i we comply with ethic \l\geqlméﬁgents and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasond le assurance é"b@\?t whether t?iéc\msoli‘dgted financial statements are free from material
m1s§i?iemeng;,\ ~ \\K\ \/,/
An auditi Vol\/é‘s‘gerfomxing p\fg\cedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the %sgssmé‘nt of/the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity'sq reparat{gf’i and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit proced&s\%}f are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectivenéss of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of City of Guelph as at December 31, 2010 and the results of its operations, its changes in net
financial assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canad;éﬂyubl1c sector

accounting standards. / /’
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City of Guelph

Consolidated statement of financial position

as at December 31, 2010
('000's)
2010 2009
N 5
Ve S
Financial assets S //
Cash A3 127 56,643
Investments (Note 4) . 73»4\35 \\x 58,896
Taxes receivable AT, 4&1 N 7,648
Accounts receivable . 39 941 \ 21,072
Developer agreement receivables SN 1,004 . \\;58
Loans and notes receivable // \\/ 1,312 \\Q 30, 539
Investment in Guelph Junction Railway Company (Note 5\/ e 5,722 5,584
Investment in Guelph Hydro Inc. (Note 6) ‘f\ { ., 66,753 65,442
. S 239,075 246,101
N e
Liabilities ‘\\ </
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ~ 43,497 31,216
Accrued interest payable N \ \\177 841
Vacation and other employee benefits payable (No?é‘ )\c‘ \\ 5 4%} 5,637
Other deferred revenue N e S 10,336 8,887
Deferred contributions (Note 8) AN \f:\ Iy 23,294 17,792
Employee future benefits (Note 10) N AN N’”M} \“\\ 25,856 23,450
Net debt (Note 11) N \\/ \”\ 97,279 108,777
Landfill post-closure liability (Nete 12) N S 6,000 6,600
s S N / 212,460 201,200
oy < <
. N "
Net financial assets 5 \\ } 26,615 44 901
Y ; ! R
. \\/ QMNN hvd
Non-financial assets T
Tangible capital assets (Nota\S) e K\«\ 873,419 795,228
Inventory “ N / 2,452 2,689
Prepaid-eXpensas N S ./ 471 489
S . S 876,342 798,406
™ 7
Con“Qgencxes (Note\w) \ \\\/
Commitments dnd guarantees (Note 20)
Accumulated surplus (Note 14) 902,957 843,307

~ )
. \/ }
/
. 4
N4
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City of Guelph
Consolidated statement of operations and accumulated surplus
year ended December 31, 2010

('000's)
2010 2010 2009
Budget / Actual Actual
(Note 22)
}//\P / $ $
Revenues /
Taxation and user charges <,
Property taxation - own purpose 16‘\,955 e \ 165,394, 157,143
Property taxation - education purposes N \51 727 61,046
Property taxation - Downtown Guelph Business Association Fan 412 432 \\\ 412
Taxation from other governments / \\ 4,862 5,500 4,767
Penalties and interest on taxes 1,393 1,480 ™~ 1 480
S / 169,622 234,510 224 ;3?8
Less: Amounts received or receivable for school boards (Note 3) { I - {61,727) (b~: 046)
169,622 172,783 163,782
User charges \\\ 67,3’\4 68,364 66,979
Contributions . &\
Government of Canada \\\ 5,780 20,340 6,975
Province of Ontario //\\\\ 4%1792 57,321 42,893
Municipal < ~ 8,930 8,255 5,582
Developers N N . 7,57 Vs 17,873 10,836
Other ~ RN 291 683 1,109
N S 132,728 172,836 134,374
\.\ Ny N
Other \ \"v/ ™~
Investment income T \\ f\\ // 583 4,184 7,161
Donations N N / 946 860 360
Sales of equipment, pubhcations \\\ N \\ 3,136 4,073 3,202
Recoveries /’ /f“‘\\ \ \\/ 5,195 5,082 7.144
Licences and permits \\ S 5 | 2,757 3,107 2,931
Provincial Offenses Act révenues \\\ f’ imw\& 3,115 3,675 2,959
Other fines “\ \”\n\ 752 752 641
Gain (loss) on disposal of tanglbra cap;tal assets T 55 (442) (14)
Income (loss) from Government Business E\h[prlsem / - 1,448 (9,357)
T ™ Sy T 21,539 22,769 15,027
- \\\ - .
Total ,revenues \ \} 323,889 368,388 313,183
< g \ NS
Experizes .
Genera overnment \\ x 26,645 26,060 23,851
Protection‘services ™\ N 57,378 58,286 57,100
Transportatio kserwces\ } &\ 49,270 49,576 47,577
Environmental séryices A4 ] 58,438 59,987 57,549
Heaith services \ /x’ 20,047 19,523 19,279
Social and family servic?e% e 43,194 43,961 43,408
Social housing ™. // 17,480 16,753 14,135
Recreation and cultural services 28,390 28,595 26,838
Planning and development 5,775 6,457 6,634
Total expenses 306,617 309,198 296,371
Excess of revenues over expenses for the year 17,272 59,190 16,812
Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 843,307 843,307 878,152
Adjustments (Note 2) - - (51,593)
Add: Interest on / transfers to reserves and reserve funds - 821 4)
Less: Minority interest in Health Unit tangible capital assets - (361) (60)
Accumulated surplus, end of year 860,579 902,957 843,307

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.

Page 4



City of Guelph

Consolidated statement of changes in net financial assets
year ended December 31, 2010

(000's)
2010 2010 2009
Budget //\ks\g}lal Actual
(Note 22) / Vi
s 78 $
/ \\
Excess of revenue over expenses for the year 17,272 "~ 59 19‘1,\ 16,812
S, Vg ™,
S u\
Amortization of tangible capital assets . 36,000 40 811 AN <. 35,342
Acquisition of tangible capital assets / ’\‘“(\53,047) (119, 742;\\ (aa 255)
Loss on disposal of {angible capital assets /’/ yd - 442
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets (,f // 55 298 \\ /229
Minority interest in Health Unit tangible capital assets ‘”‘x\ N /\-\\ (361) (60)
Interest earned on reserve funds AN ~ 800/ 821 )
Change in inventory \\ - 237 76
Change in prepaid expenses . {\ 18 68
NN
Decrease in net financial assets for the year” \ (8, 920) AN (18 286) (16,778)
Net financial assets, beginning of year \ 44, 901 ™ . ﬁ4 901 61,678
Net financial assets, end of year N o, T 35,981 ..~ 26,615 44,901
N \.\ .
The accompanying notes are an integral part of thls\fman qa\Efatement\\
L e \
/
T \\ ﬁ\“x/
SN N <
Vs — Y \\\ N
{/ / \\\3 m‘\ *«'\ j/
. | N
\\ \\/; im% /
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City of Guelph
Consolidated statement of cash flows
year ended December 31, 2010

(000's)
~2010 2009
VAR ;
Operating activities / /
Excess of revenues over expenses for the year {\/’ 59 19‘9;\ 16,812
ltems not affecting cash:
Amortization of tangible capital assets \’ / 4\bk ™. 35,342
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets 2N 442 \\\ 14
Allowance on asset backed investment / o 565 \\ \578
Gain on interest rate swap contracts } (139) \“\ (533)
(Income) loss from Government Business Enterprises , (1,448) ‘9,307
Employee future benefit expenses \ f‘ 2,406 1 340
Landfill post-closure (recovery) expenses , (600) 900
Changes in non-cash working capital: \\ </
Taxes receivable . 167 (414)
Accounts receivable P \\ (18,869) (8,813)
Developer agreement receivables yd \\\N “\\ ~(546) (458)
Inventory \\ S \\:}237 76
Prepaid expenses \ 18 68
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ™ \\\ \ 12,420 3,703
Accrued interest payable \\ \ . (64) -
Vacation and other benefits payable A ‘v :) (216) 650
Other deferred revenue . \ /\\ e 1,449 {260)
Cash provided by operaiihg ™ 95,823 58,362
7 AN N \\\
Capital and mvestmt{/ activitigs N \\ \‘ Ve
Acquisition of tanglblexgapxta sse E«w\ N (119,742) (69,255)
Minority interest in Health\u\mt tanglble capltal\éa (361) (60)
Proceeds from disposal of témglble capital.assets ‘“m. 298 229
Change in loans and notes recexvable S \N& / 29,046 (310)
Net mvestment“agguxsmons \\, e (14,804) (24,200)
Cag,kf used by capitai-and investing ™. N {105,563) (93,596)
j/”“‘«»\ N j/
Financing attivities™. . \\ \V
Proc%egs from\Qew deb\t\ xssued 379 34,870
Repayment of debt\prmcma! ‘\ (9,878) (8,529)
Interest earmd on reserve/ funds \3 821 (4)
Net change in c“k;ferred tontributions 5,502 (3,113)
Cash (used) provided by financirig (3,176) 23,224
~ y
Decrease in cash for the ye%éff’l {12,916) (12,010)
Cash, beginning of year 56,643 65,653
Cash, end of year 43,727 53,643

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

December 31, 2010
($000’s)
/f/\\\\
S
1. Significant accounting policies / />

The consolidated financial statements of the City of Guelph (the “Clty/{have been prepared by
management in accordance with Canadian public sector aocountmg“‘sfandard Sigmﬁ@nt accounting
policies adopted by the City are as follows: \/\

Reporting entity N \
2N

The consolidated financial statements reflect the financial‘éssets\%iabilities operating revénues an\d
expenses and changes in investment in tangible capltal assets ofthe reporting entity. The reaortmg
entity is comprised of those City functions or entities, sihich hav been determined to comprise a\g),ert of
the aggregate City operations based upon control exermsed by\ghe City, ‘except for the City’s

R
government businesses which are accounted for on the modlfled“*ﬁquxty basgis of accounting.

Consolidated entities \“‘\ <

\
In addition to the general City departmefr;ls the reporting entity int h,\gges tﬁe{o!lowing:
Guelph Public Library Board / S \\ \\
Guelph Police Services Board 5, \\ . J
Downtown Guelph Business Associatioh, . S N4
The Elliott \ \“‘ T

All interfund assets, liabilities, revenues and penées have been eliminated. The Elliott's fiscal year
ends March 31, which does not coincide with tr‘e C:ty < fiscal year end, ?The Elliott has been

consolidated using the fiscabyear ending March ’*1 2016. /N\vﬁ/
*\ {/f -

Proportionately consolldated ent\?: Y
7 .

The City reportsxonly its Qnare\of ass’ets liabilities and result;\)f operations of any government
partnerships in w ich it pa(gc:p%tes 'Ehe City part;c;pates i the Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public
Health Unitto the e Qt\cjaﬁ% (200@"““*6 Q based on population, as stated in agreement with the

other participants.

\‘,\HN \ /f
'I:}he investrients in Guelph Hydro Inc. anq\Guelp”h Junction Railway Company are accounted for on a
/*nodlf ied equtty\bais consistent Wxﬂ’{the generally accepted accounting principles for the treatment of
f governg\{:ﬂ%sme enterprises. Under the modified equity basis, the business enterprise’s accounting
prmmp.Ps are hat adré*ted to conform to"those of the City, and inter-organizational transactions and
%’—Lances are not'e mmated Under the modified equity basis of accounting, the carrying value of the

mvestment nﬁ zanes is .adjusted to reflect the City’s share of the net asset change of the investee.

Modified equity basis entities

3

Non-colisolidate ntlﬂes 3
H

The following-local boards a;é not consolidated:

School Boards ™ s

Guelph General Hospitai Commission
Guelph Cemetery Commission
Guelph Non-Profit Housing

Accounting for school board transactions

The taxation and other revenues with respect to the operations of the school boards are reflected in the
Consolidated Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus but with no effect on the accumulated
surplus since the total is also shown as a deduction from revenue.
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2010

($000’s)

/\ N

1. Significant accounting policies {continued) /x‘/ /f}

Reporting entity (continued) {j \\‘
Accounting for school board transactions (continued) ™~ ) /f “‘x\ \\\

In addition, the expenditures, assets and liabilities with respect to the operations of?‘ng schabl»,poards
are not reflected in these financial statements except to th@é)?t‘*egt that any over or under levies'are
reported on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as ;?;art of “accounts payable~and acéru\g\ad

liabilities” or “accounts receivable” ~
' / ANy ,/
Basis of accounting . < //\\ e
) S ™~
Accrual basis of accounting \\\ ~

LN . .
Revenue and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of acgounting; The accrual basis of
accounting recognizes revenues in the period in which the transactions orevents occurred that gave rise
to the revenues; expenses are recogni;eﬁ~«a§they are incurred ané‘m\gasur ble as a result of receipt of

goods or services or the creation of aﬁf obligatien to pay. L

R
Property tax billings are prepared by the é‘i’gy b}sgd\gg assessment rolls issued by the Municipal
Property Assessment Corporation ("MPAC")s, Tax'rates.are estéblisjled annually by the City Council,
incorporating amounts to be raised for local services arid amounts the-City is required to collect on
behalf of the Province of Ontario in respect of education taxes:~A norral part of the assessment
process is the issuangé of supplementary assessrhent rolls,which bfovide updated information with
respect to changes in property angssment. Once\a\suppf entary assessment roll is received, the City
determines the taxes applicable and'yenders supplem?—}ptary ax billings. Taxation revenues are
recorded at thetime the fgx billings arg issued. Assesstnen < and the related property taxes are subject
to appeal. Tax adjagstmenf&a§,sé resuﬁt%ppeals are rectfded when the result of the appeal process is
reasonably certain. The Cit);\fs entitled to cotlect interest and penalties on overdue taxes. The revenues
are recorded in the period the intelj{asingnd penames?are levied. Tax revenue is recorded net of

reductions. Taxes receiva\b!g\are réportad-net of apy expense or allowance for doubtful accounts.

Taxes receivable and related revenue?s\\ I \\ /

- M“‘%\ -
ResServes and.reserve funds \\
T

. . . e -
/Certain amounts, as, Qpproved by City. Coun\t'?ﬁl, are set aside in reserves and reserves funds for future
£, operatifig éﬁ&gapital pUrposes. Trans?”é:@ao and/or from reserves and reserve funds are recorded as an
agjustm‘ant within, Qccumkllated surplus.

N . .
Deferred revenue a)?d deferred contributions
=, ~ hY

\\,. 3 i i
Deferrecr\revenaé‘& \re/p‘resent\yser charges and fees which have been collected but for which the related
services or e;g\penditures have yet to be performed. These revenues will be recognized in the fiscal year
the services of\e‘z(penditure;fére performed.

Deferred contributions re;ﬁ?esent developer contributions and other contributions that have been
contributed for a specific purpose and for which the related expenditure or services have yet to be
performed. These amounts are recognized in the same period that the related expenditure or service
has occurred.
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

December 31, 2010
($000°s)
Y \\
1. Significant accounting policies {(continued) / /
Basis of accounting (continued) ,\// \\
Tangible capital assets \\\// ™

(i} Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost, which includes all amounts that are dj\rectlﬁ\aﬁributable
to acquisition, construction, development or betterment of tiwe asset. The cost, less :esiduai\xglue, of
the tangible capital assets are amortized on a straightine ba"é:;;s over their estimated lives as follows:

Land improvements -20to 75"§lears // e
Buildings - 10 to 75 years «/\/\ v
Machinery and equipment - 3to 25 years S

Vehicles -5to 15 years. /"

Sanitary sewers infrastructure - 50 to 80 years ™, 4

Storm sewer infrastructure -15t0 80 years ™ ey

Transportation infrastructure /’“\; 20 to 80 years \ \\

Waterworks infrastructure / -‘&t% 80 years “ ™

<\~ N
The City has various capitalization th?é&ol&é?sp tha;i\ﬁ"dwldual tangible capital assets of lesser
value are expensed, unless the assets have SiganTBant valué-collectively (pooled assets). Examples
of pools are deskiop and laptop computers, polk\:Q,e’auipment, traffic signais, streetlights, and fire
equipment. . S

In 2010, certain of the estimated lives were chz;ﬁgegjrom 2009 to bett“éﬁ\[{e;le%t their actual usage.

(i) Land purchased,féyr servicg"f}e{ivery purposes fs\\recor éd asa ’E;mgible capital asset at cost. Any
land cost premitm incurred or digcount received related'to expropriation will be included as part of
the asset to e cons&rﬂ&t@d\and amortized over its useful life.

3

A
(ili) Tangible capitaiesse?wgge}ived ag%mcpxntributions are récognized at their fair value at the date of
receipt, and corréspondingly recognized as revenue in that period. Similarly, contributions of assets
to a third party are Fégprded as.an expense Equaj to the net book value of the tangible capital asset
as of the date of transfer, N /

o " T A
(iy)’fgase?ére classified as capital or o‘\perating”iféases. Leases which transfer substantially all of the
// benefits and’risks incidental to y\vnersﬁp of asset are accounted for as capital leases. All other
y leases-are accotinted for as opera*'ngl[,ases and the related lease payments are charged to
exp\enses\‘a\s incu%eg\.

EmoIoVe\e\future benefit obligations

The c\é\u of fu\t?h'e benefits eé‘gned by employees is actuarially determined using the projected benefit
method prerated \Gix\gérvice af;xd assumptions of mortality and termination rates, retirement age and

expected inﬁ‘%rates.

Past service cost {Qm pgaﬁ amendments, if any, are deferred and amortized on a straight-line basis
over the average remaim"ng service life of active employees at the date of the amendment. Actuarial
gains and losses on the accrued benefit obligation arise from differences between the actual and
expected experience and from changes in the actuarial assumptions used to determine the accrued
benefit obligation. The excess of the net actuarial gains or losses over 10% of the benefit obligation is
amortized over the average remaining service life of active employees.

Government transfers

Government transfers are recognized in the financial statements in the period in which the events giving
rise to the transfer occur, providing that the transfers are authorized, any eligibility criteria have been
met, and reasonable estimates of the amounts can be made.
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

December 31, 2010
($000s)
N
1. Significant accounting policies (continued) // s
Basis of accounting (continued) // é\
Investment income ‘{\\ .
/ \

Investment income earned on available funds and loans receivable are repérted as.revente, |n the
period eamed. Investment income earned on deferred contributions is recorded as ammc:reas1 to
deferred contributions. Investment income earned on rese.veé\a@d reserve funds are reborded
increase in accumulated surplus. / } \,\ >

Use of estimates o~

~,

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity, with Cao\af/;n ?fﬁbhc sector accounting
standards requires management to make estimates and aasumptlons thaté?fect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and\":'abmtles a{/ the dates of the consolidated
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and* ‘expenses during the reporting periods.
Significant items subject to such estlma}es and assumptions include valuatlog allowance for asset
backed investments, valuation allowapces forraceivables, certain accm\ habl‘mes and obligations
related to employee future benefits and the carryi’hwe of tangible capit @\assels Actual results
could differ from these estimates. \\

N

Future accounting changes \ e

Effective for fiscal periods beginning on or aftégApnM 2012, all gé?/*emments will be required to adopt
Public Sector Accountlng Board Handbook (“P I\B”) Section 3&0 Taé( Revenue. This standard
provides guidance o (‘Gvern“ﬁ“xs,nts on the accoun ﬂg and reg {értmg»cf tax revenue in the financial
statements. /’ ~ AN "\

f

Effective for fiscal perlodefb'““g nmg on or after April 1, 012 all governments will be required to adopt
Public Sector AEsountméxBoar Handbook (“PSAB”) Sectl\o/v 3410 Government Transfers. This
standard provides gu\\dance\to/governme",ts for the accounting and reporting of government transfers
from both the transferting govemment and thé-recipient government in the financial statements.

Effective for fiscal periods i ngmnlng\n N or.after Ap rit'1, 2014, all governments will be required to adopt
PSA-.)“S“@etLOﬂ 3260, Liability m\éContamlna\?rS ités. This standard provides guidance on how to
agcount for and., eport a liability as somatesQ/xlth the remediation of contaminated sites, defines which
_activities would berincluded in the liahility forremediation, establishes when to recognize and how to
measure aiiability fg\l\gmedxatlon ana\p Sy!des guidance on financial statement presentation and
d|sclosure \

The\Cny is currentl;}»ath};{ocess of evaluating the potential impact of adopting these standards.

2. Restate?ﬁ\nt of ZLOS’; ompaﬁ'atlve figures

During the 201 ear, it wasfound that certain assets and liabilities reported in the 2009 consolidated
financial statements co k?1‘fwed misstatements and therefore have been adjusted for retroactively in the
comparative fi gures\t; ese consolidated financial statements.

It was found that certain tangible capital assets were included in both “assets under construction” as well
as in their specific asset category and has been adjusted for retroactively. One of the long-term debt
instruments owed by the City since 2006 was found to meet the definition of a hedge in accordance with
the accounting standards and as such an adjustment to reflect the fair market value of the loan has been
recorded retroactively. It was also found that a long-term loan receivable was excluded from the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position in 2009 and prior years and as such has been adjusted for
retroactively in the current statements. Finally, there were two other minor retroactive adjustments
related to the consolidated entities and the presentation of the interest/transfers to reserves and the
minority interest the City holds in the Health Unit tangible capital assets. The net impact of these
adjustments on the 2009 surplus was minimal and as such no adjustment has been included.
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

December 31, 2010
($000°s)
N
/ 4 \\
2. Restatement of 2009 comparative figures (continued) g

The total impact of correcting these items in the 2009 comparative figlres is as follows:
~ \\

. N 2009
As previously \.! N As
. reported Adjustment restated

S $ N S
/
Tangible capital assets <\ 8}6’,“38&6 (81,158) 7\95,228
Loans and notes receivable \\\ - 358 30,000 30,358
Developer receivables . (4§S§ 916 458
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (29,977) (1,239) (31,216)
Accumulated surplus, beginning of year (878,152 51,592 (826,560)
Interest/transfers to reserves and reseive fi’md§ \ - \\ 4) (4)
Minority interest in Health Unit tangible capital 5§sei§ g ™ (80) (60)
Accumulated surplus, end of year \\ e \\ (894,964) 51,656 (843,308)
\\ ™ \\\q\ "‘x\
N 7\\”’\;‘; \\\
3. Operations of school boards \\ v . />
The taxation, other [,ei’/'énues, g?’@@nses and levieé\qf the sg"\ﬁ;ool bogrds are comprised of the following:
e ™ h
/ N NN 2010 2009
Y 7 ; v s
) W, 5 2
" \“»jf gﬂm\*ﬂ\
Taxation N R T 61,725 61,044
Payment in lieu . e 7 2 2
\ &
L N \\ N 61,727 61,046
Requisitions ™. . “\ (61,727) (61,046)
// Net levy for the year N/ - -
4, {/ '\ \\jx

Included'in accounts rec;ké%yable are levies owing from the school board totaling $577 (2009 - $63).

N,
4 l \?m t\ \‘ \\
. nvesiments H ¢
S \\ '

Investment\s\{e recﬁéed at gfost. The cost and market values are as foliows:
J

N 2010 2009
~ 2 Market Cost Market Cost
$ $ $ $
Short-term investments 49,804 49,785 34,541 33,433
Long-term investments 24,182 23,350 24,018 25,463
73,986 73,135 58,559 58,896
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

December 31, 2010
($000’s)
/N
4. Investments (continued) /f/ )/}

In 2009, a restructuring plan was implemented to convert frozen shof‘ R term asset—bagked commercial
paper to long term notes of various classes with terms matching the inaturity o the underlying assets.
As a result of the exchange, the City recorded the new carrying value (lm{eése oh$64) it recognized
the highly speculative nature of any ultimate payment of pr|n0|pa| at maturity by booking a prayision for
impairment. The impairment is recorded net of the cost of the 1QQ§—term investments a\=d is estimated to

be 49% of the investment cost or $1,143 (2009 - 25% or ¢578) “ \\\
f[ ///i \\\ \}
5. Investment in Guelph Junction Railway Company\ J\/ N \//
The following table provides condensed supplementar?‘ﬂnanciéi‘é(;fé/rmat?d‘;; for the Guelph Junction
Railway Company (the “Railway”) for the year ended December 31: 7
b N 2010 2009
po V N $ $
/ \\x \\ .
. , < T \\ Ny
Financial position 5 \\ ~.
Current assets \ A S ~ 657 623
Property, plant and equipment . N\ \\ T ‘ 6,380 6,385
Total assets ~ \ / . 7,037 7,008
T ", !‘lﬁ\"x J/{/
Current liabilities "‘\\\\ N / ~ 300 366
Deferred capitalContributions ™, N N 1,015 1,058
Total liabilities’ S Y / 1,315 1,424
Net assets ) } NS 5,722 5,584
A ““\\\\
Results of operations , \“\%
Revenues N O~ 1,503 1,141
ffﬁmwm”“‘a\ ~
/’f Operating ex e\p\nses . 1,365 1,166
7 Neti Income (loss)\ \\ 138 (25)
Retained eamings, beginning of year 5,584 5,609
Retained. earnings, end*of year 5,722 5,684

N

Related } pan‘y tranqggt ions §

The City pa $certain expenees and receives certain revenues on behalf of the Railway for which the
Railway reimbursss the Cl’ry periodically. During the year, these net expenses reimbursed to the City
amounted o $260 \(‘200 2$112). Additional payments in 2010 of $116 were made fo the City to repay
the amount owing frontprior years. The total amount owing to the City at year end is $195 (2009 -

$310) and is included as part of loans and notes receivable.

The Railway also paid the City $22 (2009 - $19) in administration fees and in 2009, the Railway paid the
City $86 related to an operating lease for certain property which expired in 2009. These transactions

were made in the normal course of business and have been recorded at the exchange amounts.
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2010

($000’s)

6. Investment in Guelph Hydro Inc.

N
/

)

The City of Guelph owns 100% of Guelph Hydro Inc (the “Company”, }, which in turn

wns 100% of
Guelph Hydro Electric Systems Inc., Ecotricity Guelph Inc. and over B¢ % of plﬁlhng onElectric

Distribution Company Inc. The following table provides condensed supp.ementarv fi nancx@ mformatlon

AN
2010 \2009

for the Company for the year ended December 31:

/\

(/ $ $
Financial position
Current assets \ \\/ 73,069 36,532
Property, plant and equipment < 101,591 93,623
Future income taxes \ 9,512 9,646
Total assets i 184 172 139,801
7 \\%
Current liabilities \\ o T \\/2/3 575 51,123
Customer deposits NN \\\ 4,090 3,671
Long-term debt "x\ \\ “‘\R} A 65,462 -
Regulatory liabilities N \/’ 15,315 10,794
Other long-term liabilities._ N 8,977 8,771
Total liabilites .~ N 117,418 74,359
Total shareholdet's equity ™ N N 48,576 48,576
Net assets ./ S 3 N 18,177 16,866
Total Investmént ™./ i N 66,753 65,442
— —~
Results of operations ™. . ™

Revenues s N e 145,217 123,541

/ ““\\ \\ N
ost of sales - \ ™ 117,710 96,819
Operating. expen3b§ ya 22,749 20,808
\ lmpéwrment Of\propert ,\plant and equrpment - 2,984
mcome\ta\xes NN 1,947 3,488
Total expenses \ 142,406 124,099
Net income (loss) / | 2,811 (558)
Retained &arnings, begmnmg of year 16,866 26,143
Adjustment du@\to changé in accounting policy - (6,469)
Dividends N (1,500) (2,250)
Retained earnings, end of year 18,177 16,366
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

December 31, 2010
($000’s)
AN
.
6. Investment in Guelph Hydro Inc. {(continued) /’/ {‘/
Related party transactions e N

The Company pays certain expenses and receives certain revenues ci”h\tgehaﬁk of the C}y related to

customer water billings for which the Company remits to the City bi-monthiy. During the yea(,\these net
revenues remitted amounted to $36,477 (2009 - $32,513). Aimounts owing to the City~related o these
transactions total $6,623 (2009 - $6,185) and are includedﬁ”ﬁﬂ aé\CQunts receivable. Durinig the yg‘sg the
Company repaid 100% of a loan owing to the City of $39;’f)00 and,also paid interest on thislean totating
$1,708 (2009 - $1,830), which is included in investmeﬁ' income;én the Consolidated statement\o{
operations and accumulated surplus. “ £ AN v
Dividend income was received from the Company of $??5Q0 (2\&@‘%/$2,2597) and is also reported as part
of investment income. These transactions were made in the.normal cougse of business and have been
recorded at the exchange amounts. \ \

M
=,

- .
N

/’m
7. Vacation & other employee benefityﬁaﬁb!g\ N .
. - N
This accrual includes accrued vacatioh pay and other payroll liabilities incTt«.!ging{pénked overtime and
statutory days in lieu. A reserve has beep accumulated™to fund this liability andtotals $5,122 (2009 -
$5,122). b& N .

S,

\"\, kx\\\\? \“\\Wk
8.  Deferred contributions \\ N ™
———, >, A i
The following funds i}a"ie si;a“m*.g\gj restrictions an&%@s such afe classified as deferred contributions:
/ . Beginning m\ N Ending
/ /NN balance N\ 2010 2010 balance
SN ) 2009 Inflows Outflows 2010
~ 8 $ $ $
\x - N%\\;,
Development charges \\ AN ““%4,58@/ 19,280 17,020 16,845
Grants . ™~ N 2,884 37,817 34,588 6,113
Other S 323 264 251 336
i L N U A7.792 57,361 51,859 23,294
N ™ N -

The develog ment\éharges ’flimds are used to fund growth related capital expenditures. The grants
include federalgas tax funds, provincial gas tax funds, infrastructure stimulus funds, federal public
transit funds and\(@t@fio bus\{eplacement funds. Each of the grants has a specified set of guidelines
that outlines.how the-funds can be utilized.

: i
9. Pension agreement
g L

The City makes contribiitions to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement Fund (OMERS) which is a
multi-employer plan, on behalf of the 1,577 (2009 - 1,555) members of its staff. The plan is a defined
benefit plan which specifies the amount of the retirement benefit to be received by the employees based
on the length of service and rates of pay. The multi-employer plan is valued on a current market basis
for all plan assets.

The amount contributed to OMERS for 2010 is $7,586 (2009 - $7,242) for current service (of which 50%
is a cost of the City and is reported as an expense on the Consolidated Statement of Operations and
Accumulated Surplus).

As at December 31, 2010, the City has no obligation under the past service provisions of the OMERS
agreement.
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

December 31, 2010
($000°s)

// /\\\.
9. Pension agreement (continued) / //

10.

As at December 31, 2010 the OMERS plan is in a deficit position of $55 billion (20b9 $1.5 billion),
which will be addressed through the temporary contribution rate xncreases lmrJ mentéd, during 2010 and
achieving a rate of return above 6.5% on net assets. K

Employee future benefits /\\\ \\ \
>y
Employee future benefits are future liabilities of the City o its em loyees and retirees for;\ngﬁts eafped
but not taken as at December 31, 2010 and consist o{fhe following: \/
Fe
L N/ N 2010 2009
\\ , $ $
.
Workplace Safety and Insurance ("WSIB") \\ 3,233 2,913
Sick leave SN Ny 9,409 8,923
Post retirement benefits / L 13,214 11,614
NN 25,856 23,450
\\ »\1\\\ “\\W
a) Liability for Workplace Safety & Insuranee ( “WSIBJ) N
The City is a Schedule 1l employer under the V\porkplaée Safety and Ingurance Act. As a Schedule I
employer, the City assumes fhe I!ablhty for any award made uﬁd"er the Act.
The significant actuanal assumptxt,ns adopted in es}imatmg\gge City’s WSIB liabilities are as follows:
e Discount ra*é VN \ P 5% (2009 - 5%)
¢ Expected fufu@ WSIwayments per lost time mJury \/ 52% (2009 - 61%)
o Health care inflation ™~ T CPIl + 4% (2009 - CP! + 4%)
¢ WSIB Admmlstratlcm Rate P - 22% (2008 - 25%)
¢ Lost time injury count\ “\ \\ > 46 (2009 - 36)
InfeFmation about the City’s WblB habxluy\ls asTleows
/. S D 2010 2009
\ Q\ \\\ \\ N $ $
Ac‘c&ued benefit ob igation, beginning of year 3,740 3,423
Currentxaewtcgé\rgst Yoo 690 600
Interest /| 188 171
Actuarial losé\\“ J - 147
Benefits paid ™. d (669) (601)
Accrued benefit obli‘gaﬁ’én, end of year 3,949 3,740
Unamortized net actuarial loss (716) (827)
3,233 2,913
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

December 31, 2010
(3000’s)
/N
/.«’

10. Employee future benefits and other liabilities (continued) /

a) Liability for Workplace Safety & Insurance ("WS1B’) (continued) /

™,
Information about the City’'s WSIB expenses recognized in the perlod ar ] as foliaws N

,A/ v

‘;

/ '\‘N $ Xx \%\ $
7 \>
e -

Current period benefit cost / / ) 690 \\ 600

Amortization of net actuarial loss from Decembex; 31, ﬁ009 /f\\ 15 7 -
Amortization of net actuarial loss from December Q1 2008 ; 96 97
Interest expense S / 188 171
N 989 868

Ry N

A comprehensive actuarial valuation ¢f the flture hablhty for WSIB benefits we;é\gonducted as at
December 31, 2009 and has been ex‘t'apolated o' estimate the liability for\fhe 2010 through 2012 period.
The next required valuation will be as o\i\{)ece*nber 31 “\”K ~ Jf

A reserve in the amount of $1,526 (2009 - 54 498\\fzasgeen decumulated to fund this liability.
b) Liability for sick leave N “\;

Under the sick leave bergfit-plan, unused sick leave can accammateffor certain employees and these
employees may become entitied- to a cash paymenz\ben Qey leave the City’s employment.

The significant ac;tuanal 93°umptlonm adopted in estimating th9 City’s sick leave liabilities are as follows:

«  Discount rati e »\/’/ 4.75% (2009 - 5%)
e Inflationrate ™\ N . 2% (2009 - 2%)
Information about the Clty\s sick IedelLablllt is a%?‘/fgllows:
P N 2010 2009
/f o Y $ $
\:/Accrué/ benefit bl\* b
,J\o igation, beginning ofyear 8,863 8,440
&urren ervice dost N\ 739 706
mterast N N\ 423 423
Net;\m rial gain_ ) 3 . (60)
Benefits paid N ! (672) (646)
Accrued benefit obligation, gnd of year 9,353 8,863
Unamortized nef\?agtuariaﬁ;ain 56 60
. 9,409 8,923

Information about the City’s sick leave expenditures recognized in the period are as follows:

2010 2009

$ $

Current period benefit cost 739 706
Amortization of net actuarial gain (4) -
Interest expense 423 423
1,158 1,129
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

December 31, 2010
($000°s)
f/ \\,\
10. Employee future benefits and other liabilities (continued) / //’
b) Liability for sick leave (continued) </ ’x\

The measurement date of the sick leave liability coincides with the Clty S fISCEﬂ year. A ce\rpprehensnve
actuarial valuation was completed as of December 31, 2009 and the next :equ:red“ valuatioh.will be as of

\\
December 31, 2012. JaN . \\

A reserve in the amount of $9,579 (2009 - $8,366) has bgé/n accﬁ‘i;f)pulated to fund this IiaBi‘iity. N
7

"~
c) Post retirement benefits / / . \/>

& .
The City provides dental and health care benefits between the'time f/rf;\r‘n loyee retires under OMERS,
or retires at a normal retirement age, up to the age of 65!

The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in estimating the City's Iigﬁiﬁes are as follows:
)

+ Discount rate . 4.75% (2009~.5%
e  Consumer price index // S 2.0% (2009 - 2\71%)
e Prescription Drugs Trend Rate ?\ 7.67% reducing 4. O%\per year to reach 4.0% per
\ yea\hstartmg in 2019 (4009 no change)
« Dental and other Medical Trend Rates, \\ 4% (2009 - 4%)
Information about the City’'s employee futu\ pl y\ee oeneflt;\?c\as follows:
o . . f' 2010 2009
. - < ~ = 3 5
/ N AN
Accrued benef;\t/“ob!igatim beqmmr?\ of year N, ‘> 13,335 10,995
Current service tost . ; } \\/ 584 525
Plan amendment S T 1,014

Net actuarial loss - 1,721

-
Interest \\ & \> 629 551
Berigfits paid. N \C\\ (750) (457)

/ Accrued benefmo\tg\hgatlon end orvgar > 14,812 13,335
Unamo;:hzed net actuarial loss N (1,598) (1,721)
(\ NN N -~ 13,214 11,614

N \ \ \

Since~the prlo} valuati fon as at December 31, 2006, the operations of the Land Ambulance were
transferred from the Province ‘of Ontario to the City. This transfer of responsibility resulted in the City
inheriting @ ‘group of\employees with certain contractual obligations and the impact of this is reflected in
the plan amenﬁ@ent of $1 0,14 in current year.

Information about t '[m-} Clty"s employee future benefit expenses recognized in the period are as follows:

2010 2009

$ $

Current period benefit cost 584 525
Cost of plan amendment 1,014 -
Amortization of net actuarial loss 123 -
Interest expense 629 551
2,350 1,076
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

December 31, 2010
($000’s)
10. Employee future benefits and other liabilities (continued) / /
¢) Post retirement benefits (continued) / 4\\
The measurement date of the employee future benefits coincides with the qxﬁ"&(sc ‘e’a\r\ An actuarial
comprehensive valuation was completed as of December 31, 2010 and the next réauired valuation will
be as of December 31, 2013. s \
There is currently a reserve of $260 set up to fund this haufﬂty \\‘“} \\ \\\>
,fj x/; S j[
11. Net debt <;\ /\\ \.f
/.
a) The balance of the net debt reported on the consohcated staterhent oﬁf)nancial position is comprised
of the following: \\\
e 4
S S 2010 2008
~ NN $
\\K \\ .
/ l\\x\ h
Total debt incurred by the City N ~ N
including those incurred on behalf of r\e ated" qamzatlbns
and outstanding at the end of the year amount ‘9 \\ \‘\\\\ 99,009 110,122
Less: debt recoverable from school boards \ Ny . (1,730) (3,345)
Net debt at the end of the year ~ S 97,279 106,777
/, ~ N (‘ .
b) The net debt is-Comprised of thg\followmg compo.nents \
NN N 2010 2009
\ \\/ L«m v $ $
Operating line of credlt -"bearing IF"[é"l"‘ st at pnme pres 0.25% 1,750 1,370
Demand loan - interest only*at 3. 7% m@turinn in 7011 10,000 10,000
ent&]@sﬁaﬁyable at rates-ranging-from 0. 095% t0 6.0%
/" and maturing 2011 through‘2Q31 \;. 71,636 79,993
z’ Long-tefmioans - gpayable at rates ramgmg from 3.7% to 7.5%
\and waturing rom 20 through 2025 11,207 12,622
Baﬂkers acg\ptance, inten st at 4.87% fixed through a swap
transa&tlon rupayagle quagterly, maturing 2015 with option
to refinance for> an ddditional ten years, net of transaction costs 2,686 2,792
N / 97,279 108,777

o

Included in accou\rémgg/a/b/e and accrued liabilities is $1,532 (2009 - $1,671) representing the fair
market value of the intérest rate swap contracts held by the City.
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2010

($000’s)

/

/ \\
11.  Net debt (continued) %

c) The net debt is repayable in the following periods and will requ1reffundmg in thOs@ periods as
follows: ™~
/ \4

zu( 1-2015\a 2046 onwards
;/\\ $ \\ ’ $
/ / \\} \\\ \\\
~

yd 17,376 ~. 27, 637

/ 17,818 2423
AN /\20 208 12,117

General taxation revenues
User pay and other revenues
Developer contribution revenues

/55,402 41,877
~ <
All net debt is payable in Canadian dolla?\ \\\ N
\\
d) Total charges during the year for net debt*a@ as follows: \ x\\
\, T . 2010 2009
NN T8 5
\\\ \
Principal repayments \\ \\ . 9,878 8,529
Interest . \\ _— // 4,519 5,014
i N / 14,397 13,543
f/ h N \\
12. Landfili post-c‘osure Imblhty y \g \\ /f
! Y

The City owns one h dfill sne/ This landrﬁ{slte was closed in 2003. The liability for post-closure costs
has been reported on t‘ug{ consolidated statemertgi\ﬁnancnal position. The liability was calculated based
upon the present value of* ostlmateipo«Lclosure costs discounted to December 31, 2010 at a factor of

5.0%.{2009 - 5.15%) per anmLm Po\«,t-cl?)\s‘ure\ga:e is estimated to be required for 35 years from the
daté of sxte?:as*xre \ »

/

/The estlmated exchgltures for po§\”losure ‘care as at December 31, 2010 is $6,000 (2009 - $6,600).

. There “gre no res\rve ﬁ'\s estabhshed fo'fund this liability as at December 31, 2010.

\\ s, § 5
N
~\
. //
\\\ S
"
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

December 31, 2010
($000’s)
2N
/ AN
13. Tangible capital assets /x <
e
2010 /7
Balance, beginning - Balance end
Cost of year Addmon\v /kpusals of year
S $ .
Land 29,243 /™ 186 2
Land improvements 8,382 é/; /1 ,104 \ 3}
Buildings 172,4@\6 20 52 3
Machinery and equipment 92,532 \14 462 (460) 106,534
Vehicles 60,517 ™. 3,223 (3,278) 60,462
Infrastructure ™ < -
Sanitary sewers & waste water 244945 \\l,433 246,378
Storm water AN 162,892 643 \\ 163,535
Transportation & 29& 296 19,39‘9\ ) 312,695
Waterworks \\ %1175 728.. 7,738 \\// 183,466
Assets under construction \\@ SIZ.757 51,027 128,784
1 B31F 758\ ~149,742 (3,738) 1,433,762
Balance, begmmﬁg ) x;p Balance, end
Accumulated amortization-.. of.year Arﬁ&t@z@ﬁon Disposals of year
/ N “\E < $ $ $
Land improvemerits . \\ 3,028, \\ 261 3,287
Buildings < N 48,681 \ /6,080 54,761
Machinery and edugmen\ l—__ 60540 N 8,943 (428) 69,055
Vehicles . 25,505 6,666 (2,570) 29,601
Infrastructure \\ -_— \\;:, -
%go:fa(ygewers &waste Water . 99773 4,287 104,060
/Storm watéF\\ % \\ 35,804 3,715 39,519
Transportation ™ \\\ > 167,522 5,762 173,284
<,\ Watefworks N ~./ 81,679 5,097 86,776
h N 522,530 40,811 (2,998) 560,343
\\ ~ ‘ AN \\ Balance, beginning Balance, end
Net book valug™. ) \ of year of year
. S } $ $
Land / 29,243 29,429
Land |mprovememmx / 5,356 6,199
Buildings 123,785 138,232
Machinery and equipment 31,992 37,479
Vehicles 35,012 30,861
Infrastructure - -
Sanitary sewers & waste water 145,172 142,318
Storm water 127,088 124,016
Transportation 125,774 139,411
Waterworks 94,049 96,690
Assets under construction 77,757 128,784
795,228 873,419
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December 31, 2010
($000°s)

13. Tangible capital assets {continued) /! ,/
2009 / o
Balance, beginning AN AN ~_Balance, end
Cost of year Addmons \/ Dispesals \\ of year
8 . §
Land 29,142 / \\> 101 =N 2‘@{43
Land improvements 4, 740 3,642 - \\ 8 §j§2
Buildings 131 486 40,981 - 172,466
Machinery and equipment 88, 738\ \ 6275 ™ (2,481) 92,532
Vehicles 46,494 14,340 Vs (317) 60,517
Infrastructure ) e
Sanitary sewers & waste water 237,294 7,721 \\ (70} 244,945
Storm water /. 157,807 5*:1\3\6 ”\ (101) 162,892
Transportation ( \\285 928 8, 343\ \, (975) 293,296
Waterworks \ \3 76 4£u\ (673) . / (24) 175,728
. \ ., N
Assets under construction 54418 S (16,661) - 77,757
\A 254\3\4"‘% 89,255 (3,968) 1,317,758
Balance, begmmrrg Balance, end
Accumulated amortiza*t’i”ow of.year Aﬁdi‘ﬁz@ﬁén Disposals of year
AN NEE 3 $ 5
Land lmprovemer/ts 2 822.\ > 217 (19) 3,026
Buildings ' 43 404 5,307 (30) 48,681
Machinery and equgment . L\SB 397 8,355 (1,212) 60,540
Vehicles ?1 ,822 4,129 (446) 25,505
Infrastructure
Sapxtawewers & waste water s “~x103/{‘51 6,011 (9,189) 99,773
/ﬁtorm wateu\ \\ 33,729 2,145 (70) 35,804
/" Transportation ™. . 165,108 5,170 (2,756) 167,522
{\ Waterworks, ™\ ./ 67,674 4,008 9,997 81,679
N . ™ 490,913 35,342 (3,725) 522,530
\\ \”\ \\ \\g Balance, beginning Balance, end
Net book value~, | i of year of year
‘m\ S ; $ $
. /
Land \\ / 29,142 29,243
Land improvemeﬁ“ts\\ 1,812 5,356
Buildings ~ 88,081 123,785
Machinery and equipment 35,341 31,992
Vehicles 24,672 35,012
Infrastructure
Sanitary sewers & waste water 134,343 145,172
Storm water 124,078 127,088
Transportation 120,820 125,774
Waterworks 108,751 94,049
Assets under construction 94,418 77,757
761,558 795,228
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($000°s)
VN
S \\
14. Accumulated surplus f// ({z’/
The accumulated surplus is comprised of the following components:;/ N
/2010 2009
&
Ve N &\ ™ X
Reserves set aside for specific purpose by Council: // } \\ - \
for employee future benefits / S 16,488 \\\1 5,148
for stabilization < {0 /N 1883 7,151
for administration and maintenance . ./ % 3,583 2,442
for human resources and other contingencies "\\ / 2,016 1,501
Reserves set aside by The Elliott N
for capital financing purposes . ™ \ 237 119
for building and equipment malntenance\\ \ \220 1,324
Reserves set aside by Downtown Guolph Busnnéss Association >
for contingency AN N .y \\// 99 107
Reserves set aside by Wellington- Dufferlr.\Guel h~ ublic Health
for capital financing purposes \,\ \5‘;:7 ““\\ 627 265
for contingency R e ) hd 184 183
Total reserves - Schedulg 4. N Y 31,107 28,240
N <
Reserve funds sp{ aside fw«specxﬂr,\ purpose by Cour g! \\2
for equipmerdt replaceﬂ"nent N N 6,539 3,199
for capital finanting purpases e v 73,530 53,829
for industrial development i W\“‘x 2,582 2,260
for working capital andether < ™. > 16,328 3,119
Totalresarve funds - Schedile 4 . ./ 98,979 62,407
Total reserves.and reserve funds 130,086 90,647
/ . \a ./
f\f\ Invested in f"gglb e capital assels S 873,419 795,228
“qvestment in Guelph Hydro Inc. 66,753 65,442
ln(iestment in, Guelph Jun<\:\t\on Railway Company 5,722 5,584
Guelph Hydro Ing. Ioa>1 recel‘yable - 30,000
Operating'fiind ] {(135,746) (107,907)
Unfunded habi ities
Employee future\benef 6 and related liabilities (31,277) (29,087)
Landfill post closute }iability (6,000) (6,600)
Total 772,871 752,660
Accumulated surplus 902,957 843,307

In accordance with the City’s policy for reserve funds, interest is earned on the average reserve fund
balance for the year at the average internal rate of return earned during the year. In 2010 $821 (2009 -
$nil) of interest was earned by the reserve funds and is recorded as a decrease in investment income
and an adjustment to the ending accumulated surplus. In 2009, it was decided that due to the economic
downturn and the poor returns on investments, that no interest would be allocated to the reserve funds.
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December 31, 2010
(50007s)

e \
15.  Contributions to other entities ) /’fg/ /

Contributions made to other entities during the year greater than $1gﬁ'fare as folloW‘&;\

S

Fas \”\
o/ 2010 2009
N ~$ S $
AN -
. ) . SN \\\ P

Grand River Conservation Authority / ™ 1,356 o 1\”67
Hospice Wellington / / 272 S\ 200
Guelph General Hospital /\ (; //“\\ 200 200
Wellington Terrace NN ™ 166 166
MacDonald Stewart Art Centre AN ya 175 165
Humane Society AN { 414 372
Municipal Property Assessment Corporation \ S 1,478 1,435
S N . 4,061 3,805

\ . \\\ /“’

\\ %\;\ ™ \\/f

16. Expenditures by type

The following is a summary of the currex\nt\exp\énduues repo?*ted on the Consolidated Statement of

Operations and Accumulated Surplus by the t}ne of‘gx{endltures “‘x}
7

T AT 2010 2009
gx"f \:"\ L $ $

/ P \ \\ N
Salaries, wagei/ and em,f)loyee benef%ts AN /‘f 143,603 137,991
Interest on net de t\\ \‘\ J im« e 4,665 4,326
Materials 28,846 28,871
Contracted services 24,883 28,081
Rents-and f1nanc1a| exper@\ \ 11,593 11,874
External transfe 54,797 49,886
y ~ Amortization of tar ible capital assefs \} 40,811 35,342
<<._\ T N 309,198 296,371

\. \\\\
\ \ )
/1‘
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($000°’s)

17. Government partnerships /

{
The City’s share of the results of the Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Pubh’c/:/ Health’s fin“ancial activities for
the year and its financial position at December 31 are included in thé\@g)nsollduted fmé’mlal statements

using proportionate consolidation and include the amounts as follows:

P

2010 N \\ 2009

AN
~
e \
;‘/
Assets {\”f /ﬁ 1,683
AN / \>
Liabilities \\‘ \’ 1,268 1,242
Net financial assets ™ 441
Tangible capital assets /’“ e \\ 137 69
Prepaid expenses ¢ T 7
Balance > . S \\ 76
Accumulated surplus NS T ) 517
NS
Revenues \\\ \._V/{ \\\ 7,391
Expenditures P S P 7,275
Excess of revenue oyer expenses N i ) 116
7 . S N
AN S ~,
Accumulated st ,n‘/ lus, begmnmg of year AN P 458
Transfer to reserves \\ y, AV 3
Minority interest m\f’&ng;ble capltal assets (60)
Accumulated surplus, eénd of year - \ 517
Durifig the-year, the City contrmuted $2\’> (200 $2 026) towards its share of the costs of the
artnership. \,\
ya ~ " D
y [M N ;{f
\\ < \\'\‘ \‘\/
.
\ \\\ \\ ™\
\\\ \ N\
AN \
OOV )
\‘\ gj
\\\\L (//
\f/
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) /A\\}
18.  Shared service agreements {/ /

Certain programs as mandated by provincial legislation are managed/gy neighbori&r\iw1 municipalities on
behalf of the City and certain programs are also managed by the Cltyon beha f\of othe;&mummpaht;es.

The City’s share of revenues and expenditures from social service programs manaaed by Welhngton

County are as follows: N
// \‘\ AN \“‘\
/ > 2010 2009
ey N8
\\\ < /'/f\\\. ~
Revenues . N4 \1\
Social housing L S 2,044 2,225
Child care \\ 4 7,255 7,399
Social services . \ o 12,419 11,079
S {618 20,703
Expenditures S e e
Social housing . \\\ \,A 6,226 13,623
Child care N . 9,199 9,601
Social services NN S L 19,520 20,716
N ) D 44,945 43,940
T N, f'/ S
Net expenditures .~ N (22,327) (23,237)
f/ - N \\ \>
The City’s sharé\gf rever‘a{?\s and exp‘c;nditures from pro “@MS managed by the City are as follows:
A Lo
NN e 2010 2009
-
N el ; ’
S ™ \\ . /‘/
Revenues . e
/ ’Land Ambulaheg e 3,214 3,223
Provincial offencessact // 1,987 1,471
\x \\ N 5,201 4,694
\E\ﬂg\endttures ‘“\ Y :
LahQ\Ambuiagce N 6,591 6,089
Provincial offe\mes ,éct | 973 951
“ 7,564 7,040
S f,z
Net expenditures ~N. S (2,363) (2,346)

,

The City’s share of the net expenditures for all the above programs, are included in the Consolidated
statement of operations and accumulated surplus.
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2010

($000’s)

19.

20.

b3

a
Contingencies g

a) In 2008, Urbacon Buildings Group Corp. served a Statement of Giaim against f”hfe.\City pursuant to
the Construction Lien Act seeking damages in excess of $12,000~and pupé{i\\/e andother damages
totaling over $7,000. The City has filed a Statement of Defense ané\ﬁgﬁnterd\gim cfé“'fmi\ng
damages in the amount of $5,000. .

b) During 2010 charges were laid against the City under }h{e/\o\ upational Health and Safety AEE\
relating to a 2009 incident. The maximum fine that};ﬁ‘uld be imposed under this matter is $1,875‘.~>

c) During 2010 and 2011, there were various Claims filed ag .i/r{st the/thy in relation to developr ent
charge disputes that total $2,480. The City has either fileda Statemeént of Defense or intends to file
a Statement of Defense in relation to these matters. ™ ~

Z
d) The County of Wellington served a claim for $4,000,000\§@ainst the{)ity in 2009 alleging a breach of
contract with respect to payments owing for Wellington Terrace. The Qity has a counterclaim with
respect to this matter and has filed a/notice of Intent to Defend. .

‘. Y
e) From time to time, the City may b‘é\/involved“iﬁgther claims in the normal co\l}r\se of business.
Management assesses such claims,and w}ﬁbere Ebngdered likely to bé‘imgter&’él exposure and, where
the amount of the claim is quantifiable, provigions for fess are made based’on management’s
assessment of likely outcome. The City, doemé%\h\b%mgrovide fe&glaims that are considered unlikely to
result in a significant loss, claims for which the dutcéme is not determinable or claims where the
amount of loss cannot be reasonably estirﬁa&ed. \A’/ny sett!g@ents v awards under such claims are

>,

provided when reasenably determinable. . ANy
. / AN NS
Commitments and guarantees ™\ N \

e / ., .
The City has gd'a[anteedf\§900 ‘hon-reyolving facility for Guelph Community Sports which is supported by
A . S, PRy i ISR .
Council resolution ‘authonzmgjprovmG@@Lguch guarantee'in favour of Guelph Community Sports. The
City believes that thi%ﬁg‘uaranfee will not havé-any significant unfavorable impact on its financial position
and consequently no pr”év@ion has-been made in“‘t‘hg consolidated financial statements.

Welliugtmg\-puﬁerin-Guelph h@lic H\é‘altt;\ﬁ“é“wgg;é(d premises under a variety of leases of which the
Iomﬁest expires on April 30, 203\1\\The ?ﬁi,[li\mum lease payments over the next five years are as follows:

™ SO $
o .,
< ~ \\ N /
2011 N SN 529
20“‘1\2\ SO \\3 543
2013 . \ 121
NN 115
2015 N / 115
~__ 1,423
\\ \//

Other contractual obligations include:

Hospice Wellington

The City has committed grants to Hospice Wellington through 2012 with an outstanding amount of $400
(2009 - $600) payable annually in instalments of $200. This grant is to assist with capital renovation
costs incurred to open their new location.

Guelph General Hospital

The City has committed grants to Guelph General Hospital through 2012 with an outstanding amount of
$400 (2009 - $600) payable annually in instalments of $200. This grant is to assist with the capital
purchase of a new MRI machine.
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

December 31, 2010
($000’s)
. . / /\\2
20. Commitments and guarantees (continued) // J
MacDonald Stewart Arts Centre {’/ a\\

21.

22,

23.

The City has committed a capital grant of $20 to MacDonald Stewankﬁ% Ceﬁf?‘e\for soffit replacement
(20089 - $20 for the HVAC replacement). Additionally, the City has commitfed to 6“perating“g(ints for
2011 totalling $168 (2009 - $168) ™

Other SN \\ AN

//

The City has committed to providing various grants tQ;érganiza}éévhs in the community totallin§\$33a/

(2009 - $332). "\\ <. //‘\\} ~
™, \\ f/

Subsequent event N S/

&,

In March 2011, the City was granted a temporary injunction to Halt any T{thher costs being incurred by
the Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Hje«alth on a specific projecf‘related ttnthe construction of a new
facility. In April 2011, the City gave notice %“th,g Province of Ontario\ang the Counties of Wellington and
Dufferin of its intention to withdraw frém the WelTh‘rg,ggn-Dufferin—Guelph Rublic H;zalth partnership. The

implications of these events are yet to Ee determined.™._ V4
\\ » ﬁ\\
. b \\\ "
Budget figures \\ . S

* e e
Budgets are established to set tax rates or to ﬁ‘aance\\ﬁiojects which mzy be carried out over one or
more years. Budget figures-have been translated, to reflect Q!%é?l‘gg@_)ﬁ PSAB standards on the
Consolidated Statement of Opérations and Accumulated Srpius by adjusting for amortization of
tangible capital asgets, including tﬁe\consolidated entities a}hg excluding budgeted amounts for the debt
principal repaymét and <rci’s\“§‘me transfers. Budget figures ha}'e not been audited.
A &

X Yy S
. . EA—
Segmented informiation v T

The City of Guelph is a d&\@rsified municipal govermment institution that provides a wide range of
services fo its citizens, inclliding po\h'se, ire, .ambulance, transit and water. For management reporting
purpuses;the City’s operations.and aéﬁxjties Are.drganized and reported by activity and reserves. Funds
wére created for.the purpose of re ording\sx\)eciﬁc activities to attain certain objectives in accordance
with special reguladoﬁ restrictioncs\o

or limitations.
&

' [»
\\{\\lthoug,h City services are provided by intérnally defined departments, the City has chosen to remain

CQQsisteﬁ‘t\with tﬁé\.Ontarie\Financial Information Return (FIR) and the nine functional areas that it
prescribes. This will allow cbmparability between our Schedule of Segment Disclosure and several
sched ig\s\ on tﬁe\f iR Epat alr‘c?ady require full segment disclosure of operating expenditures and limited
disclosure of curreﬂggperatingg revenues.

The services that have bee?éeparately disclosed in the segmented information are defined by the
compositional rea‘ui\ga«mer;i’a of the FIR, and some examples of these along with the services they
provide are as follo a\(ﬁ’chedule 1and 2):

General Government
Governance (election management, Council, Council support, Office of the Mayor).

Corporate management (CAQ, taxation, accounting, budgeting communication, legal, corporate
properties and real estate).

Protection services

Police, Fire, 911 service, POA Act, building and structural inspection, by-law enforcement, animal
control, and conservation authority.
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2010

($000°s)

/ N
. . . e
23. Segmented information (continued) S /
&
Transportation services /X \\\
Roadways — including asphalt resurfacing and crack sealing, line painting, sw'é\é')mg, traffxc operations
and maintenance of roadside areas, culverts and bridges. \
Winter control, street lighting, parking and public transit. /\\\ \ \\
L
Environmental services ,-f > . >
Sanitary sewer, storm sewers, waterworks, solid was Ie collecbo/ dispesal and recycling. \/
AN
Health services AN ™
N S
Public health services, provision of ambulance service. \\ ;/
Social housing \\\ \\.
P S
. . ST N
Social housing program costs. S/ \\\ “ O
Social and family services N ., \\ /,}
AN " o
General assistance and childcare prograha\s, c}ii‘;ributions ‘re\nges for the aged, The Elliot operations.
kY \\ ~
Recreation and cultural services A \\ /‘7 \\
Parks, recreational facilities, recreational progra'ns hbranes mx eu , River Run Centre, Farmers
Market and other cu!twa! serw*es S e
™ (
Planning and devezopment serwc‘éc\ h \

Planning and zec |ng Committee of A‘djustment Visitor Centre and economic development for
commercial and i ‘dustnal\anijxaowngwwn Guelph Business Association operations.

\
Certain allocation meth odologles are employed-in the preparation of segmented financial information.
Taxation and payments-ifi-| heu are@pp@moned fo \ﬁvrent fund services based on the fund segment’s net
surplus, and general prograr, suppo‘f{ cosféapg?/pﬁoﬁsoned based on a percentage of total expenditure

by,,s/é’gme”rw
™
24. / Compgratwe flgures\ p
x\

vertam G pe\x}dy&e figures have been reclassified in order to present them in a form comparable to
thoa\ e for 2009. \\,

NN
\a \\1\ / i
\\ /g‘
.
\\\ //
“ S
\\ /
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City of Guelph
Consolidated schedule of net debt - Schedule 3

December 31, 2010
('000's)
Bylaw Project description Term Maturity date Interest rates 2010 2009
$ $
Debentures:
16393 West End Community Cenire 10 5-Sep-10  6.15% to 6.375% /,/ \\ - 380
16393 Land Acquisition - Cerniuk 10 5-Sep-10  6.15% t0 6.375% . - 236
16393 Waste Water Treatment Plant Expansion Stage 1 10 5-Sep-10  6.15% to 6. 375% \:‘) - 259
18000 Road Projects - Gordon, Stone, Victoria, Ward 1, Clair 5 20-Apr-11 4.25% to 4. 4‘9/ % /889 1,772
18000 Centennial Pool Reconstruction 5 20-Apr-11 4.25% tof 45% e 53 105
18000 Bus Storage Area Expansion 5 20-Apr-11 4.25% 46 4.45% g\\ 99 196
18000 Transfer Station & Public Drop Off Facility 5 20-Apr-11 4‘25"/3{20 4.45% ‘\\5‘1 102
18000 East End Fire Station 5 20-Apr-11 4.25% 16°4.45% 157, 313
18000 Pride Upgrade 5 20-Apr-11 4.25% to 4.38%" ”\ 16\ 31
16732 On behalf of the Elliott 10 15-Nov-11 3.10% to 5.95% \14 000 \\ 14,890
16751 Roads - Woolwich: Speedvale to Woodlawn 10 10+ Dec—1 ™ 2.80% to 6.00% "*,?\8 126
16751 West End Community Centre 10 10- Dec«ﬁ 2\§O% to 6.00% 65 407
16751 Hanlon West Business Park 10 10- E}é&-ﬁ 2.88% to 6.00% 209 1 632
16751 Waste Water Treatment Plant Expansion 1 10 1Qﬁec—1 1 3;:’80% 10 6.00% 839 \
17536 On behalf of the Elliott 10 ;15 -Sep-14  2.75% to0 5.20% 1,130 A 381
18622 Social Services Building Renovation 10 x25 Sep-18 3.26% ,!6A 4‘70% 2,249 2,487
18622 Police HQ Renovations 10 2t>-Sep-18 25"/?:to 4. 70‘*/ 1,045 1,155
18622 Road Projects - Gordon, Victoria, Cardigan, Clair 10 25- Sep-18 3 ¢§A 10 4.70% 4,417 4,884
18622 Bus Storage Area Expansion 10 25~Sep— 8 3.25% t0 4.76% 151 167
18622 Organic Waste Facility - Roof Repairs 10 25-Sep-1 8™ 3.25% to A 0% 413 457
18105 New City Hall 25 28-Aug-31 5. 2“ % 17,804 18,262
18105 New POA Court Py 25 28-Aug-31 5.237%,_ 5,021 5,151
18898 Road Projects - Gordon, Victoria, Eramosa s ~.10 25-Nov-19  .095 % ‘Q\4 .60% \ 693 761
18898 South End Station /j 10, 25-Nov-19 095 % to 4.60% N 6,071 6,666
18898 New City Hall A 10 T 25-Nov-19 095 % to 4.80% 7 2,095 2,300
18898 Land Purchase - Library ‘*»\ QQ Z»Nov-1 9 .095 % 10 4.60% // 774 850
18898 Public Drop Off Facility s 1@2\\ 25- Nov«:l\g 095 % t0 4.60% 197 216
18898 Transit Terminal Road Upgrades \\ 10 \ \@5 -Nov-19™ ol .095 % to 4.60% 1,700 1,866
18898 Watermain Projects - Laird, Arkell, Scout Camp \g10 25-Nov-19 035\% to 4.60% 5,795 8,363
18898 Waste Water Treatment Plant Facility Upgrade 10 xzf‘f«Nov-w .095 % to 4.60% 5,325 5,848
N i . 71,636 79,993
Other loans: e — . A
The Ellictt Line of Credit s . Demend ™, MA piifme + .25% 1,750 1,370
The Elliott Bankers Acceptailce - SWAP ™ 10 25~ Jun{g\S 4.87 2,686 2,792
Mortgage RBC - S!eemg;,/ Centre \\\ 10 Q May-17, 4.957% 4,867 5,495
Private Morigages HC}EP /ﬂ\ Nﬁ\ ' 10 28:Jun-11 > 7.50% 288 833
CIBC Loan - Sleemanentre - S\ J § 18.8 1- S{ -25 6.38% 6,052 6,294
RBC Interest only loan ; ;... Demand 31- Det11 3.70% 10,000 10,000
Net Debt before the school boards, 7 T 97,279 108,777
14882 Separate School Board T 15 T 14-Jul10 8.75% to 8.875% - 600
15316 Public Schoot Board X \”‘ R 15 / 1-Nov-11  3.375% to 6.95% 400 800
15648 Pubhm@tz&rmeoard \ \ "8, 18-Dec-12 4.50% 10 6.20% 884 1,294
15648 ;parate SchoE“Bag{d \\ S 15 18-Dec-12  4.50% 10 6.20% 448 651
Yess: Receivable from™School Boards Y (1,730) (3,345)
Recoyerable from School Board$-, Ny ; - -
‘\\ /
Total'Net Debt ™. 97,279 106,777
N Y
X\ \\\ \\
Yoo
\\x ‘}/ 4’%
~ 7
AN J
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City of Guelph

Consolidated schedule of reserves and reserve funds - Schedule 4
December 31, 2010
('000's)
Code Description 2010 2009
VRN $
Reserves: yd >
For Employee Future Benefits: / ! 7
100 Sick Leave - Fire yd 3, 371(\ 3,084
101 Sick Leave - Police <‘\ 3«\3;?9 “\ 3,258
102 Sick Leave - Library S 852 \'\ 788
103 Sick Leave - CUPE 241 2, 017 \ 1,287
209 Vacation Accrual Reserve o 5,123 5,122
330 WSIB / \> 1,526 \\ \498
338 Land Ambulance Severance / 4 260 \ /l' 61
/. 16,488 15,148
For Stabilization: ./ >
131 Employee Benefit Stabilization ) 2,726 3,040
180 Tax Rate Stabilization o 5\\ 1,671 1,355
181 Water Rate Stabilization . AN 1 714 1,214
182 Waste Water Rate Stabsl;zatuof S N 1\542 1,542
T~ “~_ 7653 7,151
For Administration and Mamtenance\ \\ \\ /
184 Insurance \\\ \\\ 1 ,080 781
188 Building Services > e 978 449
206 Building Operating Maintenance \ \\/ \‘\_;, 100 -
193 Ontario Mumgxﬂm.«B@\a\rd /\\-& /" 681 545
194 Downtown Mproveme‘m?@ ’ 200 200
195 Election (‘osts \ 183 341
196 Joint Job Evalugfion' Committee N/ 206 91
345 Westminster Woeds ) ] N/ 35 35
210 Information '[gchn\ugy Llcencgé‘“\«\\% 100 -
205 Investment Strategy . e 20 -
. N 3,583 2,442
FerHuman Resources and Ot@er Con*gngencnss’/
198/ Operaiing g Contingency ™\ 602 302
29]/ H Re@ouroe Contingency 322 -
167 \\,, ?ﬁ“’aa\Resoume Negotiations™" 59 29
191 ™ Salary Gapping AN 1,033 1,170
N \ 2,016 1,501
Consdlidated T:ntmes \
Reserves »The Elllott 457 1,443
Re;\éwes Downtc;wn Guelph Business Association 99 107
Reservé‘&; Welligzﬁton-Duﬁerin—Guelph Public Health 811 448
Total Reserves N 31,107 28,240
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City of Guelph

Consolidated schedule of reserves and reserve funds - Schedule 4

December 31, 2010
('000's)
Code Description 2010 2009
\\ 3
Reserve Funds: f/{ //
For Equipment Replacement {/ \\
111 Fire AN - BN 286
113 Transit ./ 686. S 670
115 Police 427 S 205
116 Waste Management A\ 945 415
118 Computers yd /> 866 \\ 10
121 Play Equipment / / 397 56
124 Operations Fleet 5. £ . 2,594 17117
\\\ o 6,539 3,199
For Capital Financing \\\ /
150 Capital Taxation ~ <\ 697 1,331
151 Capital Parking p ~3,589 3,823
152 Capital Waterworks /(\\% 16,785 16,827
153 Capital Wastewater < . 22,522 17,293
155 Capital Landfill Compensatioﬁ‘\\ . ““‘“\\ ™. 159 233
156 Capital DC Exemption AN Ry 2,248 372
157 Capital Library N\, \\*‘“\ g 1,025 658
158 Capital Police NN ‘> 2,068 2,103
162 Capital Sleeman-Centre \\ PN 29 22
164 Capital Rogjs ™~ N ¢ 7 1,063 70
165 Capital Stormwater N \\\ \ 205 124
166 CapitaPark Plaifning, N 51 27
167 Capital R\fcy Plannlnq ;W N 38 -
168 Capital Econ\mlc Deve!opment — 40 -
169 Capital Operations e, N 363 -
170 Capital Recreatlom ‘\“’“\\ J 99 )
171 ~"Cepital Culture \ \\ S (13) -
172 // Capsta maeris; ‘ S 275 25
173 a ital Fin 198 -
1 rﬁ\ Capx tal Corporate Property \\/ 99 -
176 \\ Capital [rfo Serv‘wes 149 -
177 Capital Museum 40 ;
186 ‘*\(Qapit\e;l‘\l\\/iastg Mané‘gement 292 12
189 GSEC Capital Reser“Ve 31 16
340 Capit‘*l River Run / 158 107
120 POA Reracatlon / 172 167
159 AcceSSIbll\t\y\ 393 450
160 Road Infrastructure 2,312 2,000
161 Public Transit Improvements 801 965
192 Heritage Redevelopment 673 440
200 Investing Ontario Act 4,122 5,494
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City of Guelph

Consolidated schedule of reserves and reserve funds - Schedule 4

December 31, 2010
('000's)
Code Description 2010 2009
N $
f’/ \)
Reserve Funds (continued): S !
201 ISF - City Share Water / 1,010~ (164)
202 ISF - City Share Waste Water /h161 (147)
203 RINC City Share 7o4 A -
331 Road Widening . 930 921
190 Building Life Cycle ’ \\ 802 663
353 Waterworks DC Exempt J 915 ™, -
354 Wastewater DC Exempt / 764 W
352 Greenhouse Gas \\ < // N 408 Vo
341 Locomotive 6167 N " \x 1 1
199 City Infrastructure Fund \\ 6,142 -
\ {12,867 1,274
For Indusirial Development: . \\
332 industrial Land /{ \*« L 2,562 2,245
350 Transportation Demand Mar‘agement . N 20 15
N 2,582 2,260
For Working Capital and Other NN .
119 Affordable Housing N AN 581 633
122 Brownfields Strategy NN ™ 546 321
135 Museum Devegjg ment A e 56 56
136 McCrae Houée Develo\pment N\ S 130 126
137 Moon- Md sigan \ N 13 12
138 lerary,w eques " ) 170 168
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June 7, 2011

Private and confidential
To the Chairman and members of the Audit Committee of City of Guelph
Dear Audit Committee Members:

Report on audited annual financial statements

We have performed an audit of the consolidated financial statements of City of Guelph as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2010, in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards
(“GAAS”) and expect to issue our audit report thereon dated June 27, 2011.

This report summarizes our findings during the audit. Qur audit has been conducted in accordance with
the Audit Plan that was presented to the Audit Coramittee inembers at the meeting on March 7, 2011.

Use of our repoit

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Audit Committee, management and
others within City of Guelph and is not iniended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these
specified parties. Accordingly, we disclaim any responsibility to any other party who may rely on it.

We would like to express our appreciaticn for the cooperation we received from the officers and
employees of City of Guelph with whom we worked to discharge our responsibilities.

We look forward to discussing this report summarizing the outcome of our audit with you and answering
any questions you may have.

Yours very truly,

Chartered Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants
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Executive summary

This report summarizes the main findings arising from ou

r audit.

Audit findings '-"

Audit results

Our audit of the financial statements is designed to obtain reasonable, rather
than absolute, assurance as to whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement.

There were no significant departures from the audit planning and risk
assessment described in the audit plan, which we presented on March 7,
2011.

A detailed description of our audit results has been included on pages 5 and
6 of this report.

Status of our audit

We expect to be in a position to render cur audit opinion dated June 27,

2011 on the consolidated finaincial statements of City of Guelph following
approval of the Consolidated financizi staternents by the City Council and the
completion of the following outstarding procedures :

¢ Receipt of signed management'’s representations letter

¢ Receipt of legal letters

o Receipt of finai financial statements for Guelph Hydro Inc.
¢ Receipt of final actuariai reports from Nexus Actuarial Consultants
o Completion of the Engagement Quality Control review

e Approval of conzolidated financial statements by City Council
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Audit findings

Audit risks In accordance with our audit plan, our procedures focused on the following
areas that we identified as risks of material misstatements in the current
year:

e Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

¢ Actuarially Determined Liabilities

e Contingencies

e Council and Senior Management expenses

e Estimates

e Infrastructure Stimulus Fund

e Payroll

e Procurement process

e Reserves and Reserve Funds

e Revenue/Deferred Revenue

e Shared services with County of Wellington

e Taxation Revenue

There were no substantive changes in the risks identified in our audit plan.
We have summarized the results cf our audit procedures for each of these
risk areas on page 7 of this report.

Fraud and iliegal acts Based on the procedures we performed as recommended by CAS 240, The
Audiicr’'s Responsibilities Relating to Fraud in an Audit of Financial
Statemerits, we are not aware of any illegal acts or fraudulent events with
resnect to City of Guelph during the year.

Significant accounting The City’s significant accounting policies are set forth in Note 1 to the
policies December 31, 2010 financial statements.

We believe management’s selection of accounting policies to be appropriate
under Canadian GAAP. Ouir views on the significant quantitative and
qualitative aspects of tiiese accounting policies are presented on page 10 of

this repori.
Mariagement judgment  Accounting estimzaies are an integral part of the financial statements
and accountiing prepared by management and are based on management’s current
estimates judgments. These judgments are normally based on knowledge and

experience about past and current events, assumptions about future events
and interpretations of the financial reporting standards.

During the year ended December 31, 2010, management advised us that
there were no significant changes in accounting estimates or in judgments
reiating to such estimates.

Audit adjustments and In accordance with Canadian GAAS, we request that misstatements be

uncorrected corrected. We have aggregated all uncorrected misstatements greater than
misstatements $292,500 (2009 - $290,000), and those that are quantitatively insignificant

but qualitatively significant, in the appendices attached to the management
representation letter. All proposed uncorrected audit adjustments were
reviewed with management and were determined by management to be
immaterial, individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements
taken as a whole. Adjustments identified as a result of the audit and
corrected by management are also summarized in the appendices attached
to the management representation letter.

© Deloitte & Touche LLP and affiliated entities. City of Guelph-December 31, 2010
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Audit findings

Adjusted and A summary of unadjusted disclosure deficiencies is included in the
unadjusted disclosure appendices attached to the management’s representations letter.
deficiencies Management has concluded that the financial stateinents are not materially

misstated as a result of these unadjusted disclosure deficiencies, and we
concur with management’s assessment.

Independence We have developed appropriate safeguards and procedures to eliminate
threats to our independence or to reduce them to an acceptable iavel.

As required under GAAS, we have reported all relationships and other
relevant matters that, in our professional iudgment, may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence and confirmed our independence tc the
Audit Committee for the year ended December 31, 2010 in Appendix 3.

Representations letter A draft version of the representations letter to be signed by management is
included in Appendix 4.

Conclusion We intend to issue an unmodified audit report on the Consolidated financial
statements of City cf Guelph for the year ended December 31, 2010 once
the outstanding items referred to above are satisfactorily completed and the

Consolidated financial statements are approved by the City Council.
A draft version of our Auditor’s report is included in Appendix 1.

B e R T S G SRR

Fees We communicated our proposed audit fees of $112,500 in our detailed audit
engagement letter. There have been no changes to our proposed fee.

Communications As a part of our audit plan, we committed to communicate certain matters to
the Audit Committee on an annual basis or as specified events occur.

A surnmary of our communications is provided in Appendix 5.
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Audit scope and findings

We have prepared the following comments to assist you in fulfiliing
your oversight responsibilities of the financial reporting and disclosure
process for which management of City of Guelph is responsible.

In accordance with Canadian GAAS, our audit is designed to enable us to express an opinion on the
fairness of the presentation of the City of Guelph's annual financial statements prepared in accordance
with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Changes to the audit plan

The December 31, 2010 audit was conducted in accordance with our audit plari, which was presented to
the Audit Committee. We confirm that there have been no significant amendments to the audit scope and
approach communicated in the audit plan.

Group audit

We are auditors of all the entities within the group, with the exception of those mentioned below. The
following table describes the work performed by other auditors and our involvement with that work:

itors Work performed Our involvement

Guelph Hydro Inc. | Significant KPMG LLP Full Audit Review of the
financial statements
and summary of
conclusions reached.

Not significant KPMG LLP Review of the
financial statements.

The Elliott Full Audit

No restrictions ihave been placed on the scope of our audit. In performing the audit, we were given full
and complete access to the accounting records, supporting documentation and other information
requested.

Status of matters reported in the prior year

We have considered and followed up on the significant matters reported in the prior year to the City of
Guelph Audit Committee and in reports to management, where appropriate. Most of the issues raised
have been adequately addressed.
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Use of the work of experts

As planned, Deloitte and outside experts assisted in the audit to the extent we considered necessary:

participated in evaluating internal controls and in using cur computerized audit
applications

helped assess the adequacy of the City’s accouiting for input tax credits

helped assess the adequacy of the defined benefit cbligation

Consultation with other accountants

Management has informed us that City of Guelph has not consulted with other accountants about auditing
or accounting matters.

Discussions held in connection with our retention

Throughout the year, we held routine discussions with management regarding the application of
accounting principles or auditing standards in connection with transacticns that accurred and/or are
contemplated, or other reassessments of current circumstances. In our judgment, such discussions were
not held in connection with our retention as auditors.

Related party transactions

Related party transactions are disclosed in Notes 5and 6 o the consolidated financial statements.

We have not identified any related party transactions that are rot in the normal course of operations and
that involve significant judgments by management concerning measurement or disclosure.

Litigation

Details surrounding all litigation involving the City have been appropriately disclosed in Note 19 to the
Financial Statements.

Legal and regulatory compliance

Management is responsible for ensuring that City of Guelph’s operations are conducted in accordance
with laws and regulations. The responsibility for preventing and detecting non-compliance rests with
management.

The auditor is nct and canrot be held responsible for preventing non-compliance with laws and
regulations.

The legal and regulatory non-compliance matters reported below are restricted to those that came to our
attention during the course of our substantive procedures and should not be considered to be exhaustive.

Our procedures did not identify any areas of material non compliance with laws and regulations by City of
Guelph.
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Post-balance sheet events
Management is responsible for assessing subsequent events up to the date of the release of the financial
statements.

At the date of finalizing this report, we are not aware of any significant post balance sheet events.

Other information in the annual reports to shareholders

We will read the other information in City of Guelph’s Annual Report and to the inhabitants of the City of
Guelph. If we note a material inconsistency, or if we obtain any knowledge of 2 material misatatement of
fact in the other information, we will discuss this matter with management and, if appropriate, with the
Audit Committee.

© Deloitte & Touche LLP and affiliated entities. City of Guelph-December 31, 2010
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Audit risks

Our audit plan identified certain areas, which we refer to as significant
audit risks. There have been no changes to these risks nor have any
additional risks been identified since our previous communication. The
results of our audit work on these risks are set out below:

Risks

Areas of risk

Accounts Payable and
Accrued Liabilities

Description: Accounts
payable and accrued
liabilities may be understated
due to improper cut-off.

Actuarially Determined
Liabilities

Description: Actuarial
liabilities may be misstated
due to improper inputs used
in valuation. In addition, the
finarcial statement
disciosure may not cantain
all required items.

Contingencies
Description: Contingent
liabilities are not properly
accrued for or disclosed in
the financial statements.

Council and Senior
Management expenses

Description: Council and
Senior management may
expense items not in line
with City expense policy.

Ouriaudri.t e

e Test disbursements subsequent to
year-end t¢ deteimine the
reasonableness of accounts payable
and accrued liahilities.

e Test the supporting assumptions for
accruals.

e Review the outcome of prior year
astimates and accruals.

« Review actuary report, including
related assumgptions.

e Ensure appropriate accounting
treatment has bheen applied.

e Review related financial statement
note disclosure for accuracy and
completeness.

e Communicate with actuary on our
reliance on their report for audit
purposes.

o We will contact the Municipality’s
external law firms to obtain the status
of any outstanding claims and review

evaluation of claims to ensure proper
recognition.

e Review of sample of expense reports
for validity and proper approval.

© Deloitte & Touche LLP and affiliated entities.

N Ouconchision

No material misstatements
detected.

No material misstatements
detected.

No material misstatements
detected. Disclosure is
complete and accurate.

Expenses tested were
appropriate and in line with
City Policy.
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Estimates

Description: Management

estimates are not calculated

in accordance with GAAP or
properly supported.

Test the supporting assumptions for

estimates.

Review the outcome of prior year
estimates and accruals.

Infrastructure Stimulus
Fund

Description: Funding spent
on projects under ISF is not
in line with the City’s

procurement policy.

Payroli
Description: Payroll

expense is not accurately
recorded.

Procurement process
Description: The City is not
acting in compliance with the

approved procurement
policy.

Reserves and Reserve

Funds

Description: Transfers to
and from reserves and
reserve funds have been
completed without council
approval.

Test contracts to determine if monies
received should be reported as
revenue or deferred revenue.

Substantive testing on expenditures.

Perform compliance testing on
procurement policy.

Focused detail testing on payroll

expenditures and accruals.
Substantive testing on variances.

Perform compliance testing on

procuremerit policy.

Substantive testing ¢n the continuity
and material transactions to determine

if transfers are in accordance with
Council approvals and applicable
legislative requirements.

Revenue/Deferred
Revenue

Descripticn: Ravenue
recognition/cut-off issue
relating to amounts to be
deferred.

Shared services with
County of Wellington
Description: Validity of
expenses being charged to
the City.

Taxation Revenue

Description: Management's
estimate of allowance for
doubtful accounts is
reasonable is understated.

o

Review grants charges, contributions

or other monies receivad during the
year and determine if the amount
should be recorded as revenue or as
deferred revenue.

Substantive testing on expenditures.
Confirmations were sent to the County

of Wellington to agree revenue and
expense amountis for the 2010 year.

Recalculation of assessments based

on verified property value and tax
rates.

Review and evaluate Management’s
estimate of the allowance for doubtful
accounts to ensure it is reasonable

and consistent. This will include review
of assumptions /supporting documents

used to determine estimate, a
retrospective review and testing of
subsequent receipts.

© Deloitte & Touche LLP and affiliated entities.
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Management estimates are

reasonable.

infrastructure stimulus funds

were deferred or recognized
as appropriate.

Payroll expense is reasonable

for the year ending December
31, 2010.

Expense amounts tested for

the 2010 fiscal year are in line
with the City’s procurement
policy.

No material misstatements

detected. Transfers selected
for testing were done with
approval of council.

Deferred revenue balances as

at December 31, 2010 are
reasonable.

Amounts stated in the 2010
financial statements are
reasonable.

Allowance for doubtful
accounts is reasonable at
December 31, 2010.



Internal control matters

We obtained an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit, however not all controls are
relevant to every audit. We evaluated the design of controls relevant to the audit and determined whether
they have been implemented. We are not, however, required ir a non-integrated audit to determine
whether all relevant controls are operating effectively. Although not required by Canadian GAAS, we may
decide that, for a particular engagement, it makes sense tc rely on the effective operation of sorne
controls to determine our planned substantive procedures we will perform. In such cases, we would go
beyond evaluating the design of relevant controls and determining whether tiiay have been implemented
to also test whether the controls on which we intend to rely are operating effectively.

In our audit of City of Guelph’s consolidated financial statements, we planned to and were able to rely on
internal controls in the following areas:

e Expenditure Cycle
e Payroll Cycle
e Budget Cycle

Canadian GAAS require us to report to the Audit Commitiee any significart deficiencies that have come
to our attention. Our commeris aie in Appendix 2.
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Significant accounting practices

Significant accounting policies are those that are most important to the portrayal of City of Guelph’s
financial condition and the results of operation.

In the course of our audit of the financial statements, we considered tire qualitative aspects of the
financial reporting process, including items that have a sigriificant impact on the relevance, reliability,
comparability and understandability of the information inzluded in the finanicial statements.

Changes in accounting policies

During the year ended December 31, 2010, there were no significant changes in previously adopted
accounting policies or their application.

Significant accounting policies

We prefer not to provide written communicatioris with respect to ihe quality of accounting practices,
unless specifically requested by the Audit Committee. Instead, our prefarence is to communicate our
views about significant qualitative aspects of City of Guelph's accounting practices, including accounting
policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures, throligh an oral discussion among the
Audit Committee, manageinent, and us.

We will meet with you to discuss our views about the quality, not just the acceptability, of City of Guelph’s
accounting practices as applied in its financial reporting. Objective criteria have not been developed to aid
in the consistent evaluation of the quality of an entity’s accounting policies as applied in its financial
statements. However, we wiii discuss with you the consistency of City of Guelph’s accounting policies and
their application, and the clarity and cominleteness of City of Guelph’s financial statements, which include
related disclosures. We will also discuss ariy items that may significantly affect the faithfulness,
verifiability, and neutrality of the accounting information included in the financial statements. Such items
include:

Management judgment and accounting estimates

In our judgment, the significant accounting estimates made by management are in all material respects,
free of possible management bias and of material misstatement. The disclosure in the consolidated
financial statements around estimztion uncertainty is in accordance with GAAP and is appropriate to the
particular circumstances of City cf Guelph.
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Appendix 1 — Draft version of our
Auditor’s report

Our report on the financial statements is expected to be in thz followirig form. However, the final form may
need to be adjusted to reflect the final results of our audit.

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Council,
Inhabitants and Ratepayers of the
Corporation of the City of Guelph:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the City of Guelph, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as ai December 31, 2010, and the consolidated
statements of operations and accumulated surplus, changes in net financial assets and of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and cther explanatory information.

Management's Respousibility for the consolidated Finaucial Statements

Management is responsitle for tiie preparaticn and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Canadian public secicr accounting standards, and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit iri accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. Those standards
require that we compliy with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in ali materia! respecis, the financial
position of the City of Guelph as at December 31, 2010 and the results of its operations, its changes in net
financial assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards.

(To be signed Deloitte & Touche LLP)

Chartered Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants
June 27, 2011

Kitchener, Ontario
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Appendix 2 — Letter of
recommendations

- Deloitte & Touche LLP
e OI e 4210 King Street East
Kitchener ON N2P 2G5
Canada

Tel: 519-850-7600
Fax: 519-650-7601
www deloitte.ca

Audit Committee of the City of Guelph,

We have recently completed our examination of the consolidated financial statements of City of Guelph
for the year ended December 31, 2010.

Our audit was designed to provide a cost-effeciive basis for formulating an opinion on your financial
statements. As part of our examination, we reviewed and evaluated relevant aspects of the systems of
internal control and the accounting systems to the extent we considered necessary to make an evaluation
of such systems and procedures in accordance with Canadian GAAS.

The main purpose of our systems review was to assist iri determining the nature, extent and timing of our
audit tests and to establish the degree of reliance, witich we could place ou selected controls; it was not to
determine whether internal controls were adequate for management’s purposes.

While the audit did not include an in-depih evaluation of all systems or all aspects of any individual
system and should not, therefcre, be relied upon to identify all significant internal control deficiencies, or
all errors, irregularities or inefficiencies that wight occur, we undertake to report such matters to you
when they come to our attention. Our comments relating to these and other matters are below.

1. Lease schedules

Observation (carried forward from 2009)

A ceatral lease schedule is niot maintained in the finance department for leases executed by the City of
Guelph. There are policies related to entering into lease arrangements; but there is no central tracking
mechanisiir for reporting purposes.

Implication

Classifications of leases recorded improperly could lead to misstatements on the financial statements, as
financial liabilities may be understated if not all leases have been captured correctly. Additionally, future
lease payments are a required disclosure in the Notes to the Financial Statements and there is a potential
that the City would not have complete information for this reporting.

Recommendation
A centralized lease schedule should be created and maintained for all leases (both capital and operating)

held by the City. This schedule should be reviewed by Finance annually to ensure the liability reported on
the year-end financial statements is correct and the appropriate lease disclosures are complete.

Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
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The City of Guelph
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Management response

We agree that currently there is no centralized summary of leases although we don’t believe that it would
be overly significant as the City does not normally enter into lease arrangements. We agree that it is
required information needed for disclosure in the financial statements and that having a central listing
would allow finance to ensure the City has not misclassified a capital lease. The finance group will
develop a listing during 2011 to address this item going forward.

2. Cash

Observations
Cheque payments received by mail are currently opened by the cierk who also enters the payment
information into the general ledger.

Implication
The lack of segregation of duties may result in the misappropriation of assets.

Recommendation

It is recommended that the City designate a certain employee in finance open the :nail, and create a daily
log of all cheques received. The cheques can then be torwarded ic another clerk to be entered into the
G/L.

Management response

We agree with this observation and this was also identified through an internal audit of cash management
during 2010. The resulis of the cash management audit will be presented to the executive team in 2011
and we will be addressing the risk as outline above from a corporate perspective, not just specifically in
finance. :

3. Grant revenue

Observaiion

There is currently a procedure in place with respect to grants whereby departments are required to notify
finance when they apply for a grant. Finance has a designated person who keeps a central log of these
grants and monitors and records these grants during the year. Due to the decentralized accounting for
revenue transactions, there is a risk that a department could apply for a grant that finance was not notified
about.

Implications
There is a risk of a revenue misstatement if there was a grant that was a receivable but not known to
finance at the end of a fiscal vear.

Recommendation

We recommend that the City develop a formal policy that would be posted on the finance intranet
regarding the process for grant applications which includes a notification being sent to the finance
department when a grant application was approved by the funder. Although Finance receives notification
once the grant monies are received in the bank, including them in the application process would allow for
more accurate recording of transactions and improved asset management.

© Deloitte & Touche LLP and affiliated entities. City of Guelph-December 31, 2010 14



The City of Guelph
Page 3

Management response

We agree that there is a risk that finance may not be notified of grant revenue that is approved and
expected to be received. We have an individual that is responsible for the central tracking of grants but a
formal policy would help ensure the departments are aware that finance is to be notified when a grant
application has been approved. We will commit to drafting a formal poilicy during 2011 and educate the
departments of this process. We are also hoping that the new departmentai aralysts will make sure
Finance is notified in a timely manner,

4. Deferred revenue

Observation

The accounting for revenue is not centralized in finance and is the responsibility of each department. This
decentralized practice was highlighted during our testing of the deferred revenue. The first observation
related to the engineering department deferred revenue account where it was noted that this account
continues to grow each year with new deposits collected but that aged amounts are not being reconciled
regularly. There is currently no process to determine when the amounts should be taken into income
other than by matching it to when the expense was incurred.

The second observation related to a subdivision tree planting account which has the same observation as
the above. This account continues to grow each year with the new deposits received but it is not
monitored on a regular basis to bring these revenues into income other than by estimating the %
completion of the projects at the end of the year.

Thirdly, related to the general deferred revenue account, it is up o the departments to notify finance if
they have any revenue that neads to be deferred. Since departments are responsible for all revenue
transactions, finance would not be aware of any revenues that should be deferred due to external
restrictions or otherwise uniess they were notified.

Implications

The above could lead to a misstatement of revenue. The lack of monitoring of these deposits on a regular
basis and assessing the aged amounts could also lead to financial loss to the City if work was not
performed as required or dus to the delay of the projects being completed, they cost significantly more
than the original deposit collected.

Recommendation

For the first two observaticas we recommend that a process be developed by the departments that would
improve the monitoring of these revenues. A policy should be developed to address the aged deposits and
finance should be consilted to ensure the departments are accounting for these deferred revenues in
accordance with applicabie accounting guidelines. Additionally, the departmental clerks may need to
meet with finance on a more regular basis to ensure finance has a thorough understanding of the
accounting that is being done at that level.

For the third observation, given the decentralized nature of the accounting of revenue, education of the
departiment analysts may be the only mitigating control to address this risk.
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Management response

We agree with these observations and are aware that the decentralized nature of the revenue accounting
has implications from a financing reporting perspective. Within the current system, finance does not have
the authority or the capacity to take on the accounting functions for every department. In the 2011
budget, funding was approved to hire a number of departmental analysts that will be more directly linked
with departments while still reporting to Finance and that will have the skili sei needed to manage this
accounting. With these additional analysts that will have the required in-depth understanding of their
assigned departments, the control over the revenue reporting will be strengthened substantially. Finance
will meet with the owners of the two noted accounts above and work to develop a process that will
address the risks identified.

5. Tangible Capital Assets — Impairment policy

Observations

The City of Guelph has a published set of Accounting Guidelines on tizeir intranet that address the
impairment of Tangible Capital Assets (TCA’s) but these guidelines are not included in the formal TCA
policy. Also, it was noted that an impairment review for TCA’s was not comnpleted in 2010.

Implication

This could lead to an overstatement of assets as a tesult of baving obsclete or damaged tangible capital
assets recorded on the statement of financial position at their cost less accumulated amortization when
they should be written down to net recoverable amount.

Recommendation

The TCA policy should specifically address asset impairment (even if it is addressed in a set of
accounting guidelines) and an annual review should be completed by finance to ensure the appropriate
valuation of the carrying value of the assets.

Management response

We agree with these comments and have made substantial progress in the area of accounting for tangible
capital assets since 2009. Finance has currently hired a Senior Corporate Financial Analyst (as approved
in the 2011 budget; that wiil be specializing in the area of asset management from both a reporting and
budgeiing perspective and it will be the responsibility of this position to complete this annual review. As
we feel the accounting guidelines are posted publicly with the TCA Policy, there is no need to re draft the
current policy and will take this comment into consideration in the future.

6. Tangible Capiial Assets — Disposals

Observations

During our testing of tangible capital assets it was noted that there were few internal controls to account
for the disposal of tangible capital assets at the City, from a financial reporting perspective. Currently
disposals are only recorded when the finance department is notified by another department that the
transaction has occurred.

Implication

As Finance is not always notified of asset disposals, the City may have disposed of items on the asset
listing for which amortization is still being recorded. This would lead to an overstatement of assets.
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Recommendation

A process should be established for all asset disposals whereby Finance must be notified to ensure the
disposal is recorded correctly and on a timely basis. Additionally, periodical communication should be
distributed to each department confirming if a group of assets is still in vse or if there have been any
disposals. This should be reviewed and approved by a department manager.

Management response

We agree that the accounting for disposals of tangible capital assets is a process that needs to be
addressed. The City has the appropriate policies in place to inanage how and when a department can
dispose of an asset but no supporting process to have that information sent to finance. It will be the
responsibility of the newly hired Senior Corporate Financial Anaivst to develop this process and educate
the departments.

7. Tangible Capital Assets — Capitalization of assets

Observations

During our testing of the controls over capitalization of tangible capital asseiz it was noted that the trigger
for the capitalization of an asset is the finance depatrtment receiving a signed project closing form from
the department indicating that a project is complete and ready to be capitalized. It was noted that several
of the assets capitalized did not have a signed project ciosing form and upon further investigation it was
noted that this was due to finance knowing that the asset was “in use” even though the project was not
closed. Many times a project is not closed due to outstanding funding issues, minor additional costs or a
variety of other reasons even though for the purpose of the accounting standards the asset is “in use” and
should begin to be depreciated.

Implication

As a result of the current precess, finance has been undertaking the time consuming task of reviewing
each individual capital project at year end ic ensure that any completed projects have been appropriately
capitalized. This may lead to a misstatement in the depreciation expense as there is risk that the
depreciation will not begin at the date the asset is put into use, but the date the project has been closed
{and in some circumstances this a substantially different date).

Reconimendation

The City should revisit their current process to ensure that it supports the capitalization of assets at the
date they are put into use in order to be compliant with the accounting standards. This may be achieved
through re-emphasizing io the depertments and the new department analysts the need to close projects on
timely basis. There may also be a need for each department to review all their open projects at year end
to determine if there are any that are ‘in use’ but not closed and notify finance about these projects. A
signed form could be required annually by finance from each department to confirm all their projects are
accounted for appropriately.

Management response

We agree with the observations and the suggested recommendations as noted above and feel that these
can be easily implemented going forward. The new Senior Corporate Financial Analyst as described
previously will be designated the responsibility to ensure the gap between the project closing date and the
date an asset is put into use is narrowed and to implement a year end procedure to address any open
projects that have this issue. Finance will also work with the newly hired departmental analysts, who will
have an in-depth understanding of these projects, to emphasize the reporting implications of timely
project closing.
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Appendix 3 — Independence

@&
De I o ltte Deloitte & Touche LLP
4210 King Street East
Kitchener ON N2P 2G5
Canada

Tei: 519-650-7600
Fax: 519-650-7601
www.delcitte.ca

June 7, 2011

The Chairman and members of the Audit Committee
The City of Guelph

Dear Members:

We have been engaged to audit the consolidated financizal statements of the City of Guelph (the City) for
the year ending December 31, 2010.

Canadian generally accepted auditing standards (GAAS) require that we communicate in writing with you
regarding our compliance with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence as well as all
relationships and other matters between the City, our Firm and nietwork firms that, in our professional
judgment, may reasonably be thought 1o bear on our independence. We are also required to communicate
the related safeguards that have been applied to eliminate identified threats to independence or reduce
them to an acceptable level.

In determining which relationships to report, these standards require us to consider relevant rules and
related interpretations prescribed by the appropriate provincial institute / ordre and applicable legislation,
covering such matters as:

(a) holding a financial interest, either directly o indirectly, in a client;

(b) holding a position, either directly or indirectly, that gives the right or responsibility to exert
significant influence over the financial or accounting policies of a client;

(c) personal or business relationships of immediate family, close relatives, partners or retired partners,
either directly or indirectly, with a client;

(d) economic dependence on a client; and

(e) provision of services in addition to the audit engagement.

We confirm to you that the engagement team and others in the firm as appropriate, the firm and, when
applicable, network firms have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence.

We have prepared the following comments to facilitate our discussion with you regarding independence
matters arising June 10, 2010, the date of our last letter.

Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited

© Deloitte & Touche LLP and affiliated entities. City of Guelph-December 31, 2010 18



The City of Guelph
June 7, 2011
Page 2

We are not aware of any relationships between the City and our Firm, including any network firms that, in
our professional judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on independence, that have occurred from
June 10, 2010 to June 7, 2011.

The total fees charged to the City for audit services will be $112,500 during thz period covered by the
financial statements.

GAAS requires that we confirm our independence to those charged with governance in the context of the
Rules of Professional Conduct of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario Accordingly, we
hereby confirm that we are independent with respect to tiie City within the meaning of the Rules of
Professional Conduct of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario as of June 7, 2011.

This report is intended solely for the use of the audit committee, members ¢f council, management, and
others within the City and should not be used for any other purposes.

We look forward to discussing with you the matters addressed in this letter at our upcoming meeting on
June 7, 2011.

Yours very truly,

Chartered Accountanis
Licensed Public Accouniants
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June 27, 2011 2N

. S
, / /
Deloitte & Touche LLP / {
4210 King StE \
Kitchener ON N2P 2G5 \\
o \
Dear Sirs: //”‘\ - \\,\L
‘\\ ™

Subject: Consolidated financial statements for the year'ended December 31, 2010 . J

i S

This representation letter is provided in connection with th auditiﬁ loitte~& Touche LLP (“Deloitte”
or “you”) of the consolidated financial statements of the City 6f Guelph (the SCity” or “we” or “us”) for
the year ended December 31, 2010 (the “Financial Statements”)\fe{the purpose of expressing an opinion
as to whether the Financial Statements present fairly, in all material fespects, the financial position, results
of operations, and cash flows of the City in fccopflgnce with Canadian pub\hc settor accounting standards

\‘\

(“PSAB”). “‘N\\\
\, L \

N
Certain representations in this letter are descriLed asxbemg hmit;d to matters that are material. An item is
considered material, regardless of its monetary Vi lue i itis probablmthat its omission from or
misstatement in the Financial Statements would mﬂuencwfﬁe decision of2 reasonable person relying on

the Financial Statements. . \ ,/ S s
/’ x\\ \ &
We confirm that, to the/best of our know!§dge and behef \havmg\made such inquiries as we considered

necessary for the purpese of appropnately‘\mformmg ourseh{gs /

~ \"\/ MM“ o,
Financial statements = ™ ’ R

1. We have fulfilled our resp0n51b1htlf-‘~5“ as set out in “the terms of the engagement letter between the City
and Deloitte dated November24, 20T for mf;preraratlon of the Financial Statements in accordance
with PSAB. \I‘moartlcular the Financial :si:atements are fairly presented, in all material respects, and
present the ﬁnanc\ﬁal,‘posmon of th\Clty as gecember 31, 2009 and December 31, 2010 and the
fesults ofa[s“’“t}peratloﬁs\%nd cash flows fg\r the years then ended in accordance with PSAB.

2. nrepaf‘x‘ng the FanHCIanStatements in accordance with PSAB, management makes judgments and
assumpt10n§"ab\out the future and uses estimates. The completeness and adequacy of the disclosures
related 1 mestlmateé are’ én accerdance with PSAB. The City has appropriately disclosed in the
Financial Stﬂtemem‘q the nature of measurement uncertainties that are material, including all estimates
where it is reas*a\ably p0531ble that the estimate will change in the near term and the effect of the
change could be material to, the Financial Statements.

Significant assumptionsn"i/lsed in making estimates are reasonable and appropriately reflect
management's intent and ability to carry out specific courses of action on behalf of the entity. The
measurement methods, including the related assumptions and models, used in determining the
estimates were appropriate, reasonable and consistently applied in accordance with PSAB and
appropriately reflect management's intent and ability to carry out specific courses of action on behalf
of the entity.

There are no changes in management’s method of determining significant estimates in the current
year.



Deloitte & Touche LLP
June 27, 2011
Page 2

3. With regard to the fair value measurements and disclosures of certain assets, liabilities, we believe
that:

a. The measurement methods, including the related assumptions and moclei’g:\ﬁsgd in determining
fair value were appropriate, reasonable and consistently applied in agé‘brdanceﬂ\yxith PSAB.

b. The completeness and adequacy of the disclosures related to fair yﬂues are in‘accordance with

PSAB. /

c. No events have occurred subsequent to December 31, 2010 that’ require ,,a\diustm\c‘n% to the fair
value measurements and disclosures included in the Financial Statémgﬂts. N A

d. They appropriately reflect management's intent and ability to carry out speciﬁ\émgurses “of action

on behalf of the City when relevant to the use of fair /ya/lue\mgasurements or disclosyres. ™

ya %,

. . . . vy ’ . —
4. All related party relationships and transactions (inclyding assgfffated amounts receivable and paydble)
have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in the Financial Statements in accordance with

~ N >

the requirements of PSAB. N .

5. We have completed our review of events after December 3‘1\,\2010 and/u’f) to the date of this letter.
All events subsequent to the date of the Financial Statements atid for which PSAB requires
adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. AccouﬁtéQg estitnates and disclosures
included in the financial statements th:f{ are i\xmsagted by subsequent events have been appropriately
adjusted. S N /»/

6. We believe that the effects of any uncorf\égted%f”*ing_\nciaf‘gta{ement misstateriénts pertaining to the
latest period presented, are immaterial, bothindividually and’“imt\l\le aggregate, to the Financial
Statements taken as a whole. A list of the uncorrecied »%isstateméﬁm\aggregated by you is attached in
Appendix A. . \\ v o~ S

7. Management has compléted its"assessment of the ability og}tﬁe City to continue as a going concern
and in making its asﬁ%}s)sment did niot identify any m\ag\erial\agcertainties related to events or conditions
that may cast significant dotubtupon the City's ability to continue as a going concern, which would
require disclosuré‘*‘ig\the Financial Statements. In assessing‘Whether the going concern assumption is
appropriate, management took.into accotint-all available information about the future, which is at
least, but is not limited to, twelve months from the. balance sheet date, their plans for future action and

oy s £
the feasibility of these plans: \\\ i

8. We havediselosed to you all kirown, act al?ﬂm&sible litigation and claims, whether or not they have
beesi discussed with our lawyers?wh\pse effects should be considered when preparing the Financial
Statements... As appropriate, these itetns have been disclosed and accounted for in the Financial

%tatemexi{s in a\‘ce\c\){darﬁ%\with PSAB.
AN
Information prov‘i‘dgd
9. We have providedyou with:
N )

a. Access to aliinformation/of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the

Financial State\fngpts, gffch as records, documentation and other matters;
. Additional informatién that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit; and,
c. Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary to obtain

audit evidence.

10. All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the Financial
Statements.

11. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal
control to prevent and detect fraud.

12. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the Financial Statements may
be materially misstated as a result of fraud.
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June 27, 2011
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13. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of
and that affects the entity and involves:

PN
a. Management; SN
b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or j/y
c. Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the Finan(j;rﬂ Statements
%,

Ve

14. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations §ﬁﬁaud gguspected fraud,
affecting the entity’s Financial Statements and all knowledge of concerhis, ot alleg ations"of potential
errors in the selection of accounting policies or the recordin /g of transactions affecting the City that
have been communicated by employees, former employegs, anakvsts regulators, or (;%exs Wﬁé;\hel‘
written or oral. // ya \\ ’\

15. We have disclosed to you all known instances of non»comphazr/ te or sg\spected non- comphance with
laws and regulations whose effects should be considéred Whe{ Qhrﬁpanng&the Financial Statements.

16. We have disclosed to you all communications from:

a. taxation authorities concerning assessments or reassessmerits ts that could have a material effect on
the Financial Statements; and s

b. regulatory agencies concerning n@ﬁéom{ﬁia nce with or potential deficiencigs in, financial
reporting requirements. We are unaware of any‘“ <NOWN Or probable\i”ns\tancgs of non-compliance
with the requlrements of regulatory ot govumentai‘“amgontles including their financial

T eportmg requlr ements. AN
\\\ "\> \\\

17. We have disclosed to you any change in the Clty s internal cgn:crol over financial reporting that
occurred during the cur'*ent yearthat has mafenall‘y affected; or is easonably likely to materially
affect, the City’s mternal control owar financial repomng

18. We have dlsclosegl/ to you the’l ;denutygof the entity’s re¢! ated /\ames and all the related party
relationships and" 1*ansact1\,ns oféwhlcP? we are aware, mc]\l;amg guarantees, non-monetary

transactions, transacthns for\m/ consuff“eramn and participation in a defined benefit plan that shares

risks between group entlues m\\“\ \N\;*
Independm’tem-atfers \ ~./
For purposes of paraéraph 19, “Deloit el shal

ean Deloitte & Touche LLP and Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu Limited, its mémber firms and the at%hates of Deloitte & Touche LLP, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu lelteci\é”Pd its mc.:gnber firms. NS
\ \ A
19. The Cm( has m,t caused Dei}\ntte s independence to be impaired by hiring or promoting a former or
current D\éimtte paftner lor proxessmnal employee in an accounting role or financial reporting
oversight role\that wold causg a violation of the Canadian independence rules or other applicable
independence rules. Prior to, the City having any substantive employment conversations with a
former or current De101tte ﬁngagement team member the City has held discussions with Deloitte and
obtained approval fromthe Audit Committee.

Various matters
20. The following have been properly recorded and, when appropriate, adequately disclosed and
presented in the Financial Statements:

economic dependence on another party;

losses arising from sale and purchase commitments;
agreements to buy back assets previously sold;
provisions for future removal and site restoration costs;

o op
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e. financial instruments with significant individual or group concentration of credit risk, and related
maximum credit risk exposure;

f. sales with recourse provisions;

g. sales incentives, including cash consideration provided to customers anﬁf vendor rebates;

h. arrangements with financial institutions involving compensating balaﬁces or otPer arrangements
involving restriction on cash balances and line-of-credit or mmﬂzz{g/arrangemems

i. all impaired loans receivable; /
j- loans that have been restructured to provide a reduction or defe%val of i interest o\],rmmpal
payments because of borrower financial difficulties \vf’ \\
™~ AN \\
Title to assets SN AN “

21. The City has satisfactory title to and control over all ass¢ ts and /kaere are no liens or encﬁmbrance% on
such assets. We have disclosed to you and in the Fmancxal Stai’ements aﬂ assets that have been /
pledged as collateral. \ / \\

Plans or intentions affecting carrying value/classification of assets and liabilities
22. We have disclosed to you all plans or intentions that may mateti Ily affeQ\ t the carrying value or
classification of assets and liabilities reﬁgu{iin the Financial Statements. .
7 ..
Liabilities and contingencies \\\ N“‘x \\\ \>
23. We have disclosed to you all liabilities, pmwsﬁms contmuent liabilities and*Contingent assets,
including those associated with guarantees, \\yhether written ot ﬂgal and they are appropriately

reflected in the Financial Statements. \\ N K\

\ hve . J

SR N, / \ f’"

M,

Loans and receivables /ﬂ - N, e

24. The City is responsibie for determ\l\ng and mamtammg the, adequacy of the allowance for doubtful
notes, loans, and a¢counts reCeivable,as well as estimates used to determine such amounts.
Management beh%ves the(allowdnce is adequate to absorb c‘urrently estimated bad debts in the

account balance. \ NS . T
e
s,

Inventories \\\ i\ k\?
25. Provisiomrhas been made to reduce 1nventorles Lefé/stlmated net realizable value when that amount is
lowér than cost. “All reversals of write- dowa of inventories, arising from an increase in net realizable
{, lue hag@ heen recongzed asa red{}ct\on il the amount of inventories recognized as an expense in
the pend‘i in Whm;h the reversal occurred>”All inventories are the property of the City and do not
mc[ude anyritems consigned to it, any items billed to customers, or any items for which the liability
has notbeen récorded.

N N 3
. ; )
Investments \\/ ]

26. The City’s 1nvc;s\tments in Mabter Asset Vehicle notes (which replaced third party non-bank asset
backed commercuﬁ\pgm;)/nave been appropriately presented and are recorded at fair value.

o,

Long-lived assets
27. With respect to the City’s long-lived assets, we have recognized and recorded the fair value of all
legal obligations associated with the retirement of those related assets.
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Environmental liabilities/contingencies

28. We have considered the effect of environmental matters on the City and have disclosed to you all
liabilities, provisions or contingencies arising from environmental matters. All liabilities, provisions,
contingencies and commitments arising from environmental matters, and thé/ effect of environmental

matters on the carrying values of the relevant assets are recognized, meagﬁred anil}‘isclosed, as
appropriate, in the Financial Statements.

4/!

Employee future benefits N A

29. Employee future benefit costs, assets, and obligations have been propg}iy,r’écorxde\d and adequately
disclosed in the Financial Statements including those arisingander defined beneﬁ?\a&d deﬁ"’ngd
contribution plans as well as termination arrangements. Wk béiieye that the actuarial zi‘ssymptqus and
methods used to measure defined benefit plan assets, ligbilities arid costs for financial accounting™
purposes are appropriate in the circumstances. / g . \\,\V yd g

30. We have disclosed to you any intentions of terminating any ofxg\ur fné‘i@g plans, or taking any other
action that could result in an effective termination or rZE\Lnable event for gny of the plans. We have

disclosed to you any occurrences that could result in the te?iﬂizxj\tion og,sa/ny of our pension or multi-

employer plans to which we contribute. . \
.,
AN AN
Work of management’s experts 7

31. We agree with the work of management’s experts itreyaluating the Employee Future Benefits and
have adequately considered the competetice antt-capabilities of the experts ivdetermining amounts
and disclosures used in the Financial Stat;iignts\agm1nderly1ﬁgaccounting records. We did not give
any, nor cause any, instructions to be given to\;gnané‘we;?ent’s expetts.with respect to values or
amounts derived in an attempt to bias their work, and we are not \awgfé of any matters that have

o

ot S

impacted the independerice or Ohjg\ctivity of the e%g\)\erts. P

£
Compliance with contractual agreemerits \\ \\,>
32. We have disclosé‘&gg you,-and tg?;e City has complied wfthvaﬁ aspects of contractual agreements that
could have a materiai“@\ffect on-the F in‘iiﬁ“é“'r&l\gatements in the event of non-compliance, including all
covenants, conditions of\gt\l:}er requirements of athoutstanding debt
S

e,
Yours jﬁ:/zfyfmiy;\ \\\ \“\\ T
N ~, ™~
City6f Guelph__ ™ N
y RN L

\\ AN
", ™ .,
NN DN
\\% N\

~ 5 Y
Sue Aram, Acting Treasurey
. ™
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Appendix 5 — Communication

requirements

In our audit plan presented, we committed to communicate czrtain items to the Audit Commiitee on a
annual basis or as specified events occur. These items are summarized below.

Required communication w

1. Our responsibilities under GAAS.

Audit plan presented on March 7,
2011 on page 2.

2. Our aud|t strategy and scope, |nclud|nc' approa r‘h to audrtlng
financial information of components of the group audit and our
planned mvolvement in work performed by comoonent :..Udl'[OI'S

3. Managementjudgment and accounting estimates.

4, Ftnancual statement adJUSImer\ts

5. Uncorrected misstatements.

6. Smmﬁcant accounting polrc1es

7. Alternatrve freatme'tts for accountlng poIrmes and practlces that
have been discussed with management during the current audit
penod

8. Our views abo'lt srgnmcant qualrtattve aspects of the Crty S
accounting practices, includirg accounting policies, accounting
estlmates and financial sta*ement dlsclosures

9. Our responsibility for other information in documents contarnmg

audited Consolidated financial statements, any procedures
performed and the results.

10 Drsagreements with management

11 Our views about significant matters that were the subject of
consultatron with other accountants

12 Slgnlflcant dlfftcultles If any, encountered durtng the audtt

© Deloitte & Touche LLP and affiliated entities.

Audit plan presented on March 7,
2011 on page 3.

Management Judgment and
a\_countrng estlmates on page 2

' Audit adjustments and uncorrected
" misstatements included in
Appendix A to the Management
representatlon letter.

Other mformatlon in the annual

Audit adjustments and uncorrected
misstatements included in
Appendix A to the Management
representatlon |etter

Significant accounting pohmes on
page 10

' No alternatlve S|gn|f|cant
accounting policies were noted.

Significant accounting practices —

see page 10 of this report

reports to taxpayers
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Required communication Comments

13. All deficiencies in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
(ICFR) that existed as of the date of management’s
assessment and were concluded to be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies in ICFR.

All deficiencies in ICFR of a lesser magnitude communicated to
management.

No material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies in ICFR
noted.

See Letter of recommendations in
Ar)pendlx 2.

14. Material written communications between management and us.

Engagemerit letter dated
November 24,2010

15. All relationships between City of Guelph and us that, in our
professional judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on
independence.

Independence letter - Apperidix 3

16. A statement that, in our judgment, the engagement team and
others in the firm as appropriate, the firm and, when applicable,
network firms have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regardlng mdependence

17 IIlegaI or p035|bly |tlegal acts

18 Fraud or possxble fraud |dent|f|ed through the audlt process..

19. Slgnlflcant transactions inconsistent with ordmary business,
mcludmg related party transactlons

20 Non-compliance with laws
audltors attentton

21 If we became aware that the cversight of the Clty S external
financial reporting and internal control over financial reperting
by the City’s Audit Committee Members is ineffective, we
committed to communicate that information in writing to the
Board of Directors.

22 leltat.ons p'aced on our scope

23 ertten representations the audrtor is requesting.

© Deloitte & Touche LLP and affiliated entities.

and regulatlons that come to the

None noted.

.ndependence letter - Appendix 3

None noted

None noted.

None noted

None noted

None noted

Draft management S

representations letter - Appendix 4
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Appendix 6 — Standard-setting update
as of April 2011

Public sector accounting standards

Final Standard . Effective Date

Introduction to Public Sector Accounting Standards - Governnient January 1, 2012
Not-for-Profit Organizations

The Introduction to Public Sector Accounting Standards was amended to require
that, for purposes of their financiai reporting, government not-for-profit
organizations should adhere to the standards for not-for-profit organizations in the
CICA Public Sector Accounting (PSA) Handbook or the standards in the CICA
PSA Handbook without Sections PS 4200 to PS 4270.

Introduction to Public Sector Accounting Staridards — Government January 1, 2011
Business Enterprises

The introducticn to Public Sector Accounting Standards was amended to confirm
that, for purposes of their financial reporting, government business enterprises
should adhiere to the standards applicable to publicly accountable enterprises in
the CICA Handbook — Acccunting Part 1. The government business-type
organization category of governmeiit crganizations was eliminated and Appendix
B was removed.

Section PS 2100 (Revised),, Disciosure of Accounting Policies January 1, 2011

PSAB approved an amendment to Section PS 2100, Disclosure of Accounting
Policies, to deal with recent chainges to the source of accounting standards
appiied by varicus types of organizations in Canada.

Section PS 2125, First-time Adoption of Public Sector Accounting January 1, 2011
Standards by Government Organizations
This new Sectior establishes recognition, measurement, presentation and

disclosure standards relating to adoption by a government organization of the
CICA Public Sector Accounting Handbook for the first time.

IPDATED | PS 2601, Foreign Currency Translation GOE: April 1, 2012
This new standard takes into consideration the final recommendations of the : :

. X ) - Gov: April 1, 2015
Financial Instruments project and the conceptual framework, to ensure consistent
accounting standards, including with respect to remeasurement gains and losses.

Section PS 3260, Liability for Contaminated Sites April 1,2014

This new Section establishes recognition, measurement and disclosure standards
for liabilities relating to contaminated sites of governments and those
organizations applying the CICA Public Sector Accounting Handbook.
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Public sector accounting standards

Final Standard Effective Date

Section PS 3410 (Revised), Government Transfers April 1, 2012

PSAB approved a final standard to replace existing Section PS 3410, which
establishes standards on how governments should account for and report
government transfers to individuals, organizations and other governrnents from
both a transferring government and a recipient government perspectiva.

UPDATED | PS 3450, Financial Instruments GOE: April 1, 2012

This new accounting standard provides guidance on the iecognition, Gov: Aoril 1. 2015
measurement, presentation and disclosure of financial instruments, including i ’
derivatives, by government organizations.

Section PS 3510, Tax Revenue April 1, 2012

This new Section establishes recognition, measurement, presentation ard
disclosure standards relating to tax revenue reported in financial statements.

Section PS 3800, Government Assistance Withdrawn —
January 1, 2011
In June 2010, this Section has been withdrawn as a result of the adoption of

IFRSs by certain government organizations. Section PS 3800 will remain in efiect
until the adoption of IFRSs for fiscal periods beginning on or after January 1,
2011, unless a government organization ias elected early adopiion.

Section PS 4200 - PS 4270, Government Not-for-profit Organizations | January 1, 2012

The PSAB approved the inclusion of the PS 4200 to PS 4270 series of standards
into the PSA. Handbook for use by government organizations applying the
standards for not-for-profit organizations.
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Appendix 7 — Deloitte resources a

click away

At Deloitte, we are devoted to excellence in the provision of professional services and advice, always

focusing on client service. To this end, we have developed numerous resources, which contain relevant
and timely information for our clients and are accessible by our clients. Included below is an overview of
these resources. These resources are available through tha Deloitie Portal (www.deloitte.com/ca/portal).

ot 1 R CARN T

Canadian resources

Centre for Corporate Governance
www.corpgov.deloitte.ca

DeloitteLINK
www.deloitte.com/ca/DeloitteLINK

Delcitte Update
www.deloitte.com/ca/update

Directors’ Series

www.deloitte.com/ca/DirecioisSeries

© Deloitte & Touche LLP and affiliated entities.

e CFO

Audience

' Description and frequency

o Audit Committee
membars

e Board memiers
e CEO/CFO
¢ Internal auditor

e Legal counsel

e VV-P Finance

s Controller

¢ Financial reporting
team

e V-P Finance

e Controller

e Financial reporting
team

e Audit Committee
members

e CEO/CFO
e Internal auditor
e Legal counsel

Web site specifically designed to
help board members with their
responsibilities.

It provides the latest information on
regulatory and legislative
developments, accounting and
financial reporting, board roles and
responsibilities, and best practices.

Weekly e-newsletter that helps the
finance team to stay on top of
standard-setting initiatives.

Learning webcasts offered
throughout the year featuring
Deloitte professionals discussing
critical issues that affect your
business.

The Directors' Series are held a
live satellite broadcasts in locations
across the country four or five
times per year. They provide
Canadian corporate directors with
an opportunity to keep up with their
learning requirements in a time of
frequent change and new
demands.
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Other resources

Integrity in the Spotlight

On the Agenda

e Legal counsel

e Audit Committee
members

e CEO/CFO
e Internal auditor

e Legal counsel

e Audit Committee
members

e CEO/CFO
e Internal auditcr

Standard-Setting Activities Digest
www.deloitte.com/ca/standards

e CFO
e V-F Finance
» Controller

e Financial reporting
team

Second edition of a book on Audit
Committee effectiveness, co-
authored by retired Deloitte partner
Jim Gogodfellow and Maureen
Sabig, chair of the Audit
Cornmittee at Canadian Tire. The
book is a usefui tool for
discussionz with ycur Audit
Committee.

Bi-monthly e-newsistter that

| advises directors about recent
developments affecting their
responsibilities, including the

points of view of Deloitte

professionals.

Monthly online updates on recent
developments in standard-setting
from a comprehensive list of
standard-setting organizations.

IFRS transition resources

Audience

Shifting gears

www.DeloittelFRS.ca

IFRS Insights

© Deloitte & Touche LLP and affiliated entities.

e Board members
¢ Audit Committee
» members

¢ \V-P Finance CFO
e Controller

¢ Audit Committee
members

« Board members
e CEO/CFO

e Internal auditor
e Legal counsel

e Financial professionals

= SRR S C e e SRR T S =R

- Description and frequency

| Quarterly newsletter on IFRS.

Deloitte Canada Web site
information devoted to IFRS.

This monthly publication covers a
spectrum of key issues related to
IFRS and includes: news on the
latest developments on IFRS,
practical suggestions for
companies addressing IFRS,
updates on the regulatory
environment, and references to

relevant tools and resources.
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Other resources

IASPlus web site
(www.iasplus.com)

IFRS in Focus Newsletter

e Board members

e Audit Committee
members

e CEO/CFO
e Controller

e Financial reporting
team

e Other accounting
professionals

e Board members

e Audit Committee
members

e CEO/CFO
e Controller

e Financial reporting
team

e Qther accounting
prefessicnals

© Deloitte & Touche LLP and affiliated entities.

Website designed by Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu to provide the
most comprehensive information
on the web abcut international
financial reportirg.

e T e e e e

Monthly newsletter which
surnmarizes recent Standards and
!nterpretations and proposals.
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www.deloitte.ca

Deloitte, one of Canada's leading professional services firms, provides audit, tax, consulting, and financial advisory services
through more than 7,600 people in 57 offices. Deloitte operates in Québec as Samson Bélair/Deloitte & Touche s.e.n.c.rl
Deloitte & Touche LLP, an Ontario Limited Liability Partnership, is the Canadian member firm of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited.

Deloitte refers to one or more of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, a UK private company limited by guarantee, and its network of
member firms, each of which is a legally separate and independent entity. Please see www.deloitte.com/about for a detailed
description of the legal structure of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited and its member firms.
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Navigating through the
Consolidated Financial
Statements

Presented to Audit Committee by Finance
June 7, 2011



Agenda

1. General Concepts

2. Statement of Financial Position

3. Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus
4. Statement of Cash Flows



General Concepts

What entities are included in the statements?

e Consolidated entities:

. ' Library Board, Police Board, Downtown BIA and The
Elliot

» Proportionately consolidated entities:
« Public Health Unit

 Modified Equity basis entities:
e Guelph Hydro and Guelph Junction Railway



Why are these statements prepared?

 These statements are prepared so that Council
and the public get a full picture of the financial
health of the organization

 They include all the assets and liabilities of the
City and provide explanations in the notes for
more complex items



PSAB Standards

* Provides for consistency and comparability
of reporting between all governments and their
agencies

 Ensures completeness and transparency of
financial information for the stakeholders



Reconciliation of PSAB surplus to operating
surpluses

Ending Surplus - PSAB

Less: Differences related to tangible capital assets

Less: Differences related to debt, investments & liabilities

Less: Differences related to the consolidated entities

Less: Differences related to reserve transfers

58,991

(15,628)

(4,930)

(1,291)

(33,898)

Ending Surplus - Tax supported
Ending Surplus - User pay

3,244

1,539
1,705

Difference

3,244




Agenda

1. General Concepts

3. Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus
4. Statement of Cash Flows



Statement of Financial Position

Assets:
Cash and investments

eAccounts receivable
L. oans and notes receivable
eInvestment in GBE’'s

*Tangible capital assets

1,200,000

1,000,000

800,000

600,000

400,000

200,000

Assets - 5 Year Review

($'000s)

l

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

ETCA

m Assets



Cash and Investments

Liquidity
Capital Spending

Planned 2011
debt issuance

Reserves and
Reserve Funds

$Millions

5 Year Review - Cash and Investment

140 1

120 -

100 A

80 -

60 -

40 -

20 A

O -

2008

2009

2010

@ Investment
H Cash




_Guiglph

Accounts Receivable

Accounts $39,941 $21,072 + 90%
Recelvable

Accounts $43,497 $31,216 + 39%
Payable

Revenues $195,605 $149.401 + 31%

(excluding tax)

10



Loans and Notes receilvable

 Monetization of Guelph Hydro long-term note
receivable - $30,000,000

e 2010 balance includes a receivable from
Guelph Junction Railway and a long-term
receivable related to a development
agreement.

11



Investment in GBE's

« The City wholly owns the shares of both Guelph Hydro
Inc and Guelph Junction Railway Corporation

 Defined as a Government Business Enterprise (GBE) for
PSAB Financial Reporting Purposes

« GBE’s are required to adopt International Financial
Reporting Standards in 2011 (Hydro 2012)

« May cause a fluctuation in the City’s investment
when this adoption goes through

« Please refer to Notes 5 and 6 to the FS for discussion

12



Investment in Guelph Hydro — 5 Year Overview

(in $°000’s)

$70,321 $72,076 $74,774

$65.442 $66,753
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Investment in Guelph Junction Railway — 5 Year
Overview

(in $000’s)

$5,863
$5,543 $5,609 $5,584 $5,722

14



Tangible Capital Assets

(in $millions)

Cap Spending Highlights

$59m Roads, Water
Land & Land Mains and Waste

Assets under o
Improvements Buildings

Con;tlr;gtion \ $3|’6 $138 Wa te I I N fra St ru Ct ure

atipment » $11.5m Organics
Waste Facility

e $7.8m POA
Courthouse

e $6.3m Civic Museum

e $6.7m South End
Emergency Station

e $6.8m Hanlon Creek
Business Park

Vehicles $31

Infrastructure
$502

15



Statement of Financial Position

Liabilities:
«Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities

Other deferred revenues
vs. deferred contributions

Employee future benefits
and vacation payable

eLandfill-post closure
liability

5 Year Review - Liabilities
(in $millions)

$205 $213
$201

$172 $172

2006
2007 2008

2009 2010

16



Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabllities

(in $millions)

Trade Accounts
Payable
$21

Accrued Payroll
$5

Accruals
$18

17
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Deferred Contributions

Required by legislation to record separately

« Revenue is recognized when the related expense is
incurred

 Includes developer contributions and special provincial
and federal grants (Federal and Provincial Gas Tax as
well as the ISF and RINC stimulus grants)

« Please refer to Note 8 to the F/S for discussion
18



Other deferred revenues

« Revenue is deferred when its use is externally
restricted by the nature of the revenue

e Includes tax revenues collected in 2010 in
advance of the 2011 fiscal year

« Other components include deposits collected in
advance of work being performed and
Recreational program fees collected in advance
of the 2011 programs 9



_Guiglph

Employee Future Benefits and Vacation Payable

Please refer to Note 10 in the FS for the discussion

Under (Over)
Liability Reserve Funded
Vacation Accrual 4,940 5,123 (183)
WSIB Liability 3,233 1,526 1,707
Sick Leave Liability 9,409 9,579 (170)
Post Retirement Benefits 13,413 260 13,153
$ 30,995 $ 16,488 $ 14,507

20



Landfill post-closure liability

e Specific requirement by the PSAB Handbook to
estimate how much it will cost a government to
fund the post-closing environmental clean up
costs

e Please refer to Note 12 to the FS

 The City closed its landfill in 2003 and at that
time it was estimated that it would take 35
years to fully clean up this site 5



Agenda

1. General Concepts
2. Statement of Financial Position

4. Statement of Cash Flows
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Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus

2010 Revenues:

*fax revenues
*User charges
«Contributions
eInvestment income

eRecoveries

~ Licences and
equipment, Recoveries permits
publications

Investment

Provincial
Offenses Act

Contribution

User charges




Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus

2010 Expenses :

* Please see Note 23 for the operations
included in each category

* Please see Note 16 for expenses by type

e Please see Schedules 1 & 2 for the full
disclosure of revenues and expenses by type

and by segment
24



2010 Expenses by Function

Social housing Recreation and cultural

0 1 .
6% SENVICES planning and development

General government
9% 204

9%

Protection to persons and

property
Social and family services 19%

14%

Health services
6%
Transportation services
16%
Environmental services
19%
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2010 Expenses by Type

Amortization

13% T~

Salaries, wages and
employee benefits
46%

External transfers
18%

Rents and financial
expenses
4%

Interest on long term debt
2%

Contracted services
8%

Materials
9%

26



Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus

Accumulated Surplus

* Excess of the City’s assets over its liabilities

* See Note 2 for Details on the Adjustment to Opening
Accumulated Surplus

» See Note 14 for a breakdown of the significant
components of accumulated surplus

e See Schedule 4 for a complete listing of all the City’s

reserves and reserve funds
27



Accumulated Surplus - Components

*Reserves and Reserve Funds: $130,086
eInvested in Tangible Capital Assets: $873,419
eInvested in GBE's: $72,475

‘Employee benefits and landfill gross liabilities:
$(37,277)
Working Capital: $(135,746)

*Other assets: $39,437

*Net debt: $(97,279)
*Other liabilities: $(77,904)

28



Reserves

(in $000's)

Consolidated
entities
4%

HR and Other
Contingencies
7%

Maintenance
&
Improvements

4%

Administration
7%

Stabilization
25%

Employee
Future
Benefits
53%

Reserve Funds

(in $000's)
Hydro Note Equipment
Working $13.7 Replacement
Capital & $6.5
Other $2.6

Industrial
Development
$2.6

Capital
Financing
$73.5

29



Amortization versus Transfers to Capital Reserve

$43

$35

Fund
(in $millions)
$41 $42

O Amortization

B Transfers to Capital Reserve
Fund
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Agenda

1. General Concepts
2. Statement of Financial Position
3. Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus
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Statement of Cash Flows

e Total cash generated from operations:
$95,823

e Total cash used in capital and investing
activities: $(105,563)

e Total cash used in financing activities:
$(3,175)

32



Conclusion

Overall the financial statements highlight that
2010 was a successful year and the City of
Guelph is proud of its financial position

 Paid down $9.8m of debt principal
« Invested $119m in tangible capital assets

e Ended in a net surplus position in both PSAB
and cash-based operating budget

e Increased the reserves by $39.4m

33



CONSENT REPORT OF THE
COMMUNITY & SOCIAL SERVICES COMMITTEE

June 27, 2011

Her Worship the Mayor and
Councillors of the City of Guelph.

Your Community & Social Services Committee beg leave to present their
SIXTH CONSENT REPORT as recommended at its meeting of June 14, 2011.

If Council wishes to address a specific report in isolation please
identify the item. The item will be extracted and dealt with
immediately. The balance of the Consent Report of the Community
& Social Services Committee will be approved in one resolution.

1) Special Events Coordination & Logistics

THAT Report #CSS-ACS-1123 entitled “Special Events Coordination & Logistics”
dated June 14, 2011, be received;

AND THAT staff proceed with operating the special events and logistics functions
with an expected variance of approximately $15,000 to meet current demand;

AND THAT the special events coordination and logistics service function be referred
to the corporate service review process for consideration.

2) Guelph Public Library Bookmobile Service Review

THAT report CSS-ACE-1125 dated June 14, 2011 regarding the Guelph Public
Library Bookmobile Service be received;

AND THAT $120,000 be allocated from the Library Capital Reserve Fund for the
purpose of continuing the bookmobile service until the end of 2011.

3) Discretionary Social Services Funeral Directors Fees Update

THAT Report #CSS-CESS-1115 “Discretionary Social Services Funeral Directors
Fees Update”, dated May 10, 2011 be received;

AND THAT the City funding for 100% municipally-funded discretionary funeral
services be increased by 20% to align with the County of Wellington’s Funeral
Directors Fees funding.

4) Guelph Vision for a Complete Community: A Conversation

Document

THAT the document titled “Guelph Vision for a Complete Community: A
Conversation Document” identified in staff report #CSS-ADM-1122 and dated June
14, 2011, be approved in principle, to be used as a platform for initiating
conversations related to the Guelph Community Well Being Plan.
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5) Public Art Policy

THAT report #CSS-ACE-1121 dated June 14, 2011 regarding the Public Art Policy
for Guelph be approved;

AND THAT the Public Art Policy as attached to this report be approved;
AND THAT the Public Art Reserve Fund be established, with funding to the reserve
for the first three years coming from the allocation of $100,000 of the previous

year’s operating surplus, if a surplus is available;

AND THAT staff be directed to establish a Public Art Committee as a subcommittee
of the Cultural Advisory Committee.

6) Fireworks Permit Request from Pine Ridge East Community

THAT the request from the Pine Ridge East Neighbourhood Association to provide a
fireworks display at Colonial Park on June 30, 2011 be approved subject to the Pine
Ridge East Neighbourhood Association meeting the terms and conditions of the
Guelph Fire Department and City Staff prior to the event;

AND THAT the Pine Ridge East Neighbourhood Association obtains liability coverage
for the event and fireworks in the amount of $5,000,000 with the City of Guelph
named as an additional insured party, and to provide a certificate indicating such
coverage to be submitted to the City of Guelph prior to the event;

AND THAT the City of Guelph accepts no responsibility for any liability that arises
out of granting this permission for use of City property and facilities.
All of which is respectfully submitted.
Councillor Laidlaw, Chair

Community & Social Services Committee

Please bring the material that was distributed with the Agenda for the
June 14, 2011 meeting.



COUNCIL Guelph
REPORT P

Making a Difference

TO Guelph City Council

SERVICE AREA Community and Social Services - Administration & Customer
Service

DATE June 14, 2011

SUBJECT Special Events Coordination & Logistics

REPORT NUMBER  CSS-ACS-1123

SUMMARY
Purpose of Report: To provide Council with information regarding the
operating pressures with event coordination and logistics services.

Council Action: Council consider the recommendation that staff proceed with
operating the services at an expected variance for 2011 and that the special
event coordination and logistics service function be referred to the corporate
service review process for consideration.

RECOMMENDATION

THAT Report# CSS-ACS-1123, titled Special Events Coordination & Logistics, dated
June 14, 2011 be received;

AND THAT staff proceed with operating the special events and logistics functions
with an expected variance of approximately $15,000 to meet current demand;

AND THAT the special events coordination and logistics service function be referred
to the corporate service review process for consideration.

BACKGROUND

Events have been held in the City for decades with the historical practice of having
each service area responsible for coordinating any logistics required for their
particular concern. The City’s evolution to a more formalized special events
coordination process first began in 2007 with the maturity of our outdoor sports
tournaments and the necessary planning and logistical support required behind the
scenes to make these events run smoothly.
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Council first approved funding with 2007 budget for a casual 4 month part time
position which worked 20 hours a week between May - September and helped to
coordinate 170 events that year with the primary focus on events inside a park.

In 2008 this person coordinated 213 events and in 2009, Council approved funding
for a permanent .6FTE part-time employee which coordinated some 250 events
inside our parks.

In 2010 it became evident that our community had transformed their view of where
an event could be held and what a special event is. Special events had evolved
from the traditional festivals and sports tournaments held in our parks to expand on
the public roadways and squares, sidewalks, public buildings and structures to
general public open spaces for films, street walks, races, family picnics, private
weddings, charity fundraisers, themed based events, for profit ventures and many
others. In 2010 we successfully held some 383 events across all public lands.

This change in acceptance from where our community can hold special events is a
good news story which we are proud to highlight. Having both an increase in charity
and private groups requesting the use of our public lands can only strengthen our
neighbourhoods, speaks to the sense of community pride we display in our city as
well as provides some local economic benefits.

However, with this growth and change in scope to holding special events on all
public lands, come pressures in identifying appropriate jurisdiction authorities,
managing insurance and risk mitigation, redefining the service delivery model and
challenging compliance with municipal by-laws and legislation.

REPORT

Special events come in all shapes and sizes. In the absence of any guiding
principles or formal framework staff evaluate every application on the basis of the
activities that will be taking place on city owned public lands. Past practice required
event organizers contact and deal directly with multiple departments for their
respective jurisdictional authority pertaining to any by-law or legislation.

This model may have served well in the past when events were fewer in numbers,
less complex in their activities and traditionally held in designated areas, but with
the change in community usage of our public lands, staff identified the following
deficiencies and gaps;

« Inconsistent or non-existent application of insurance and risk management
methodology putting the city to a potential high liability status,

e Jurisdiction of authority boundaries,

« Conflicting or non-compliance to municipal by-laws,

« Inadequate neighbourhood impact analysis and/or consultation
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To help streamline the process for event organizers and provide a consistent
oversight for all events held on all city owned public lands, a service delivery model
change was made in mid-2010 which introduced a one-window entry point intake
office for all special event applications.

This seemed to have a positive change for event organizers having one point of
contact for all their inquiries and application. However, it soon became evident the
0.6FTE staff resource handling this function was overwhelmed with managing the
growth of events and administering the complexity in the nature of activities being
requested.

The purpose of the special events coordination and logistics function is to facilitate
that all users of our public lands follow appropriate by-laws, health and safety
legislation and to protect the interests of the neighbours, the event organizers,
their attendees, and the City.

To help manage the increased demand for these services for this summer,
management will be authorizing staff overtime to ensure appropriate risk
management and by-law compliance is followed for all events on all public lands.

Furthermore staff recommends that Council consider referring the special events
coordination and logistics functions to the corporate service review process. This
opportunity should allow for a more detailed assessment of all the issues, roles,
responsibilities and expectations and service standards to be address for the long
term.

CORPORATE STRATEGIC PLAN

Goal 2 - A healthy and safe community where life can be lived to the fullest
Goal 4 - A vibrant and valued arts, culture and heritage identity

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

To meet current by-law requirements, ensure appropriate risk management,
maintain current a consistent level of service for all public lands, we anticipate a
forecasted negative year end variance of approximately $15,000 in additional
staffing costs.

DEPARTMENTAL CONSULTATION

Operations & Transit — Parks Maintenance & Development
Operations & Transit - Traffic & Parking

Chief Administrator Office — Downtown Renewal

Chief Administrator Office — Economic Development & Tourism
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COMMUNICATIONS

N/A
ATTACHMENTS
None

/ et Pl
Prepared By: Recommended By:
Peter C. Avgoustis Bob Burchett
Manager, Acting Executive Director
Administration & Customer Service Community and Social Services
519-822-1260 ext. 2594 519-822-1260 ext. 2664
peter.avgoustis@gueph.ca bob.burchett@guelph.ca
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Guelph Public Library
Bookmobile
Service Review




Bookmobile Usage

Over 3,000 regular users

Checked out over 45,000 items

On the road 5 days a week including evenings and
Saturdays

21 weekly stops at:
/ senior residences
4 day care centers
3 afterschool programs
7 other locations i.e. Shelldale Centre



Bookmobile Stops...

The Bookmobile stops in every ward across the
city, with highest usage in neighbourhoods with
large after school programs and senior
residences.

B Ward 1
®Ward 2
B Ward 3
B Ward 4

B \Ward5s

® Ward 6




WOODLAWN RD W

g2
wy
LE AVE W §

N R

Datum: NADBEY
Projection: UTM Zone 17

ALgues 4 I808 (Rascmad Aungaet 1. 2010}

WATER ST

PYEDVALE AVE £

EASTVIEW RD

STONERDE

IRD RD 6
CLAIR RD W

O

i

CLAIR RD E

Guelph

&

i MALTEY RD W

MALTBY RD E

ARKELL RD : !

n GPL Branches

@ Daycares
o Senior Residences
o After-school

© other

@

1:40,000

WARD
1 - East
2 - North
3 - Centre
4 - Wast
5 - University
6 - South




Bookmobile Circulation

Date

2011
Jan - April

2010

Jan - April

2009
Jan - April

ltems
circulated

Circulation
/ month

Change




Review Process

SWOT Analysis with library customers and staff
Community meetings with over 200 people

665 individuals commented on the service

Benchmarking against
Sarnia

Lethbridge
Strathcona County




We looked at the venhicle...

2005 GMC modified van with 37,500 km
Owned and mechanically sound

Garage leased until 2016




We Iinvestigated
alternate revenue sources...

Sponsorship and partnership opportunities

Fundraising event for the Bookmobile

Payroll Deduction Program

Planned Giving Program




Recommendations...

1. As part of the GPL Strategic Plan,
evaluate the Bookmobile service
on an ongoing basis.

2. Develop a new Community
Outreach Department to serve
those who cannot get to the
library.




Recommendations....

3. Test a variety of alternate revenue sources.

4. Continue Bookmobile funding
July — December 2011 at a cost of $120,000.




Keep the Bookmobile on the road




COMMITTEE Guelph
REPORT P

Making a Difference

TO Community and Social Services Committee

SERVICE AREA Community and Social Services - Arts, Culture &
Entertainment Division
DATE June 14, 2011

SUBJECT Bookmobile Service
REPORT NUMBER CSS-ACE-1125

SUMMARY

Purpose of Report: This report provides members of Council with staff’s
response to the report submitted from the Guelph Public Library, entitled Guelph
Public Library Bookmobile Service Review. This staff report recommends the
continuation of the Bookmobile service through the remainder of 2011, with
funding coming from the Library Capital Reserve Fund.

Council Action: To approve the continuation of the Bookmobile Service
provided by the Guelph Public Library through to the end of 2011, and to refer
the Bookmobile service to the 2012 operating budget deliberation process.

RECOMMENDATIONS

THAT report #CSS—-ACE-1125 dated June 14, 2011 regarding the Guelph Public
Library Bookmobile Service be approved;

AND THAT funding in the amount of $120,000 be approved to continue the
operation of the Bookmobile through to the end of 2011;

AND THAT the $120,000 be allocated from the Library Capital Reserve Fund;

AND THAT the future operation of the Bookmobile beyond December 31, 2011 be
referred to the 2012 operating budget deliberation process.

BACKGROUND

As part of the 2011 budget deliberations, Council passed a motion that stated:
THAT the bookmobile be funded for 6 months at a cost of $120,000 during
which time an analysis is completed on the feasibility of continuing this
service.
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The Guelph Public Library undertook a Bookmobile Service Review and the findings
of that review are being presented to the Community and Social Services
Committee on June 14, 2011.

REPORT

After reviewing the report submitted by the Guelph Public Library, Community &
Social Services staff is recommending that funding be approved to continue the
Bookmobile service through to the end of 2011, and the future operation of the
Bookmobile service beyond December 31, 2011 be referred to the 2012 operating
budget deliberation process.

CORPORATE STRATEGIC PLAN

The Guelph Public Library Bookmobile Service supports the following City of Guelph
strategic goals:
2.1 A complete community with services and programs for children, youth
and adults of all ages.
5 Comprehensive life-long learning opportunities
4 Highest per capita use of city libraries, museums and cultural facilities
among any comparable Canadian city.

2.
3.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Funding to continue this service throughout 2011 will come from the Library Capital
Reserve Fund. Finance has reviewed this reserve fund and confirmed that there is
sufficient uncommitted funds available for this activity.

DEPARTMENTAL CONSULTATION
Finance Department
COMMUNICATIONS

Communications regarding the Bookmobile Service will be coordinated through the
Guelph Public Library staff.

ATTACHMENTS
None
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Prepared By:

Colleen Clack

General Manager of Arts, Culture &
Entertainment

519-822-1260 ext. 2588
colleen.clack@guelph.ca

ot

Recommended By:

Bob Burchett

Acting Executive Director
Community & Social Services
519-822-1260 ext. 2664
bob.burchett@guelph.ca
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Tuesday May 24, 2011

Councillor Maggie Laidlaw
City Hall

1 Carden Street,

Guelph, Ontario N1H 3A1

Dear Councillor Laidlaw and the Community and Social Services Committee
Re: Guelph Public Library Bookmobile Service Review

It is our pleasure to present to you the Guelph Public Library Bookmobile Service
Review. The GPL board at its May 17, 2011 meeting made the following motion:

Moved by M. McFadzen seconded by K. Saunders that the Guelph Public Library
Board; accept the GPL Bookmobile Service Review as amended, refer the report
to the Community & Social Services Committee and request they support the
request for $120,000 . The motion was carried unanimously.

For your reading pleasure, a digital copy of the Bookmobile Service Review can be
found at
http://www.library.guelph.on.ca/attachments/Bookmobile Task Force Final Report.pdf

The Guelph Public Library would like to thank The City of Guelph for the opportunity to
do this operational review. We look forward to discussing the report further with you
and the Community and Social Service Committee on Tuesday June 14™.

Sincerely

Alan Pickersgill Kitty Pope

GPL Chair GPL CEO

alan@sentex.net kpope®@library.guelph.on.ca

cc. City Clerk’s Office
Councillor I. Findlay
Ann Pappert, CSS Executive Director


http://www.library.guelph.on.ca/attachments/Bookmobile_Task_Force_Final_Report.pdf
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TRl Library

TO Community & Social Services Committee
DATE Tuesday May 24, 2011
SUBJECT Guelph Public Library

Bookmobile Service Review

SUMMARY
Purpose of Report: To present the findings of the Guelph Public Library
Bookmobile Service Review.

Requested Council Action: The City of Guelph allocates $120,000 to the
Guelph Public Library.

REQUEST
That the Guelph Public Library Bookmobile Service Review dated May 17, 2011 be
accepted by the Community and Social Services Committee and referred to Council.

BACKGROUND

The Guelph Public Library Bookmobile serves library customers who cannot come to
the library: seniors, pre-schoolers and after school program participants. The
bookmobile circulates over 45,000 items per year to its 3,000 members at 21 stops
across the city.

Guelph City Council requested a review of the Guelph Public
Library (GPL) Bookmobile service during the 2011 budget
deliberations. March 22, 2011, the Guelph Public Library
launched a task force to evaluate and draft
recommendations. The review included: SWOT analysis,
focus groups, Town Hall meetings, benchmarking research
and significant public dialogue. The Task Force explored
every avenue to discover new and innovative revenue and
sponsorship opportunities. Over 665 individuals
communicated with the Guelph Public Library and City
Councillors about the Bookmobile service between March
and May 2011 with 92% supporting its continuation.
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The Bookmobile Service Review was accepted by the Guelph Public Library Board May
17, 2011 and forwarded to the City of Guelph Community and Social Services
Committee for their consideration.

REPORT

The Guelph Public Library Board was truly honoured and humbled by the outpouring of
support for the bookmobile. The community is passionate about the service and clearly
sees it as one of the services that make Guelph, uniquely Guelph. Serving those who
cannot get to the library is an essential service of the Guelph Public Library. The issue
for the Board was how GPL could continue to serve this demographic and how will the
service evolve as this population ages and their numbers expand. After careful
deliberation, the GPL Board has concluded that for the next five years, the
Bookmobile is the most effective means to serve lib rary customers who cannot
come to the library.

The Guelph Public Library Board at its May 17, 2011 meeting accepted the following
recommendations:
1. As part of the GPL strategic planning process, r  eview and evaluate the

Bookmobile service, to assess what is the appropria te model to provide
service to those who cannot get to the library.
2. Develop a new Community Outreach Department Plan by June 2016 to
serve those who cannot get to the library.
Test a variety of alternate revenue sources.
4. Continue Bookmobile funding July — December 2011 at a cost of $120,000.

w

and made the following motion:

Moved by M. McFadzen seconded by K. Saunders that the Guelph Public Library
Board; accept the GPL Bookmobile Service Review as amended, refer the report
to the Community & Social Services Committee and request they support the

request for $120,000 . Carried unanimously

The Guelph Public Library would like to thank The City of
Guelph for the opportunity to do this operational review and
to chart a responsible evaluation of the bookmobile service.

Together we are making a difference!

CORPORATE STRATEGIC PLAN

The Guelph Public Library Bookmobile Service Review supports the following City of
Guelph strategic goals:

2.1 A complete community with services and programs for children, youth and adults of
all ages
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2.5 Comprehensive life-long learning opportunities

4.3 Highest per capita use of city libraries, museums and cultural facilities among any
comparable Canadian city.

5.1 The highest municipal customer service satisfaction rating of any comparable sized
Canadian community.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
The Guelph Public Library Board requests the City of Guelph allocate $120,000 to the
Guelph Public Library.

COMMUNICATIONS

See the attached Bookmobile Service Review

Appendix: Newspaper Articles pages 19-26 for a complete listing.
http://www.library.guelph.on.ca/attachments/Bookmobile Task Force Final Report.pdf

ATTACHMENTS
Attached is a print copy of the GPL Bookmobile Service Review

A digital copy of the GPL Bookmobile Service Review is available at:
http://www.library.guelph.on.ca/attachments/Bookmobile Task Force Final

Report.pdf

If you have any questions are require further clarification, do not hesitate to contact me.
| look forward to the opportunity to discuss the report with the Community and Social
Services Committee on June 14" 2011,

Kitty Pope

CEO

Guelph Public Library
519-824-6220 ext 226
kKpope@library.guelph.on.ca
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Guelph Public Library

Bookmobile Service Review

l. Executive Summary

The Guelph Public Library Bookmobile serves library customers who cannot come to
the library: seniors, pre-schoolers and after school program participants. The
bookmobile circulates over 45,000 items per year to its 3,000 members at 21 stops
across the city. Over 665 individuals communicated with the Guelph Public Library and
City Councilors about the Bookmobile service between March and May 2011, with 92%
supporting its continuation.

The Bookmobile Task Force makes the following recommendations:

1. As part of the GPL strategic planning process, the GPL Board will evaluate
the Bookmobile service, to assess what is the appropriate model to provide
service to those who cannot get to the library.

2. Develop a new Community Outreach Department Plan by June 2016 to
serve those who cannot get to the library.

3. Test a variety of alternate revenue sources.

4. Continue Bookmobile funding July — December 2011 at a cost of $120,000.

The Guelph Public Library is truly honored and humbled by the outpouring of support for
the bookmobile service. The community is passionate about the service and clearly
sees it as one of the services that make Guelph, uniquely Guelph.

The Bookmobile Task Force has, after careful deliberation concluded that for the
next five years, the Bookmobile is the most effective means to serve library
customers who cannot come to the library. Additionally, efforts to develop alternate
revenue streams, plus create partnerships and sponsorship opportunities will be actively
pursued.

The Guelph Public Library would like to
thank The City of Guelph for the opportunity
to do this operational review and to chart a
responsible and cost effective evaluation of
the bookmobile service.

Together we are making a difference!




Il. Background History
A. Task Force Process

Guelph City Council requested a review of the Guelph Public Library (GPL)
Bookmobile service during the 2011 budget deliberations. March 22, 2011, the
Guelph Public Library launched a task force consisting of:

¢ Robin Tunney, Director of Branch and Bookmobile Services
e Dan Atkins, Manager , Bullfrog Branch & Bookmobile

e Steven Kraft, Director of Adult Services

e Sharron Turner, Manager, West End Branch

e Lisa Cunningham, Communications Department

e Cathy Mclnnis, Deputy CEO

e Kitty Pope, CEO

to evaluate and draft recommendations . The Bookmobile Task Force report will be
presented to the Guelph Public Library Board May 17, 2011 and then forwarded to
the City of Guelph Community and Social Services Committee for their
consideration. It is the hope of the Task Force that the Bookmobile Service Review
will then be referred to Guelph City Council.

The review process included: SWOT analysis, focus groups, Town Hall meetings,
benchmarking research and significant public dialogue. The Task Force explored
every avenue to discover new and innovative opportunities, including the exploration
of sponsorships and partnerships.

B. Bookmobile Demographics

Guelph Public Library has provided the community with Bookmobile service for over
thirty five years. The current bookmobile has been on the road five days a week
since 2006. In 2010 it checked out over 45,000 items to over 3,000 members at 21
weekly stops. The Bookmobile has 5,000 resources (books, magazines and audio
visual resources) for customers who cannot get to a library. The GPL bookmobile
stops at:

e 7 senior residences

e 4 day care centers

e 3 afterschool programs

e 7 other locations i.e. Shelldale Centre’s new Canadians and English as a Second
Language Learners, after school stops.



The Bookmobile also provides: a “pre-branch test” for growing areas of the city, “on
the spot” library services for special events and a high profile bulletin board to
promote reading and lifelong learning across the city.

BOOKMOBILE CHECKOUTS

Date Items Circulation / Change
circulated | month

2011 Jan-April | 15,359 3,837/month +18%
2010 Jan-April | 13,028 3,257/month +25%
2009 Jan-April | 10,381 2,595/month

Bookmobile Use by Ward

The Bookmobile stops in every ward across the city, with highest usage in the areas
with large after school programs and senior residences. (See Appendix ix for map)

The centrally located Ward One had high levels of bookmobile use in 2010. The stop
on Starwood and Grange was the only library service available to the east end
subdivision prior to May 2010 and was a very successful pilot project for the new East
End Library.

In Ward Two there is a concentration of senior’s residences including: the Elliott,
Riverside Glen and the Guelph Lake Commons. There are over 4,100 seniors in this
area, many with mobility challenges. They make heavy usage of the bookmobile service
and are very vocal about retaining the service.

The Bookmobile's heaviest usage comes in Ward Three which includes the Shelldale
Centre. The Bookmobile stops at several large after school programs including the :
Parent and Child Drop-In program, Play groups, Kindergarten readiness programs, plus
speech assessment and therapy programs for preschool children with language delays.
For this group, the Hanlon Expressway is a barrier to the West End Branch Library and
(as we have heard from many residences) the Main Library is not within walking
distance.

The Bookmobile in Ward Four serves two distinct population groups. The Lutheridge
Seniors Residence and a neighborhood after hours stop at Westwood Public School.
The Bookmobile’s main focus at Westwood is to serve the lower income residents of the
town houses and apartment buildings on Westwood Road. Additionally, in the winter



the Bookmobile serves the children using Westwood Park for recreational purposes
such as tobogganing and skating.

Ward Five Bookmobile stops serve Wellington Park Terrace and the Village by the
Arboretum, which make particularly heavy year around use of the large print and audio
resources on board.

Ward Six is Guelph’s largest ward and has three Bookmobile stops. Downey Road
Plaza serves a large group of library customers who live west of the Hanlon
Expressway. Like in Ward Three, the Hanlon is a barrier to library service. The Downey
Road stop is from 3-5 on Thursdays serving both elementary and day care students,
particularly around Rickson Ridge Public School. Finally, the stop at Arkell Crossings
(Arkell and Victoria) targets the underserved area surrounding the Arkel Plaza which is
currently a pilot project stop.

Percentage of BKM patrons per Ward  Number of BKM checkouts per Ward

mWard1 5841 | \Ward 1

7% = Ward 2 m Ward 2

= Ward 3 m Ward 3

10% mWard4 | \Ward 4
m Ward5 m Ward 5

™ Ward 6 m Ward 6

a. Bookmobile SWOT Analysis
To initiate the review process and talk to community groups, the task force undertook a

SWOT analysis that prioritized the Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and Threats
affecting the Bookmobile Service. The over 50 board members and staff contributing to
the SWOT discussions told us repeatedly that; accessibility and excellent customer
service are the Bookmobile’s greatest strength and hallmark.

Discussions regarding weaknesses focused on internal issues such as parkability and
comfort while opportunities highlighted the ability of the Bookmobile to bring books and
services to those who cannot get to a library. The Focus Groups also recognized the
opportunities the Bookmobile provides for sponsorship and the need to develop a clear
and well-communicated marketing plan. It is not surprising that the major Threat to the
service is a lack of funding and lack of understanding about the service and who it
serves.
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SWOT Analysis Chart

STRENGTHS

WEAKNESSES

OPPORTUNITIES

THREATS

Accessibility. The
Bookmobile extends
customer access to
those who cannot get
to alibrary

The vehicle is
large and difficult
to park.

To reach the
growing Senior
population and
those who cannot
get to alibrary

Lack of stable
funding

Provides excellent
“high touch”
opportunity to
connect face to face
with customers

Non users are
unaware of its
value

A great opportunity
for sponsorships
and partnerships

Poorly understood
service by non users

The Bookmobile is
in good condition
and totally paid for

Operates 27.5
hours per week.
A regular branch
operates 62 hours

Provides “branch
library” in areas
that are expanding
rapidly

Lack of Promotion
signage, public
awareness

Ambassador and
mobile billboard
publicizing the GPL

In cold weather it
is not condusive
to long visits

The GPL
Bookmobile
service is loved
by Guelph!

Vehicle is five years
old

[1l. Bookmobile Research

A. Summary of Community Discussions
The Task Force attended four meetings, three Town Hall meetings and a senior citizen

community meeting attended by over 200 people. The Task Force did a SWOT Analysis
at four meeting and asked the following questions:

1. Does the bookmobile serve the correct audience with the correct collection?

2. Are the hours of operation appropriate?

3. How can we make the service more cost-effective and still serve those who
cannot get to a library?
4. Who would be most affected should the Bookmobile service be discontinued?

At the meetings participants were particularly concerned about continuation of the
service but also the possibility of expanding the service and the Bookmobile collections.




The Task Force also attended three Town Hall Meetings. On March 30™ Ward One
Councillors Furfaro and Bell invited the library CEO to discuss the Bookmobile and
answer questions. The audience of over 75 people was interested in the usage and
location of bookmobile stops in the ward and the resources carried on the bookmobile.

The Ward Two Town Hall meetings were held during April by Councillors Finlay and
Van Hellemond at the Elliott and the Guelph Lake Commons Retirement Living. (See
Appendix ii: Newspaper Articles for details) Approximately 90 people attended the
Ward Two meetings. The majority of the audiences were senior citizens but a few
residents from the community and Guelph Public Library staff were also there. They
asked questions about the library budget, usage and collection. For many, immobility
has made it impossible to walk in a park and they no longer have the need of bike lanes
however, the Bookmobile is the one city service they use. They clearly articulated the
hope that their Councilors will support the bookmobile.

The Guelph Mercury and Guelph Tribune’s coverage of the bookmobile has been
overwhelmingly positive. The Mercury printed a number of letters to the editor about
how the Bookmobile service has affected people’s lives and of the importance of this
crucial service.

The overwhelming response from the community illustrates the negative impact that the
discontinuation of Bookmobile service would have.

e 305 comments were received on the Guelph Public Library’s on-line survey
e 92 % of the comments were in favour of continuing the service
e 8 % were either undecided or not in favour of continuing the service

The GPL also received three petitions signed by a total of 166 people:

e The Elliott Community 56 signatures
e Guelph Lake Commons Retirement Living 54 signatures
e St. Joseph’s Health Centre 56 signatures

GPL and City Councillors received 41 emails from Guelph residents about the
bookmobile service and there were 16 letters sent from the residents of the Village by
the Arboretum. Each email or letter was individually responded to, with over 90%
passionate about retaining the service. Over 950 children assembled and decorated
bookmobile cut-outs at the six library branches and on the bookmobile to show their
support of the service. GPL also received 43 letters/drawings/posters from the Shelldale
Centre and the Kensington Daycare illustrating what the Bookmobile service means to
them. (See Appendix iii: Community Comments/Surveys for details).



We also received hundreds and hundreds of comments from our customers expressing
their concern and support for the service. Many said they had not used the bookmobile,
but when they need it, they want to know it will be there in the future. Other customers
shared stories about how it significantly improved the lives of their parents or children.
They were passionate about how the Bookmobile makes Guelph a better place to live!

In total over 665 individuals commented about the Bookmobile service between March
and May 2011.

B. Summary of Benchmarking

A Bookmobile Benchmarking Survey (see attached Appendix iv) was developed to
collect comparative information about bookmobile services across Canada. Libraries
surveyed included:

e Sarnia Public Library in Lambton County, Ontario
e Lethbridge Public Library in southern Alberta
e Strathcona County Library in Northern Alberta.

Sarnia and Lethbridge bookmobile services were selected because they have a similar
population base to Guelph. Strathcona was selected because they recently acquired a
new Bookmobile which gives them a unique perspective. The Benchmark Average **
listed on the following chart is the total statistic from the three benchmark libraries
divided by three to reveal an average.




Bookmobile Service Comparisons

Guelph Benchmark Notes
Average**
Population served 123,000 82,487
Service area Urban Urban, County | Strathcona predominately rural
service and rural service

Area served 87 Km 518 Km Covers County service

Bookmobile budget $238,600 N/A GPL bookmobile 3% of library budget

Resources 5,000 4,054 Includes books, magazines and av

Hours of operation 1,400 986 Per year

Stops per week 21 13 GPL also has 2 biweekly stops

Evening stops per 4 1.8

week

Saturday stops 3 0 Per week

Types of stops

Senior 30% 3%

Day cares 30% 6 % 1 of the 3 bookmobiles visit daycares

Schools 0% 18 %

Community 40% 73% GPL community stops are at schools
in the evening not during school hours

Circulation/year 46,665 42 678

Circulation/hour 35 43 GPL averages lower /hour circulation
because it is open 414 hours longer
lyear

Staff 25FTE 2FTE GPL has 7 more stops /week and
operates evenings and weekends

Vehicle

Size 35 ft 38 ft All designed for bookmobile purposes

Km/year 10,000 12,600

Mileage 11 11 11 miles/gallon or 22 liters/100km
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Benchmarking Summary

Every bookmobile service is unique, however:

e The Strathcona bookmobile travels over 22,000 Km per year in a new vehicle
and most stops are rural while the Lethbridge serves a rural and urban area.
Both Guelph and Sarnia bookmobiles serve urban communities.

¢ All of the bookmobiles have a computerized library circulation system on board
but Lethbridge is networked live to the library catalogue. Guelph currently has a
“pilot project” to provide on-line live service.

e Guelph and Strathcona sponsor Bookmobile programs and special events. Story
times and summer programs are offered but Guelph also offers senior programs
in the form of outside cafes, lectures and book talks.

e Strathcona intends to keep their Bookmobile service. Sarnia and Lethbridge are
researching alternate models such as small storefront branches and mall kiosks.

Areas where GPL Bookmobile service excels:
1. Provides Bookmobile service; days, evenings and weekends.

2. Provides Bookmobile programs and special events, that actively promote a
healthy lifestyle and lifelong learning

3. Provides Bookmobile service to “at risk” neighbourhoods and to those with
mobility issues that prevent them from visiting a branch library.

Areas where the GPL Bookmobile service can improve:

1. Provide “live” on-line service to the library catalogue. This is more efficient and
provides better real time service to customers.

2. Provide the public access to the internet / WiFi on the Bookmobile.

3. Search out new sources for funding, sponsorship and partnerships.

KEY ISSUES

A. The Vehicle

e The Bookmobile was purchased through an insurance claim on December 14,
2005 for $212,223. It is completely paid for.
e The Bookmobile is 5 years old; has 37,500 kms and gets 11 miles/gallon.

11



e Guelph Public Works Department has certified that the Bookmobile is
mechanically sound (barring unforeseen circumstances) for 5 years, to June
2016. (See Appendix vii: PW Vehicle Evaluation for Details)

« This highly modified vehicle, a 2005 GMC C6500 will be difficult to sell.

Bookmobiles, when they do sell — garner less than 32% of fair market value (See
Appendix v: Bookmobiles for Sale) The GPL Bookmobile world likely get no more
than $22,000 if sold.

e The Bookmobile garage is currently leased until June 2016.

¢ The Bookmobile provides a fully paid for billboard. The cost of this type of
advertising is $2,500/month. (See Appendix vi: Billboard Cost)

Even if the bookmobile service was cancelled as of June 30, 2011 there would be
ongoing expenses of $40,700 (See Appendix re Coasting pages 40-41) to cover staff
layoffs, housing and selling the vehicle.

B Alternate Revenue Sources
The Bookmobile Task Force also investigated alternate revenue sources and

sponsorship opportunities that would provide additional support for the service. The
Task Force is offering a variety of sponsorship opportunities, including:

e Sponsoring 1 bookmobile stop per week at $10,000/year
e Supporting the bookmobile collections by purchasing a 200 volume collection of:
picture book, large print or audio books at a cost of $4,800 - $9,000/year.

They contacted the following; corporations, service groups and agencies to explore
possible sponsorships and/or partnership opportunities:

large local corporations
Royal City Lions Club
Rotary Club of Guelph
Meals on Wheels
Guelph Mobility
Guelph Transit

The results of these discussions are very encouraging. The Task Force is currently in
dialogue with two large local corporations who are active community supporters who
have encouraged GPL to draft official requests for their consideration.

The Royal City Lions Club and the Rotary Club of Guelph were also optimistic in regard
to sponsoring special programs on the GPL Bookmobile. The fiscal year for both of
these service groups begins July 1% at which time the Task Force will pursue
sponsorship opportunities.
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The other community organizations the Task Force approached were unable to commit
any funds to the Bookmobile for the foreseeable future. They did however, express
their sincere interest in the project and a willingness to consider partnership
opportunities in the future. The Task Force will continue to look for and work with
potential Bookmobile partners.

V. RECOMMENDATIONS AND ACTION PLAN 2011-2016

Based on the SWOT Analysis, the economic realities of 2011 and dialogue with the
community, the following recommendations are:

The Bookmobile Task Force makes the following recommendations:

1.

13

As part of the GPL strategic planning process, review and evaluate the
Bookmobile service, to assess what is the appropriate model to provide
service to those who cannot get to the library. The current economic climate
makes the sale of this unique, highly modified vehicle at fair market value very
unlikely.

e The Bookmobile is fully paid for and has been evaluated by Guelph Public
Works Mechanics to have a life expectancy of five years (barring unforeseen
issues).

e The lease on the Bookmobile garage expires in June 2016

. Develop a new Community Outreach Department Plan by June 2016 to

serve those who cannot get to the library.

The new service model will: facilitate outreach to senior residences, daycare
centers and community centers with on-site library facilities. Staff will coordinate:
on-site library services volunteer training and test a home delivery service for the
home bound.

Test a variety of alternate revenue sources.

Fundamental to exploring alternate revenue is hiring a Fund Development
Coordinator to establish a variety of revenue generating programs.

¢ Planned Giving Program to facilitate the transfer of funds to GPL from wills
and estates. This is a long term project but GPL will start the process by
talking to tax and estate lawyers.

e Test a Payroll Deduction Program whereby employees can make a regular
donation (i.e. $5 / month) to GPL that is automatically deducted from their
pay. (i.e. the PDP established by the Collingwood Public Library )



e Test alternate revenue sources such as: rental of library meeting
rooms, advertising on the website, developing appropriate “sell through”
products

e Develop an annual fund raising event for the bookmobile.

4. Continue Bookmobile funding July — December 2011 at a cost of $120,000.

VI Summary

The Guelph Public Library is truly honoured and humbled by the outpouring of support
for the bookmobile service. The community is passionate about the bookmobile service
and clearly sees it as one of the unique things that make Guelph, Guelph.

The Bookmobile Task Force has concluded that for the next five years, the Bookmobile
is the most effective means to serve customers who cannot come to the library. The
Bookmobile is paid for, let’s use it until it is no longer serviceable, we have our money’s
worth out of it and then migrate to a new service model. We expect this to be in June
2016.

As a result of the Bookmobile Service Review, the Guelph Public Library will: evacuate
the bookmobile service as part of the strategic planning process, develop a new
department to serve those who cannot get to the library. The Board also requests
$120,000 from the City of Guelph to continue the service for the period of June to
December of 2011 and will include the Bookmobile service in the annual GPL budget
2012-2016. Efforts to generate alternate revenue
sources plus create partnerships and sponsorship
opportunities will be actively pursued.

The Guelph Public Library would like to thank the
City of Guelph for the opportunity to do this
operational review and to chart a responsible and
effective future for the Bookmobile service.

Together we are making a difference!
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APPENDICIES

Appendix i: SWOT Analysis

SWOT with BKM Task Force 3 March 2011@ WSB

Present: The BKM Task Force: Dan Atkins, Lisa Cunningham, Steve Kraft, Robin
Tunney, Sharron Turner. Visitors-Tom Brenndorfer, Cathy Taylor

Internal Factors

Strengths

Weaknesses

1. Fulfills mission statement to provide
equal service to all Guelph residents

1.Size of vehicle limits where it can be
stationed

2.Ambassador for library providing
outreach

2.Low financial return if sold- depreciated

3.Multi-service, not just delivery

3.Not green

4 versatile and flexible because of mobility

3.No service to business

Bookmobile is paid off

3.limited online service- not live on Polaris

Wheel chair accessible

Not combined with outreach

A community centre

Expensive maintenance

Attractive vehicle

High cost to circulate per book

Limited open hours-travel time, closed
Fridays

High rent on garage

External

Factors

Opportunities

Threats

1.A growing aged population

1.Easy target to eliminate, depriving the
most vulnerable Guelph residents of
service

2.Connect with underserved areas &
marginalized people

2 .Branch Libraries drive bookmobile out of
neighbourhoods.

3. Service to newly developed areas,
quickly

3.General perception that bookmobile is
dated and unable to provide good service

Cheaper to run than a branch

More tech savvy people wanting E-
resources

Can target specific groups

Key Issues

1. Not combined with Outreach which would increase its function and role

2. Off road on Fridays and would be available to be used in promoting itself and the

library at other events.
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SWOT with BKM Task Force

7 March 2011@ WSB

Present: The BKM Task Force- Dan Atkins, Steve Kraft, Robin Tunney,

Bookmobile/Bullfrog Branch Staff

Internal Factors

Strengths

Weaknesses

1.A mobile billboard, advertising the library

1.0nly vehicle of its type in existence

2.Provides personalized customer service

2.Takes time to establish new stops
(signage an issue)

3.Multi-service, not just delivery

2.Not on Polaris (ILS)

3.Friendly, knowledgeable VERY
PASSIONATE Staff

2.Excluded from Summer Reading Club

3.Most up-to-date collection in GPL

3.Inconsistency due to maintenance

Provides limited programming

Limited by size and safety issues

Weather —both a driving issue and a
circulation issue

External

Factors

Opportunities

Threats

1.Able to promote the library at events:
Canada Day; Ribfest etc.

1.Staff, board members, and city council
are uneducated as to extent of BKM
services

2.Reaches the vulnerable

2 Vulnerable to the economy

3. A flexible, mobile branch

3.Weather

A small (unthreatening) environment

Key Issues

1. The potential to promote the GLP at all city events

2. Staff feels that city councillors, the library board and the GPL staff are ignorant of the

service that the bookmobile provides

3. Staff feels the economy is a real threat to the bookmobile
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SWOT with BKM Task Force

8 March 2011@ MBA

Present: The BKM Task Force- Dan Atkins, Steve Kraft, Robin Tunney, Sharron Turner

Branch Managers: Barb Baxter, Nancy Clark, Glenda Duffin, Colleen Lipp

Internal Factors

Strengths

Weaknesses

1.Mobility (all aspects- flexible locations,
billboard)

1.GPL staff need to be educated about
BKM service

2.Dynamic staff

2 Limited Collection re: size of vehicle

3.Fresh collection

3. Underused outreach

3.0wn the vehicle and in good mechanical
condition

4. Misunderstood service

External Factors

Opportunities

Threats

1.Partnerships

1.No access to ILS (Polaris)

2. Special Events (Multi-cultural festival
etc.)

2 Vulnerable to the economy (City Council)

3. Outreach for other services (shut-ins; e-
books, genealogy)

3.Lack of promotion in (signage, public
awareness)

Key Issues

1. The potential to promote the GLP at all city events

2. City councillors, the library board and the GPL staff are ignorant of the services that

the bookmobile provides

3. The economy is a real threat to the bookmobile and promotion of our services could

eliminate this threats.
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SWOT with BKM Task Force
15 March 2011@ Main Library

Present: The Bookmobile Task Force- Dan Atkins, Steve Kraft, Robin Tunney, Sharron
Turner, Cathy Mclnnis, Kitty Pope, Library Board Members

Internal Factors

Strengths Weaknesses

1.Serves growing areas; gives pre-branch | 1.Costly vehicle (mechanically)
test

2.”High Touch” opportunity. Really loved! 2.Labour intensive service model

3.Community Builder 3. Not understood by non users

External Factors

Opportunities Threats
1.0Outreach (special community events) 1.Vulnerable to economy (City Council)
2. Branding (mobile billboard) 2.Perception that people don'’t read

“‘REAL” books
3. Sponsorships/partnerships (Lion’s, 3.Uniformed/Outdated information about
Rotary) BKM

Key Issues
1. The Bookmobile is a community builder in growing areas of Guelph.

2. Lack of up-to-date information within the community and among City Councilors
about the Bookmobile makes it vulnerable to the economy.

3. The Bookmobile’s provides branding opportunity at events and festivals.
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Bookmobile service under scrutiny

Scott staff

and Thursday at Guelph Lake C on

GUELPH — A pair of town hall meetings
this week for Ward 2 residents will largely
focus on the future of the Guelph Public Li-
brary’s Bookmobile service.

The meetings will be held at two retire-
ment homes where residents have been vo-
cal in their opposition to a suggestion to take
the mobile lending service off the road to
save money.

“A lot of these residents don't have the
same mobility as other residents do, so I
thought we would bring the town hall to
them,” explained Ward 2 councillor Ian
Findlay, who organized the meetings.

The meetings will be held Wednesday at

Victoria Road North. Both meetings start at
7 pm. and are expected to run a couple of
hours.

Findlay said his north-end ward has “a
high concentration of seniors” who have ex-
pressed “a lot of support” for the Bookmo-
bile.

Chief librarian Kitty Pope and other li-
brary staff will be on hand to collect feed-
back and answer questions.

Pope said yesterday she has received a
petition signed by 108 residents of Guelph

“A lot of these residents
don’t have the same
mobility as other residents do.”

IAN FINDLAY
WARD 2 COUNCILLOR

they really value,” Findlay’s fellow Ward 2
councillor; Andy Van Hell d, said of the

A report will then go to the community
and social services committee in June “and
then we’re hoping city council will approve

ofthe year,

Pope said, adding councillors will also see a

cost of the service.

Findlay said given the level of feedback
since budget night about proposals to scrap
the Bookmobile service, he would not be sur-
prised if the town hall meetings draw a wide

Lake Commons and aletter signed by 39 resi-
dents of the Elliott.

“They are both huge users of the Bookmo-
bile,” shesaid

the Ellintt Community on Metcalfe Street

“Their main concern is losing something

During budget deliberations, councillors
approved just half of the $240,000 annual cost
‘of running the service. A service review is
underway and staff will report back to the
library board.

“Everyone is welcome,” he said. “I re-
present Ward 2 and it's my job to put these
meetings on, but certainly any city resident
is welcome to come.”

stracey@guelphmercury.com

Guelph Mercury [l Thursday, March 24,2011 | A
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Bookmobile benefits outweigh expense

'y mother had four children fairly

close in age. To say she had her hands,

full would be an understatement so
it’s not swrprising that family outings when
we were younger were somewhat of arare
occurrence. Bringing all four of us out to pub-
lic places was likely more of a hassle than it
was worth. Werarely went to restaurants or to
the movies or anywhere else where we might
disrupt other people. However, one place my
mother did take us regularly was the Guelph
Public Library’s Bookmobile.

Once a week after dinner we would make
the 10-minute walk with our books in tow to
the large book-filled bus parked at the nearby
school. I remember struggling to climb the
huge steps leading up into the library on
wheels and staring down the aisle at the large
number of books staff managed to cram into
such a small space.  was always satisfied with
the selection, but that could also be because I
had stepped into an actual library only a hand-
ful of times.

My two brothers also enjoyed the trips to
the Bookmobile. Although instead of picking
out books, they preferred to spend their time
jumping up and down on the floor trying to
shift the weight of the bus. Ifound this rather
annoying. The constant rocking made my
book search difficult, especially when the odd
novel would come tumbling off the shelf. But
the staff person never seemed to mind. He or
she would just sit quietly behind the desk at
the back of the bus and wait patiently for the
five of us to check out our books.

DEIRDRE HEALEY
born and raised

My mom was always quick to seek out these
enormously fat hardcover novels for herself
before helping my younger sister choose hers.
I, on the other hand, was left to domy own
picking. When we first started going I would
peruse the children’s section in search of the
Little Miss and Mr: Men book series. Then I
moved on to slightly more mature plots — if
stories about cheerleading, dating and high
school can be considered mature —and would
check out books from the Sweet Valley High
series. Eventually my taste in books became a
bitdark and I graduated to reading horror
novels and anything written by V.C. Andrews.

Thanks to the beloved Bookmobile, I had
the opportunity toread a variety of books
during my childhood. It was in that cramped
bus that I was able to feed my enthusiasm for
reading. I can honestly say I would never have
been such an avid reader if it weren’t for my
mother taking me to the Bookmobile.

The Bookmobile has been travelling
around the city for the past 35 years, but recent
funding cuts have jeopardized its continued
service. The library has managed to secure
enough p:é'ney tokeep it running for the next

six months, but its future is unknown. It’s
estimated that about 3,000 people, mostly
seniors, are currently using the service. One
argument for shutting it down is there are no
enough library branches scattered through-
out the city that people no longer require hav-
ing the books brought to their neighbourhooc
But what about the people who don’tlive
near a library, are unable to access transportz
tion to gettoalibrary or who have four kids

‘and find the idea of piling them all into the cai

and letting them run loose in a huge library
somewhat daunting?

Obviously, keeping the Bookmobile run-
ning would be for the minority. But shutting i
down could mean taking away the simple
pleasure of reading for that minority. For som
seniors, books are one of their few enjoyment
and being able to check out books from the
Bookmobile is an affordable and easy thing tc
do. For others, having access to library books
at the Bookmobile helps keep their minds
active and enables them to maintain a level of
independence. And although a majority of
Bookmobile users are seniors, I am sure ther
are still families with young children making
weekly treks to the Bookmobile like my famil
did more than 20 years ago. Idon’t think we
should deprive these kids of the chance to
explore the world of books, even if they may b
reading Sweet Valley High novels, or today’s
equivalent —the Twilight series.

Deirdre Healey is a local writer and commu-
nications specialist.



Bookmobile
service

gets strong
backing

at meeting

Joanne Shuttleworth,
Mercury staff

GUELPH — The folks who
came to a Ward 2 Town Hall
meeting Wednesday evening
made it very clear where they
stand on the bookmobile.

“This is something that
Guelph has that other commu-
nities don’t have,” said Penny
Dryburgh. “It’s such a wonder-
ful service. Don’t getrid of it.”

She was born in Guelph and
now lives in Burlington butshe
intends tomove back to Guelph
oneday andstillhasfamilyand
friends in the city.

“I'm hearing the stories
these people are telling you of
how important the bookmobile
is to them. It would be such a
loss. And generally speaking,
once something is lost, you
never get it back again,” Dry-
burgh said.

Ward 2 councillorsIan Find-
lay and Andy Van Hellemond
hosted the meeting, at The El-
liott Community on Metcalfe
Street. !

> SEE LIBRARY ON PAGE A6

ocal
Chief librarian
‘buoyed’

by support

> LIBRARY FROM PAGE A1

Councillors June Hofland, Jim Furfaro and
Cam Guthrie were also in attendance along with
some 50 people.

Findlay introduced Kitty Pope, chieflibrarian,
who explained that city council has directed li-
brary staffto study the cost of operating the book-
mobile and look for efficiencies.

Funding for the bookmobile has been cut as of
June, but a strong report could sway council and
see funding restored. Residents of the Elliott de-
livered a petition with nearly 50 names in support
of continuing funding. A survey on the library’s
website indicates 85 per cent of citizens support
the bookmobile too, Pope said.

People at the meeting spoke passionately
about how important it is to have books to read
and for the books to be delivered to them. Many
were in wheelchairs or used walkers and don’t
drive anymore.

“I’know,” Pope said. “People who don’t use the
service themselves don’tsee the value. But Iknow
you value it. You are the folks who read a book a
day.” :

Findlay said library staff had been “scram-

bling” to get the service review done before the
funding runs out.
. “We are just asking for a review,” Van Helle-
mond added. “I don’t think it will be a problem
keeping it going, in my point of view. I know how
valuable it is to you.”

Pope said she is buoyed by the response from
the community.

“It’s such an essential part of people’s lives,”
she said. “Council is listening and I find that en-
couraging. This is our opportunity to make the
case.”

A second town hall meeting will be held Thurs-
day night at 7 p.m. at Guelph Lake Commons, on
Victoria Road North. Y

Some facts about the bookmobile: :
e Tt costs $240,000 annually to operate; serves
3,000 users; employs 2.5 staff; operates like a
branch library.
® It carries some 5,000 different materials, in-
cluding books, videos, audio books and e-books.

e The clientele is mainly seniors, preschoolers
and daycare centres, and new subdivisions with
nolibrary branch.
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Users urged to voice
thoughts in campaign
to save Bookmobile

Thana Dharmarajah, Mercury staff

GUELPH — The Guelph Public Li-
brary’s Bookmobile service is strug-
gling to stay afloat as it has lost half of
its funding for 2011.

The library’s chief executive offi-
cer Kitty Pope said earlier this month
during city council’s budget discus-
sions the Bookmobile was about to be
scrapped butmanaged to secure fund-
ing for another six months.

The Guelph Public Library Board
is currently performing a service re-
view of the Bookmobile services,
which have been provided in the city
for the last 35 years. Locations of the
Bookmobile’'s19stopsarelisted onthe
library’s website.

“It is essentially for those who
can’t get to us,” Pope said, adding
those included seniors, daycare staff
and communities where there aren’t
library services. “People say we've
got good bus service... a senior with a
walker has a pretty hard time getting
onabus.”

Notices in the library’s main
branch urge residents to voice their
thoughts on the Bookmobile to city
councillors, media and non-profit or-
ganizations.

Pone said the Bookmobile will also

March 30.

She hopes to head to council in
June with a plan on how to make the
service efficient, while serving the
city’sresidents.

The Bookmobile services affect
about3,0001ibrary patrons, Popesaid.

“For a senior citizen in a (seniors’)
residence, this is their last link to a
life they used to have,” she said.

The Friends of the Guelph Public
Library have assisted the library by
providing $1,000 as a grant to help
fund the review of the Bookmobile.

“It is such a short-sighted target ...
tolook atfor finding money,” Virginia
Gillham, chair of the library friends
group, said. “Itis the most vulnerable
clientele.”

City councillor Leanne Piper said
that through the review of the Book-
mobile service, the city will hopefully
hear the stories of those who use the
mobile library.

“We don’t see the impact,” she
said. “When those stories start to
come out, you realize this is a service
that has an amazing impact on indi-
vidual lives.”

Piper said she sees the need for the
Bookmobile and believes studying
what other communities are doing
will be beneficial.
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a short walk around the corner to
June Avenue School where the
bookmobile is parked. They come
home with a new batch of books
and videos.
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Save the city’s bookmobile

Iwas extremely disappointed to read about
Coun. Gloria Kovach’s recent budget motion
to stop funding the Guelph Public Library
bookmobile. Bookmobiles serve citizens who,
./ for a variety of reasons, have limited access to
transportation, entertainment and research
tools — seniors, low-income families and the
differently abled, just to name a few. And sim-
ply dispensing with what Coun. Leanne Piper
insightfully referred to as this “travelling
ambassador for the library system” would be a
disservice and an insult to those patrons.
Beyond this obvious point, it behooves us
to consider the role of city council in relation
to the autonomy of the library. I recognize
council’s obligation to balance the budget,
« but the motion targeting the bookmobile is

expense of citizens who, in many cases,
struggle to be heard in public debate. It's a
motion to interfere with how the library

more than an effort to save money at the -

serves. I am surprised to hear that the coun-
cillor considers herself qualified to interfere
in this way, and I worry that were such a
motion passed, Guelph would be setting-a
dangerous precedent.

Libraries are among the last arbiters of
democratic information, and the bookmo-
bile is evidence of that democracy at work in
Guelph. Libraries are supposed to be for all
citizens, and I applaud the GPLs ongoing
efforts to serve patrons whose physical, geo-
graphical or socio-economic challenges
might otherwise stand in the way of their
access to all of the library’s resources.

1 encourage council to take seriously the
expertise of the librarians working to achieve
a sustainable future for this invaluable pub-
lic service.

Suzanne Rintoul
Guelph



Library bookmobile given
a reprieve of four months

Council has decided to fund the public
library’s bookmobile for four more months,
and then look again at whether the service
should continue.

The library started a review of the book-
mobile service last month, but the review
isn't finished yet, said chief librarian Kitty
Pope.

Coun. Gloria Kovach’s motion to stop
funding the bookmobile service was defeat-
ed 7-6 on Wednesday night. However, Coun.
Bob Bell’s later motion to fund it for four
more months passed 7-6.

The bookmobile, which Pope said is used
mostly by seniors, costs $238,000 a year to
operate Its staff — the full-time equivalent of

2 1 jobs — would be laid off if the bookmo-

. bile is grounded, she said.

Bell said the bookmobile isn't needed so
much anymore, with library branches now in
all areas of the city and the Internet supply-

~ ing so much information to people’s homes.

24

The library budget is “substantial because of
all the branch locations, and I think the
bookmobile should go,” he said.

However, other councillors defended the
bookmobile. “It's a well-used and well-loved
service in this city,” said Coun. Maggie Laid-
law.

“This is a travelling ambassador for the
library system,” said Coun. Leanne Piper.

The 11brary asked council for $7.8 million

in 2011 — a 9.3% budget increase, partly
caused by the cost of operating the new east
end branch.

A motion by Coun. Cam Guthrie to freeze
the library budget at 2010 levels, except for
contractual obligations and the extra cost of
running the east end branch, was defeated 9-
4. :

However, council did vote to axe two pro-
posed new full-time jobs at the library — a
marketing and communications coordinator
and a computer network engineer.

However, three new half-time jobs to
boost evening staffing at the Bullfrog Mall,
Scottsdale and West End branches were
approved when Guthrie’s motion to axe
them lost on a 6-6 tie vote, with Piper tempo-
rary out of the council chamber.

These three branches currently have only
one adult and one teenager on duty from 5

- p.m. to 8 p.m., which Pope said she consid-

ered a “health and safety” issue.

‘Guthrie's motion to add $25,000 to library
revenues by increasing late fees by 10 per
cent was approved on an 8-5 vote.

Although the library now gets $250,000 a
year from late fees, these fines are not
intended as a revenue generator or as a way

o “penalize” library users, Pope said. She
said the intent of late fees is to “get stuff
back” so that other people can borrow books
and other library items.




25



hink that when you have children of your
n, it isnatural to reflect on your own
ildhood experiences and compare that to
p riences of your own children.
se things that I enjoyed most while
gup are things I try torecreate for my

lgrew up in the Hadati Road townhouse
omplex off of Victoria Road, and this complex
rything thatI would have wanted
gupasa child.
were many other kids living in this
lex, so chances were that within 100 yards
were anumber of other kids ready and
ing at any time to play.

- It was always very clear to us where our
ies were. We could not go outside of
s townhouse complex without permission,

ent calling their little ones home for din-
could be heard throughout the entire com-
and when it started to get dark, that was
s;gn the hide-and-seek game was over and
s time to call ita day. .

~ Wehad our very own play structure and
swings — shared with the other kids of the

nplex—and we had “the biggest” pool and
rink available to us, since the Victor Davis

ereation Centre was right across the road.
My parents were always giving my sister
change so that we could go swimming or
ting and we spent many summer after-
s splashing around in the pool with our
ends.
My memories are very fond of my child-
100d —dancing in rain showers, putting on
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SUSAN FARRELLY
community
editorial board

backyard theatre productions, riding my Big
Wheel, enjoying our pets, playing Atari games
and laughing. Lots of laughing.

Another favourite past-time was visiting
the Bookmobile when it came for its weekly
scheduled visit to the Victor Davis Recreation
Centre. This used to be the highlight of my
week.

Werarely visited any of the publiclibraries
while growing up — the Bookmobile was my
publiclibrary.

Many of my classmates at that age wanted
to be teachers when they grew up, but not me. I

. wanted to work in the Bookmobile. I wanted to

be the one driving the book bus and using the
stamper to check out books.

I would spend large amounts of time perus-
ing the books on the shelf, fondling the spines,
smelling the freshly printed paper and would
take stock of whatbooks were added tothe ~
selection since last week. Iloved everything
about the Bookmaobile.

My sister ended up being the one who
worked at the Guelph Public Library and actu-
ally worked in the coveted Bookmobile once in
awhile. I was not secretive about my dream to
work in the Bookmobile so this became a point

\

Guelph Mercury | Tuesday, March1,2011 | A2

I siobile visit highlight of week growing up

ofteasing between us as I could hardly hide my
envy as a young adult.

Inever did realize this childhood dream of
mine, but one thing was certain . .. my love of
literature took hold in those early days.

I often take my own children to various
libraries now and they thoroughly enjoy these
visits.

We even visited the Bookmobile, and they
thought that was very exciting. Thad not been
in the Bookmobile since I was a child, and I
was surprised at howmuch smaller it seemed.

Asachild, Iremember it beinglarger than
life. Itlooked a little different after all of those
years, but I still felt like this was true home
library.

The reality is that even a few shelves of
books are all that is needed to inspire and
engage. : ;

It is important to realize that not everyone
can get to our public libraries on their own —
especially children. The Bookmobile offers a
very important service in our community and
this should not be underestimated.

So, along with making sure my children
have visited the Bookmobile, they skate and
swim at local recreation centres, they enjoy
their pets, they play the Wii.

We doneed to work on dancing iri the rain
and backyard theatre productions, though.
Plus, does anyone know where I can find a Big
‘Wheel these days?

Susan Farrelly is a member of the Guelph
Mercury Community Editorial Board.




Appendix iii: Community Comments

Bookmobile services continued: yes
Postal Code: N1IE2W5

bellandhume@gmail.com Says:

the bookmobile provides a great service. My 95 year old grandmother feels isolated
since service has been cancelled to her senior's housing building at 130 Grange street.
Cut the raise to the mayor and the councilors in order to restore and increase
bookmobile service. karen bell robin hume

Bookmobile services continued: yes
Postal Code:

Says:

| grew up in the 'lower-income' side of Guelph in the 90's (Willow west- Dawson area).
My parents were always busy working and had no car so heading to the downtown
Guelph Library wasn't always feasible. | remember always looking forward to
afterschool on Mondays as the bookmobile would come. | believe the bookmobile is one
of the main ports to my education success and love for learning - I'm currently a
Master's student at the University of Guelph. It taught me how to be responsible at a
young age(keeping my library card safe and return books by the due date), but most
importantly, the books | was able to sign out and read served as a gateway to imagine
and dream of great things. Please keep the bookmobile running in Guelph to enrich the
minds of all young children in Guelph - they are our future too.

Bookmobile services continued: yes
Postal Code: N1H 6W5

jenhillen@gmail.com Says:

As an Early Childhood Educator at a local child care centre, | have the honour of
encouraging a love of books and reading with young children. | feel strongly about both
literacy and the importance of the crucial first years in child development. If a love for
reading can be developed at this time, it can set the stage for a lifelong appreciation of
literacy. As Dr.Seuss said in "I Can Read with My Eyes Shut!" “The more you read, the
more things you will know. The more that you learn the more places you'll go.” The
children in the group | am currently teaching are older (5- and 6-year olds) and can
easily get bored or feel they are being treated as babies in a daycare environment. We
have recently started walking to the Bookmobile every week. Every child is excited to
choose a book and then we read all of the books all week long. There is a genuine
excitement to read together. The children all know Trish and are happy to see her. Trish
has also noticed the enthusiasm of the children. The excitement and enthusiasm comes
from being out in the community and having control over the books they reading. This
opportunity will be taken from us without the bookmobile. | know eight children and one
teacher who will be very disappointed.
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From: Jan,Findlav@auelph.ca [mailto:lan.Findlay@quelph.ca]
Sent: April 3, 2011 8:40 AM

To: tichecker@rogers.com
Cc: Pope, Kitty
Subject: RE: Save The Bookmobile

Thanks for your words of support for the Bookmobile.

1 will pass them along to the Chief Librarian to be attached to the public comments portion of the service
review.

Cheers,
Ian

For what's happening in Ward 2, check ont:

http://ward2guelph.wordpress.com/
From: ticbecker@rogers.com [mailto:ticbecker@rogers.com]

Sent: April 2, 2011 3:41 PM

To: Mayors Office; Bob Bell; Jim Furfaro; Andy VanHellemond; Ian Findlay; June Hofland; Maggie
Laidlaw; CamGuthrie@guelph.ca; Gloria Kovach; Lise Burcher; Karl Wettstein; Todd Dennis
Subject: Save The Bookmobile '

Good Afternoon:
I am writing to voice my opinion regarding discontinuing services of The BookMobile in Guelph.

As the mother of 2 small children, who uses the Bookmobile services regularly, I think it is an unfortunate
idea to eliminate these services. While we also use the West End Branch of the library, the children love the
idea of the Bookmobile. The Bookmobile provides excitement for Thursday afternoons and allows the
children to read a greater number of books within a month because of the close proximity and convenience
of the Bookmobile's services. When I moved to the South End of Guelph, I was thrilled to see that the city
of Guelph still offered the services of a Bookmobile. It brought back fond memories of the Bookmobile I
frequented with friends and cousins in Kitchener as a child:

Any means to keep a child reading, developing and expanding his/her knowledge and education is surely a
worthwhile service to save in our community. Should we not, as a city and a community offer this service
to our children? I believe we should. Am I correct in my understanding that it is a $250,000 service to the
city of Guelph per year? If so, that amount seems so minimal... compared to some of the other ways our tax
dollars are spent! Plus, it impacts so many people in the community, not just children.

Please reconsider,
A concerned mom

This e-mail message (including attachments, if
any) is intended for the use of the individual to whom it is addressed and may contain information that is
privileged and confidential. If you are not the intended recipient, you are notified that any dissemination,
distribution or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this
communication in error, please notify the sender and erase this e-mail message immediately.
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PETITION FROM THE RESIDENT’S OF ST. JOSEPH’S HEALTH CENTRE
* KEEP THE BOOKMOBILE SERVICE *

This petition expresses our concerns about the potential elimination of the BOOKMOBILE service. We
use this service regularly and many of us have mobility limitations. Going to a library is not a viable option.
We need and want the BOOKMOBILE to continue.
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March 14, 2011

Ms. Kitty Pope, CEO
Guelph Public Library
400 Norfolk Street
Guelph ON N1H 4J6

Dear Ms. Pope:

As residents of the Elliott Community, we are responding to the
decision to discontinue the Library’s Bookmobile Services in order to
help reduce the total tax levy for the City of Guelph.

Although keeping the levies at the lowest rate possible is of utmost
concern, we fear canceling this service will impose a great hardship
on many Guelph residents. individuals unable to get to their local
library due to permanent handicaps such as people in wheel chairs or
the legally blind, iliness or weather conditions, will be unable to obtain
reading material. For these persons, reading is essential for their
rehabilitation and/or inclusion in society.

We urge you to reconsider this decision.

Sincerely,
7 deran e
ey C arce.
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Page 3, Ms. Kitty Pope, March 14, 2011
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Page 4, Ms. Kitty Pope, March 14, 2011
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Appendix iv: Benchmarking

Guelph Public Library Bookmobile Evaluation — Bench Mark Survey — 2011

STATISTICS Guelph Public Library Lethbridge Public Library Lambton County Public Strathcona County
Library Library
Address 100 Norfolk St 8105" Ave S 787 Broadway St 401 Festival Lane,
Guelph, Ont. N1H 4J6 Lethbridge, AB, T1J 4C4 Wyoming, ON NON 1T0 Sherwood Park, AB T8A 5P7
Website www.library.guelph.on.ca www.lethlib.ca www.lcimg.org www.sclibrary.ab.ca
CEO Kitty Pope Todd Gnissios Robert Tremain Sharon Siga
City Population 123,00 86,659 71,419 (Sarnia) 89,382
128,201 (Sarnia/Lambton
county)
# sq Km city 86.72 sqg Km 127.19 sq km 164 sq km 1,265 sq Km County
BUDGET
Total Lib. system $7,799,400 2010: $6,513,770 $5,373,204 $8,297,409
Budget
Total BKM Budget $238,600 N/A n/a $334,616
Total System wide 389,940 items 291,214 items 460,928 items 215,000 items
Collection size & $1,166,100 budget LPL 2011: $586,318 $719,366 budget $575,981

materials budget

(including periodicals and
databases)

Total BKM Collection
size & materials
budget

5,246 items
$44,700 budget

11,100 items
2010: $16,780

n/a - do not have a separate
collection. Use Sarnia
Branch collection

Borrow block loans from the
main library ..mainly purchase
paperbacks and high demand
items for our adult collection.

CIRCULATION &

MATERIALS
Total system 1,831,174 (2010) LPL 2010: 503,146 996,322 (2010) 1,116,442 (2010)
circulation Chinook Arch Region 2010:

1,177,745

Total BKM circulation | 46,665 ) 52,375 10,660 65,000 estimated

BKM circ. per hr. of 35/hr 39/hr 12/hr 78/hr average

operation

Average Size of 3,000 items on board 5,300 items 2,863 4,000

collection carried on + 2,000 in reserve -

the BKM & type of

Collection

STAFF

# BKM staff 25 1.5 1.5 2.7 FTE

Level of staff on BKM | 2 Full time Library 1 fulltime Library Assistant 1 FT clerk 1 Full time Coordinator
Technicians, .5 clerk, 1 (tech equivalent) .5 clerk 5 Part-time operators

page

1 20 hr/week clerk
Additional driver and clerk
staffing

There are two operators on
the bus most of the time.

MEMBERSHIPS

Total Memberships

76,985 — Total members

Chinook Arch region: 80,755

70,160 - total members

12,291 — Active - We have

System Wide 46,813 — Active (used LPL members: 47,895 33,424 - active (used within cards are used by more than

within 2yrs) LPL members active (past2 | 2 years) one member, so this is not an
yrs): accurate count .

Total BKM 3,000 — Total members 2,302 total members 393 - total members 1600 — Total members

Membership

BRANCHES & BKM

HOURS OF

OPERATION

# of branches Main Library & Main library & 1 branch 26 branches Main Library
5 Branches

# of BKMs 1 1 1 1

# of BKM stops per 21 School year: 21 7 12 regular stops

schedule Summer: 16

# of alternate Schedule remains the School year and summer none Regular schedule remains the

schedules

same each season

same year round.

34



http://www.lethlib.ca/

Length, Frequency &
hours of service

1 or 2 hr stops

Once each week
Daycares — every 3" week
Day & evening hrs Mon to
Thurs, Sat. all day, Closed
Friday and Sunday.

45 to 90 minutes

Most stops are weekly;
Tuesday night alternates
every other week.

2 or 2.5 hour stop - once per
week. Mornings or
afternoon. No evening or
weekend stops

1-1.5hours

Weekly for regular stops.
Weekly or every 3" week for
special visits.

Day & evening hrs Mon —
Friday

Average # of system | Average 20,000 — total Main branch: 39,468 - total Main library - open 69 hrs per
wide hrs open per Main & 1 branch —open 67 70.5 Hrs/wk winter week (175 days) or 3552
year hrs per week 67 Hrs/wk summer hours

4 branches open 62 hrs Crossings Branch
per week - 67 Hrs/wk
Avg. # of BKM hours 1,400 1,350 780 830
open per year
BOOKMOBILE
OPERATION
Type of stops Seniors 30 % Schools: approx. 50 % All community stops. Seniors 5.5%
& % of schedule Daycares 30% Community 50 % (11) No daycares or school Daycares  19%
Schools 0 % stops Schools 5.5% (also a
Community 45 % public stop)

Community 70%

Criteria for
establishing a BKM
stop

Community Need:
Senior residences
Daycares
High density low income
Unserved areas

Community need:
Accessibility
School/programs
low-income areas

Small rural areas that don’t

have library service

Community need
Senior residence near by
Low income areas

Community Need

rural communities

special visits to preschools
and seniors residences.

BKM History

Began in 1976 — this is our
3" vehicle

Began in 1985. This is the
original vehicle. Fundraising
underway for a new vehicle,
spring 2012 target for on the
road.

n/a

Began in 1982 — this is our 3"
vehicle

Size & type of vehicle

35 ft long — 12 ft wide —
one door — cab and box
one unit

37 ft long, single unit, two
doors (front and rear)
Includes bathroom (staff
only)

EIf bookmobile. Cab & box
one unit

40’ long, 102" wide (8.5 feet) —
one door — low floor transit bus

Is the BKM
accessible?

Yes — motorized ramp

No

Yes - motorized ramp

Yes — motorized ramp

What is your ILS?

POLARIS

Sirsi-Dynix Symphony

Vubis

Horizon

Is ILS networked to
the BKM? (Partially or
fully?)

No — we work off-line on
Polaris

Yes — connected through
cell phone towers.

No - work offline. Download
data later

No — we work off-line with PC
Reliance on Horizon

Does BKM have Yes - for staff use only Yes — staff computer had no Yes. staff laptop, two Tough
internet access? 2 laptops to access internet and ILS access (no Book public laptops and two
How do you Polaris and the internet connection to library LAN IPads for staff/public
communicate with and one cell phone for Email and cell phone, phone Cell phone

home base? communication is internal library use only

AVG # of miles 10,000 6,000 n/a 10,000

travelled per year

Do you travel outside No Yes — one stop just outside No Yes, serve mainly the rural
the city? (% of stops of Lethbridge in the town of area, but urban stops are

in the county or Metro Coalhurst every other Friday growing.

areas)

Who are your target Seniors/Daycares Elementary schools, general | Seniors Residents outside the urban

audiences?

At risk neighborhoods

community

Low income neighborhoods

area , Seniors /Daycares

What are the goals or
mandate of your BKM
service?

provide outreach service
to those citizens who are
underserved due to
mobility or monetary
issues.

- To gage our community;
the BKM locations “test
the waters” and are often
an indication for future
branch locations.

provide library service to
those who may not easily be
able to access the library

- through school
partnerships, provide library
service to children whose
parents may not be able to
bring them to the library .

provide outreach service to
those citizens who have
mobility or monetary issues

Our motto is “Part of the
Service, Part of the
Community”.

We carry library services out
into the community and we
advocate for the Library by
becoming members/partners
in the community.

What services does
your BKM provide?

Circulation/Place and
deliver requests/ reference
service

Circulation; place and pick
up holds; reference; public
internet

Circulation, reservations,
reference service

Circulation/Readers
Advisory/Requests Reference
services
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Does your BKM
provide programs?

Yes — story times at our
daycares

/summer crafts for
children/outdoor tea
parties with the senior
residences

No — just summer sign-up
for self-guided summer
reading program

No

Yes Story times
reading games

Does your system
also provide other
Outreach Services in
your community?

Yes we have a volunteer
delivery service to
homebound patrons.

Yes:

Volunteer homebound
program

“Books on the Move” deposit
collection to seniors
Partnership with University
to train_storytellers

Yes - volunteer delivery to
housebound

Yes - volunteer delivery to
housebound

FUTURE PLANS

How would you serve
your BKM target
audiences if you did
not have a BKM?

We are currently
investigating other
possible means of
delivering the service.
small “deposit” collections
and training volunteers

Storefront branches in far
north and south sectors of
the city — not currently
economically feasible

No plans.

Currently working on a
strategic plan which will
address this service

Investigating kiosks for busy
public spaces such as transit
stations and sports centers.

What is the long term

plan called for an

Replace existing BKMB with

just designed and built our

strategic plan for your | evaluation of our BKM additional capabilities n/a new low-floor bus locally plan
BKM service? service once our final wheelchairs and strollers, to continue service for 20 — 30

neighbourhood branch put | accessible, public internet years

in place in 2010. programming, ability to

move modular shelving

Do you plan to It is unlikely that a BKM of | Yes n/a Yes.
replace your BKM as our current size would be
needed? replaced.
Would you consider Yes — this is currently Has not been considered to n/a Unlikely.
another type of mobile | under investigation. date
service?
Is there any No- we are currently Fundraising currently no Last October, we received
sponsorship, fund exploring ideas for underway for new BKMB, $300,000 in funding from Shell
raising associated possible sponsorship. primarily grants and Canada Ltd. over 5 years.
with your BKM? corporate donations
Have you completed No — this is our first review | Not within past decade no Our Library’s Plan of Service

any studies on your
BKM service? Do you
plan any?

of our BKM service —
individual stops are
evaluated each year

includes conducting a series of
consultations to explore the
values and needs of the
community.

What are the
challenges facing your
BKM service now and
in the future?

Proposed budget cuts.

Replacing aging vehicle
Perception that it’s just for
elementary schools and
children

Retirement of staff

municipalities provide the
facilities, but in this case the
county is providing full
funding for a service which
only serves city residents.

high level of support at all
levels — library, board, council
and public.

How do you promote
your BKM service? An

Website
Bookmarks/posters in the
neighbourhoods

School Visits

Website, schedule handouts
at branches and community
events, existing partnerships
with schools.

Website
posters

Website Posters School visits
Newspaper partner with other
community agencies, Spring
Reading Program

Other comments

on public satisfaction
surveys, BKMB has the
most positive comments
Board has decided to
fundraise to replace BKMB
IFLA Mobile Library
Guidelines:
http://www.ifla.org/publica

tionsl/ifla-professional-
reports-123

Contact person

Sharron Turner

Elisabeth Hegerat

Carol Gardiner

Diana Balbar

Email address

sturner@library.guelph.on.
ca

elisabeth.hegerat@lethlib.ca

carol.gardiner@county-
lambton.on.ca

dbalbar@sclibrary.ab.ca

Date compiled

March 18, 2011

April 8, 2011

April 12, 3011
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Appendix v: Used Bookmobile Sales

R

Specialty Vehicle Services, e “Bridging the gap between you and success!”

BOOKMOBILE FOR SALE

The Burnham Memorial Library in Colchester, Vermont is offering for sale a 28-foot, custom-
manufactured OBS, Inc. bookmaobile. This bookmobile was purchased in 2002 as part of a Mobile
Library Literacy project funded via the Institute of Museum and Library Services (IMLS) and the
Vermont Department of Libraries. Therefore, no federal funds can be used in the purchase of this
vehicle.

Manufacturer: OBS, Inc. (Canton, Ohio)

Model: Concept 2000

Year: 2003

Make: Blue Bird

Model: STFE3600-2708

Delivered to Colchester, Vermont from factory: January 2003
Current Condition: Excellent

Current mileage: 14,250 (approx.)

Onan generator for interior/exterior lighting; heat; air conditioning
Includes shoreline battery

Includes electronically controlled side awning and steps

Wired for 6 laptop computers; no satellite or internet technology included

Cost of new vehicle delivered from factory (January 2003): $138,537.00
Current market value of vehicle in May 2008: $92,452.00*
* Estimate provided by Barb Ferne of OBS, Inc. in an email dated 5/12/08.

The vehicle is available for sale to a library/library system or literacy mobile delivery program.

Sale Price of Vehicle: $26,183
Available immediately and will be sold as is.

Contact: Library Director
Burnham Memorial Library
Colchester, Vermont 05446
info@burnham.lib.vt.us
802-879-7576

w196 58406 plum creek boulevard
muskego, wisconsin 53150-8170 usa
PHONE: 262.679.9096

FACSIMILE: 262.679.2066
VEHICLESUCCESS.com
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Used Bookmobiles

Brand New Demonstrator - Ultra GREEN! Only 3 years old with very low miles!

Rare manufacturer's demo unit! s o i
The latest in eco-friendly and efficiency features including solar (no Lisshew: conaition with whesicair |t and extericr ewnifig:

A | ¢ i |
generator), LED lighting, easy access door, and modular shelving! Save thousands: 339 over new! Don't miss/out on'thisionel
Year 2009 Mileage: 3,500 Year 2008 Mileage. 13,000
Length: 24’ (approx.) Price: $139,000 Length: 28' (approx.) Price: $89,8900
Fuel. Diesel Location. Montana Fuel: Gasoline Location: New York
Manufacturer Meridian SV Sales Sheet . 99WMOAD Manufacturer: Farber SV Sales Sheet _ SOWNLOAD

New Listing - Great Condition!

New Lower Price - Extra Low Floor!

Only 8 years old with very low mileage!
Wheelchair accessible with low miles! Tires and body in excellent

1
cordition) Includes single color full paint job
Year 2001 Mileage: 53,045 Year 2002 Mileage: 31,000
~$75-:806
Length. 38' (approx.) Price $59.500 Length: 28' (approx.) frice: $62:500
$59,500
Fuet Diesel Location: California fuel. Gasoline Location Mentana
Manufacturer  Farber SV Sales Sheet G 8 Manufacturer. Farber SV Sales Sheet T2kt I

Brand nerator!
Fand e Cans H New Paint & Rear Jump seat!

Dual patron doors, wheelchair accessible and classic wood

shelving! Great tires and new transmission in 2006! Take it home today!
Year 2001 Mileage: 66,500 vear 1998 Mileage: 91,588
Length  32' (approx.) Price: $55,000 Length: 32 (approx.) Price. $34,100
Fuel. Diesel Location. Oregon Fuel Diesel Location. Ohio
Manufacturer: MSV Sales Sheet Manufacturer Farber SV Sales Sheet: __S@MM.OA0
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Appendix vi: Costing

Comparison between the current bookmobile service and a community outreach
service. The Bookmobile is very cost effective as it enables customers to share one
collection of 5,000 books/av and magazines, whereas a sererie of deopsit colelctiosn

requires significantly more books/av resources.

Bookmobile Community Outreach | Notes
REVENUE None $6,000 $1,200 fee per year for a
deposit collection in a
senior or daycare facility.
2016 5 deposits  $6,000
2017 10 deposits $12,000
2018 15 deposits $18,000
2019 20 deposits $24,000
Total Revenue $6,000
EXPENDITURES
STAFFING 25FTE 25FTE
1 coordinator 1 coordinator
1 driver 1 trainer
Y clerk Y2 clerk
$164,500 $164,500
RESOURCES 5,000 volumes onthe | 10,000 resources in 20
bookmobile collections
Print $89,400 Will test the potential of
$44,700 | Audio books $2,500 early e book usage by
E books $2,500 senior customers.
$94,400
VEHICLE Gas/maintancece None
$8,500
Grarage rental
$5,900
$13,100
TECHNOLOGY/ staff computers To access collections and
COMMUNICATIONS $2,400 $2,400 | train volunteers
20 computers To access library catalogue
and check in and out
$12,000 material
OTHER $5,400 | Delivery of collections
Janitorial $18,000
Supplies 4 Volunteer workshops
Advertising @ $700  $2,800
Signage Signage $1,200
TOTAL EXPENSES $230,100 $295,300
- Revenue -$6,000
TOTAL ANNUAL COST $230,100 $289,300 $59,200 difference
Start up costs 1 vehicle $20,000

Delivery boxes $5,300
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Ongoing costs July to December 2011 if the bookmobile service

was cancelled June 30, 2011

July-December 2011

STAFFING

benefits and layoffs $26,500
RESOURCES None
VEHICLE

Insurance/garage rental $12,000

To sell vehicle $2,200
TECHNOLOGY/ None
COMMUNICATIONS
TOTAL on going $40,700
EXPENSES
Revenue from the sale of $22,000
the Bookmobile
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Tunney, Robi'n

From: Ellen Crystal [ellencrystal@rogers.com]
Sent: March 11, 2011 9:19 AM

To: Tunney, Robin

Subject: Guelph Spring Transit Advertising Sale !!!

Reg. $1,100 / 4 weeks
Sale $1,000 / 4 weeks

You save $1,300 I!!

Full Wra

Reg. $2,500/ 4 weeks
Sale $2,200 / 4 weeks
You save $3,900 !l!

If you would like additional information including sample pictures and our rates on
interior space, please contact me at your earliest convenience.

Thank you.

Ellen Crystal

Media Sales

Sambrook Media Corp.
Direct; 905-619-3480

Toll Free: 866-415-0024
www.sambrookmedia.com

ellen@sambrookmedia.com




Appendix vii: Vehicle Report

Unit 05550 Library Bookmobile

On Apr 28™ the unit was brought in to PW for an assessment.
Findings: Minor body damage and corrosion at the rear skid plate.

At some point in the year we will have address a few mirror repairs to
the exhaust, frame and mounts to the drop box. In approximately a
year it will need some front end repairs.

I have sent out oil samples for the engines, drop box, transmission and
differential. | have not received the results as of yet.

The rest of the unit is in excellent working condition including the
wheel chair ramp and the air system for the suspension. | fell the unit
should be able to operate for at least 5 years.

ey STl

- ~Guélph |

Making a Difference |

Larry Stradiotto
Lead Hand, Fleet |

T 519-822-1260 x 2029
E larry.stradiotto@guelph.ca - |
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Appendix ix: Promotional Material

Guelph Public Library =
Bookmobile Schedule Fo==3a,
| : ﬁs‘

Phone 519-829-4401 for more information.
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GPL Bookmobile

G Pubiio Loy @UEStIONS & Answers

How Can | HELP?

1) Phone, email, or write a letter to Guelph’s City Councillors and your local media outlets.
Speak out and voice your concerns...We must KEEP our Bookmobile Services!

2) Visit www.library.guelph.on.ca to participate in our Bookmobile Service Survey.
Let us know what you think!

3) Contact the Guelph Public Library CEO — Kitty Pope at 1-519-824-6220 ext. 220
or kpope@library.guelph.on.ca

Bookmobile Facts:
- Over 4,500 volumes are available on the Bookmobile
- Serves over 3,000 customers circulating over 40,000 resources

- Stops at 23 daycares, senior residences, after-school stops, un-served locations every
week

January 2006 - The current GPL Bookmobile is added.
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COMMITTEE (Guélph
REPORT ~LE

Makirg a Difference

TO Community and Social Services Committee

SERVICE AREA Community Engagement and Social Services Liaison
DATE May 10, 2011

SUBJECT Discretionary Social Services Funeral Directors Fees
Update
REPORT NUMBER CSS-CESS-1115

SUMMARY

Purpose of Report

To provide an update on the request from funeral directors for an increase in
their rates, one of the discretionary social services costs shared with the County
of Wellington.

Committee Action

To receive Report # CSS-CESS-1115 and consider the recommendation that
status quo funding be maintained at 2010 levels for discretionary funeral services
grants for the 2011 year.

RECOMMENDATION

That Report # CSS-CESS-1115 “Discretionary Social Services Funeral Directors
Fees Update,” dated May 10, 2011 be received and approved by Community and
Social Services;

AND THAT status quo funding be maintained at 2010 levels for discretionary
Funeral Services for the 2011 year.

BACKGROUND

Report # FIN-10-05 notes that there are a number of discretionary social
services programs that the City and County has supported for a number of years
which are not mandated by provincial legislation. These programs have
traditionally been administered by the County. Some programs involve provincial
subsidy, some are funded jointly by the City/County and some are funded solely
by the City. In 2011 the total budget for these discretionary programs is
$3,965,000 of which the City’s portion is $958,000. Funeral Services form part of
these discretionary programs.

Guelph City Council, at their February 22, 2010 meeting directed staff to:
“maintain stable funding in 2010 for the City's portion of discretionary
Social Service Programs”.

Page 1 of 1 CITY OF GUELPH COMMITTEE REPORT



The specific costs and historic funding arrangements for funeral services are
outlined in the County of Wellington Social Services Committee Report, dated
October 13, 2010. This report followed a request from Funeral Directors for a

20% increase in funeral rates in each of the next two years (Appendix 1). In this

report, the Special Services Manager noted that:” funeral rates were increased
significantly in the early 1990’s. Since that time the yearly increases have been

minimal and have not accommodated the increases experienced by the funeral
homes. For the last 4 years the increase has been 3% yearly and the County of
Wellington is currently paying $3,321 per funeral”’, a survey of 56 regions, places

County funding in the top 20 regions (Wellington is #18), ( Appendix 2).

The report goes on to note that:” These are not the only costs the County pays

for a funeral... there are costs over the basic amount they are requesting. As well

the County is responsible for cemetery costs which are capped at $1000.” Finally
the report notes that: “This office is responsible for approximately 40 funerals a
year of which two thirds are covered at the 80/20 cost share with the 20% being

split between the City and the County based on residency. One third of the

funerals are paid out at 100% discretionary benefits for people who are on fixed
incomes and allocated to the City or County based on residency”. Further, the

report notes that “Staff pursues all possible reimbursement from the deceased

person’s estates, i.e. bank accounts, CPP death benefits.”

In 2010 the cost of funeral services was $65,092. Twenty eight funerals were
covered at an 80/20 cost share for the amount of $18,598 and 14 were paid at
100% of discretionary benefits for a cost of $46,494 (Appendix 3).

The City received a letter from the Clerk’'s Office, County of Wellington dated
November 3, 2010 advising the City that the following resolution had been
approved by Wellington County Council at its October 28, 2010 meeting:

“ That the request of the funeral directors for a 20% increase in funeral rates in
each of the next two years be approved;” and

“That the Council of the City of Guelph be requested to determine the extent to
which the City is prepared to fund the cost of discretionary funeral services on
an on going basis and that such direction be provided to the County of Wellington
and the funeral directors by November 30, 2010" . At the time of receipt, the City
advised the County that, “subject to S. 275 of the Municipal Act, it was not
possible for this matter to be considered by Council before the end of the Council
term on November 30", and that the correspondence would be forwarded to the
first committee meeting for discussion and recommendation to Council in the new
year.”

To this end, the matter was discussed at Community Social Services Committee
meeting, January 11, 2011 and Committee carried the motion:

“THAT the correspondence from County of Wellington with respect to Funeral
Director Funding be referred to staff to investigate and report back to the
Committee.” This was then referred to Finance staff.
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REPORT

The City and County of Wellington are continuing their negotiations on the
delivery of discretionary social services by the County of Wellington in their
capacity as CMSM. These negotiations are outlined in report # CSS-CESS-1113.
This report notes that the discretionary services are divided into a number of
categories A - G and that funeral services would fall into category D -
discretionary services with a wide range of other services including the provision
of wheelchairs, dentures, incontinence pads, etc. The 2011 County of Wellington
budget notes that the total funding for this category of discretionary benefits is
$181,000 of which the City’s portion is $104,000. These negotiations are
proceeding on the premise that funding for groups or individuals in receipt of
these funds will remain status quo for 2011 at 2010 levels.

The County formally requested (in a letter dated November 3, 2010), that the
City determine the extent to which it was prepared to fund the cost of
discretionary funeral services on an ongoing basis. This request was raised at the
January 11 meeting of CSS regarding the Funeral Directors fees and was referred
to Finance staff to investigate and report back to Committee.

Following this investigation, it is staff opinion that funding levels for discretionary
funeral services should maintain the status quo in 2011. This recommendation is
also consistent with Council's response during the 2011 budget deliberations to
the requests from the Wellington-Guelph Drug Strategy and Poverty Elimination
Task Force for more funding.

CORPORATE STRATEGIC PLAN
Goal 5: A community- focused responsive and accountable government

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Funeral costs are found in provincially cost shared discretionary benefits and in
100% municipally funded discretionary benefits. Based on information from the
County of Wellington, the 2011 budget which includes the 20% increase to funeral
directors are as follows:

City - provincially cost shared discretionary benefits gross expenditure $61,500
with a net cost to the City of $11,600

City - 100% municipally funded discretionary benefits gross expenditure $20,000
(net cost also $20,000)

Accordingly, if the recommendation to remain at the status quo is approved, the
2011 budget savings would be 20% of $31,600 ($6,320). The actual savings will
vary by the number of funerals. The requested increase per funeral for 2011 is

$664 and for 2012 $797.

DEPARTMENTAL CONSULTATION
The Finance Department has reviewed the report.

ATTACHMENTS
Appendix 1: Request from Funeral Directors
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Appendix 2: Survey of 56 Regions
Appendix 3: Four Year Funeral Trend

“original signed by Margaret Neubauer

Prepared By: Recommended By:

Barbara Powell Margaret Neubauer

General Manager of Community Engagement Chief Financial Officer/
Community Engagement and Social Services City Treasurer

Liaison 519-822-1260 x 5606
519-822-1260 x 2679 margaret.neubauer@guelph.ca

barbara.powell@guelph.ca

Recommended By:

Ann Pappert

Executive Director
Community & Social Services
519-822-1260 x 2665
Ann.pappert@guelph.ca
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Appendix 1: Request from Funeral Directors

Thursday, October 7, 20100ctober 7, 2010

The following is a breakdown of what each funeral home in the county charges any family
requesting similar style of services to those outlined in our agreement. This is for the full style of
services and casket as outlined.

Heritage Funeral Homes 5345.00
Hardy-Lee Funeral Home 5420.00
Hendrick Funeral Home 5365.00
John Thomson & Son 5190.00
Graham A. Giddy Funeral Homes 5192.00
Crawford Funeral Home 5910.00
Butcher Family Funeral Home 5290.00
Garrett Funeral Chapel 5295.00
Gilbert Macintyre & Son Funeral Home 4970.00
Gilchrist Chapel 5057.00

$53034.00

Divide by 10 Funeral Homes=$5303.40 average cost for the county residents

CASKET $556.00
EMBALMING $227.00
REMOVAL $169.00
FUNERAL COACH $186.00
CLERGY CAR ' $126.00
FUNERAL HOME FACILITIES
Basic Required $249.00
Facilities for service/or services from place of worship $348.00
Visitation $190.00
FUNERAL DIRECTOR, STAFF & SERVICES
Amangements and Required Services $483.00
Visitation $136.00
Conducting of Services $343.00
Register Book and Acknowledgerment Cards §61.00
Documentation $239.00
$3321.00

Average loss per call per funeral per funeral home $1982.40

We are requesting an increase of 20% $664 for 2011) ($797 in 2012) in each of the next two
years in order to bring fees paid by the County closer to the actual charged by the Funeral Homes,
and which would raise us closer to a similar level for those counties/regions providing similar style of

services.

On behalf of the Wellington County Funeral Directors

Doug Gilchrist Graham Giddy Mike Maclntyre Sr.
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Appendix 2: Survey of 56 ReH% . SURVEY OF SOCIAL SERVICES FUNERAL RATES BY REGION

COUNTY/REGION TRADITIONAL CEMETERY
CITY/MUNICIPALITY SERVICE ALLOWANCE
ALLOWANCE
Lanark 5,169.00 750.00
Brantford 5,027.78 Actual
Qxiord 4,894.85 Actual
Bruce 4,834 44 1,200.00
Leeds & Grenville 4,809.00 Actual
81. Thomas 4,883.00 1,500.00
Algoma DSSAB 3,500.00 Included
Grey 3,044.00 Actual
Prescott & Russell 3,900,00 Actual
Kawartha Lakes/Haliburton 3,685.00 Actual
Timiskaming DSSAB 3,600.00 1,285.00
Durham 3,500.00 1,000.00
Rainy River DSSAB 3,500.00 Included
Prince Edward 3,500,00 Included
Lennox & Addingtan 3,500.00 Included
Renfrew 3,250.00 Included
Thunder Bay DSSAB 3,250.00 Actual
Wellington 3,224.00 1,000,00
Kenora DSSAB 3,200.G0 Included
Huran 3,053.00 1,000.00
Perth 3,035.00 Aclual
Bruce 3,035.00 Actual
Oxiord 4,745.11 Actual
Stratford 3,035.00 Actual
Windsor-Essex 3,000.00 1,000.00
Hastings 3,000.00 Included
Kingston 2,925.25 1,000.00
Haldimand-Norfolk 2,900.00 1,000.00
Nipissing 2,800.00 1,000.00
Niagara 2,700.00 1,000.00
Cochrane DSSAB 2,600.00 Actual
Lambton 2,518.00 Actual
Peel 2,500.00 1,000.00
Chatham-Kent 2.463.00 Actual
London 2,455.00 1,000.00
Dufferin 2,410.00 1,000.00
Waterloo 2,400.00 1,500.00
York 2,389.00 Actual
Dltawa 2,370.00 1,000.,00
Toronto 2,319.32 1,000.00
Halton 2,318.00 1,000.00
Hamilton 2,288.10 1,000.00
Simcoe 2,250.00 1,120,00
Peterborough-City 2,250.00 1,000.00
Parry Sound 2,250.00 Included
Manitoulin-Sudbury DSSAB 2,250.00 included
Cormnwall 2,250.00 1,000.00
Alexandria-Eastern 2,250,080 783.20
London-Middlesex 2,220.00 1,000.00
Peterborough 2,137.50 1,000.00
Northumberland 1,950.00 1,000.00
Muskoka 1,807.00 1,100.00
Sault St. Marie DSSAB 1,700.00 907.00
Northumberland-Brett 1,500.00 1,000.00
Sudbury CMSM 1,0B89.65 1,000.00
Hearst-Northem District Same as Public Same as Public
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Appendix 3: Four Year Funeral Trend

Total Number of Clients assisted with Funeral/Burial Services (2008-2010)

e  Statistics based on the date of death

Municipality/Cost Category 2007 2008 2009 2010
County of Wellington — Cost Shared with Province 8 4 9 11
County of Wellington — 100% Discretionary Cost 8 11 5 9
City of Guelph — Cost Shared with Province 19 22 15 28
City of Guelph — 100% Discretionary Cost 9 14 9 14
Totals 44 51 38 62




Guelph Vision for a
Complete Community

A Conversation Document....

Guelph City Councill
June 27, 2011



Purpose:

 Begin a conversation...Guelph as a “Complete”
Community

Objective:
 Present a case (‘connect the dots’)

* |nvolve residents, families, neighbourhoods,
pusiness, organizations, partners, other levels
of government

 |dentify specific, measurable benefits for Guelph




Current Situation

« Community concerns regarding current service
planning and delivery and resourcing

— silos, gaps, duplication, significant funding

* Win/lose scenario
— litigation, arbitration, governance challenges

* Inherent differences between rural & urban
— circumstances, pressures, values, approach

« Capacity to deal with complexity



External Pressures (Drivers) Impacting Guelph

Growing urban centre — 125,000 growing to
175,000

Increasing complexity of urban issues
Unpredictablility of global markets

Desire to Increase coordination at local level



Internal Pressures (Drivers) Impacting Guelph

« Changing expectations of constituents

— accountabillity, transparency, value for public
dollars spent

 New expectations of government

o flatter, agile, stream-lined, pluralistic, adaptable,
emergent networks, tech-enabled

vVersus
 hierarchical, centralized, unitary, top down, siloed



Internal Pressures (Drivers)...continued

« Rapidly changing technology and communication tools
for connecting with residents

e Opportunities to do business differently
— social entrepreneurial & social benefit options

— partnerships & collaborations

e Declining resources with increased demand



Connecting the Dots

.External & Engage

Internal solutions
Litigation ~ DnVers
Arbitration Demand for
& structural &
communit
Urban Governance change )4
Issues g

Rural
Differences



Issue: Optimizing Tangible Benefits

e Currently — localized issue for Guelph

* Lack of integrated and coordinated service planning
& delivery - external partners, service providers

— silos, duplication, gaps, poor outcomes, missed
opportunities

« Lack of a comprehensive strategy to link
expenditure of public/civic resources to community
driven goals — social services and public health



_Guelph

Sustainability
Complete City System

w

Private Sector
Public Sector

Community
Benefit Sector
(e.g. not- for-
profit social
Enterprise)

Economy
Environment
Culture
Social

New collaborative approaches

o o L} X

Governance — Oversight and Accountability

o

$$ Public Investment $$




Opportunity: Vision of a Complete Community

 Complete single tier municipality

— accountable to its residents for all provincially
delegated responsibilities (social, economic,
environmental, cultural, health)

* Direct oversight for services delivered to Guelph
taxpayers

 Programs & services designed specifically to meet the
needs of Guelph residents, families, neighbourhoods

 Plan & action issues —integrated, comprehensive, local

 Partner, not compete with the non-profit and private
sectors in the delivery of services and programs
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Community Benefits

1.
2.

o

O~NOOoT A

Efficient and effective use of resources

New partnerships & collaboration across public,
private and community benefit sectors

Grow skills to operate effectively in complex,
Interdependent networks of organizations and
systems

Practical “hit the ground” solutions to complex
urban issues

Understand and act on resident concerns
Economic and social resiliency

Quality of life — a Caring Community
Demonstrate municipal leadership



’ CITY OF I h
Rural
Urban m
Differences

Arbitration

External Drivers

g Complete R

Community
Vision &
\  Values y

@

Public
Health

Urban Centre

Global Market

Internal Drivers
Accountability
Transparency
Public Value
Governance

New Technology
“Doing business differently”
Declining Resources

Complex Relationships

Business Recruitment

-0
O >

Community Well
Being Plan

Community Benefits
Efficient use of resources
New Partners, Collaborations
Resident /Ward Needs Identified
Action Based Project Results
olutions to Complex Urban Issues




Interesting Conversations to have about...

« Transformational change in governance structure
 Respect & Recognition of Urban / Rural differences

e Social Innovation and entrepreneurial approach to
services design

e Guelph Assertive Maturity — dialogue at the grass roots
 Moving away from a “Win/Lose” — towards collaboration

 Community Well Being Plan = vehicle to move forward
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Summary

 Significant allocation of resources to community life in Guelph.

e Duly Elected Council - assumed responsibility for serving
residents in all aspects of quality of life, within authorities.

 Mature, Single Tier Urban Municipality — Urban Future Focus

Next Step: Evolving a Truly Sustainable & Integrated, Complete
Community - Social Innovating & defining practical and locally driven
results.

Begin the conversation on acting as a whole, complete community
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Questions
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COMMITTEE Guelph
REPORT P

Making a Difference

TO Community and Social Services Committee

SERVICE AREA Community & Social Services Department
DATE June 14, 2011

SUBJECT Guelph Vision for a Complete Community: A
Conversation Document
REPORT NUMBER CSS-ADM-1122

RECOMMENDATION

THAT the document titled “Guelph Vision for a Complete Community: A
Conversation Document” identified in staff report # CSS-ADM-1122 and dated June
14, 2011, be approved in principle, to be used as a platform for initiating
conversations related to the Guelph Community Well Being Plan.

BACKGROUND

In June, 2010 City Council directed Community Services to provide work plan goals
in the area of social services. Report CSS-55-1019 dated August 23, 2010 outlined
a Social Services Work Plan and goals. The Social Services Work plan included the
three (3) primary objectives as the basis of a four year work plan. Objectives 2 and
3 were:

- Undertake a neighbourhood based “Guelph Community Wellness (Well being)
Plan” to gain a measurable understanding of how our citizens want to ‘be
well” = both together and individually.

- Undertake and complete the development of the "Community Wellness (Well
being) Plan”. ‘Pull forward’, amend, add or amend the current array of
programs, services and partnerships needed to sustain those services,
programs and resources that meet the future focus on wellness in Guelph.

Report CSS-SS-1019 is included as Appendix 1 of this report and established the
rationale for these objectives. Of note, the City of Guelph does not have a Guelph
based, comprehensive strategy for social services and housing that correlates the
expenditure of its’ public civic resources to agreed upon community driven goals
and objectives on health, wellness and quality of life. In March, 2011, City Council
approved $100,000 to begin the development of a Guelph Community Well Being
Plan.

On April 13, 2011 City Council received staff information related to issues with the
Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health Unit and on April 26, 2011, Council
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unanimously resolved to withdraw from the Wellington-Dufferin—-Guelph Health Unit
effective April 30, 2012 and requested that the Ministry arrange for the passing of
the appropriate regulations to dissolve the Health Unit and the Board of Health.

Growing concerns related to service delivery and the governance issues have made
it clear that Guelph is experiencing challenges as an urban centre.

The purpose of this report is to ‘pull together’ and present, the multiple social,
community, economic and governance issues that culminated into our present
situation and then, for discussion purposes, proposes a vision of Guelph as a
‘complete and whole community’. It suggests that our current situation is an
opportunity to create a more integrated and comprehensive sense of ‘community
well being’ for Guelph residents, which, in turn, will provide a more sustainable
future for our urban centre.

Having a draft ‘vision’ serves to focus initial dialogue with the diverse communities
of Guelph and can be a platform document to begin phase one of the Community
Well Being Plan - a plan that establishes a more holistic approach to wellbeing and
is sensitive and reflective of our distinct neighbourhoods, their unique identities and
needs, the complexity of the services offered and the range of providers, and the
changing array of social, cultural, economic and environmental needs of Guelph
residents.

REPORT

Appendix 2 is the document entitled ‘Guelph Vision for a Complete Community: A
Conversation Document’ which was designed to serve as a conversation ‘starter’
with the community. The following is a high level summary of some key points of
the document.

Guelph Vision for a Complete Community

It is timely for the municipality of the City of Guelph to be fully accountable to its
residents as a true single tier municipal body; an urban centre whose government
is fully empowered to serve its residents on all facets including the wellbeing of its
residents, and where required, to be singly accountable to the province.

Guelph is a mature community of 120,000 citizens governed by a single tier
municipality whose Council is addressing the complexities inherent to economic and
social development in a growing urban centre.

To be successful, Guelph’s future relies on its capacity to maintain its unique
attractive identity, increase the quality of life of its residents and in doing so, draw
and retain diverse businesses to secure its economic and social prosperity and to
employ its residents.

To be sustainable as a competitive urban centre, it is crucial that Guelph governs as
a complete community — meaning, a whole community, inclusive, diverse, engaged
and strategically planned to optimize urban tangible benefits that can only be

gleaned by combining all facets of community life (social, economic, environmental,
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health and cultural) into truly sustainable, comprehensive urban plans that are well
informed by its residents, partners and collaborators.

To achieve this future and to be accessible and accountable as a complete
community the Province must grant Guelph the direct oversight and authority to
manage provincially described Social and Public Health services delivered within its
own geographic boundaries and specific to the needs and aspiration of urban
residents of Guelph.

Positioned for a transformational change and empowered by Provincial approval
enabling this single tier municipality to plan and govern as a complete community,
Guelph would integrate social services delivery and public health into the overall
Community Well Being Plan — fully practicing the principles described in the Ontario
Public Health Standards (2008) and consistent with the outcomes of the Provincial-
Municipal Fiscal and Service Delivery Review (2008).

The Guelph Vision for a Complete Community inspires residents of Guelph to work
with the Province of Ontario, partners, collaborators and service agents to construct
truly sustainable and integrated community plans that combine all facets of
community life into well being. Positioned for social innovation, Guelph must define
its own realistic and authentic approach to delivering government services and
programs utilizing its capacity for collaboration, cooperation and cross-sectoral
partnerships to address complex urban issues in new ways.

Energized by Guelph’s grass root community engagement program, elected
officials, citizens and subject experts would continue to design and refine needs,
impacts, capacity and leverage partnerships and collaborations in the most effective
delivery forms.

Becoming Whole

Guelph is a caring community — one that for years has acted locally to improve the
lives of its residents. Over the last decade, Council identified its commitment to
personal and community well being... it's a key theme of the community’s strategic
plan. Further, citizens asked Council to build a City for us to have a healthy and
safe community where life can be lived to the fullest — where diverse housing
options are provided and where health care services meet the needs of current and
future generations.

City of Guelph has positioned itself to adopt the necessary conditions required to
achieve the goal of being a complete community.

e Guelph has a solid reputation for leading sustainable and progressive
planning in the realms of environmental, economic, social, community and
cultural development.

« We are acclaimed internationally for our Community Energy Plan.

 We continually partner and support our collaborations with the Province of
Ontario in the areas of energy, water, power, sustainable food systems and
green policy developments, Provincial Places to Grow Initiatives, Local
Immigration Strategies and the Ontario Poverty Reduction Strategy.
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« Guelph residents are quite civically engaged and expect meaningful
opportunities to dialogue and influence how services and programs will be
delivered to them.

Ultimately, a whole, complete community can assert its maturity as an urban centre
and will benefit in many ways. As David Siegel with Brock University has proposed,
municipalities who are positioned to fully represent the best interests of its
residents provide services in a more efficient manner, manage policies in a
conscious manner, setting priorities and ensuring we provide the services that
residents want. Further, mature communities can manage relationships with other
governments in a proactive manner - including the need to obtain the tools (in this
case the governance as a complete community) necessary to deliver services in a
more efficient and locally responsive manner.

Current Situation

Guelph is no longer a rural town. The decade(s) old governance models for both
public health and social services that once served to balance rural interests is no
longer able, by its very construct, to be responsive to the changing needs of our
growing urban centre. These differences are neither good nor bad, better nor
worse, but different.

This would not be the first example of good people being unable to fulfill their
duties for no other reason than the system they are operating under, fails. No one
is served by continuing to "*muddle through” the current situation.

We need to remove barriers to integrated service planning as a complete urban
community. There is pressure to integrate systems to take advantage of service
delivery opportunities. Almost all municipal policy is linked to the well being of the
community and draws upon the strategic alignment of integrated plans and
resources distributed across social, economic, environmental and cultural
disciplines.

Community Well Being Plan - Opportunity

Through our work on a Community Well Being Plan, the City has been developing a
vision for a complete community recognizing that a truly sustainable urban plan
combines all facets of community life (economic, social, health, environmental and
cultural). This Plan will determine the specific, urban requirements which contribute
to individual, social and community quality of life through an integrated approach
towards the following variables:

« Environment

e Education opportunities

» Leisure and cultural activities

« Community vitality & work /life balance
» Health care and social services

« Living standards
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The Plan provides a platform for social innovation - new approach to delivering
government services and programs that creates innovative and cross-sectoral
partnerships to address complex urban issues in new ways. We want to establish a
platform for social innovation in the delivery of community, social and health
services in Guelph, which is not relevant to, nor welcomed by the current
governance model.

The process for developing the Community Well Being Plan will be a collaborative
enterprise and we are committed to the results being community owned.

Guelph Public Health Unit

A Guelph Vision for a Complete Community was scribed to serve as a platform for
conversations with our residents to find ways that will modernize and improve the
way we support community health and well-being across the board. Inherent to this
conversation, the vision of a complete, whole community allows us to explore the
structural barriers to the success of this vision; it identifies and responds to one of
the most significant issues at this time, namely the governance model for public
health. In mid to large urban centres, public health is part of the municipal
government structure to realize the integration and coordination of a broad
spectrum of social, community and health programs and services.

Therefore, A Guelph Vision for a Complete Community proposes an approach
towards the development of a Guelph Public Health Unit and outlines benefits,
anticipated efficiencies and opportunities which would further enable Guelph to
benefit from a complete/whole system planning model.

The Province identifies five governance models boards of health - regardless of the
governance model, the board of health as the governing body is legally accountable
to the government of Ontario, and is the body that has the authority to enter into
agreements with ministries.

As a single-tier municipality, we want to establish one of the following two existing
governance models for Guelph:

o Single-Tier Governance Model: Boards are Councils of Single-Tier
Municipalities (areas with only one level of municipal government); no
citizen representatives; no provincial appointees.

o Semi-Autonomous Governance Model (a subset of Single-Tier): Single-
Tier Council appoints members to a separate “board of health”
including citizen representatives; Council approves budget and
staffing; no provincial appointees.

Staff Comment

Report CSS-SS-1019 established a rationale for a Social Services Work plan that
focused on the creation of a Community Well Being Plan. It argued that because the
City allocates significant Guelph tax based resources to policies, services and
programs that are expected to enhance quality of life of Guelph residents, it is
reasonable to expect that Guelph’s residents should be involved in the future
planning of those programs and services.
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As a mature single tier urban municipality, through a duly elected Council, serving
the diverse needs of a growing community, Guelph must be empowered to serve its
residents in all aspects of community living, as a complete community.

The Guelph Vision for a Complete Community proposes a next step in evolving
Guelph as a truly sustainable and integrated community; one whose plans combine
all facets of community life into well being. Positioned for social innovation, Guelph
must define its own realistic and authentic approach to delivering government
services and programs utilizing its capacity for collaboration, cooperation and cross-
sectoral partnerships to address complex urban issues in new ways.

Next Steps

Council received detailed information regarding the Community Wellbeing Plan as
per a memo entitled Community Wellbeing Plan circulated to Council on February
23, 2011 (as part of budget deliberations) and included as Appendix 3 of this
report.

Since the Community Wellbeing Plan was approved in principal by Council in August
2010, the Community and Social Services Department have undertaken preliminary
research to clarify definitions for key terms such as ‘wellbeing’ and ‘community
planning’ and to learn from other communities who have attempted to identify,
measure and improve community wellbeing through community engagement
activity and other means.

Furthermore, staff has gained a current ‘snap shot’ of local strategic planning
efforts designed to support components of individual and community ‘wellbeing’.
This existing work helps the City identify potential partners, stakeholders and key
residents for engagement in the project. It avoids a duplication of efforts, develops
shared learning, and to build upon the work of existing community initiatives.

This information positions staff to work with stakeholders in the development of
comprehensive terms of reference for the Community Wellbeing Plan project. It is
anticipated that a leadership group will be convened in the next 8-12 weeks to
provide guidance to the development of the plan.

As a basis for this discussion, a draft high level process for the development of the
Community Wellbeing Plan (figure 2) is being proposed.

This planning process is intended to be one that embraces continual learning and
development, and is grounded at each stage through;

1) review, monitoring and evaluation of findings

2) communication and partnership building

3) decision making and action

4) community engagement and involvement.

If this is to be a truly ‘community’ based plan, it is of vital importance that local
stakeholders are fully involved from the beginning.
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It is anticipated that the initial Plan will take between 12 and 18 months to create,
although its delivery partnerships, collaborations and supporting processes will take
longer to become fully developed and embedded.

Of note, this project is closely related to an interdependent partnership
development project being led by the University of Guelph, ‘Engaging for Change:
Practicing Collaboration and Planning in Guelph-Wellington’

It is anticipated that the Community Plan for Wellbeing project will take account of
and build on the learning, research and new ways of working that arise from this
work.

Figure 2: Community Wellbeing Plan: A Proposed Planning Process

A Proposed Planning Process

CORPORATE STRATEGIC PLAN

A number of strategic goals in the City’s strategic plan can be enhanced by a
coordinated approach to the delivery of Social Services and Housing to City of
Guelph residents.

Goal 1: An attractive, well functioning and sustainable city (1.1, 1.3)

Goal 2: A healthy and safe community where life can be lived to the fullest (all)
Goal 3: A diverse and prosperous local economy (3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.5, 3.6)

Goal 4: A vibrant & valued arts, culture & heritage identity (4.5)

Goal 5: A community-focused, responsive and accountable government (5.1, 5.2,
5.3,54,56,5.7)

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
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There are no known direct financial impacts of the ‘Guelph Vision for a Complete
Community” at this time. It is a document that, if approved in principle, serves as a
component of the Community Well Being Plan.

Council deliberated during the 2011 budget process and approved $100,000 to
begin a phased approach to the Community Well Being Plan. The anticipated cost
of the Community Well Being Plan is estimated at $500,000 and is expected to take
3 years to complete.

Financial implications related to the current Wellington Duffer in Guelph Public
Health Unit are distinct and separate from the Community Well Being Plan.

An additional $100,000 was approved to undertake a review of the CMSM Programs
and Services.

DEPARTMENTAL CONSULTATION
This report has been prepared in consultation with the Executive Team, and the
Office of the CAO, and emerged from ongoing discussions with the community.

COMMUNICATIONS
N/A

ATTACHMENTS

Appendix 1: CSS-SS-1019 Social Services Work plan (August 2010)

Appendix 2: Guelph Vision for a Complete Community (draft)

Appendix 3: February 23, 2011 Memo to Council Re: Community Well Being Plan
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Prepared By: Prepared By:
Barbara Powell Ann Pappert
General Manager, Community Engagement &
Social Services Liaison Executive Director
Community & Social Services Community & Social Services
519-822-1260 ext 2675 519-822-1260 ext. 2665
barbara.powell@guelph.ca ann.pappert@guelph.ca

Recommended By:

Hans Loewig

Chief Administrative Officer
519-822-1260 ext. 2221
Hans.loewig@guelph.ca
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COMMITTEE Guelph
REPORT P

Making a Difference

TO Social Services and Housing Committee

SERVICE AREA Community and Social Services Department
DATE August 23, 2010

SUBJECT Social Services Work Plan
REPORT NUMBER CSS-SS-1019

RECOMMENDATION
THAT Report CSS-SS-1019 dated August 23, 2010 regarding a Social Services Work
Plan, from the Community and Social Services Department be received;

AND THAT the work plan as outlined in Report CSS-SS5-1019 be approved in
principle, and that work plan and required resources be referred to the 2011 budget
deliberations;

AND THAT the Executive Director of Community and Social Services be authorized
to actively pursue alternative funding opportunities and partnerships which will
assist in achieving the projects outlined in work plan, as outlined in Report CSS-SS-
1019.

BACKGROUND

In January 2010, City Council established the City’s Social Services and Housing
Committee. Subsequently, Council approved the Committee's mandate and charter,
and authorized funding for specialized third party advice and support to staff in the
area of Child Care, Social Housing, Ontario Works, Employment, legal and legislated
policy matters, financial advice and auditing support.

In June, 2010 City Council approved the staff recommendations outlined in the
report number CS-SS-1013 to Social Services & Housing Committee directing that
the Director of Community Services develop a constructive working relationship
with the Consolidated Municipal Service Manager (CMSM); provide Committee with
work plan of City’s goals in the area of social services & housing; and define
required resources for Council’s consideration.

PURPOSE
The purpose of this report is threefold:

1) to provide Council with a phased work plan:

2) to seek Council’s input, deliberation and approval in principle of its goals;

3) to describe the resource requirements - both one time project resources, and
the base operating support required to a) support the assignment of social
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services to the Community and Social Services Department and b) to achieve
the work plan.

Since local government allocates public resources to policies, services and programs
that are expected to enhance quality of life of residents, it is reasonable to reflect
the need to define a more community based future focus in this regard, as outlined
in this draft work plan.

The 2010 tax levy includes approximately $23 million for Ontario Works, Child Care,
Housing and Employment programs delivered by the County on behalf of the City.
This represents approximately 15% of the 2010 tax levy. At present, the City of
Guelph does not have a comprehensive strategy for social services and housing that
correlates the expenditure of these public civic resources to agreed upon
community driven goals and objectives on health, wellness and quality of life.

While in the past, one would look for a Social Planning strategy, Guelph has the
opportunity to create a more integrated and comprehensive ‘*Community Wellness
Plan for Guelph’ — one that is more holistic and reflective of our neighbourhoods,
their unique identities, the complexity of both the services offered and the range of
providers, and the changing array of social, cultural, economic and environmental
needs of Guelph residents. Therefore, an extensive public process is needed for
both citizens and professional staff to share and deliberate on the Plan’s objectives.

No new resources are required in 2010 for staff to continue to develop and detail
the work plan and propose expansions in the 2011 budget cycle.

REPORT

Current Situation — Functional Alignment of Community and Social Services

On June 29, the Chief Administrative Officer of the City of Guelph implemented a
new Functional Model for the Corporation of the City of Guelph. Included in the
Functional Model is the introduction of the social services oversight function within
the Community Services Department along with direct delivery of arts, culture,
entertainment programs and services, parks and recreational programs and
services, accessibility & inclusion programs and services, municipal building
maintenance services and the ongoing development of community and
neighbourhood engagement practices and processes. The Department is now
renamed as Community and Social Services.

In responding to Councils’ request for a social services work plan, the opportunity
exists to develop a work and resourcing plan that more fully reflects Council’s
challenge to staff to create a more integrated, effective and efficient approach
toward community development and wellness and the delivery of services.

Thus, staff has been undertaking a series of informal conversations with a variety of
community members, stakeholders and potential partners on the topic of
community and social service current and future needs.
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As well, staff is reviewing primary data including citizen opinions about community
needs, sourced to the development of recent Guelph strategies (e.g. the
Recreation, Parks and Culture Master Plan, the Sustainable Neighbourhood
Engagement Framework, Prosperity 2020, Guelph Transit Growth Strategy,
consultations for the Draft Downtown Secondary Plan, Community Energy
Initiatives, Local Immigration Strategy, Substance Abuse Strategy and minutes
from the Poverty Task Force.)

Questions Arising

There appear to be three ‘*high level’ principle questions that if answered, would
respond to current and future areas of community, social, cultural, economic and
environmental areas utilizing the range of expertise attributed to community and
social services. The draft questions are:

1) What is community wellness for Guelph? What does it mean to be “well” in
Guelph and how is it defined by its citizens, neighbourhoods and
communities?

2) How is a state of ‘wellness’ achieved by an individual, and by the
communities of Guelph, and what factors enhance or detract from this
positive state of wellness?

3) To achieve community wellness, what relationships, partnerships, programs,
and services are fundamental to sustaining the desired level of individual and
community wellness? How are these delivered to the community, the
neighbourhoods and the individual? What needs to evolve, be added or
reconsidered? Is there duplication in effort and resourcing? Are the services
and programs being delivered in a way that reflects Guelphs’ values as a
caring community?

Strategic Objectives, Goals and Actions & Operational Needs
To answer these questions, staff propose three (3) primary strategic objectives be
established as the basis of a four year work plan.

Further, base operational support to the Department is also included for 2011 to
reflect the development of a social services portfolio within the Community and
Social Services Department and to respond to requests from the Social Services &
Housing Committee.

A draft of this work plan including actions and a phased timeline is included in
Attachment A. Of note, this proposed plan is phased; its actions subject to Council
approval for resources and the potential of positive applications for funding
partnerships with other levels of government and the private sector.

Strategic Objective #1) Make Transparent what exists and how it works

Goal 1.0 : Inventory, map, assess and understand the array of community, social
and housing programs & services offered by all levels of government and the non
profit sector to residents of Guelph; and define and make clear the current and
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future service delivery models being applied by multiple levels of government and
the sources of funding, both operational and capital.

Action 1.1: Financial Audit (previously approved work)
« Underway
+ Consultant funded - approved

Action 1.2: Build Internal Knowledge/Framework — Map systems
 Underway
e Consultant funded - approved
« Utilizing existing department staff (operational)

Action 1.3: Building Working Relationship with CMSM/County
« Underway
« Utilizing existing department staff (operational)

Action 1.4: Conduct an Inventory & Assessment of Programs & Services
* Not funded
« Project not defined
+ Base operational staff required
e Consultant required

Action 1.5: Conduct a series of meetings with other levels of government to garner
information about current and future service delivery models and legislation

* Not funded

« Project not defined

+ Base operational staff

e Possible Consultant required

Strategic Objective # 2) Focus on Community Wellness

Goal 2.0: By undertaking a neighbourhood based “"Guelph Community Wellness
Plan” we will gain a measurable understanding of how our citizens want to ‘be well’
- both together and individually.

Action 2.1: Scope Projects - Meet with community partners, representatives,
professional staff and service providers to scope (terms of reference) for the
following projects or combination of projects which include:

a) Community Wellness Plan

b) Neighbourhood Identity

c¢) Engagement Processes by Neighbourhood & Communities

d) Guelph Investment Strategy (expanded scope to include Social

Services)

 Underway

« Partial funding available to scope project

e Guelph Investment Strategy funded on more limited scope
($90,000)
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« Base staff required
+ Consultant required

Action 2.2: Examination and possible application to third party funders
« Underway
» Partial consultant funding available
+ Base staff required

Strategic Objective #3) Correlate Resources to Long Term Qutcomes

Goal 3.0: Undertake and complete the development of the "Community Wellness
Plan” et al. ‘Pull forward’, amend, add or amend the current array of programs,
services and partnerships needed to sustain those services, programs and
resources that meet the future focus on wellness in Guelph.

Action 3.1: Build Implementation Model and Process for Implementation Plan at
same time as defining scope/terms of reference for the core projects
 Underway
e Will be built into Action 2.1
* Not funded

Operational Support to Department

This section reflects the base requirements anticipated to support the evolving role
of the social services portfolio within the Community and Social Services
Department. There are two areas of focus at this time, for staff of the department.

Focus 1: Support to the Committee of Council

A primary responsibility of staff is to respond to requests from, provide informed
reports to and facilitate activities required by the Social Services & Housing
Committee. In the long term, it is anticipated that the focus of the Social Services &
Housing Committee will evolve into a Community and Social Services Committee of
Council in 2011 although this change does not reduce the requirement of staff
providing for the Committee. This work will be ongoing and will require base staff
support.

In the short term, Social Services and Housing Committee has requested several
reports and strategies from the County of Wellington’s CMSM staff. Staff will work
to provide the best review, assess and comment upon the reporting of the CMSM as
possible using existing resources.

For the remainder of 2010, existing senior staff will continue to provide direct
support to the Social Services and Housing Committee.

Focus 2: Community Response & Facilitation, CMSM Analysis and Review, Project
Management
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Providing for the development of a good working relationship with the CMSM
including the option of a constructive review and assessment of the current
programs and services worth $23,000,000 per year, requires the establishment of a
base staff resource for the City of Guelph to work both directly with the CMSM and
with consultants.

To further undertake the strategic objectives of the work plan, base staff with social
services, housing and community wellness expertise is required. The success of all
actions rely on a level of expertise and knowledge, internal coordination, external
communications, consultant oversight, project management, and the effective
assessment and analysis of information.

Some project management work may be considered ‘transitional’ in nature. This
may include a contract project manager and a social planner for an extended term
contract.

For 2011, base minimum staff is projected to be:
e Social Services Policy & Program Coordinator - 1.0 FTE
 Program/Research Data Analyst - 1.0 FTE
» Clerical Assistance - 1.0 FTE
e Finance Department Requirement - estimated 0.5 FTE (pending
departmental review)

Rationale for the Work plan

Inherent to this work plan is an understanding of practices and research which
suggest that: cities evolve and are unique; residents come, go, stay and may
fundamentally change the places or neighbourhoods in which they dwell; the
wellness of an individual citizen is linked to the ‘ways and means’ by which the
whole community sustains its wellness; an array of neighbourhood images,
identities and uniqueness of character are important attributes to the overall health
of any city seeking to maintain its independence, sustain its economic,
environment, culture and social strengths.

Further, acknowledging the stress cities and citizens experience in attempting to
respond to the complexities arising from the convergence of key service areas at
the grass roots level, one is reminded of Albert Einstein’s comment (Insanity: doing
the same thing over and over again and expecting different results) and we
therefore are compelled to explore a new way.

Specifically, as municipal government along with its partner service agencies, is
best situated to listen, understand and respond to the wellness needs of its citizens,
it is therefore a problem that the municipality has no authority to direct reasoned
changes to provincially and federally legislated services and programs, to meet the
unique and sensitive needs of its residents. Municipalities may work to influence
change but they have no direct control.

Yet, municipalities are required to pay a portion of these services directly. The 2010
municipal tax levy includes approximately $23,000,000 for Ontario Works, Child
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Care, Housing and Employment programs delivered by the County on behalf of this
Municipality. This represents approximately 15% of the 2010 tax levy.

We need a new way. No wellness problem appears to be in the exclusive purview of
a single group, agency or elected body. Research shows that to address complex
issues, we need to work both “horizontally” with other sectors in the community,
and “vertically” with other levels of government while ‘tapping the working
knowledge and wisdom’ of residents.

Thus, to have any long term impact on community wellness, local government
requires both a comprehensive community strategy and a new relationship with our
provincial and federal government; one that provides municipalities a direct voice
over legislation that directly impacts on our local community.

To ensure that our voice is clear and reflective of our residents, we need a plan. At
present, the City of Guelph does not have a comprehensive plan for social services
and housing that correlates the expenditure of these public resources to agreed
upon civic goals and objectives on health, wellness and quality of life. We do not
have a Community Wellness Plan.

Since local government allocates public resources to policies, services and programs
that are expected to enhance quality of life of residents, neighbourhoods and
communities of interest, and thus, the wellness for its residents; it is reasonable to
ask that we take the time to define the future focus through a community wellness
plan for Guelph, and then ‘pull forward’ those services, programs and resources
that are required to meet the future.

With regard to public engagement processes, we have also learned that cities that
establish engagement processes in a form that are conducive to the needs of
specific neighbourhoods are achieving a healthy level of community ownership for
strategies which enable changes in approaches and behavior. In consideration of an
approach towards achieving the Strategic Directions and Goals of this work plan,
staff would propose that:

« Citizens wish to describe and inform each other about how they (citizens)
want to ‘be well” together, in other words, they define our “community
wellness.” And further, they may wish to describe how achieving this desired
state of ‘wellness’ should be pursued, and at times publically supported, by a
wide range of individual citizens and communities of interest, living distinct
and diverse lives, in Guelph.

« An integrated approach to advance ‘community wellness’ is of importance to
the overall sustainability of Guelphs’ various service providers.

«  We would benefit from a more refined understanding of how citizens wish to
be engaged in the ongoing discussion of ‘wellness’.
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A well community is one in which its citizens speak of their sense of
belonging to the place; their concern for and pride in their neighbourhoods;
and have a willingness to share understandings about what is unique to their
community. Therefore, to grow community wellness and assign an array of
services, programs and strategies appropriately, a combination of data,
experiences and stories need to be expressed by the neighbourhoods and
citizens who frame and see themselves reflected in the places they call
home.

For the development of a future - focused, comprehensive and integrated
community wellness plan, based in a solid understanding of neighbourhood identity
and data, and for the subsequent assessment and correlation of service/program
strategies that achieve ‘wellness’, an extensive public process is needed for both
citizens and professional staff to share and deliberate on the objectives.

The process of consultation will take time and the intention of those participating
will need to be future focused and positive.

To have the necessary range meaningful conversations requires an array of
engagement protocol and those tools need to be tested.

Proposed Next Steps

If Council approves of the direction of the work plan in principle, staff will in the
short term (August - October):

« continue to have ongoing dialogues with the community;

e continue to complete the Financial Audit which is underway;

« continue to build a knowledge framework about the social services and
housing area utilizing approved consultant support

Before the end of the year, staff will:

« utilize remaining existing resources to further scope and detail the terms of
reference for the key long term projects of Community Wellness,
Neighbourhood Identity, Guelph Investment Strategy and an engagement
process;

* pursue alternative funding opportunities and partnerships which will assist in
achieving the projects outlined in work plan, as outlined in Report CSS-SS-
1019;

+ detail the elements of the work plan with partners and internal departments
for consideration in the 2011 budget cycle; these project will require cross
departmental coordination and the involvement of an integrated staff team:

No new resources are required in 2010 for staff to continue to develop and detail
the work plan.
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CORPORATE STRATEGIC PLAN

A number of strategic goals in the City’s strategic plan can be enhanced by a
coordinated approach to the delivery of Social Services and Housing to City of
Guelph residents.

Goal 1: An attractive, well functioning and sustainable city (1.1, 1.3)

Goal 2: A healthy and safe community where life can be lived to the fullest(all)
Goal 3: A diverse and prosperous local economy(3.1,3.2,3.3, 3.5, 3.6)

Goal 4: A vibrant & valued arts, culture & heritage identity(4.5)

Goal 5: A community-focused, responsive and accountable
government(5.1,5.2,5.3,5.4, 5.6, 5.7)

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

No new resources are required in 2010 for staff to continue to develop and detail
the work plan. There is sufficient consultant funds remaining in the Council
approved 2010 allocation of $60,000 as per Report CS-SS-1013 approved in June,
2010. Existing senior staff will continue to provide direct support to the Social
Services and Housing Committee for 2010. If approved, staff will detail the work
plan and required resources as an expansion package, to the 2011 budget
deliberations.

To address the Social Services function into 2011, it is estimated that the base
staffing costs as outlined in this report would be an addition estimated increase of
$260,000 per year for the 3.0 FTE.

The 2010 tax levy includes approximately $23,000,000 for Ontario Works, Child
Care, Housing and Employment programs controlled by the County on behalf of the
City. This represents approximately 15% of the 2010 tax levy. This includes
funding for both mandatory and discretionary services.

The following are estimates for the key unfunded work plan projects over a period
of three years, with the exception of Actions 1.4 & 1.5 (Assessments):

2011 2012 2013

Expense
Community Wellness 150,000 150,000 100,000
Neighbourhood Identity 100,000 100,000
Contract Staff 150,000 150,000

subtotal 400,000 400,000
Potential Funding +150,000 +150,000 TBD
(Grants -tentative)

Net Cost 250,000 250,000

For the purposes of discussion, it is estimated that the combined net cost to the
City for pursing a Community Wellness Plan and a Neighbourhood Identity Strategy
would be approximately $250,000 per year for the next two years, if the City is
successful in its application for alternative funding.
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Additional funding will be required to complete Actions 1.4 & 1.5 namely, the
Assessment of Programs & Services offered by the CMSM (Operating Review) and
costs related to meetings with other levels of government. Costing for this option
will be forthcoming and will be included in the 2011 budget deliberations.

The Guelph Investment Strategy is currently funded (with a lesser scope) at
$90,000.

DEPARTMENTAL CONSULTATION
This report has been prepared in consultation with the Finance Department, and the
office of the CAO, and evolves from ongoing discussions with the community.

COMMUNICATIONS
N/A

ATTACHMENTS
Attachment A: Social Services and Housing Draft Work plan

“f;‘)ﬁf’»/-"%m~ / ;’ e =z /jyv;f—ﬁ
Prepared By: Recommended By:
Barbara Powell Ann Pappert
Manager of Integrated Services and Executive Director
Development Community and Social Services
519-822-1260 ext 2675 519-822-1260 ext. 2665
barbara.powell@guelph.ca ann.pappert@guelph.ca
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Appendix 2

Guelph Vision for a Complete Community

1 A Complete Community Vision
(What we want to be...)

Guelph is a mature community of 120,000 citizens governed by a single tier Page | 1
municipality whose Council is addressing the complexities inherent to economic
and social development in a growing urban centre.

To be successful, Guelph’s future relies on its capacity to maintain its’ unique
attractive identity, increase the quality of life of its residents and in doing so, draw
and retain diverse businesses to secure its economic and social prosperity and to
employ its citizens.

To be sustainable as a competitive urban centre, it is crucial that Guelph governs
as a complete community — meaning, a whole community, inclusive, diverse,
engaged and strategically planned to optimize urban tangible benefits that can
only be gleaned by combining all facets of community life (social, economic,
environmental, health and cultural) into truly sustainable, comprehensive urban
plans that are well informed by its residents, partners and collaborators.

To achieve this future and to be accessible and accountable as a complete
community the Province must grant Guelph the direct oversight and authority to
manage provincially described Social and Public Health services delivered within
its own geographic boundaries and specific to the needs and aspiration of urban
residents of Guelph. Specific to Public Health, Guelph would establish a Guelph
Public Health unit within the approved governance models reviewed and
approved as per the Ministry’s Organizational Standards (Feb, 2011)

Positioned for a transformational change and empowered by Provincial approval
enabling this single tier municipality to plan and govern as a complete
community, Guelph would integrate social services delivery and public health into
the overall community well being plan — fully practicing the principles described in
the Ontario Public Health Standards (2008). These principles would be animated
by Guelphs’ grass root community engagement program which continually strives
to be responsive, open and transparent. Elected officials, citizens and subject
experts would continue to design and refine needs, impacts, capacity and
leverage partnerships and collaborations in the most effective delivery forms.

We seek the leadership of the Province of Ontario to embrace and support in all
ways, Guelphs’ complete community vision.

In the interim, to continue our progress towards this future vision, in 2011,
Council approved the development of a Community Well Being Plan specific to
Guelph.
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2 Discontinuation of “muddling through” governance...
(What is not working ...in a nutshell...)

Guelph is no longer a rural town. The decade(s) old governance model for public

health and social services that might once have served to balance the interests Page | 2
of multiple rural towns, townships and Counties with the base needs of Guelph, is

no longer able, by its very construct, to be responsive to the changing needs of

our growing urban centre. Exhibited tensions between rural and urban are not

unique to the City of Guelph, County of Wellington and County of Dufferin

dynamic.

An increasing divergence of opinion exists between rural and urban perspectives
towards program and service delivery. These differences, sometimes referred to
as an ‘urban / rural cleavage’ arise from differences in values, priorities and local
realities - dissimilar social ideologies made explicit to the public by a growing
antagonism between elected representatives over public policy.

As Guelph has matured into an urban centre, it is to be expected that the
maturity of its social and economic conditions signal the time to depart from the
half century old governance model that combined rural/urban policy. As an
urban centre, defining Guelph specific social determinants of health should
reflect the specific economic and social conditions that shape our residents,
communities and jurisdiction including distinctive indicators of income, education,
employment, food distribution, housing and social networks. That Guelph City
Council should have direct oversight and authority to manage provincially
described social and public health services is reinforced by the position that
“social determinants of health do not exist in a vacuum: their quality and
availability to the population are usually a result of public policy decisions made
by governing authorities.”

Differences of opinion between rural and urban approaches are neither good nor
bad, better nor worse, but different: without a transformation of the model,
officials have little choice but to undertake opposing positions. To forsake a
change in the governance structure is to simply leave local, duly elected
representatives to ‘muddle through’ and as such “political institutions which
purport to cover a region may only be partially intact or engage in a destructive
rivalry with other levels of government.” "

Any historic, anticipated economies of scale expected in this model appear now
to have been diminished. The aptitude required to advance a more
comprehensive, integrated approach towards urban planning is significantly
reduced. The Province has recognized the importance of strengthening local
jurisdictions and has specifically identified single tier municipalities as needing
even greater powers in the social spheres because the wellness of the
Community is so critical to the local jurisdiction.
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For Guelph, the effectiveness and efficiency by which we mobilize and engage
local residents has been impacted, causing frustration and growing distrust
amongst citizens and service providers.

So pressing are these issues and so numerous the concerns from the
community, that the City Council of Guelph has directed staff to undertake a
program and service review of the CMSM (Wellington County) in 2011.

Further, it recently requested that the Ministry of Health and Long Term Care
appoint an assessor under the Health Protection and Promotion Act to
investigate and undertake a review of the Board of Healths’ governance model,
program and service delivery for social services and public health within the
context of a complete community plan.

3 Foundations to build a “Complete Community”
(What is already in place that positions us for this vision?)

Over the last decade of “smart growth’ initiatives, the Municipality of the City of
Guelph has positioned itself to adopt the necessary conditions required to
achieve the goal of being a complete community. Guelph is now in a
transformation position— one ‘that is continually expanding its capacity to create
its future.™

Guelph is nationally known as one of the most “caring communities” in Canada.

Acting to improve the lives of our residents has been in the City of Guelph’s
Vision statement for the last five years which sets a foundation for our future. It
inspires us “to act locally to improve the lives of residents, the broader
community and in doing so, the world” and includes further strategic objectives
for Personal and Community Well Being as a key strategic theme.

Guelph citizens established the direction for the City to act as a ‘complete
community”. They asked the City to provide them with a healthy and safe
community where life can be lived to the fullest and to be a City where diverse
housing options and health care services meet the needs of current and future
generations.

And as part of the strategic planning process 2006-2010 residents asked the City
to simply build Guelph as a ‘complete community’ with services and programs for

children, youth and adults of all ages.

Since 2001 Guelphs’ Official Plan also defined goals signally the intent to act as
a complete community; sections speak of social well being, economic vitality,
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environmental protection and the protection and development of culture, heritage
and the “sense of place.” The high quality of life in the City of Guelph is related to
a healthy natural ecosystem, community services and facilities, educational and
employment opportunities, the availability of infrastructure supportive of
alternative forms of transportation, the community’s relative safety, the vibrancy
of its neighbourhoods and the character of its downtown.

The following represent relevant major goals of the Official Plan:

* Maintain the quality of life, safety and stability of the community.

» Ensure that an adequate supply and range of housing types and
supporting
amenities are provided to satisfy the needs of all residents.

* Provide the facilities to satisfy the social, health, educational and
leisure needs of existing and future residents.

* Promote informed public involvement and education in a user-friendly
planning and development process.

» Utilize an interdisciplinary approach to planning whereby decisions are
made with an understanding of the ecological, social, cultural and
economic implications for any particular course of action.

Over the last decade, Guelph has built a solid reputation for leading sustainable
and progressive planning in the realms of environmental, economic and cultural
development. One example is our internationally acclaimed “Community Energy
Plan” Guelph has proven its capacity to initiate progressive approaches well and
is known throughout North America. We continue to partner and support our
collaborations with the Province of Ontario in the areas of energy, water, power,
sustainable food systems and green policy developments, as well as the
Provincial Places to Grow Initiatives and Local Immigration Strategies. The
municipality is actively working in an integrated manner to support the Ontario
Poverty Reduction Strategy with local groups focused on food security, access to
transportation and recreational programs.

Community Engagement in Social and Public Health Development

Over the same period of time, working cooperatively with a wide range of
community residents, partners and service agencies, Guelph residents, staff and
elected officials lead or contributed to over twenty community, social and health
related plans. These plans were all designed to respond to pressing community
issues in an inclusive and collaborative way.

The City has a long history of working with volunteer driven neighbourhood
groups to identify urban needs, to build capacity within the groups to nurture
partnerships and collaboration between service providers and residents.
Together, we provide access to leisure, recreation and social services in a
responsive way and respectful way. Today, our Guelph residents are quite
civically engaged and expect meaningful opportunities to dialogue and influence
how services and programs will be delivered to them.
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Guelph can attest to its proclivity for progressive, integrated planning as
demonstrated in collaborating with partners to establish the Shelldale Centre — A
Village of Support in 2001. This successful decentralized service delivery model
is ‘grass roots’ community driven and continues to provide direct neighbourhood
access to eight local organizations including public, community and mental
health services, employment and immigration services and family and children’s
services.

However, there is pressure to resolve urban strategic planning and integrate to
take advantage of service delivery opportunities. Guelph recognizes the need to
work together on ‘root’ causes to issues affecting the determinants of health. It is
currently aligning its spheres of jurisdiction to integrate planning, recreation,
transportation, affordable housing, support community vitalization efforts and
create employment.

City Council and staff have been committed to ensuring that health care and
social services delivery plans meet the needs all current and future generations
of Guelph residents. Almost all municipal policy is linked to the well being of the
community and draws upon the strategic alignment of integrated plans and
resources distributed across social, economic, environmental and cultural
disciplines.

Examples include:

* Growth plans that are environmentally & socially sustainable

» Patterns of development that foster a sense of place, belonging and home

» Provision of clean water, maintenance of sewage systems and waste
disposal

* Provision of adequate housing and shelters for a variety of needs.

» Transportation — pedestrian friendly, bike friendly, urban design

» Walkable neighbourhoods — services delivery in ‘hubs/clusters’
decentralized

» Distinct services matching neighbourhoods e.g. Shelldale (A village of
Support)

» Recreation, Culture and Leisure activities that promote health and
connections

» Links to police, fire, emergency services - obvious synergies and
opportunities for planning and delivery.

Our “Future Focus” Project: A Community Well Being Plan 2011+

To continue our progress towards this future vision, in 2011 Council approved the
development of a Community Well Being Plan specific to Guelph. The
development of this Plan provides a unique opportunity for community members
to create and communicate a shared vision for their individual and community
wide ‘well being’ in Guelph. This shared vision, once created, has the potential
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to affect change in the community — perhaps transformational - and has the
weight to influence partners, decision makers, service providers as well as policy
makers at the provincial and federal levels of government.

The Community Well Being Plan intends to establish a series of coordinated
strategies that share a clear set of goals intended to lead improvements in citizen Page|6
well being. It would answer:

1. What does it mean to be ‘well in Guelph as defined by its citizens,
neighbourhoods and communities?

2. How is a state of ‘well being’ achieved by an individual, the communities and
neighbourhoods of Guelph? What factors enhance or detract from this
positive state?

3. What relationships, partnerships, programs, and services are fundamental to
sustaining the desired level of individual and community well being?

4. How are these delivered to the community, the neighbourhoods and the
individual?

5. Is there duplication in effort and resourcing?

In many ways, the foundation of the Community Well being Plan reflects the
findings and modeling created by Juha Mikkonen and Dennis Raphael as
outlined in their work “Social Determinants of Health: The Canadian Facts
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This Plan will determine the specific, urban requirements which contribute to
individual, social and community quality of life through an integrated approach
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towards the following variables:
e environment
* education opportunities
* leisure and cultural activities
e community vitality & work /life balance
« health care and social services Page | 7
* living standards
* democratic engagement.

The Community Well Being Plan sets a ‘go forward’ framework for Guelph’s
Complete Community vision in four distinct ways:

1. As afiscally responsible business tool, an integrated and comprehensive
‘Community Wellness Plan for Guelph’, would enable the City to ensure that
this significant expenditure (our 2010 tax levy included $23M for Ontario
Works, Child Care, Housing and Employment programs) was directed in the
most effective way that reflected community need and future aspirations.
This Plan would, in effect, become the foundational document informing
Guelph’s community, social and health services that would enable the
effective and cost efficient deployment of this significant tax levy. For
example, as a City that provides a wide variety of services and programs, this
can mean better services, delivered more efficiently in a way that meets the
needs and expectations of tax payers.

Getting things right the first time, can reduce costs, improve community/user
satisfaction and make a significant difference to an individual’s well-
being/quality of life.

2. ltis a platform for social innovation. The Community Well-being Plan aims to
become a platform for the creation of innovative and cross sectoral
partnerships and collaborations that can more effectively coordinate collective
efforts to achieve well-being and address complex social and health issues in
new ways. The City of Guelph clearly understands that government cannot
‘do it all’ and that private sector, along with philanthropy cannot address the
growing gaps. New models for social innovation are being tested locally to
leverage the power of the non profits and NGO'’s to work in more
entrepreneurial ways and Guelph is working to be part of this movement.
Therefore, it is not intended that the Plan will be ‘owned’ and delivered solely
by the City; it aims to be a ‘community owned’ and delivered plan.

3. Community engagement results in increased participation and action to
produce impacts and outcomes across multiple spheres of interests. Guelph
is a leader in Community Engagement. The Community Well-being Plan
aims to develop a range of tools and easily accessible pathways for creative
and innovative engagement of the whole Community to be part of ‘community
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change’ activity - to contribute in small and large ways from setting
community goals to supporting each other to achieve them.

4. ‘Joined up’ service provision makes for effective policy making between
sectors, service providers, community organizations and layers of
government. Individuals come into contact with public services/programs and
are impacted by public policy in almost every sphere of their lives. Service
users are often faced with a myriad of confusing and disjointed service
access points that are difficult to identify access and navigate. This is
changing locally. Guelph is the home of many successful collaborations and
partnerships that aim to address these challenges. The Community Well-
being Plan aims to support this dialogue and facilitate opportunities for more
‘joined up’ working across those in the community that provide services,
programs and develop a variety of public policy. Itis also envisaged that the
development and ongoing evaluation of the Plan will facilitate improved
knowledge, information and data sharing as a community; all fundamental to
making better evidence based decisions.

4 A Guelph Public Health / Social Services Framewo  rk
(How we can build upon our foundation of work and what we would do to achieve shared
goals and objectives to implement the change?

Preamble

City of Guelph is committed to community engagement, partnerships and
collaborations.

We believe that - to provide quality services and support that effectively meet the
needs of the community - the community itself and local organizations must be
fully engaged in the work that we do; involved in key strategic decisions and in
the development of new services, programs and facilities.

Positioned for a transformational change and empowered by Provincial approvals
The Council of the City of Guelph (a duly elected body representing the people of
Guelph) should govern as a complete community. The City Guelph would utilize
its Community Well Being Plan to frame how best to integrate social services
delivery and public health to meet the local needs of residents of Guelph. We
would ensure the provision of a comprehensive, diverse and defined range of
integrated clinical services and social supports delivered to meet local urban
community needs.

Further, established community engagement practices and a more
comprehensive understanding of the priority needs of distinct neighbourhoods,
would enable Guelph to fully practice and exceed the principles of Need, Impact,
Capacity and Partnership / Collaboration as defined by the Ontario Public Health
Standards (2008).

Page | 8
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Guelph Public Health Unit: A Model
As a single-tier municipality, we propose to establish one of the following two
existing governance models for Guelph:

o Single-Tier Governance Model: Boards are Councils of Single-Tier
Municipalities (areas with only one level of municipal government);  Page|9
no citizen representatives; no provincial appointees

o0 Semi-Autonomous Governance Model (a subset of Single-Tier):

Single-Tier Council appoints members to a separate “board of
health” including citizen representatives; Council approves budget
and staffing; no provincial appointees.

It would be best positioned to:

* embrace a receptive, open and engaging Guelph based governance model
that would ensure the delivery of coordinated health care services in an urban
environment

e actin an open and transparent manner; accountable to the Province and
local tax payers benefiting from appropriate support for its administration and
for the allocation of resources,

* enjoy a series of grass roots, Guelph based community engagement
practices that fostered constant and consistent communications, collaboration
and consultation,

e design and refine needs, impacts, capacity and leverage partnerships and
collaborations in the most effective delivery forms using evidence based
practices and community

Benefits:
Existing Guelph City Governance

Guelph Council directs its staff to ensure that our governance and administration
is community focused, responsive and accountable.

Specifically, we are:
» Consultative and collaborative in approach to community decision making
* Open, accountable and transparent conduct of municipal business
» Build Partnerships to achieve strategic goals and objectives

Specific to Social Services and Public Health Services, we would:
» Expect health care services to be coordinated and delivered in an open
and transparent manner; to be openingly accountable for funds allocated
for the provision of these services;

» Put great value on the alignment of specialized needs and resources to
respond to the specific needs of the local urban community of Guelph.
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* Expect and encourage continued improvement and change to mirror
community changes — services, programs and delivery models evolve with
community dynamics.

» Expect a rationale for decisions based upon a method using broad range
of knowledge and information about the community, with the community,  Page| 10
partners and collaborators involved in creating well being.

» Parallel communications strategies to inform the Board, community,
partners and collaborators on actions and initiatives.

» Appreciation and skills in dealing with sensitive, complex topics effectively
e.g. condom distribution, sex education, screening, testing, privacy and
guarantining practices.

Support for Implementation

Guelph benefits from a level of organizational and administrative maturity in
practice and approach. There are clear City Council objectives— seeking
organizational excellence in planning, management, human resources and
people practices.

Our practices also encourage front line responses to problem identification of
chronic local urban problems and by our Values of Integrity, Excellence and Well
Being, we continue to create greater respect for and trust in diverse
competencies within the structure of local government and the community we
serve.

We are a learning organization — a collaborative respecting social interaction with
the community and characterized by our continued efforts to master focused
consultative process supported by listening, civic staff.

Staff would be encouraged to explore new change management models and
processes to ensure that our complete community vision advances with best
practices.

Obijectives: Changed Management of Social Services and Public Health:

In working with the community to plan as a complete community, in the
immediate, Guelph would focus on 3 key principles:

1. Ensuring community engagement and voice in decisions affecting the
community;

2. Align all new programs, services and facilities to approved strategic plans
and service delivery models, ensuring community plans have had the
investment of time from communities, stakeholders and the public.
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3. Accessible and response to priority groups — ensuring that those who

experience barriers have been sufficiently engaged to ensure that
elimination of barriers to accessing services.

Our practice specific to developing facilities is to ensure that the public,
stakeholders and partners’ needs are inventoried and assessed as part of a
strategic planning process and that the needs arising from those strategies are
prioritized, costed and then functionally designed to be financially effective to
operate and accessible and available to the community being served.

Further, the following key performance changes would be measured and
endorsed:

Service & Program Planning:

Practices would be holistic, integrated and where required,
transformational.

The practice of public involvement in planning and delivery of programs
and services of health would be fully consultative, incorporating voice of
citizens, clients, partners in the design, delivery and evaluation of
programs and services in Guelph.

Service delivery within the community to be easily accessible.
Acknowledge unigue dynamics of urban and neighbourhood population —
120,000 citizens with distinct, sometimes divergent needs, comfort with
pace of change, capacity to be flexibility and to respond to engagement
processes.

Partners and collaborators would be directly involved in discussions
regarding an integrated and financially efficient resource allocation with
the goal of reducing any duplication of services.

Leverage partnerships and alternative delivery models to achieve goals.
Define central vs. decentralized service delivery models specific to Guelph
community needs.

Use of epidemiological data to support planning.

Efficiencies — Management & Areas of Administrative support from City of
Guelph

Deliver more cost effective services within the existing administrative
structures, creating further efficiencies combined within the City of Guelph.
Seek Quality Assurance Measures and community relevant performance
metrics

Performance Reporting

Procurement Planning and Audit

Contract management and review

Organizational Learning and Development

Legal, Information Technology and Human Resources / Labour Relations

Page |11
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» Capital Facility Development
* Communication & Public Engagement Approaches

Financial Planning and Fiscal Prudence
» Direct accountability to taxpayers for services delivered
» Opportunities to leverage tax dollars to achieve multiple goals amongst Page | 12
community agencies

5 Conclusion

As a mature single tier urban municipality, through a duly elected Council,
serving the diverse needs of a growing community, Guelph must be empowered
to serve its residents in all aspects of community living, as a complete
community.

The Guelph Vision for a Complete Community inspires residents of Guelph to
work with the Province of Ontario, partners, collaborators and service agents to
construct truly sustainable and integrated community plans that combine all
facets of community life into well being. Positioned for social innovation, Guelph
must define its own realistic and authentic approach to delivering government
services and programs utilizing its capacity for collaboration, cooperation and
cross-sectoral partnerships to address complex urban issues in new ways.

Old governance models that might once served to interests of the rural towns
and communities of the day, no longer serve and respond to the needs of a
growing urban centre. The current models only serve to accentuate and isolate
diverging perspectives and priorities leading to antagonism and discord amongst
elected officials striving to respond to their communities aspirations. The result is
growing dissatisfaction and distrust for the capacity of government to
purposefully address change.

Our residents are demanding an open, transparent and accountable system for
governance and evidence that those planning and delivery programs and
services are doing so in the most efficient and effective ways.

Guelph is poised through our engagement practices to develop a community well
being plan that will form a foundation to develop and deliver a whole community
in an integrated, collaborative and transformational way. We have a track record
for delivering innovative plans and delivery models. It is an idea whose time has
come for Guelph.
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Making a Difference

DATE February 23, 2011

TO Mayor and Councillors

FROM Barbara Powell

DIVISION Community Engagement and Social Services Liaise

DEPARTMENT Community and Social Services Department
SUBJECT Community Wellbeing Plan

The creation of a Community Wellbeing Plan forms a critical and central pillar to the
Community and Social Services Department, Social Services work plan. The work
plan developed under the direction of the Social Services and Housing Committee
and was approved in principle by Council on August 30, 2010 (report #CSS-SS-
1019) and the required resources referred to the 2011 budget deliberations. Three
critical questions form the basis for the production of the Community Wellbeing Plan
and the Social Services broader work plan. These questions are;

1. What is community wellness for Guelph? What does it mean to be ‘well’ in
Guelph and how is it defined by its citizens, neighbourhoods and communities?

2. How is a state of ‘wellness’ achieved by an individual, and by the communities
of Guelph, and what factors enhance or detract from this positive state of
wellness?

3. To achieve community wellness, what relationships, partnerships, programs,
and services are fundamental to sustaining the desired level of individual and
community wellness? How are these delivered to the community, the
neighbourhoods and the individual? What contributes positively to wellness and
what needs to evolve, be added or reconsidered? Is there duplication in effort
and resourcing? Are the current services being delivered in a way that reflects
Guelph’s’ values as a caring community?

What is the Community Wellbeing Plan?

Community wellbeing is understood to be a holistic concept that describes an
optimum, positive state of being. A Community Wellbeing Plan for Guelph would
include a set of coordinated and change focused strategies that share a clear set of
goals intended to lead improvements in wellbeing. This type of plan is not intended
to be a static document, but an ongoing community process created to act as a
catalyst for action that will improve wellbeing.

The development of the Community Wellbeing Plan provides a unique opportunity
for community members to create and communicate a shared vision for their
individual and community wide ‘wellbeing” in Guelph. This shared vision, once
created, has the potential to affect change in the community and has the weight to
influence partners, decision makers, service providers and policy makers at the
provincial and federal levels of government.



Guelph is not alone in attempting to define and achieve wellbeing, and a number of
definitions have been created both within Canada and beyond. Some examples in
Canada include Headwaters Communities in Action (Dufferin County), Windsor
Essex Wellbeing Report and The Genuine Progress Index — Nova Scotia. Indeed
numerous governments around the world, including those within Canada (federally
and provincially) have embarked upon a new way of understanding and striving for
societal progress that goes beyond traditional economic measurements (e.g. Gross
Domestic Product) These definitions often identify of a number of ‘domains’ that
elaborate on the concept of wellbeing. One good example of this is the Canadian
Index of Wellbeing that describes wellbeing as:

"The presence of the highest possible quality of life in its full breadth of expression
focused on but not necessarily exclusive to: good living standards, robust health, a
sustainable environment, vital communities, an educated populace, balanced time
use, high levels of democratic participation, and access to and participation in
leisure and culture.”

Staff is initially looking at this definition as a starting point for broader discussion.

The Canadian Index for Wellbeing Network is a global leader in the exploration and
measurement of wellbeing and is affiliated with the University of Waterloo. Its
mission is to report on the quality of life of Canadians, and to evaluate changes in
this quality of life over time. It also aims to stimulate dialogue on how to improve
the quality of life of Canadians through evidence based policy making and other
means. Their index, focuses around eight different categories (domains);
democratic engagement, living standards, healthy populations, time use, leisure &
culture, community vitality, education and environment.

Figure 1: Canadian Index of Wellbeing - Eight Domains of Wellbeing
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report high levels of time pressure), and have been developed through a lengthy
process of research and validation to ensure that they reflect Canadian values.

It will be important that the City works with the community and local organizations
(small and large) to develop a set of meaningful wellbeing domains and supporting
indicators that sets Guelph firmly on its unique path for community wellbeing. The
Plan will also explore how wellbeing might be defined and achieved at a
neighbourhood level too. This is particularly important as different neighbourhoods
can express their own identity and have their own needs, aspirations and
challenges.

Why create the Community Wellbeing Plan?

A Business Planning Tool

The 2010 tax levy included approximately $23 million for Ontario Works, Child
Care, Housing and Employment programs delivered by the County on behalf of the
City; representing approximately 15% of the 2010 tax levy. Yet, the City does not
currently have a ‘comprehensive strategy for social services and housing that
correlates the expenditure of these public civic resources to agreed upon
community driven goals and objectives on health, wellness and quality of life.” In
effect this means that currently, the City does not have a robust plan that
effectively directs how this money is being spent, nor do residents have adequate
opportunity to assess if they are receiving value for money or not.

An integrated and comprehensive ‘Community Wellness Plan for Guelph’, would
enable the City to ensure that this significant expenditure was directed in the most
effective way that reflected community need and future aspirations. This Plan
would, in effect, become the bedrock for the production of a robust business plan
for Community and Social Services that would enable the effective and cost efficient
deployment of this significant tax levy.

A Platform for Social Innovation

The Community Wellbeing Plan aims to become a platform for the creation of
innovative and cross sectoral partnerships/collaborations that can more effectively
coordinate collective efforts to achieve wellbeing and address complex social issues
in new ways.

When we speak of a Community Wellbeing Plan it is important to highlight that this
Plan will only be as effective as the partnerships, collaborations and community
leadership that create it and take action to implement it.

It is not intended that the Plan will be ‘owned’ and delivered solely by the City; it
aims to be a ‘community owned’ and delivered plan.

Community engagement results in increased participation and action
The Community Wellbeing Plan aims to develop a range of tools and easily
accessible pathways for creative and innovative engagement of the whole



Community to be part of ‘community change’ activity - to contribute in small and
large ways from setting community goals to supporting each other to achieve them.

Community Engagement is another way of saying that a community is at the heart
of local decision making, and that community members are supported to actively
participate in making a positive difference to their own lives and to their broader
community. The benefits of authentic and effective community engagement are
numerous. For example, as a City that provides a wide variety of services and
programs, this can mean better services, delivered more efficiently in a way that
meets the needs and expectations of tax payers. Getting things right the first time,
can reduce costs, improve community/user satisfaction and make a significant
difference to an individual’s wellbeing/quality of life.

‘Joined up’ service provision and effective policy making between sectors,
service providers, community organizations and layers of government

Individuals come into contact with public services/programs and are impacted by
public policy in almost every sphere of their lives. All too often those who plan
these services and develop these policies do not work together enough to ensure
that their decisions complement one another to achieve shared goals. More
importantly service users are often faced with a myriad of confusing and disjointed
service access points that are difficult to identify, access and navigate. This is
changing locally, and Guelph is the home of many successful collaborations and
partnerships that aim to address these challenges.

The Community Wellbeing Plan aims to support this dialogue and facilitate
opportunities for more ‘joined up” working across those in the community that
provide services, programs and develop a variety of public policies. It is also
envisaged that the development and ongoing evaluation of the Plan will facilitate
improved knowledge, information and data sharing as a community; all
fundamental to making better evidence based decisions.

How will the Community Wellbeing Plan be created?

Since the Community Wellbeing Plan was approved in principal by Council in August
2010, the Community and Social Services Department have undertaken some
preliminary research aimed to clarify central definitions for key terms such as
‘wellbeing” and ‘community planning” and identify and learn from other communities
who have attempted to identify, measure and improve community wellbeing
through community engagement activity and other means.

Furthermore, staff has gained a current snap shot of local strategic planning efforts
designed to support various components of individual and community ‘wellbeing’.
This work will help the City identify potential partners, stakeholders and key
informants for engagement in the project and will be used to avoid duplication of
efforts, for mutual learning, and to build upon the work of existing community
initiatives.



This information positions staff to work with stakeholders in the development of
comprehensive terms of reference for the Community Wellbeing Plan project. As a
basis for this discussion, a draft high level process for the development of the
Community Wellbeing Plan (figure 2) is being proposed.

This planning process is intended to be one that embraces continual learning and
development, and is grounded at each stage through;

1) review, monitoring and evaluation

2) communication and partnership building
3) decision making and action

4) community engagement and involvement.

If this is to be a truly ‘community’ based plan, it is of vital importance that local
stakeholders are fully involved from the beginning.

It is anticipated that the initial Plan will take between 12 and 18 months to create,
although its delivery partnerships, collaborations and supporting processes/
mechanisms will take longer to become fully developed and embedded.

Partnerships
Of note, this project is closely related to an interdependent partnership
development project being led by the University of Guelph.

The City is a proposed key partner in this project which is seeking a Social Services
and Humanities Research Council (SSHRC) grant over the next three years. This
project '‘Engaging for Change: Practicing Collaboration and Planning in Guelph-
Wellington’ has gained support and commitment from several local social services
agencies with an interest in improving community engagement, collaborative and
partnership networks, and social planning in the local area.

It is anticipated that the Community Plan for Wellbeing project will take account of

and build on the learning, research and new ways of working that arise from this
work.

Figure 2: Community Wellbeing Plan: A Proposed Planning Process



A Proposed Planning Process
Through Community Engagement

Action Planning

Data Gathering Activities Grounding in Evidence

Communication & Partnership Building Tasks "W Visioning

Internal Planning

Decisions & Actions (already underway)

Conclusions

The Community Wellbeing Plan will change the way the City, local community and
local organizations plan and work together to achieve community goals. It will lead
to practical, actionable strategies that build on Guelph’s strengths and assets and
complement other planning processes currently underway. Not only does it intend
to improve community wellbeing as defined by the community itself, but it will
further enhance the City’s reputation as a great place to live, work and play.

Financial Implications
The $165,000 requested in the 2011 budget will support the planning process

outlined in Figure 2. $60,000 of the funding will specifically leverage the support
requested in the Social Services and Humanities Research Council grant to train and
support community researchers (city residents) to gather information about well
being in their neighbourhoods, and to conduct community asset mapping. The
funds will also support graduate students to undertake literature and best practice
reviews of collaborative approaches and to develop and pilot test these approaches,
as well as to explore various governance approaches to collaborative initiatives. The
remaining $105,000 will be used to augment the preliminary best practice review
on community well being plans, undertake engagement activities within the
community to define well being, develop a communications strategy and manage
the development of the plan, aligning it with other corporate and community
initiatives including the CMSM review. Some funds will be earmarked for capacity
building in the corporation to undertake a broader range of community engagement
activities.

Barbara Powell
General Manager

Community Engagement and Social Services Liaise
Community and Social Services Department
Location: 1 Carden Street
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COMMITTEE Guelph
REPORT —P0

Making a Difference

TO Community and Social Services Committee

SERVICE AREA Community and Social Services - Arts, Culture &
Entertainment Division
DATE June 14, 2011

SUBJECT Public Art Policy
REPORT NUMBER CSS-ACE-1121

SUMMARY

Purpose of Report: The Public Art Policy & Program - Framework of
Principles (CS-CU-0821) was approved by Council in October 2008. The
Framework outlined the need for and benefits of a public art program and policy
for the City of Guelph and provided guidelines for policy development.

This report package establishes the Public Art Policy, defines the procedures for
implementing a Public Art Program and creates a reasonable financial reserve to
both maintain the current collection of the City and to phase the implementation
of the program in relationship to City growth.

Council Action: To approve the formal Public Art Policy, to establish the
public art reserve fund and funding mechanism, and to establish a Public Art
Committee as a subcommittee of the Cultural Advisory Committee.

RECOMMENDATIONS

THAT report #CSS-ACE-1121 dated June 14, 2011 regarding the Public Art Policy
for Guelph be approved;

AND THAT the Public Art Policy as attached to this report be approved;
AND THAT the Public Art Reserve Fund be established, with funding to the reserve
for the first three years coming from the allocation of $100,000 of the previous

year’s operating surplus, if a surplus is available;

AND THAT staff be directed to establish a Public Art Committee as a subcommittee
of the Cultural Advisory Committee.
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BACKGROUND

The Public Art Policy & Program - Framework of Principles (CS-CU-0821, attached
as Appendix 1) was approved by Council in October 2008. The Framework outlined
the need for and benefits of a public art program and policy for the City of Guelph
and provided guidelines for policy development.

In addition to approving the framework of principles, the following
recommendations were also approved:

e THAT staff be directed to draft a public art policy as per the Framework of
Principles for Council consideration and report back to Council in 2009
including the following components in their policy presentation:

o Terms of reference for a Public Art Advisory Committee

o Financial projection and funding formula for projects and
administration

o Plan for involving private sector participation

o Procedural guidelines to facilitate the program

o Requirements for the management of the collection.

« THAT staff utilize the Framework of Principles to pilot the commissioning of
public art for the Civic Square project; and

« THAT a phased approach towards the implementation of a public art policy be
considered by Council once the public art policy is fully approved.

While the City of Guelph has not had a formal Public Art Policy or program for
commissioning or accepting artwork, the acquiring and locating of artworks in
public space is not new to Guelph. A number of artworks are located on public
property including a bust of John Galt, the Family Fountain, the Blacksmith
Fountain, the War Memorial, the Copper Wall at the River Run Centre, and the
Millennium Time Sculpture.

In addition to finalizing the public art policy from the previously approved
Framework of Principles, this report also sets out a funding mechanism and a
comprehensive inventory and long term maintenance plan for the existing collection
of artworks owned by the City.

REPORT

For the purposes of the policy, Public Art is defined as creative works, not
necessarily those of professional artists, which are acquired by the City of Guelph
with the specific intention of being sited on or staged in municipally owned public
space.

Public Art enhances public spaces and may commemorate history or make a
statement about the present or the future. Over 160 cities in North America have
adopted and implemented public art policies and programs. Benefits of public art
include social interaction, citizenship, community connectivity, beautification,
community identity and economic catalysts.
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The proposed Public Art Policy outlines:

+ A standardized and transparent process for the growth and maintenance of a
civic public art collection;

e The roles and responsibilities of the many different partners involved in a
public art program;

« A sustainable funding model for the acquisition of public art and for the care
of the existing collection; and

« A philosophical position of the city to ensure that all citizens can access and
participate in the cultural social and economic development opportunities
arising from public art.

The establishment of a Public Art Committee, as a subcommittee of the newly
formed Cultural Advisory Committee, sets out a governance and decision making
model in which decisions about public art are done at arm’s length to Council.
Rather, the decisions are both community based and community driven.

Funding to support the Public Art Policy will be provided through the establishment
of a Public Art Reserve Fund. Staff explored a variety of options for how this
reserve should be funded, including the current best practice model followed by
most municipalities in North America.

One potential model investigated by staff for the funding mechanism of the Public
Arts Reserve Fund, and the model that is widely accepted as the best practice
model for municipalities, is a “percentage for public art” strategy. Under this
model, the percentage for public art would be calculated at 1% of the total
construction cost of any city capital projects over $100,000 and processed through
the 10 year capital planning model. The maximum allocation in any given year at
the 1% contribution would be capped at $300,000.

This model gives municipalities the ability to directly link public art opportunities to
the rate of growth and development in the City. This is achieved by ensuring that
the contribution to the public art reserve is directly proportional to the value of the
capital projects initiated each year (limited to those capital projects that are funded
through Capital Reserves and Debt, and not through development charges or other
reserve funds).

However, due to the financial constraints of the capital budget over the next few
years, staff is recommending an alternate model as an interim funding mechanism.
For the years 2012 - 2014, funding to the reserve would come from an allocation of
$100,000 of the previous year’s operating surplus. If there is no operating surplus
for a particular fiscal year there would be no contribution to the reserve for that
year.

This funding model will be re-evaluated at the end of the initial three year period,
and CSS staff will work with Finance to develop and recommend to Council a
permanent funding mechanism.
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CORPORATE STRATEGIC PLAN

For the City of Guelph, a Public Art Policy and program serves to implement several
key objectives of the City’s Strategic Plan from 2007, as well as goals stated in the
2011 draft mission plan.

From the 2007 Strategic Plan
Goal #4 A vibrant and valued arts, culture and heritage identity
4.2 Numerous opportunities for artistic appreciation, expression and
development
4.5 Capitalize on our cultural and heritage assets to build economic prosperity,
quality of life and community identity

From the 2011 Draft Mission:
We build a well-desighed and appealing city that celebrates a thriving economic,
social, cultural and environmentally-sustainable community

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

For the first three years (2012 - 2014), funding to the reserve will come from the
allocation of $100,000 of the previous year’s operating surplus.

In regards to the condition of the current artworks in the City’s collection, staff has
undertaken a condition assessment to establish what conservation work needs to
be done in the short-term, and then what amount of money needs to be allocated
for ongoing maintenance of each piece. The initial estimate for conservation costs is
between $20,000 and $30,000 and that work would take place in 2012 and would
be funded out of the Public Art Reserve Fund.

A detailed breakdown of the current collection, the key conservation concerns and
the estimated costs of conservation and maintenance can be found in the
attachment “City of Guelph Current Art Inventory”. Staff has documented the
conservation concerns with photographs, and examples are also included in the
attached document.

DEPARTMENTAL CONSULTATION

The following departments and divisions were asked to provide input on the draft
Public Art Policy:

Office of the CAO - Downtown Renewal

Operations & Transit Department

Finance Department

Legal Department

Corporate Building Maintenance

Planning & Building, Engineering and Environment Department
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Additionally, the Finance Department was asked for input on the establishment of
the reserve fund, and the method for funding the reserve.

COMMUNICATIONS

Over the past four years, through the development of the framework of principles
and the public art policy staff has consulted with staff at the Guelph Arts Council
and the Macdonald Stewart Art Centre. Further communications and community
consultation will take place through the Public Art Committee and the Cultural
Advisory Committee as the policy is put into place and the funding mechanism
established.

ATTACHMENTS

Appendix 1: CS-CU-0821 - Public Art Policy & Program - Framework of Principles
(October, 2008)

Appendix 2: Corporate Policy — Public Art Policy

Appendix 3: Current inventory of Public Art in the City’s permanent collection

%M

Prepared By: Recommended By:

Astero Kalogeropoulos Colleen Clack

Arts & Culture Program Officer General Manager of Arts, Culture &
Entertainment

519-822-1260 ext.2629 519-822-1260 ext. 2588

astero.kalogeropoulos@guelph.ca colleen.clack@guelph.ca

Recommended By:

Bob Burchett

Acting Executive Director
Community & Social Services
519-822-1260 ext. 2664
Bob.burchett@guelph.ca
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COMMITTEE Guelph
REPORT —P0

Making a Difference

TO Emergency Services, Community Services and
Operations Committee

SERVICE AREA Community Services
DATE October 15, 2008

SUBJECT Public Art Policy & Program - Framework of Principles
REPORT NUMBER CS-CU-0821

RECOMMENDATION

THAT report # CS-CU-0821 of the Director of Community Services dated October
15, 2008 providing background on public art and a draft framework for proceeding
with the development of a public art policy and program for Guelph, be received;
and,

THAT the Framework of Principles as outlined in Attachment A of report CS-CU-
0821 be approved in principle; and

THAT staff be directed to draft public art policy as per the Framework of Principles
for Council consideration and report back to Council in 2009 including the following
components in their policy presentation:

« Terms of reference for a Public Art Advisory Committee

e Financial projection and funding formula for projects and administration
« Plan for involving private sector participation

e Procedural guidelines to facilitate the program

« Requirements for the management of the collection.

THAT staff utilize the Framework of Principles to pilot the commissioning of public
art for the Civic Square project; and

That a phased approach towards the implementation of a public art policy be
considered by Council once the public art policy is fully approved.

BACKGROUND

The purpose of this report is to provide Council with background on public art and
to outline a policy framework of principles to be used to frame the development of a
draft public art policy for Guelph.

The concept of public art is not modern; every civilization has produced art works -
from commemorative to the vernacular; a statue of a famous person to decorative
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paving stones embedded in a sidewalk. The acquiring and locating of artworks in
public space is not new to Guelph; a number of artworks are located on public
property including a bust of John Galt, the Family Sculpture, the Blacksmith Statue,
the War Memorial and Copper Wall at the River Run Centre and most recently, the
Millennium Time Sculpture. The Guelph Arts Council has created a Guide to Public
Art in Guelph, which identifies both historical and contemporary works located in
the downtown, University of Guelph, at several churches and on the grounds of the
MacDonald Steward Art Gallery. They have also recently overseen the
commissioning of the Millennium Time Sculpture.

However, the City of Guelph does not have a formal Public Art Policy or program for
commissioning or accepting artwork. Guelph’s existing artwork policy is outdated; it
neither addresses stewardship artworks nor does it anticipate and respond to
opportunities (public or private) for development of art in public spaces.

In 2008, Guelph’s Cultural Advisory Committee identified the need to develop a
formal Public Art Policy and program which would:

1. Define a fair and equitable commissioning process that ensures that the artwork
and creative concepts of artists become part of the planning, design and
development of public space so as to ensure that these places are visually
stimulating and community oriented;

2. Define a sustainable funding model linked to the construction of civic facilities
and amenities;

3. Ensure that the program is well reasoned and respects current fiscal realities
including meeting Council’s strategic objectives;

4. Create a public art master plan that makes the best use of several city

departments and the community, in determining appropriate sites for locating

public artworks;

Respond to private offers to donate art works to the city;

Respond to partnerships with the private sector in the development of public

space that is accessible to the general public.

oW

REPORT
Public Art Defined

Public art is artwork that is accessible to the public. It is created in any material
and is planned and executed with the specific intention of being sited or staged in
the public domain. It is usually located outside and is accessible to all (Wikipedia)
but it may also be internally located or integrated, semi integrated or free standing.
Public art is characterized as ‘commissioned, site specific, community reflective and
collaboratively decided.’

Public art is also defined as any art form of aesthetic expression resulting in an
object or expression that contributes value to its community. The outcome could be
art works that celebrate an individual or event and may have functional as well as
aesthetic qualities.
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It can be permanent or temporary and may be any, but not limited to the following:

Sculpture Street Furniture
Architectural or Architectural detail Decorative Gates & Fences
Monuments Lighting
Memorials Landscape Architecture

Procession Banners

Street Theatre Paving Stones

Identity Marker or Trademark Park Benches
Water features Murals

Program Rational - Benefits as Linked to Corporate Strategic Objectives

Over 160 cities in North America have adopted and implemented public art policies
and programs.

Benefits of public art include social interaction, citizenship, community connectivity,
beautification, community identity and economic catalysts.

For the City of Guelph, a Public Art Policy and program services to implement
several key objectives of the City’s Strategic Plan 07 and beyond.

Goal #1: Urban Design and Sustainable Growth / “"An Attractive, well functioning
and sustainable City.” Guelph’s current and future public art provide a distinct
community identity and a point of interest for both its citizens and its visitors (1.1).
As the downtown and key hubs continue to evolve, strategically placed public
artworks will reflect our community and will be a destination of national interest
(1.5) making Guelph a tourist interest of choice (3.6). A public art policy
demonstrates the City’s responsibility to provide cultural opportunities and presents
a positive image to visitors and potential investors.

Goal #2: Personal and Community Well Being/ "A healthy and safe community
where life can be lived to the fullest.” The process of participating in the
development of a public artwork ensures that citizens of Guelph access and
experience economic and social development opportunities afforded by the
integrative creative process of defining their neighborhood, an event, a theme or a
process. Engaging and connecting our communities in art builds our values of
inclusivity, volunteerism and philanthropy (2.6).

It is known that where public art is part of a community, there is an increased use
of public open space and amenities which creates a more social environment for
interaction and community building. This often results in safer neighborhoods and
cities (2.4).

Goal #4: Arts, Culture and Heritage / "A vibrant and valued arts, culture and
heritage identity.” Guelph is rich with artists and creators who live work and
showcase their works regionally, nationally and internationally. As the City grows
both in size and stature, its creators should be visible and have opportunities to
define the City’s identity to the world (4.2/ 4.5). Public art is the social expression
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of our diversity of artistic vision; these creators reflect our community and record
our identity to be shared with the world (4.5).

Goal #5: Government and Community Involvement/ "A community-focused,
responsive and accountable government”. A Public Art Policy and program ensures
that the commissioning of art works using a consultative and collaborative approach
to decision making (5.2). With a policy, program and master plan, the community
will have an open, accountable and transparent system for awarding commissions
and accepting donations of artworks (5.3). Working with the private sector and
neighborhood associations in the design and development of shared public art
projects ensures that we embrace partnerships to achieve strategic goals and
objectives (5.4). Ultimately, a formal policy, program and implementation plan will
provide the reasoned framework needed to ensure excellence in planning,
management and human resource utilization (5.6).

Framework of Principles — Public Art Policy and Program

The Cultural Advisory Committee has spent several months researching and
compiling examples of public art policies from other cities in Canada. City staff
reviewed their findings and discussed the framework as a model with which to
further develop a Public Art Policy and Program, for Council’s consideration.

The comprehensive Framework of Principles as per Attachment A included in this
report is recommended to Council. Subject to Council consideration staff would
proceed to draft a complete Public Art Policy for Council’s in 2009.

Staff Summary

A public art policy outlines a philosophical position of the city to ensure that all
citizens can access and participate in the cultural, social and economic development
opportunities arising from public art. For employers who seek out innovative and
creative cities within which to locate their businesses, public art signals that the city
is advanced, engaged and reflects its identity and livability to the world.

CORPORATE STRATEGIC PLAN
Please see Program Rational - Benefits as Linked to Corporate Strategic Objectives
in the report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The full collection of artworks owned by the City of Guelph currently does not
benefit from a complete inventory, long term maintenance plan or modern storage.
There are no resources allocated to the development of a public art policy or
program at this time. However, staff expertise and community support to develop
a draft policy does exist and can be committed to complete the policy draft.

For any Public Art Policy and Program, its administration will require staff to
properly manage the range of projects and processes inherent to this very public
jury system. Most municipalities charge staff directly to the flat rate Percentage for
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Art reserve fund; the allocation of their time is determined through the Public Art
Master plan which predetermines resourcing.

Further dialogue with Council and their deliberation upon the inclusion of a public
art program into the Corporate Strategic Plan will be required prior to undertaking
the development of an implementation plan and phased introduction of this
program into the capital and operating budgets.

It is also anticipated that a phased and gradual approach towards the
implementation of the policy will be required to ensure that the responsibilities
inherent in the program are well understood.

For 2008-2009, the City has identified public art funds for the Civic Square project
at the new City Hall. Council may direct staff to proceed in using the Framework of
Principles (Attachment A) to pilot the implementation of this commissioning process
using a jury and selection process. This will provide the opportunity to evolve a
phased approach towards the overall program plan.

DEPARTMENTAL CONSULTATION
Cultural Advisory Committee

COMMUNICATIONS

N/A

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A — Framework of Principles

- /j/ﬂ/,,::‘“

Prepared and Recommended By:
Ann Pappert

Director of Community Services
519-822-1260 ext. 2665
ann.pappert@guelph.ca
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CORPORATE POLICY Guelph
AND PROCEDURE ”'\NP/

POLICY Public Art Policy
REVISION DATE May 2011 draft

POLICY STATEMENT

The City of Guelph recognizes that art in public places is a valuable asset that
enhances the quality of life for its citizens, strengthens community pride, improves the
aesthetic of the public environment, and contributes to its cultural aspirations, social well
being and economic vitality. Through public art we celebrate our culture and heritage,
reflect our diversity, express shared values and define our unique identity. Public art
advances the City’s strategic goal to build a well-designed and appealing city that
supports the four pillars of sustainability and engages the community.

PURPOSE
The purpose of this Public Art Policy is to:

I. Establish a standardized and transparent process for the acquisition,
selection, maintenance, de-accession, monitoring and evaluation of
purchased and/or donated works of art for display in public spaces;

il. Provide guidelines for the selection and display of loaned art-works not
owned by the City of Guelph;

iii. Provide a sustainable funding model for the development, acquisition and
management of Public Art for the City of Guelph.

DEFINITIONS

Public Art is defined as artworks that are created by artists and acquired by the City
with the specific intention of being sited on or staged in municipally owned public space.
Works of public art may be permanent acquisitions or temporarily on loan, and may be
characterized as aesthetic, functional, interactive, or any combination thereof, and
created using any material or any combination of media, including but not limited to
sculptures, water features, paintings, drawings, textiles, furnishings, installations, and
kinetic works.

Art that does not leave a lasting record of its creation (i.e. ice sculptures) is considered
temporary art, and is not subject to this Policy. Furnishings, such as benches, light
standards, and signage, are exempt from this policy unless a design component is
commissioned. Municipally owned museum, library and archival collections,
commemorative plagues and memorials fall under separate existing policies, and are
therefore not subject to this Policy. Murals are also exempt from this Policy as they are
subject to a separate policy that will be developed specifically for mural projects.

Page 1 of 9 CITY OF GUELPH CORPORATE POLICY AND PROCEDURE



Artist refers to the designer/creator of a piece of artwork and can include, but is not
limited to, professional artists, graphic designers, collaborative teams, architects, and
landscape designers.

Public Space refers to the space that is available and frequently used by the public
within the public domain and can include, but is not limited to, parks, boulevards, trail
systems, open space, waterways, roads, bridges, gateways, street spaces, exterior and
interior public areas associated with City-owned buildings and civic squares.

Art Loans refers to artwork that is borrowed by the City, through a loan agreement, for
a defined period of time from a lender who owns and retains ownership of the artwork.

De-accessioning refers to the process of permanently removing a piece of Public Art
from a site or from the City’s permanent art collection.

Acquisition refers to the formal process used to accept an artwork into the City’s Public
Art Collection.

Permanent Art Collection refers to public artworks acquired, maintained and
preserved by the City and exhibited in the public domain for the benefit of this and future
generations.

Community Art is created collaboratively in a partnership between an artist and a self-
identified community. Community members actively participate in the creation of the
art. The artistic process is of equal importance to the artistic product.

PROCEDURE

1. Roles & Responsibilities
The selection of Public Art is a consultative process involving multiple
participants, including City staff, community representatives and Council.

1.1 Public Art Committee

A Public Art Committee (PAC) will be established as a standing subcommittee of
the Cultural Advisory Committee. The PAC will

I. advise on the implementation of the public art policy through the Cultural
Advisory Committee;

il. review proposed project scope and terms of reference;

iii. ensure application of established procedures and guidelines for each
selection process;

iv. advise and promote communication and outreach of the policy to the
community;
V. advise and recommend to Council through the Cultural Advisory

Committee on proposed gifts, donations and bequests to the city in
accordance to established guidelines;
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Vi. advise on the development and implementation of maintenance for the art
collection and for accessioning and de-accessioning of works associated
with the Public Art Policy; and

Vil. review the staff’'s Public Art Operational Plan for placing works within the
public domain.

The PAC will consist of seven (7) members selected from the community. At
least three (3) members of the committee will be from the Cultural Advisory
Committee. Four (4) members will be selected by the Cultural Advisory
Committee and shall have professional experience related to at least one of the
following disciplines: urban planning or developing, landscape architecture,
architecture, visual, literary or performing arts, art history, art administration or
education, curating, visual arts consulting, civil engineering, art reviewing/writing,
or heritage research and planning. The members shall be residents of Guelph
and shall demonstrate a significant knowledge of arts and culture.

The PAC will be subject to the City’s Code of Conduct policies to ensure a fair
and equitable treatment of all participants in the process and to ensure that their
recommendations to Council are without bias.

1.2 Role of Staff

The implementation of the Public Art Policy will be coordinated by the Arts and

Culture Program Officer. Staff will

I. facilitate regular PAC meetings circulating information; providing guidance,
arranging for the recording of minutes;

il. recommend to Council an annual budget through the budget process;

iii. establish and maintain the Public Art inventory;

V. coordinate conservation of the City’s Public Art collection as required;

V. investigate Federal, Provincial, or other sources of funding to promote and
support the development of art in public spaces in Guelph; and

Vi. assume responsibility for any other items arising from the implementation
process.

An inter-departmental public art planning team will be established to work in
conjunction with PAC for artwork selection and ongoing, long-term Public Art
planning, including site selection and maintenance. The planning team will
include staff representatives from the departments of Arts, Culture &
Entertainment, Parks & Recreation Program & Facilities, Planning, Legal,
Corporate Building Maintenance, and Economic Development &Tourism.

1.3 Role of City Council

Council will:

I act as an advocate for art in public spaces in the City;

il. approve the Public Art Policy;

ii. approve any changes to the Public Art Policy, as needed;
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V. receive recommendations from the PAC through staff related to the
acquisition, loan, or de-accession of Public Art;

V. authorize expenditures from the Public Art Reserve Fund; and

Vi. approve the annual Public Art budget through the budget process.

2. Funding

Funding to support the Public Art Policy will be provided through the establishment of a
Public Art Reserve Fund. For the years 2012 — 2014, funding to the reserve will come
from the allocation of $100,000 of the previous year’s operating surplus, if there is a
surplus available. This funding model will be re-evaluated at the end of the initial three
year period.

A minimum of 75% of all funds collected must be used for the design, fabrication,
installation and documentation of public artworks or community art projects chosen
through an objective jurying selection process.

Funds ranging up to 25% will be apportioned to the governance and administration of
the selection process, collection, inventory, insurance, staffing, legal requirements, de-
accessioning of works and the overall policy review.

Funding may also be provided through the Public Art Reserve Fund for community art
projects. A jury, consisting of PAC members and members of the inter-departmental
public art planning team, will determine whether or not a community art project should
proceed and/or be funded. The goal of these community art projects is to engage
citizens and may or may not include the use of professional artists.

Development contributions to the Reserve will be encouraged through Section 37 of the
Ontario Planning Act. Municipal contributions to a Public Art Reserve Fund will also be
used to leverage funding from other governmental and private sources.

Maintenance Budget
Maintenance costs for all site-specific works will be incorporated into the annual
operating budgets for each site.

A Public Art Maintenance budget line will be established and an annual allocation will be
made as part of the regular municipal operating budget process to address costs related
to the ongoing maintenance and conservation of those artworks in the City’s Public Art
collection not associated with a specific municipal building.

3. Acquisition
The City may acquire Public Art through selection and purchase, commission, or
donation.

The process for the selection of Public Art should:
e attract artists from a variety of artistic disciplines
* be meaningful, fair and equitable
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* encourage opportunities for learning, participation, and experimentation in arts
and culture

* incorporate and integrate Public Art into the planning, design, and execution of
selected civic development projects

Proposals for the acquisition of Public Art shall be solicited through:
* Oopen competition
* invited competition
» direct award, where permitted by the City’s Purchasing Policy

Public Art shall be selected on merit through a process informed by expertise and
community input through the PAC. The selection shall be made by a jurying process
coordinated by the Public Art Committee with guidance from the inter-departmental
public art planning team. The Executive Director, Community & Social Services, or
designate, will make the final recommendation to Council for approval.

Each work of art that is being considered for acquisition to the City’'s permanent
collection will be evaluated according to the following criteria:
» quality of work
» condition of work
* monetary and/or appraised value
» artistic reputation of the artist
» suitability of the work for display in a public space
» that the artwork does not duplicate other permanent collection works or
aspects of the collection
* relevance to the City’s natural and built environment, cultural heritage,
and/or history
» authenticity of the work
» ethical and legal considerations regarding ownership

All offers of gifts, donations and bequests of artworks shall be reviewed by the Public
Art Committee with guidance from the inter-departmental public art planning team to
assess artistic merit, site suitability and context, durability and maintenance
requirements, financial implications and public safety prior to any acquisition,
designation or installation as Public Art.

All acquisitions, whether purchased or accepted as donation, will be accompanied by a
maintenance plan that is supplied by the artist/donor. All donations must be
unencumbered and the locations for donated works of art will be subject to the Public
Art Operational Plan. The donor of the artwork must have legal title to the work and is
responsible for meeting the Canada Revenue Agency criteria to receive an Official
Receipt for Income Tax Purposes for the donation.

This process, which includes an appraisal of the artwork at the donor’s expense to
determine its fair market value, requires pre-approval of the Finance Department.
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The City may decline to consider or accept any gift, bequest or donation of art in its sole
discretion.

4, Display of Artwork not owned by the City

The City may secure, on a temporary basis, works of art for display in public spaces
through art loans. Temporary installations of artworks may last from one day to one
year, typically remaining on view for three to six months.

All artworks to be displayed in public spaces will be evaluated against the following
criteria:

» quality of the artwork

» artistic reputation of the artist

» suitability of the work for display in a public space (i.e. size, subject matter)

e condition of the artwork

e city’s ability to safely display and conserve the work

» exposure provided for Guelph artists

Proposals for art loans will be reviewed by an inter-departmental panel led by
Community & Social Services Department staff. Following the approval of a proposal, a
license agreement between the artist and/or sponsoring organization and the City will
be executed.

The artist and/or sponsoring organization will responsible for funding, installation,
maintenance, timely removal of the artwork, and restoration of the site.

5. Site Selection

Sites for Public Art will be identified through the development of a Public Art Operational
Plan. This plan, developed and managed jointly by Community & Social Services and
Planning, Engineering & Environmental Services and Operations & Transit Services, will
parallel the Public Art Policy and recommend a practical implementation strategy for
Public Art. In addition to identifying and prioritizing locations throughout the City where
Public Art may be situated, the Operational Plan will make recommendations regarding
theme and materials based on an assessment of the current inventory of Public Art and
will serve as the first stage in the development of a more detailed and longer-term
Public Art master plan.

Planning, Engineering & Environmental Services, Downtown Renewal, and Economic
Development & Tourism will work with new and established businesses, agencies and
other levels of government, architects, builders and contractors to identify opportunities
for Public Art in architecture, building and/or landscape designs of private infrastructure,
or the layout of open spaces, public connections to adjacent features (i.e. streets,
bridges, roa